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TUESDAY, AUGUST 15, 1967

House or ReprEsENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON CoNSUMER Arrairs
OF THE COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND Currency,
Waskington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to recess, at 9 :35 a.m. in room 2128,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Leonor K. Sullivan (chairman
of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Sullivan, Gonzalez, Minish, Annunzio,
Bingham, Dwyer, Halpern, Wylie, and Williams,

Mrs. SurLivan. The Subcommitiee on Consumer Affairs will come
to order. : :

We have set, our hearing forward a half hour this morning in order
to accommodate Mr. Louis Rothschild, executive director of the Mens-
wear Retailers of America. Mr. Rothschild was to have testified yes-
terday morning, but by the time we had reached him, T was the only
member of the subcommittee still in attendance because the Hougse
had gone into session at noon and the other members had to leave, I
was perfectly willing to stay yestetday morning into the lunch hour
to hear Mr. Rothschild but 1 did not think it was fair to him to have
only one member present to hear his testimony, so I gave him the choice
of testifying then or coming in at this hour this morning.

We have been working very hard over the past 10 days on this legis-
lation with morning and afternoon sessions, and it is'a real sacrifice
for the members to come this early in the morning when there is so
much to do in our own offices. We will now hear you, Mr. Rothschild,
with the understanding that shortly before 10 o’clock we will have to
turn to the witnesses who have come from out of town for the sched-
uled hearing this morning at 10 o’clock on section 207 of H.R. 11601
dealing with commodity futures.

STATEMENT OF LOUIS ROTHSCHILD, EXECUTIVE DIRECT’VOR,.
MENSWEAR RETAILERS OF AMERICA

Mr. Rormscrrrp, Thank you, Madam Chairman. I am extremely
appreciative to you and the other members of the committee to take
time out of your busy schedule to be here this morning. :

I am Louis Rothschild, executive director of Menswear Retailers
of America—for over 50 years the nationally recognized trade asso-
ciation of men’s and boys” wear retailers with over 3,300 members in
all parts of the Nation. Our industry is typical of small retailing con-
stituting an important part of our economy to which Congress and
the administration has so often pledged its support. We are acutely
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aware of the difficult problems now being faced by small business in
its continual battle for survival and growth. The last Census Bureau
showed that 3,000 small men’s wear stores disappeared from the eco-
nomic picture in the past 5 years preceding the 1963 business census.
To a substantial degree, we feel that we appear here today not only
as the spokesman for men’s wear retailers, but for all small retailing.

Madam Chairman and gentlemen of the committee, my presenta-
tion will be necessarily blunt, possibly untactful, possibly reactionary
in the eyes of many—but definitely sincere. May I assure the com-
mittee and the Congress that our effort to get back to fundamentals
are made with the highest regard for the integrity and ability of the
fine individuals who are serving our Nation in the important adminis-
trative and legislative positions. Our association has repeatedly con-
firmed by our resolutions committee, by our board of directors and.
by our membership at annual meetings our opposition to unwarranted
Federal controls. This was last recorded in a formal resolution adopted
at our convention in Dallas on February 18, 1966, which read:

The Menswear Retailers of America is unalterably opposed to the extension
of the onerous burdens imposed upon the retailers by the continued expansion: of
Government regulations and controls on purely local retail businesses. We re-

iterate our continued opposition to legislative proposals . . . which would
establish unnecessary and unrealistic controls on credit sales. i

In the Senate hearings and the hearings before this subcommittee,
e have been seriously distressed as the representatives of large, mam-
moth, interstate retailing have voiced their approval of Federal con-
trol of credit sales. There is only one conclusion to reach: these mass
merchandisers who fear the adoption of more stringent and varied
legislation in the States—where primary jurisdiction should exist—
are sacrificing small, independent retailers in favoring the principles
involved in the sweeping legislation now being considered by this
subcommittee. It is our firm opinion that these voices of large re-
tailers are selling the small retailers down the river for their own
protection and interest.

HL.R. 11601 is not a proposal to regulate economic stability and cur-
rency and moneys of this country but is a sweeping effort to regulate
and control the business morals of this country. This is not a truth-
in-credit bill—it is a business control measure. T respectfully submit
that the present proposal is not within the jurisdiction of this sub-
committee but is more properly within the jurisdiction of other com-
mittees of the Congress charged with regulation of commerce within
the jurisdiction of the Constitution of the United States. The provi-
sion included in H.R. 11601 regulating the advertising of credit, T
respectfully submit, is proof positive of this point, of argument. The
question as to whether this committee has jurisdiction in garnishment
would appear to me, as a longtime student of government, to be more
properly within the jurisdiction of the Committee on the Judiciary,
which has charge of the bankruptcy laws and legislation pertaining
to it. ‘

Tt is my sincere recommendation to this committee as an experienced
trade association executive as well as an attorney that this committee
obtain studied legal opinion as to the constitutionality of the proposals
now being considered. f
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Following are the basic points surrounding the constitutional
question : i

First, the proposals are of doubtful constitutionality, in my opinion,
because they will attempt to regulate purely local, intrastate commerce.
The individual dealings between a. customer and retailer in Wichita,
Kans., are hardly within the province of the Federal Congress. It is as
individual as the price of the garment, the fit of the garment, and the
‘manner in which it is delivered to the customer.

A second point of doubtful legality is that the Federal ‘Government
is encroaching upon the basic right of freedom of contract between
two individuals neither of whom are engaged in interstate commerce,
It was my privilege to hear Mr. Margolius yesterday, and on page 8 of
his statement :

But the question before this country today is whether we should permit laws
which enable unscrupulous sellers to take advantage of innocence and trust.

In other words, he favors that the Congress veto the legislation of

the 50 States—the legislation which has been adopted in those States

to regulate the business in intrastate commierce in those States.

If the é}oroposed legislation is amended to apply only to those mass
merchandisers, those giant chains of department stores, to the great
mail-order houses, all of whom are unquestionably in interstate com-

actions—then, of course, independent, local retailers could have no
objection to the proposed congressional action,

But, to subject hundreds of thousands of small retailers who are
not in interstate commerce to ederal Government regulation and con-
trol; to require them to have the same technical know-how in comply-
ing with the law; adds an unholy burden to their day-to-day operations.
- This subcommittee must be aware that the small business in this
country is fighting a losing battle for survival, despite the efforts of
the Congress and the administration which are intended to help. This
proposed legislation adds still another barrier to survival for the small
retailer. The small retailer has been forced to go into credit selling in
order to compete with the large, mass distributors. He is not in the
credit business by choice, ‘

Finally, there has been substantial testimony before this subcom-
mittee concerning the accepted fact that the unfortunate poor in this
country are particularly victimized by unserupulous businesses, includ-
ing retailing, and, particularly, in the credit field. We know that in
Mmany cases these charges are true. We are familiar with the “dollar
down and dollar when I catch you” merchants operating in poorer
sections of metropolitan cities.

This deplorable situation—and we heard the horror stories from
Mr. Margolius yesterday. I, personally, in my distant youth, ran a
better business bureau for 12 years and know considerably of these
so-called horror stories—often recited before the Congress by those
favoring the proposed legislation, adds weight to our argument that
this legislation has the primary purpose of promoting economic sta-
bility and regulating the currency and moneys of this Nation, but is a
direct legislative attempt to regulate business integrity and practices.
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Unfortunately, those who favor this legislation to correct the evil

of unscrupulous operators of this type face certain disappointment.
. May I interpose to say that many of these cases that were heard
yesterday involve fraud—violation of the present law. Fraudulent
operators will violate any law—thieves will always be thieves. The
way to correct it is to enforce the present law, and there are many
facilities existing for the correction and prosecution of fraud.

The committee is aware of the historic fact that the law has never
defined “frand” because the capacity of the human mind is such that
those who want to perpetuate fraud find ways to evade all statutes.

The questionable credit clothing stores operating in the slums of

- America and feeding off the poor and the illiterate normally do not
make a charge for credit. In many instances, they blatantly advertise
“no charge for credit.” They take advantage of the poor In the ex-
orbitant charges made for the merchandise. A legitimate store will
normally sell a suit costing the merchant $50 for about $85. This store,
extendine credit beyond a 90-day eriod, normally levies a service
charge 0% 11/, percent on the u‘npa,icf balance. The questionable credit
operator will buy 2 much inferior suit for $35 and will sell it on the
“Jollar down and dollar a week” basis for $100 or higher—no charge
for credit. The proposals now under consideration will not correct this
existing evil but rather will promote its growth.

* As a matter of fact, if this legislation passes, many Jegitimate stores
will discontinue service charges for credit. They will I%nd the provi-

" gions too burdensome and too difficult to comply with. The easy road

is to eliminate a charge for credit. The expense of credit will be hid-

den in the markup on merchandise. This means the cash buyer will be
 penalized and will be paying for the credit extended to the credit buyer.

The cost of credit will be driven underground.

For these reasons—because of the fundamentals of Americanism
~ and respect for our great Nation’s constitutional principles—I sin-
cerely feel it is my duty as a spokesman for Menswear Retailers of
America tooppose the proposed legislation.

We realize our arguments differ sharply from the many leaders of
American - big business engaged in interstate commerce who have

receded us to the witness stand. The explanation is simple. The
~ problems - of survival for small, independent, local business differ
~ sharply from their large counterparts.

Thank you very much, Madam Chairman and members of the
committee.

Mrs. Surrrvax. Thank you, Mr. Rothschild.

‘We are c%lad to have your statement, for we believe all sides should
be heard dn a matter of this kind. However, I do not agree that this
committee has neither the jurisdiction nor the competence to look into
these issues. : ' :

You say that most of your members make a monthly service charge
of only 114 percent, usually, for credit beyond 90 days. Does that
mean—as 1 hope it does—that most of them make no charge at all
for the 90-day period, considering that a cash transaction?

_ Mr. Rorascairp. That’s correct, in most cases. There is no uniform-
ity. Approximately, among our membership today, 70 percent of the
sales are made on credit. Of that 70 percent, 50 percent 1s made on the
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basis of a 30-day charge account which sometimes lapses into 90 days
with no charge. Then there are 3-month charge accounts, 6-month
charge accounts, 1-year credit terms on which there are service charges.
few of our stores are in revolving credit, . :
Mrs. Surtivan. Would it not solve some of your problems in com-
Peting with the unscrupulous. credit outfits if we eliminated garnish-

by both the seller and the buyer. ;

Mr. Roruscrirp, The easy answer, Madam Chairman, and may I
say that while I do not think this committee hag jurisdiction, I did
not question the competence of the members of the committee,

he easy answer to your last question is “Yes.” If we are going to
stand on principle, what right has the Federal Government to regulate
State laws of the 50 States on the matter of garnishment which is a
local matter within the jurisdiction only of the States? T may be
awfully reactionary in this modern day and age in making such a
firm statement. Buf if T am going to appear here on principle, on the
basic principle against the growing encroachment of. the Federal
overnment on small local business, I have got to appear all the
way.

Mrs. SurLivax, May I refer you to the material I placed in the
Congressional Record last night containing the testimony given to
us last Friday morning by four referees in bankruptey from all
across the country., They reported to us on the basis of some 54 years
of experience in personal bankruptcies in the Federal courts. I wish
You would read that testimony.

Mr. Rorascuirp. I read the newspaper report. T will be pleased to
read that testimony. I do not think it changes the fundamenta}. The

!

Mrs. Surrivax., My only comment on that, Mr. Rothschild, is that

Mrs. SuLLivan. We have about 2 minutes remaining for this period.
Do you, Mrs. Dwyer, or any of the other members have any questions
for Mr. Rothschild ? Mr. Gonzalez?

Mr. Gonzarez. T have one question. You do have the Wool Products
Labeling Act, the Flammable Products Act, the Fur Products Label.
ing Act and the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act which in a
way regulates your constituents in having to identify and give infor-
mation to the consumer as to the product, its quality, and its identi-

cation,

Mr. Rormscuip. That’s correct, Mr. Gonzalez. Those laws specifi-
cally read, affecting interstate commerce, The Federal Trade Commjs-
sion Act itself is different,

Mr. GonzaLrz. To be effective they would have to come under some
purview of Federal jurisdiction somewhere—constitutional or statu-
tory authority.
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Mr. Roruscuirp. That’s correct.

Mr, Gonzavgz. Even if this proposed act would have to come under
that general definition.

Mr. Roruscrmp. We have all forgotten about the old Schecter
decision, NRA, but T am not sufficiently acquainted with the techni-
cality of the language, but if the language in this bill is such that it
construes a credit contract as affecting interstate commerce, I think
it opens the door for litigation in the future. But it does provide an
oxcuse for constitutionality of the bill. However, the fact remains
that you are interfering in the rights of local people.

~(Mr. Rothschild subsequently <ubmitted the following letter per-
taining to Mr. Gonzalez line of questioning:)

: MENSWEAR RETAILERS OF AMERICA,
Washington, D.C., August 17, 196"7.
Hon. HENRY B. GONZALEZ,

House of Representatives,
W.ashington, D.C.

My DEeAR MR. GONZALEZ: We deeply. appreciate the interest you have demon-
strated in the hearings on the Truth and Lending legislation and, particularly,
concerning the problems of the small independent; merchants who comprise
a large portion of this Association.

During- the course of my testimony on Tuesday morning, August 15th, you
directed a very | intelligent question to me concerning the point we have raised
over Federal controls on purely intrastate businesses.

In this question, you cited as an example the regulations contained in the
‘Wool Products Labeling Act, the Flammable Products Act, the Fur Products
Labeling Act and the Textile Fiber Identification Act as being an existing
example of Federal regulation of our constituents.

While I attempted to answer your question for the hearing record during my
appearance and referred to the distinguishing features of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, it seems to me, on further reflection, a more important differ-
ence should haye been cited by me in response to your question.

The various forms of regulations noted in your question place the primary
compliance responsibility with the manufacturer of the product who, in most
cases, is engaged in interstate commerce. There is not a practical day to day
compliance problem on the part of small merchants.

We would bé delighted if you would care to insert this letter as an appendix
to our statement as it appears in the printed hearings.

Respectfully,
} Louis ROTHSCHILD,
Bzecutive Director.

Mr., Wirriams. Mr. Rothschild, I want to compliment you on an
excellent presentation, and you have been asked, the question, if
garnishments were removed, would that not take something away
from the small unscrupulous businessman ? My question is, if you
remove garnishments as a tool of collection, what protection is the
small businessman going to have against the person who is over-
extending their credit using perhaps the excuse that they are poor
to buy more than they really should be buying?

Mr. RorascuiLp. The creditor, in his legal efforts for collection
today 1is handicapped. The small claims courts of this country are
consumer-oriented today. I have had considerable experience in_ the
picture and in my distant youth I practiced law and handled collec-
tions and made some garnishments. Tt is a tool—a last-resort tool for
the legitimate creditor to try to collect from the deadbeat debtor.

Mr. WirLiams. Do you think this is a tool that the small business-
man needs to have available to him in his effort to stay in business?
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Mr. Rorascrip. I think it is a proper legal instrument for the
enforcement of a judgment. ~ '

Mrs. Surrivan. Thank you, Mr. Rothschild.

Mr. Rormscawp. Thank you. ‘ :

Secrion 207.—Commopiry - Furures MARGINS

Mrs. Surtivan. I would now like to call to the witness table the
- representatives of the commodity exchanges interested in section
207 of H.R. 11601,

Nearly all of our witnesses who have expressed any interest what-
soever in section 207 of H.R. 11601 up to this point in our hearings on
the Consumer Credit Protection Act have voiced either uncertainty or
dismay about having this particular section in a bill dealing primarily
with consumer credit and truth in lending. Some have said that if
there is any need to regulate margins in commodity futures trading,
it should be done in some other bill—not on the truth-in-lending meas-
ure, regardless of how broad that measure might be. :

Others have testified—including the Vice Chairman of the Federal
Reserve Board which would have the regulatory power over margins
under section 207—that they just don’t know anything about the sub-
ject. Perhaps, they said, the Department of Agriculture should regu-
late margins on commodity futures—including, presumably, on fu-
tures trading in zine, rubber, copper, silver, platinum, and even bags
of silver dollars, along with those agricultural commodities like pork
bellies, live cattle, coffee, and sugar which are now traded in futures
contracts without any form of regulation by any agency of the Federal
Government.

It is true that the Department of Agriculture’s Commodity Ex-
change Authority regulates trading in a number of agricultural com-
modity futures, but it does not have any jurisdiction over margins set
by the various exchanges. It has requested such authority from time
to time—but not this year, when a new administration bill was sent up
to amend the Commodity Exchange Act. It has reported that the ques-
tion of margins is still being studied, following the receipt of a still-
secret economic report on the subject by a private consulting firm.

The Committee on Banking and Currency has no jurisdiction over
the Commodity Exchange Act, and seeks none. We are not attempting
to decide what agricultural commodities now traded on futures ex-
changes but not subject to the Commodity Exchange Act should be
placed under that act—although I, as an individual Member of Con-
gress, have introduced bills on that subject for the past 18 years, with
only one hearing during all of that time—and no action. But that
does not directly concern this committee or the Consumer Affairs
Subcommittee.

We are, however, interested in—and responsible for—legislation
dealing with gyrating prices of consumer products and essential de-
fense materials. The Defense Production Act comes within the purview
of the Committee on Banking and Currency, and this act originally
contained authority for price regulation and for standby powers in the
Federal Reserve Board over consumer and real estate credit. And, of
course, the Federal Reserve Act comes under the Banking Committee.

In a comprehensive piece of legislation dealing with all aspects of
credit, including defense emergency standby powers over consumer

83-340—67—pt. 2——2



600 | CONSUMER CREDIT PROTECTION ACT

credit, some of us sponsoring H.R. 11601 felt that it was time—and
long past time—that Congress took a critical look also at futures
trading practices on very low margin which lead to great gyrations
* in prices of foodstuffs and essential defense materials. I do not consider
bags of 1,000 silver dollars as essential defense articles, although silver,
of course, certainly is. So are the other metals and nonagricultural com-
modities traded on futures markets, and so, of course, are those raw
and partly processed agricultural commodities also traded in futures
contracts but not now subject to any futures trading regulation.

Hence the inclusion of section 207 in this bill. We want to know why
this large segment of our economy—unlike the stock exchanges—Is
outside of the scope of investor protection and economic stabilization
powers. If the Federal Reserve doesn’t know enough about futures
trading even to hazard a guess as to how to regulate margins, should
the job go to the SEC? Or—as the witnesses today will undoubtedly
maintain—should this type of trading continue to go on in rubber, zinc,
lead, copper, platinum, silver, tin, mercury, and so on, with no Govern-
ment agency looking over the shoulders of speculators or manipulators,
even though the effects of their operation may determine the prices
paid by the Defense Department for equipment or the prices paid by
consumers for essential items ¢

And on the agricultural commodities—whether regulated or not,
and many of them are not regulated—should the relative ease with
which contracts can be purchased or sold on little or no cash be of
no concern to the Government either ¢

This subcommittee has had occasion in previous years to look into
spirals in two important consumer items—coffee and sugar. In both
instances, frantic speculative activity in unregulated futures trading
set off a spiral of consumer prices. Ironically, it was trading primarily
in foreign sugar futures—sugar which would never come to the United
States—which pulled up domestic sugar prices in 1963 to the highest
level in many, many years. In 1954, a deliberate hoax about a Brazilian
coffee shortage provided the atmosphere for a rigged futures market,
ang. sent the price of a pound of coffee here in the United States
to $1.32.

That is the backdrop on which we have set up this hearing this
morning. We want to know why there is something so special and un-
usual and mysterious about futures trading that the public has no
right to set limits on gambling with borrowed money in this area, even
though the public must pay the consequences of speculative excesses.

We invited a representative group of the major exchanges—not just
in grains and other agricultural commodities, but in the metals and
minerals—to send representatives here this morning, and most of them
quickly accepted. Other exchanges also asked to be included, and we
invited them, too. Several have since had a change of heart and the
group here this morning represents the hardy survivors who have
agreed not only to tell us why we should not enact section 207 but also
to answer our questions and let us learn something about their opera-
tions. We are glad to have all of you.

Before calling the witnesses, I want to insert in the record a most
unusual document in the light of most of the testimony we will receive
this morning. It is a letter addressed to me by the president of an ex-
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change which completely and enthusiastically endorses and supports
that section of HL.R. 11601 which relates to it. It goes all the way in
favor of our bill—or rather of one section.” e T

It is from Mr. Keith Funston, president of the New York Stock
Exchange, and he completely endorses section 208, and I am delighted
that this exchange, at least, likes something in H.R. 11601. Section 2083,
I might add, is the one which exempts “transactions in securities or
commodities in accounts by a broker-dealer registered with the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission” from the annual percentage rate credit
disclosure requirements of H.R. 11601. A similar provision was in-
cluded in S. 5 as it passed the Senate, and is in FLR. 11602, also. So, on
that point, there is no controversy. ' :

Mr. Funston’s letter will be inserted at this point,

'(The letter referred to follows:) : : :
NEw YoRK STOCK EXOHANGE,
) New York, N.Y., August 9, 1967.
Hon. LeoNor K. SULLIVAN, 3
Chairman, Subcommittee on Consumer Affairs, House Committee on Banking

and Currency, Rayburn House Ofice Building, Washington, D.C.

DpAR CHAIRMAN SULLIVAN : As the Sub-Committee on Consumer Affairs begins
its consideration of 8. 5, HR 11601 and HR 11602, I'would like to take this means
to explain why the Exchange believes the provision in Section 8 of 8. 5 and HR
11602 and Section 203 of HR 11601 which exempts “transactions in securities or
commodities in accounts by a broker-dealer registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission” is well founded. . : i

The securities industry is one of the most regulated businesses in the United
States. The most significant aspect of securities regulation, however, is the self-
regulatory influence exerted by groups within the industry itself, such as the stock
exchanges and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. For many
years, this system of self-regulation, supplemented by government oversight, has
worked to keep the securities industry acutely aware of the interests of investors.

- Being mindful of the Exchange’s self-regulatory responsibility in this area of
margin account interest ratés, the Board of Governors addressed itself to the sub-
ject in July, 1966. As the result of Board action taken at that time, the staff was.
directed to undertake an educational program designed to encourage member or-
ganizations carrying margin accounts to voluntarily disclose to customers the
interest rates charged on debit balances. A follow-up survey made in September, )
1966 indicated that 679 of member organizations carrying margin accounts
showed or intended to show interest rates. : s e

. After providing a period of time for member organizations to begin disclosing
margin account interest rates on a voluntary basis, the Board of Governors, at its
July, 1967 Policy Meeting, adopted an amendment to Exchange Rules making
disclosure of interest rates mandatory. This proposal was, of course, submitted
to the Securities and Exchange Commission before being adopted by the Board.
The text of the amendment together with an explanation of its application are

included in the enclosed circular which has been sent to-all members and member o

organizations of the Exchange. ! &

The affirmative steps taken by the Exchange’s Board of Governors in this in-
.stance provides an excellent example of how the self-regulatory system can and
does fulfill its responsibility to the investing public and the securities industry.
This action obviates the need for the Congress to direct such disclosure. Further, .
it demonstrates that the exemption in 8.5, HR 11601 and HR 11602 is fully justi-
fied and should be retained. L

Yours very truly, . = :
G. Keire FUNSTON, President.

Mrs. SurLivaN. Now, to go back to the arena of controversy, we
will ask our witnesses this morning to group themselves around the
table. May I suggest that the representatives of each exchange who are
present take turns in identifying themselves for the official reporter
and for us, list the name of the exchange, the commodities traded
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~ thereon, the volume of trading a year in each item, the average value
of a contract in dollars, and also in tons, pounds, ounces, or whatever
the trading unit is, what the current margin is in percentage of cost
of a contract, what that represents in dollars, and then we will go on
from there and you can make your statements.

I am sure there will be some repetition in the statements which
perhaps can be overcome by telling us about the unique differences
‘which may exist among the products traded on the various exchanges.
" TFirst, however, if you will identify your exchange and give the
- information I requested; that is—and I’ll read this more slowly—the
commodities traded on your exchange, the volume of trading a year
in each item, the average value of a contract in dollars and the size or
quantity of the trading unit, what the current mar, in is in percentage
of cost of a contract and what that represents in ollars. Let us start

" with the chairman of the New York Mercantile Exchange, Mr. Llewel-

lyn Watts, Jr., whose statement, I believe, was the first to arrive, Will

you tell us, Mr. Watts, what commodities are handled on your ex-

‘change and give the information I requested about them. :

" Mr. Wirrranms.. Could I suggest also that it might be helpful to the

committee to know to what extent credit was involved in these trans-

actions? - : o ‘ '
Mrs. Svruvax. Credit is, of course, margin.
Mr. Wiuizams. There may be some disagreement on that point.

- Mrs. Surnivax. Would the first gentleman to my left identify him-

~ self and then we will continue from left to right in the order in which

you are seated.

STATEMENTS OF ROGER W. GRAY, PROFESSOR, STANFORD UNI-
'VERSITY, CALIFORNIA; WILLIS C. THEIS, PRESIDENT, BOARD
OF TRADE OF KANSAS CITY, MO.; WILLIAM F. BROOKS, ON BE-
HALF OF THE NATIONAL GRAIN TRADE COUNCIL; MAURICE

. MOUND; ESQ., REIN, MOUND & COTTON, NEW YORK, N.Y.; J. 8.
 CHARTRAND, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, KANSAS CITY
~ BOARD OF TRADE; F. MARION RHODES, PRESIDENT, NEW YORK
. COTTON EXCHANGE; LLEWELLYN WATTS, JR., CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD OF THE NEW YORK MERCANTILE EXCHANGE; AND
ALEX €. CALDWELL, ADMINISTRATOR, COMMODITY EXCHANGE
AUTHORITY, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE : '

Mr, Mouxp. My name is Maurice Mound. I am counsel for the New
~ York Cotton Exchange and the New York Mercantile Exchange. I am

here to assist my clients. I am a member of the firm of Mound, Rein &
~ Cotton, New York. : S

Mrs. SuLLivaN. The next gentleman? - : S

Mr. Warrs. My name is Llewellyn Watts, Jr. I am chairman of the
" Board of the New York Mercantile Exchange.

Mr. Ruopops. I am F. Marion Rhodes, president of the New York
 Cotton Exchange. : ‘ .

Mr. Gray. I am Prof. Roger W. Gray, Stanford University. I am
~appearing on behalf of the Grain & Feed Dealers National Association,
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which is not an exchange but whose members are members of the
‘numerous exchanges. ’ ; ; :

Mr. Turrs. My name is Willis C. Theis. I am president of the Board
of Trade of Kansas City, Mo.

Mr. CraarTranND. My name is J. S. Chartrand, and I am executive
vice president of the Kansas City Board of Trade. '

Mr. Brooxs. I am William F. Brooks. I am president and general
counsel of the National Grain Trade Council. We are all users of
futures markets. ’

Mrs. Suriivan. Now, we would like the information that I out-
lined. Please give us the commodities, value of the contracts, and so
on, traded on your exchanges. : Bl

Mr. Watts, would you begin ?

Mr. Warrs. I have asked if I would yield to Professor Gray because
of limitation of time. ‘ : ‘

Mrs. Surtavan. Before Mr. Gray begins his testimony could we get
from you, Mr. Watts, the commodities traded on your exchange?

Mr. Warrs. Potatoes and platinum. Potatoes are regulated ; platinum
isnot.

Mrs. Svrrivan. The volume of trading last year in each of these
items? ,

Mr. Warts. Approximately a half million contracts of potatoes, and
1,200 to 1,500 contracts of platinum. I haven’t the figures with me.

Mrs. SurLivan. The average value of the contract in dollars and the
size or quantity of the trading unit?

Mr. Warrs. Potatoes will average $1,500 a contract or less, and the
average margin on money to be placed for the protection of the clear-
inghouse or clearning member is approximately 15 to 18 -percent.

Mrs. SurLivan. Isthat unusual? ‘

Mr. Warrs. What ?

Mrs. Surrivan. Is that 15 or 18 percent unusual, or is that a normal
percent of margin ? ‘

Mr. Watrs. It is with us. We also have an escalating clause; as the
price goes higher the margin becomes higher. ‘

Mrs. Surrivan. The percentage of margin becomes higher, or the
amount ? ‘ ,

Mr. Warrs. The amount goes higher. You see, these are futures con-
tracts, not cash markets—when the market reaches a cash basis, then
we ask for $150 more each contract—whatever it is—if the margin is
up then to around $300 or $350 we ask for another $150 to insure that
the contracts will be properly carried out.

Mrs. SurLivan. You mentioned that the contract in dollars for
potatoes runsto about $1,500?

Mr. Warts. That’s right.

Mrs. SurLivan. What is the size or quantity of the unit?

Mr. Warrts. 50,000 pounds.

Mrs. Surnivan. And in platinum ?

Mr. Warts. Fifty ounces.

Mrs. Surrivan. And the value?

~ Mr. Warrs. The value—it is pretty high right now—>50 ounces—
I don’t trade in platinum much. ‘

Mrs. SurLivaN. You can supply that for us.
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(The information requested follows:)

1966 Platinum volume 1,033 50-ounce contracts.

Minimum margin $300, long or short.

Value range $5,000-$6,500. : R

Limit permitted daily fluctuation $5 per ounce or $250 per contract.

Minimum pri¢e changeé 5 cents per ounce or $2.50 per contract.

Mrs. SurLivan. Mr. Rhodes, can you give us those answers for your
commodities?,

Mr. Ruopes. New York Cotton Exchange trades in cotton futures.
The cotton futures market has been almost destroyed in the last 15
or 20 years by the operations of the Commodity Credit Corporation
in the Department of Agriculture. As you probably know, the Depart-
ment of Agriculture has programs under which they make loans on
raw cotton, they take over the loans at the end of the year, and they
have it in their own inventory, list it in a catalog, and offer it for
sale at a fixed price. Recently they have been announcing their price
for as much as 2 years in advance. Everybody in this country and in
foreign countries knows the ﬁrice at which they can purchase CCC
inventory stocks of cotton. When the market is completely dominated
by the Cfovernment there is no need or a place for a futures market.
So our market in the last 3 years has been almost defunct.

As you probably know, the New Orleans Cotton Exchange closed
up completely and liquidated its assets as a result of this Govern-
ment program. Now it looks like the worm has turned. Cotton prices
now have gone above the loan level established by the Government
and cotton trading is beginning again. In March we opened up a
new contract based on Middling 11¢-inch staple cotton. This con-
tract is beginning to move quite well during the last 6 to 8 weeks.
Now after many years of inactivity, we are at a position where our
market is needed again by the textile mills and by the merchants of
this country. We hate to see anything done that would destroy the
start .that we have made.

Specifically to your questions, a contract in cotton is 100 bales—
roughly today’s price of cotton is about 20 cents, so that the value of a
contract would be around $10,000. Both the buyer and seller of a
futures contract are required to put up margin, so both sides would put
up $500 margin to guarantee their contract. The volume of sales in the
last vear was about 2,000 cotton contracts. ,

Mrs. SurLivan. Does that margin of $500 vary, or is it a flat $500, or a
percentage which comes out to $500 on a $10,000 contract.?

Mr. Ruopes. $500 for some time. The board of directors has the
power to change it any time it has reason to change it. But it is our be-
lief that margins should be as low as it is possible for them to be to
promote the maximum amount of trading, because that makes our
market more fluid and more liquid and of more use to the public.

Mrs. Svrnivan. I am sorry that the New York Coffee and Sugar Ex-
change representatives are not here this morning. They have sent a
statement. Back in 1963 they were before our subcommittee on sugar
and in 1964 on coffee. We were also in New York to watch the bidding
on this and some of the other exchanges, and then we did some investi-
gative work on sugar futures. It was very enlightening, :

Mr. Ruopes. I might add that I have been on both sides of the cotton
market. I spent 27 years in the Department of Agriculture where I
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administered the Government’s cotton program. I grow cotton myself
out in Missouri and I am now on the futures market side of it. So I
know from personal experience that a futures market has g very im-
portant part to play, not only to the Missouri cotton farmer, the com-
sumer of cotton, the merchant and, millowner. I do have a statement
which I assume will be put in the record. But since I received your
letter I thought it would be better to give one person ample time to
explain the operations of a commodity market than to have me take
more time.

Mrs. Surrivan. Your prepared statements will be placed in the
record in full. :

) Mre Theis, will you tell us about the commodities traded in Kansas
City?

Mr. Tarrs. Madam Chairman, as stated, my name is Willis C. Theis,
president of the Board of Trade of Kansas City, Mo.—4800 Main Street
in Kansas City, Mo.

We are now trading, actively trading in wheat, corn, grain sorghums,
and feeder cattle. The volume of trade, if you would like to know the
volume—do you want to know the volume of the contract or the total
amount of trading during the year? '

Mrs. SurLvan. Total volume of trading in each contract, and then
an approximation of the value of a contract, and the physical size
of the contract in terms of tons or bushels or whatever.

Mr. Tazs. T will just ramble on. The wheat, grain sorghum, and
corn contracts are of a unit of 5,000 bushels or multiples thereof.

The value of the contracts vary as to the level of price, but approxi-
mately today the wheat contract, the 5,000 unit, is worth approxi-
mately $7,500. The corn contract of the same size has an approximate
value of $6,000. The milo grain sorghum contract has a value of ap-

have not mentioned the size of the feeder cattle contract, but it
i$s one of 25,000 pounds and this unit today has a value of approximately
6,500.

Now, as to the percent of the margin that is asked on all of these—
I should back up here. As of last year, we do not have this year’s
record because the trading year has not been completed. But in the
year 1966 we had a total volume in wheat of 929,292,000 bushels.

In corn we had a volume of 30,900,000 bushels. ,

Mrs. Surrrvax. When you give us these totals can you tell us there
how many contracts these represented for the year? ,

Mr. Turts. We will divide by 5,000, and Tet’s say there are about
200,000 contracts of wheat. Let’s call the milo about 600,000—that
is the corn. About 6,000 contracts there and about 6,500 contracts in
grain sorghums and actually 596 contracts in the feeder cattle. last
year. \ ' :

Now, as to the margins. They average approximately 5 percent of
the value of the contract. This is true for all of the contracts, with
the exception of the feeder cattle, and I would request that I be given
the opportunity to furnish this to the committee on accurate records,
because these prices do not stay with me on feeder cattle. '

Mrs. Surrrvan. We will be happy to have you do that.
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Mrs. SurLivaN. Mr. Chartrand—oh, you are with Mr. Theis, and
would have the same information.

My, CrarTrAND. Except there is no credit extended. Margins are
- charged, required—maintenance and initial margins are required, but
no credit is extended.

Mrs, SuLLIvAN. Mr. Brooks?

Mr. Brooks. We don’t do any trading. Our members do.

Mrs. Surivax. I am interested in the margin that is needed in order
to buy and sell in the futures market because we found that, in the
case of sugar, when an investigation was made under subpena—the
brokers asked to be subpenaed so they could divulge their informa-
‘tion without breaking confidence with their customers—that specu-
lators who had never ever been in the sugar market before were coming
" into it in 1963 to try to make a. fast dollar. For a few hundred dollars
they could trade on futures contracts worth many thousands. Many
of them came out well heeled, while others went broke. But because
of the speculative fever involving so many people who had never been
into this kind of trading before, the price was pushed up to the highest
Jevel in 40 years. Our reason for going into this in 1963 was the dou-
bling of sugar prices. Users of sugar—the confectioners, the soft drink
people,. an others—pleaded with the Congress to do something to
help stabilize a commodity whose price was completely out of control.
By the time we started our investigation, sugar had gone to something
like 13.9 cents on the world market. Today if I recall the last figures I
have seen it is something like 2 cents.

'Mr. Trers. Madam Chairman, I ‘would like to make one statement
as to margins and percent that were mentioned to you and given to
your committee. ;

Please understand that those are minimum margins. As far as mar-
gins are concerned on the Kansas City Board of Trade in their con-
tracts they are governed by the board of directors and also looked over
and scrutinized by the business conduct committee in the action of our
members, and they are set at a ‘minimum level as to the times. They do
fluctuate.and they have been: known to fluctuate, and we have a com-
plete schedule showing how they have fluctuated. This is the margin
through the years. ' :

Mrs. Svrrivaxn. I do not know about the other committee members, _
but I think most of us are fairly ignorant of how the futures market
works on grains and other regulated'commodities. The only experience
we have had as a subcommittee haye been, as I said, in coffee and sugar -
* futures. Neither of those commodities are under any regulation at all.
After the Federal Trade Commission investigated coffee prices at my
request, I put in a bill to regulate coffee futures trading, as the FTC
had recommended. In 1965, I added sugar to the bill because of what
we had learned in our own study into the 1963 spiral. Then this year,
based on what I learned as a member of the National Commission on
TFood Marketing in 1965 and 1966, T also included livestock and live-
stock products. : :

Now, if Dr. Gray will proceed with his statement, we will proceed
from there. :

Mr. Gray. Thank you, Madam Chairman, members of the com-
mittee.




CONSUMER CREDIT PROTECTION ACT 607

I am Roger Gray, a professor at Stanford University, where for the
past 13 years my research and teaching have been concentrated in the
‘area of commodity markets and prices. T have consulted with several
commodity exchanges and members firms on commodity marketing
-problems, and testified before Congress on previous occasions on leg-
1slative proposals affecting commodity markets. Today I am appearing

ing and price determination. o B

- Section 207 of H.R. 11601 is evidently based upon a very widespread
misconception. It reads in part that “the Board of Governors of the.
Federal Reserve System shall prescribe regulations ‘governing the
amount of credit that may be extended on any (futures) contract.”
The plain fact of the matter is that credit is not extended or main-
tained on futures contracts. This being the case, one might simply say
‘that section 207 is innocuous or meaningless, and let it go at that. I
prefer to elaborate, however, because I think that I know what is in-
tended in this section, I think that the misconception which it reflects
needs to be cleared up, and I share with the sponsor of this section a
concern that futures markets be properly understood and regulated.

I believe that it is commonly accepted that this section intends to say
that margin levels in commodity futures should be preseribed by the
Board of Governors. T think further that it assumes that “margins”
in_ commodity markets resemble “margins” in the securities markets,
where in fact credit is extended and where the “margin” level governs
the amount of such credit. This assumption is mistaken, however, not-
withstanding the fact that it is commonly held. Let me then first explain
why futures margin regulation is not credit regulation, then proceed
to consider other aspects of futures margin regulation which are sug-
gested in the other wording of section 207 ; : i

When the Assistant Secretary of Agriculture, Mr. George Mehren,
‘testified before the Domestic Marketing and Consumer Relations Sub.
committee of the House Agriculture Committee on April 4, 1966, he
said, “There is a difference between the purpose of margins in the se-
curity and commodity markets.” T agree emphatically with this state-
ment; I should like to spell out briefly what the difference is. The pur-
pose of what we call margin in the security markets is clearly stated
in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 under the heading Margin
Requirements: “For the purpose of preventing the excessive use of
credit for the purchase or carrying of securities, the Federal Reserve
Board shall prescribe rules and regulations with respect to the amount
of credit that may be initially extended and subsequently registered
on a national securities exchange.” Clearly, margin in this context
refers to the required level of down payment on credit purchases of se-
curities. In other words, the purchase of securities on margin is a
credit transaction, entailing transfer of the right to use and enjoy capi-
tal assets—common stocks—and also entailing the lending of funds.
In contrast, the purchase or sale of a, futures contract on margin is
not a credit transaction. A futures contract entitles its owner to exer-
cise a later option to receive or deliver commodities. If this option is

later exercised, which it rarely is, then the right to use and enjoy the
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capital asset~—the commodity involved—is conveyed in a transaction
uiring full immediate ‘cash payment. The only capital asset in-
volved is the commodity Atself, ngch can only be owned and used after
~delivery occurs, at which time ownership is otherwise financed through
otherwise established credit facilities, chiefly the banking system.
Since no title is conveyed prior to delivery and no loan is extended, no
credit can be involved in a futures transaction, hence the word “mar-
gin” has an entirely different meaning in this context, and the pur-
pose of margin is different.
The purpose of margins on futures transactions is to assure the
transfer of funds from those who incur losses to those who profit from

- futures price movements. They are always established at levels in-

tended to cover the prospective price change. These profits and losses
must be exactly equal, as there can be no net gain or loss to all par-
ticipants in futures trading—which there can be, and often is, to all
owners of securities. Not only is there a short position opposite every
long position in futures, as there is not in securities, but the short sale
of a futures contract is exactly symmetrical with the purchase of a
futures contract, which is also not true of stock transactions but is true
of the purchase and sale of options to buy or sell securities, referred to
as “puts” and “calls.” ,

Let me sum this up with an illustration. When I buy a $100 share
of stock by depositing $70 margin with a commission firm, the com-
mission firm loans me the other $30. I may recelve dividends which
manifest my use and enjoyment of the capital assets which I have pur-
chased. But when I buy a corn futures contract entitling me to receive
5,000 bushels of corn next December by depositing $500 with a
commission firm, neither that firm nor anyone else loans me any money.
1 have purchased no capital assets, hence T cannot receive any earnings
or other manifestations of the use and enjoyment of a capital asset.
From this it is already clear that futures mar, ins are much different
‘from security margins and that the purposes for which the Board of
‘Governors controls the latter could be in no way served by vesting
commodities futures margin control in the Board of Governors.

Tt should also be noted that the relationship between price and the
current earning capacity of the capital asset being priced cannot fluc-
tuate over such a wide range, or be distorted over such a long interval,
in futures as in the stock market. The price-earnings ratio of the stocks
in the Dow Jones industrial average has ranged from 6.4 to 51.5 since
1933, indicative of how far stock prices can range from the true cur-
rent earning capacity of the physical assets they represent. This fact
in itself is hardly reassuring on the point of efficacy of stock margin
controls, but the more salient fact is that this has not occurred and
could not occur in commodity futures. Commodity futures prices can
depart from the true expected earning capacity of the physical asset
which they represent also, but this departure is necessarily brief and
limited. Prices of commodity futures contracts must come to the actual
commodity price from four to 12 times a year, depending upon the
number of delivery months. ‘

The question of credit expansion, then, has utterly no relevance to
commodity futures. The question of excessive speculation may be said
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to remain, although it remains only in the context of appropriate
regulation of futures markets, not in the context of credit controls.
If and when excessive speculation should occur in commodity futures,
the price level could be temporarily distorted, either upward or down.
ward, depending on whether buying or selling was excessive. The ques-
tions then become (1) How prevalent are temporary price distortions
that result from excessive speculation? and (2) How effective would
margin controls be in correcting any such distortions? Our studies of
price behavior on numerous futures markets have shown that price
movement tends to excessiveness on those markets whioh have

inadequate speculation. The thin futures markets, relatively little

used, tend to produce two kinds of price distortion. One kind is the
relatively large dips and bulges caused by transactions, since the market
is not broad and liquid, buyers have to bid the price up to find sellers,
sellers have to offer the price down to find buyers. The other kind of
price distortion is the persistence of prices which are too low or too
high, as thin markets tend to be lopsided, owing to more persistent
trading efforts by one side or the other. The reasons for this imbalance
vary from one market to another, but the fact is well established
that some thin futures markets evoke persistent underestimates and
others persistent overestimate of price. In contrast, prices on the larger
futures markets, with more speculation, display smaller dips and bulges
and no general tendency to overestimate or underestimate subsequent
price levels. The conclusion must be that, in general, larger amounts of
speculation are desirable, for reducing prices, price distortions of the
kinds described. :

In specific instances, of course, the mistaken ideas of speculators
ay carry prices to an incorrect level, even on the largest market.
These infrequent distortions can be identified in a careful retrospective
analysis after all the facts have emerged, but it would be virtually
impossible to identify them while they are occurring. In April of
this year, for example, a front-page article in the Wall Street. J ournal
analyzed wheat prices in relation to the weather and pointed to the
likelihood that prices would rise to $2 per bushel from the $1.75

level then prevailing. Instead, as the weather improved, prices subse-
quently declined to $1.50 per bushel. T speculation had carried prices
to $2, we can now see that it would have been a mistake, Yet in April
it would have required clairvoyance to make that judgment. :

The implications for margin controls may now be summed up.
There is no general case for higher margin levels. Existing levels
have provided the protection sought whereas higher levels, to the ex-
tent that these would discourage futures trading, would be a disservice
to the economy. Raising margins on occasion, to discourage tempo-
rary excesses of speculation, is not feasible because it is not possible
to identify excessive speculation at the time of its appearance. Nor
should the fact be ignored that futures markets are essentially hedgin,
markets used by commodity firms because of the great economy o
trading futures. Anything ‘which reduces that economy necessarily
raises the cost of doing business, which must be reflected in higher
consumer prices and lower prices to growers,

I conclude that excessive speculation in futures contracts is rare, -
that it has no significant effect upon consumer prices, that consumer
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prices would L%ikely' be inflated if margins were raised for the purpose

of curtailing speculation, that margin control is not a form of credit
control and that credit is not extended nor maintained on commodities
“futures contracts; hence there can be no need for the Board of Gov-
“ernors to regulate the amount of such credit. : i o
Mrs. Surrivax. Thank you, Dr. Gray ; your statement will be printed
in full. : : i & ' :
(The full statement of Mr. Gray follows:)
k :STATEMENTEOF ROGER W‘. GRAY: FOR GRAIN AND FEED DEALERS NATIGNAL
. ; A SSOCIATION .

I am Roger |Gray, a professor at ‘Stanford University, where for the past
thirteen years my research and teaching have been concentrated in the area.of
‘ commodity markets and prices. T have consulted with several commodity ex-
changes and member firms on commodity marketing problems, and testified before
Congress on previous occasions on- legislative proposals affecting commodity
markets, Today I am appearing in behalf of the Grain and Feed Dealers National
Association, a nationwide association of individual marketing and processing
firms, most of which rely heavily upon commodity futures markets for hedging
and price determination, :

. Section 207 of H.R: 11601 is evidently based upon a very widespread miscon- .
- ception. Tt-reads in part that “the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System shall prescribe regulations governing the amount of ‘credit that may be
extended on any (futures). contract”. The plain fact of the matter is that credit is
not extended or maintained on futures contracts. This being the case, one might
simply say thdt Section 207 is innocuous or meaningless, and let it go at that. -
1 prefer to elaborate, however, because 1 think that I know what is intended in
this section, I think that the misconception which it reflects needs to be cleared
up, and I share with the sponsor of this section a concern that futures markets
be properly understood and regulated. ; ke

1 pelieve that it is commonly accepted that this section intends to say that
margin levels in commodity futures should be prescribed by the Board of Gov-
ernors. I think further that it assumes that “margins” in commodity markets
resembles “marging” in the securities markets, where in fact credit is extended
and where the “margin” level governs the amount of such credit. This assumption
is mistaken, however, notwithstanding the fact that it is commonly held. Let
me then first explain why futures wargin regulation is not credit regulation,
then proceed to consider other aspects of futures margin regulation which are
suggested in the other wording of Section 207. X

When the A{,ssistant Secretary of Agriculture, Mr. George Mehren, testified be-
fore the Domestic Marketing and Consumer Relations subcommittee of the House
Agriculture Committee on; April 4, 1966, he said, “There is a difference between
"the purpose of margins in the security and commodity ,markets.” 1 agree em-
phatically with this statement ; I should like to spell out briefly what the differ-
ence is. The purpose of what we call margin in the security markets is clearly -
“stated in the Securities and Bxchange Act of 1934 under the heading “Margin
Requirements” : “For the purpose of preventing the excessive-use of credit for
-the purchase or carrying of securities, the Federal Reserve Board shall prescribe
rules and regulations with respect to the amount of credit that may be initially
extended and subsequently registered on a national securities exchange”. Clearly, -
margin in this context refers to the required level of down payment on credit
purchases ‘of securities. In other words, the purchase of gecurities on margin isa
credit transaction, entailing transfer of the right to use and enjoy capital assets—
common stocks—and also entailing the lending of funds. In contrast, the purchase
or sale of a futures contract on margin is not a credit transaction. A futures con-
tract entitles its owner to exercise a later option to receive or deliver commodi-
ties. If this option is later exercised, which it rarely is, then the right to use and
enjoy the capital asset—the commodity involved—is conveyed in a transaction
requiring full immediate cash payment, The only capital asset involved is the
commodity itself, which can only be owned and used after delivery occurs, at
“which time ownership is otherwise financed through otherwise established credit
facilities, chiefly the banking system. Since no title is conveyed prior to delivery
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and no loan is extended, no credit can be involved in a futures transaction, hence
the word “margin” has an entirely different meaning in this context, and the
purpose of margin is different. . ,

The purpose of margins on futures transactions is to assure the transfer of
funds from those who incur losses to those who profit from futures price move-
ments. They are always established at levels intended to cover the prospective
price change. These profits and losses must be exactly equal, as there can be no
net gain or loss to all participants in futures trading. (Which there can be, and
often is, to all owners of securities.) Not only is there a short position opposite
every long position in futures, as there is not in securities, but the short sale of a
futures contract is exactly symmetrical with the purchase of a futures contract,
which is also not true of stock transactions (but is true of the purchase and sale
of options to buy or sell securities, referred to as “puts” and. “calls”)..

Let me sum this up with an illustration. When I buy a $100 share of stock by
depositing $70 margin with a commission firm. the commission firm loans me the
other $30. I may receive dividends which manifest my use and enjoyment of the
capital assets which I have purchased. But when I buy a corn futures contract
entitling me to receive five thousand bushels of corn next December by depositing
$500 with a commission firm, neither that firm nor anyone else loans me any
money. I have purchased no capital assets, hence I cannot receive any earnings
or other manifestations of the use and enjoyment of a capital asset. From this it is
already clear that futures margins are much different from security margins and
that the purposes for which the Board of Governors controls the latter could be
in no way served by vesting commodities futures margin control in the Board
of Governors. CEs Py .

It should also be noted that the relationship between price and the current
earning capacity of the capital asset being priced cannot fluctuate over such a
wide range, or be distorted over such a long interval, in futures as in the stock
market. The price-earnings ratio of the stocks in the Dow Jones industrial average
has ranged from 6.4 to 51.5 since 1933, indicative of how far stock prices can
range from the true current earning capacity of the physical assets they repre-
sent. This fact in itself is hardly reassuring on the point of efficacy of stock
margin controls, but the more salient fact is that this has not occurred and
could not occur in commodity futures. Commodity futures prices can depart
from the true expected earning capacity of the physical asset which they repre-
sent also, but this departure is necessarily brief and limited. Prices of commodity
futures contracts must come to the actual commodity price from 4 to 12 times a
year, depending upon the number of delivery months. ;

The question of credit expansion, then, has utterly no relevance to commodity
futures. The question of excessive speculation may be said to remain, although
it, remains only in the context of appropriate regulation of futures markets,
not in the context of credit controls. If and when excessive speculation should
occur in commodity futures, the price level could be temporarily ‘distorted, either
upwards or downwards; depending on whether buying or selling was excessive,
The questions then become (1) How prevalent are temporary, price distortions
that result from excessive speculation? and (2) How effective would margin con-
trols be in correcting any such distortions? Our studies of price behavior on
numerous futures markets have shown that price movement tends to excessive-
ness on those markets which have inadequate speculation. The thin futures mar-
kets, relatively little used, tend to produce two kinds of price distortion. One
kind is the relatively large dips and bulges caused by transactions, since the
market is not broad and liquid, buyers have to bid the price up to find sellers,
sellers have to offer the price down to find buyers. The other kind of price dis-
tortion is the persistence of prices which are too low or too high, as thin markets -
tend to be lopsided, owing to more persistent trading efforts by one side or the
other. The reasons for this imbalance vary from one market to another, but the
fact is well established that some thin futures markets evoke persistent under-
estimates and other persistent overestimates of price. In contrast, prices on the
larger futures markets, with more speculation, display smaller dips and bulges
and no general tendency to overestimate or underestimate subsequent price
levels. The conclusion must be that, in general, larger amounts of speculation
are desirable. (1)

In specific instances, of course, the mistaken ideas of speculators may carry
prices to an incorrect level, even on the largest market. These infrequent dis-
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tortions can be identified in a careful retrospective analysis after all the facts
have ‘emerged, but it would be virtually impossible to identify them ‘while they
are occurring. In April of this year, for example, a front page article in the
Wall Street Journal analyzed wheat prices in relation to the weather and pointed
to the likelihood that prices would rise to $2 per bushel from the $1.75 level then

' prevailing. Instead, as the weather improved, prices subsequently declined to

$1.50 per bushel. If speculation had carried prices to $2, we can now see that it
would have been a mistake. Yet in April it would have required clairvoyance
to' make that judgment. i

The implications for margin controls may now be summed up. There is no
general case for higher margin levels. Existing levels have provided the protection
sought whereas higher levels, to the extent that these would discourage futures
trading would be a disservice to the economy. Raising margins on occasion, to
discourage temporary excesses of speculation, is not feasible because it is not
possible to identify excessive speculation at the time of its appearance. Nor
should the fact be ignored that futures markets are essentially hedging markets
used by commodity firms because of the great economy of trading futures. Any-
thing which reduces that economy necessarily raises the cost of doing business,
which must be reflected in higher consumer prices and lower prices to growers.

I conclude that excessive speculation in futures contracts is rare, that it has
no significant effect upon consumer prices, that consumer prices would likely
be inflated if ‘margins were raised for the purpose of curtailing speculation,
that margin control is not a form of credit control and that credit is not extended
nor maintained on commodities futures contracts, hence there can be no need
for the Board of Governors to regulate the amount of such credit. (2)

Is it your desire now, Mr. Theis and Mr. Brooks and Mr. Chartrand,
to read your statements? :

Mr, TaEs. In compliance with a letter we have received from you in
the past week I believe it would not only be proper to ask that our
statement be submitted for the record, however,Ii would like to have the
opportunity to give a short résumé of what is within the statement.

Mrs. Surrivan. That will be fine. Without objection, your full state-
ments will be placed in the record, and we will be very happy to have
you summarize them. We will then place in the record following these
proceedings the statements we received from other exchanges not rep-
resented here in'person today. !

Mr. Tues. Thank you. gs stated in the prepared statement before
the committee, the Kansas City Board of Trade was officially desig-
nated a “contract market” under the original Grain Futures Act on
May 5, 1923, by Henry C. Wallace, then Secretary of Agriculture.

We have listed the different titles here, and we have analyzed sec-
tion 207 of H.R. 11601 and shall direct our remarks speciﬁcaﬁy to the
effects of section 207 to commodity futures contract trading.

In the first part of the statement we have referred to the title of
section 207 which is entitled, “Regulation of Credit for Commodity
Futures Trading.” Here we again believe that the intent was to call
attention and ask for control in the setting of margins, and not of
credit. Our entire thinking is contained within that first paragraph.
Also, we attach an appendix A which is our thinking and we accept
the premise of the paper—written by Dr. Gray some few years ago—
when we also now for the record accept the statements and make them a
part of our feeling today as well. , : ‘

Going on to part 2 of our statement, where the excessive specula-
tion is used within the section itself, we allude to the fact that excessive
speculation is what we believe you are calling volume trading. We have
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made the same statements more or less in the same line of thinking as
Dr. Gray’s today, that excessive speculation or volume trading is not
detrimental as far as the action of the market or the type of the market
or the dips and curves are concerned. Qur fear is in the light of limited
speculation or light trading, thin markets, ‘ '
e have gone on and stated in section 3 of our statement, where the
Federal Reserve System is asked to prescribe the regulations—this
matter has been done by our board for some 90 years, 45 years not
under regulation and the last 45 years under the regulation or the
supervision of the Commodity and Exchange Authority. We further
State too that margin levels are set by our board of directors and that,
in addition, our business conduct committee supervises and observes
the regulations and rules pertaining to margins and the conduct of
our members thereto, , :

In the fourth sart of our statement we refer to the inflating of con--
sumer Iprices, and we submit that in excessive speculation, and again
we call it volume trading, that this does not have a tendency to inflate
consumer prices, In fact, it hag just the reverse; it does just the
o ite, ‘ G .

p%(;: draw for you an llustration of what would happen if there
would not be volume trading or speculators in operations of futures.
markets as we know them t‘o%ay wherein buyers and sellers—they are
speaking of buyers and sellers of the grain firms, processin firms,
exporters and such within our industry—would have to build into
their price factor the risk that they now have assumed within the
Tutures contract itself, e , :

We believe that without the trading, and if the trading would be
limited by excessive margins, that the consumer’s prices would be in-
flated and that the producer’s prices would be deflated.

Further than that, Madam Chairman, the whole statement itself
tells our story. . '

- T would lige to mention to you and your committee a recent opera-
tion within the commodity markets, and especially the Kansas City
market as it pertains to wheat, . :

Last Friday, and again up through the marketing session of this

yu

past Monday, one of the flouy businesses was conducted—in fact, the

major flour mills entered Ainto contracts with the major bakeries in
the United States up through December 81, 1967. This is a sizable
forward contract as 1t pertains to volume, The market’s reaction wags
fantastic, it was extremel accepted and it absorbed all of the volume
that was done at our may et as of Monday and it closed a cent and a
half ~Iawer~tha,.n where it had been on Friday. This afforded people to.

hank you very much, TR W
Mrs. Suirivax. Thank you very much, Mr. Theis, your full state-
ment will fbef':in‘ser‘tezd‘ at this point. SR Al T e T e
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(The statemeint referred to follows: ) -

STATEMENT OF wirLis C. THEIS, PRESIDENT, BoaRD oF TRADE OF KANSAS Crry, Mo:

‘My name is Willis C. Theis, and I appear on behalf of the Board of Trade of
Kansas City, Mo., a contract market regulated under the provisions of the
Commodity Exchange Act. The Board of Trade of Kansas City, Mo., was officially
designated as‘a contract market under the original Grain Futures Act on May 5,
1923, by Henry €. Wallace, then Secretary of Agriculture.

We have analyzed Section 207 of H.R. 11601, and shall direct our remarks
specifically to the effects of Section 207 to commodity futures contract trading.”

i

‘1 TITLE OF SECTION 207

© H.R. 11601, Section 207, is entitled “Regulation. of Credit for Commodity
Futures Trading.” g , . ;

The title refers to regulation of “eredit” and in the body of Section 207, p. 24,
line 9, “The Excessive Use of Credit” is referred to; and p. 24; line 13, the
“Amount -of Credit,” which operations do not exist on the trading of any com-
modity futures contracts on the Kansas City Board of Trade. In Mrs. Leonor K.
Sullivan’s letter to Mr. J. S. Chartrand under date of August 2, 1967, it is sug-
gested in the second paragraph that there is one section of H.R. 11601 which
directly affects the operations in commodity futures contracts and that under
the legislation, the Federal Reserve Board would have the same powers to set
“margins” in such trading transactions as it does now in establishing “margins”’
for trading in the stock exchange. We believe that it is the intent of Section
207 to authorize the Federal Reserve Board to set margins and not to regulate
credit. o - ) B ! i ‘ i

A general misconception is that “margins,” by virtue of being down payments
on credit transactions, ‘should be set at levels comparable to those on. stock
purchases. A commodity futures contract is not a capital asset, however, nor is
a future transaction a credit transaction. We respectfully refer the Committee’s -
attention to Appendix “A” document,kpublished by Dr. Roger: W. Gray, Food
Research Institute, Stanford University, in 1964 entitled “Margin Requirements
in Commodity Futures Transactions.” The paper deals with the nature of a
futures contract, its origin and actions, and outlines the purposes of ‘margins.
Further, the document deals at great length on the fact that futures contracts
are not credit transactions, and the due consequences of prohibitive margin
requirements for commodity trading. There is a supplementary statement at-
tached to Appendix #A” pertaining to stock ‘margin regulations, which clearly
shows that margin requirements of the Federal Reserve System governing:
transactions in the stock market serve entirely different purposes from those
of the margins used in the commodity futures market.

1I. EXCESSIVE ' SPECULATION

One of the stated purposes of Seection 207 is for preventing excessive specula-
tion in and the excessive use of credit for the creation, carrying, or trading in
commodity futures contracts. “Txcessive ‘Speculation” is not defined nor has it
ever been truly defined as it pertains to. trading in commodity futures in large
volume of trading (some believe to be-excessive speculation) which can cause
price changes ion ‘occasions. But, light trading (inadequate speculation), the more
common condition, has its price effect also. Prices are poorly defended on markets
with inadequate speculation where the cost of trading tends to be high. Most
futures markets suffer from “inadequate speculation.” A renowned economist
made a comment recently, where in part he said, “It is all right for policemen to
watch for traffic violations—but the answer is not to forbid traffic. The function
of the cop is to enable more traffic, not to complain that it tends to excess. To be
sure,'hi‘s;positionwould be easier if there were not traffic, oras little as possible.”

III. FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM SHALL PRESCRIBE REGULATIONS

The regulations which the Federal Reserve System shall prescribe, allude 'to
the setting of margins and their maintenance on any commodity futures contract,
and further, the regulations may exempt any transactions the Board may deem
unnecessary, and regulations setting differentials amongst commodities, trans-
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action borrowers, and lenders. There is no definition jas to the level of marging;
and, therefore, we must assume that in view of the proposed Dburpose of margins
fo control excessive speculation, the Federal Reserve System would set the mar: -
gins at prohibitive levels. High ‘margins will drive the publie from the market-
place, and the contract markets will not be able to function and serve the publie
S they have for nearly a century. Mandatory margin requirements have been in
effect in the Kansas City market for many years and hayve been determined and ,
enforced by the Board of Trade. The practice of requiring-mandatory margins is
how well established, embodied in the ‘permanent ml«emofnour“exeh‘f;‘zgq, | gnﬂ- S
ide had:

enforced by resolutions. As long ago as 1877 the Kensas City Board of T

a rule regarding margin: requirements, which was changed from time. me 3
current conditions required. The duty empowered: to establish: appropriate mar-

£ins is lodged with the Board of Directors, and, in addition, our Business. Qonduct

Committee supervises the observance, of. rules and: regulations pertaining to
margips. r it , ‘

Tyt

‘ - IV, INFLATING CONSUMER RRICHS
_The purpose of Section 207 of'preventing exce '
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- APPENDIX A”f g

OMMODITY FUTURES IRANSAGTTONS

i

MARGIN REQUIBEMENTS 1}

he clearing ‘
e Decessity dnd convenience ng forward
in commodities. Hfficiént coord tion of the
production, ’transpot*tat,ion;fstoragigﬁ processing, and consumption of commodities
| soquires forward comuiitments, Futures confraets are used as teimporary sub.
stitutes for intended later -merchandising contracts. Because they are: traded:
openly on central markets and deal with representative grades of the com /
- they greatly facilitate the pricing of thesé' orward comifitmients. S
- Futures markets arise out of the situation in which forward purchase and sales
commitments are already being undertaken, A clearing house is established which:

83-340—67—pt. 2——3
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. The limits are not entirely consistent, fron‘market to market; with the
experience of price change, however, so that margins should be differen 1t
of daily trading limits.in different commodities. Perhaps preferably, both the
trading limits and the marging should be based upon.an actual (say, ten-year). .
- record of price changes. Sugar futures prices; which have been volatile in recent
- years; require both higher limits and higher margins, relative to the ¢ ontract
~value, then for wheat or corn, which have experienced relative price: stability.
Under the conditions of recent years, margins of 10¢ per bushel. fo heat and
. 8¢.for corn (the daily limits) are more than ample for hedging trangsactions, and
probably adequate for speculative transactions. But margins of 50¢ per hundred
‘pounds of sugar (also the daily limit) are clearly inadequate: probably four
times this level would be desirable for speculative transactions. The. trading
limits in some commodities impose a slight tendency toward continuity in daily
price change, as they suppress the daily change on some .occasions,. postponing
it to the following day. In those markets which. have been studied under unre-
stricted - conditions, however, continuity of price change is not a problem,
The. incidental accomplishment :of margin  level adjustments—that of en-
. couraging.or discouraging public participation in the trading—does not. deserve
much attention in the establishment of margin levels. Speculation is inadequate on
many futures markets, but lower margin reuirements do not offer a desirable
means of increasing speculation. Little speculation is responsive to such a,:con~
sideration ; whereas ‘that ‘which ‘'would be attracted: by lower margins would -
not be of the most desirable sort.. But’'by the.same token, occasional increases in:
margin levels to deter speculation are easier to justify because they deter.the
least desirable sort of speculation. . : Ei el el gl e, s
While ‘basic guideposts can:be established from the record:- of price: behavior,
it is important to retain some fiexibility in order to meet unusual circumstances
that can be recognized by exchange governors. And while margin levels should:
be on the safe side, it is important that they be'no higher, It-is not only waste-;
ful toidle funds upon margins that serve no purpose, but it is erucial not to
discourage the use of the markets. There is ample evidence in economic studies:
that the markets which are used most provide the best estimates of: price, and
provide an:extra margin of safety in the ease with which transactions can be
made, which minimizes thé role of margins. 155 ; DA i

Margin requirements for different classes of traders oy

Members of the clearing house own stock in the clearing house, Which' provides,
extra assurance of their financial integrity. In general, margin requirements
for clearing members can safety be very low. It might be useful to require a mini-
mum level of ownership of clearing house stock, and also to require ,{a{lmin,imumT
capital ratioor other evidence of soundness, .~ G oy S

Members and non-members of the exchanges, who are not clearing members,
must clear transactions through clearing members, They are required to deposit
at least the clearing house minimum margin requirements with clearing mem-

. bers. -Most clearing members police these deposits very well, but. there has
been little policing of them by the exchanges, probably because the margins de-
posited by clearing members are deemed adequate to protect the exchange, It
would be desirable if margin enforcement and policing could be improved, partic-
ularly as an alternative to higher margin levels. ;

Speculative contracts should be margined at higher levels than hedging con-
tracts, because of the greater risk involved. In general, margin requirements
equalling the maximum price change expected over .any two-day interval would
be sufficient for speculative contracts. In certain extreme instances, where the
daily limit price move in one direction might occur.on more than two. successive
days, even higher spegulative marging would be Jjustified. Margins on bhona fide
hedging positions should be no more ‘than half those on speculative. positions,
and in some instances could safely he Still: lower. Anticipatory hedging, as de-
fined in Sec:4(3) (C).of the Commodity Exchange Act; should be subject to spec-
ulative margin requirements, as the same risk considerations apply. . e

In sum, since the only purpose of margins is to protect the clearing house;

‘they.can safely be established. by the clearing house at guite.low levels. For
hedging transactions in which.the risk of flat price change does not apply, margins,
can be lower than for speculative transactions. For clearing members who are
subject.to other safety factors as well, marging can be lower than for non-clearing
members. i 1

ois
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j ‘, . :

Futures contract {wt‘azcrsdit transaction : X ; : s I
 There is no transfer of ownership in a futures contract—only an obligation to
- transfer ownership at a later date, through the ‘elearing house, for full cash
- payment: at 'the time of transfer—and this obligation is mearly always cancelled
before a transfer occurs, by ‘undertaking an opposite obligation vis-a-vis the
clearing house. Thus a futures contract does not represent a credit transaction,
in which ownership of an asset is transférred. The holder of a futures contract
owns Something of value insofar as he may be later entitled to receive a com-
modity of greater value,-or to deliver a commodity of lesser value, than that.
agreed upon in the contract. He earns no right to the use‘or enjoyment of the
commodity, or to/income from it, so long ds he holds the futures contract; mor
does he earn such'rights through the normal isettlement of such contracts by
offset. ‘A contracj:‘ entitling oné to receive or deliver a commodity at exactly its
market value has zero ‘value, since by definition this can be done without such
a contract. A futures contract has zero estimated value'at the time it is entered
into, in ‘that the price agreed upon for the future transaction is the market’s
best current estimate, by definition; of what the value of the commodity will be
at delivery time. In'fact, the Jong time average value of the futures: contracts ac-
tually bought and sold in' the major grain markets does not differ: significantly
’frovlm zero; ‘although any particular contraet’ may take on positive or negative
wvalue. R o { T e LA 4 ot it B 3 :

- Usually fore than one’ half’ of sfuturescontracts ‘outstanding are in the
htnds of Wedgerg, ‘and ‘of i thi s substatitially ore than one half are sdles .con-
tracts. In'these instances the hedger owns a physical asset, changes in the. value
‘of which bear 4n orderly relationship to the.ivatue of : his ‘futures. contract.
If he'should decide’ to deliver the iphydical rcommodity against the futures:con-
tract, full cash payment is'required at the ‘time of delivery, and this:is the only’
transfer of ownership. Yet even' this transfer of ownership in sasisfaction of fu-
tures contractsiginfrequent. e R R e e i

. Margin deposits on futuresicontracts are in no sense down payments on credit
transactions. The ‘margin’deposit is intended to represent’ full payment at all
times for thie value of the futures contract; whieh:inheres in the uncertain, but:
statistically definable’ ‘prospect of ‘price change. ‘TThis is: the: most important of
several reasons why commodity futures margings differ from stock imargins.
Purchase of a stock certificate does transfer ownership, and the margin on

such a _pﬂnchase%;éq a down-payment on a credit transaction. It is because stock

purchases on margin are *drq@it“t‘ransactigo'is’,""f'aynd ‘because “itis deeried ‘to ‘be
in the publi¢ inflerest to ‘control the amount and kinds of credit; that ‘authority

vested 'in the’ Board of Governors
nd ‘margifi’' levels are much' higher

¥12

to ‘establish margins on stock purchases i§
of the Federal Reserve Banking System, a
than those on commodity futures. The word “margin” has an entirely different
meaning in the two contexts. If an analogy with stock’trading is sought, a closer
one exists in trading options to'buy or sell stock af a'later date. These so called

“put” and “call” options bear'the resemblance to commodity futures ‘contracts
that they do not transfer ownership; hence the payment made for them is not’
a down payment on a credit transaction. The prices of options to buy or sell
stock at a later date are roughly gomparable to 'margin levelson speculative
transactions in commodity futures; i.e., about 10 per cent of the market value
of the stock as compared to margins equalling about 10 per cent of the market
valte of the commodity described in a futures contract. Even though thiy similar-
ity exists, the purpose of the payments differs in that no protection against in-
solvency of the holder of stock options is required. He has an option to buy if'
hle chooses, whereas the holder ‘of a futures contract has an'lobligation to buy’
(or sell), u‘iﬂe\s‘E1 he offsets’ the obligation in' the futures market. The purpose
of margins on futures transactions is to guaranteée this obligation. :

A ‘major réason for controlling credit ‘purchases of steck 'is'the coneern to
prevent such a stock market collapse as occurred in 1929, ‘after stock prices
had been carried to very high levels," artly through purchases made on short
term credit! There are two reasons, in addition to the fact that commodity
futures transactions are not credit trangactions, ‘why a similar concern does not

apply here. The first is that commodity futures transactions are absolutely sym-

metrical with respect to buying and sellinig, as’stock transactions are not. In-

- i ! : S
1'See the Supblyementary Stateiment on Stock Margin Regulations attached at the end of
this statement. R
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vestment capital flows to the commodity futures markets on the selling side
in exactly the same way as on the buying side, so there is no reason to fear
inflationary congequences of such a flow, An increased flow of capital into the
stock market, on the other hand, necessarily raises stock prices, as the new in-
vestment capital eomes on the buying side. It is possible, in a rather eumbersome
procedure, to sell stoek short by. borrowing stock certificates; but this device is
by no means the equivalent of selling futures contracts.

The second reason why the inflationary eoncern dees not.apply to commodity
futures transactions is that their prices must come to the actual eommodity
price from four to twelve times a year, depending upon the number of delivery
months. The price-earning ratio of the stecks in the Dow-Jones Industrial aver-
age has ranged from 6.4 to 51.5 sinee 1933, indicative of how far stock prices
can range from the true current earning capacity of the physieal assets they
represent. Commodity futures prices can depart from the true expected earning
capacity of the physical assets which they represent also ; but this departure is
necessarily temporary and limited because of the delivery provisions. Occasion-
ally ‘a commeodity futures price is forced above the true economie value of the
commodity in a delivery month Squeeze ; but such actions are severely punished
on other than inflationary grounds, and indeed their general economic impact
is trivial. - ;

The consequence of prohibitive margin requirements for the commodity trade

Consider a merchant who carries large-stocks of grain, hedged in futures con-
tracts, margined with the clearing house at approximately 5 per cent of the value
of the grain represented in the futures. contract. He borrows 90 per cent of the
value of the grain from his banker, on the condition that it be 50 hedged. His
banker’s praetice is to require 25 per eent eredit margin on unhedged grain
inventory. Now if the futures margin is raised to even 16 per cent, the balance
has been tipped against hedging. The merchant can finance his inventory
unhedged for 25 per.cent, or hedged for 26 per cent (16 per cent futures margin
blus 10 per cent credit margin.) Moreover, his minimum capital requirement has
been raised from 15 per cent to 25 per cent.

He prefers to hedge, of course, for other reasons than the lower margin re-
quirements on bank credit which it assures him. So he might approach his
banker and request some compensatory redwuction in: credit margins .to enable
him to eontinue hedging with higher futures margins. But his costs have been
inereased in any event, and if the futures margin were set still higher, at say
25 per cemt or more, he ‘would almost eertainly stop hedging. ‘Then he might
approach’ his banker to request lower credit marging on unhedged grain. The
banker could conceivably respond to the merchant’s plight by granting lower
credit margins conditioned upon (1) hedging in forward commitments; instead
of futures ecomtracts, (2) relating credit marging to price changes in the inven-
tory, thus in effect taking on one of the functions of the grain trade, which is
to watch grain prices. .

These are, of course, backward steps in eeonomie development ; for: these were
the practices that had to be followed before the futures markets evolved. For-
ward sales are more costly and less reliable tham futures contracts: (im fact, it is
not uncommon to use the futures market for hedging against contract concella-
tions.) A hedged position in futures is a much cheaper way for the banker to
guard against inventory priee fluctuations than actual day-to-day study of the
prices. of all the various categories of inventory that serves as loan collateral.
Moreover, with the departure of the commercial firms from the futures markets,
these markets would soon wither and die, so that the banker would have no
reliable source of price information to watch, even if he chose to study prices.
T'he consequences of higher marging for some growers : i

‘Commodity futures centracts are used by some farmers to protect the price
for a growing crop, or for a crop which has been harvested and placed in storage.
This' is particularly advantageous to growers of a crop: like petatoes, for which
there are no government price supports and which are subject to wide price
fluctuations. Oftentimes the grower may have to borrow margin money from his
local bank, whereas in other cases a dealer may handle the commodity futures
transaction in c¢onjunetion with a contract to buy the farmer’s potatoes at
harvest time. The economy of futures trading is of particular importance to
the potato grower. If margins were substantially increased he would revert to
a system of forward contracting which places him at a bargaining disadvantage
vis-a-vis dealers.
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The impact upon the economy of: discouragement of futures trading

i The ‘most serigus impact upon the economy, if futures trading were discour-
aged, would be loss of efficiency in' marketing. The greater cost of ‘marketing
commodities would be borne by producers and consumers alike.

" Another serious impact would stem from the fact that an increasing amount
.of international trade in commodities has been facilitated by our futures markets.
 The European or Japanese importer of our grains uses our markets increasingly.
The exporters of tropical products to the United States also use our markets.
Not only would this business be lost to the United States, but in some instances

futures markets in other countries would pick up the business, possibly in ‘addi-

tion to business now being done by our domestic commodity trade, which would

be transferred to foreign markets. This would not only adversely affect our

balance of payments, but would tend to undermine our world leadership in the
organization dand financing of commodity trade. If the needs of a trade which
-i§ international in scope are better served in other countries, the trade will shift
" to those countries. Last year the Chicago Board of Trade had $55 billion business
. volume, making it, as it has been for many years, the world’s foremost com-

modity: market. This distinction could pass to Liverpool or Rotterdam or Tokyo

in'the future if our markets are unduly restricted.

Conclusion : ;

There is no doubt but what margin levels substantially higher than present
' ones would discourage hedging, force resort to other more costly marketing
methods, and put futures markets out of business to the detriment of producers
‘and consumers alike. Futures trading grew out of ‘just: the markéting methods
to which the commodity trade would necessarily revert if the costs of futures
trading were made arbitrarily prohibitive. It grew out of those methods as a
refinement and improvement of them, in the very sense that it enables marketing
at lower cost, which it can only provide with low margins ‘aimed at protecting
the clearing house. In the words of one banker who had had much experience
financing the grain trade in the manner here illustrated, futures trading is “one
of the major economic creations of all time.”* '

Supplementary statement on stock margin regulations
As supplements to general methods of influencing credit, selective methods,

' of which margin requirements are the most important, make it possible for the

Federal Reserve to reach specific credit areas without imposing stronger general
credit measures that might otherwise be appropriate. For example, if an
unhealthy use of credit for stock market. speculation develops at a time when
credit for production and trade is-expanding no more than would be considered
normal, and when the application of ‘general instruments of regulation (open
market operations, change of discount rate and reserve requirements) might do
more harm to the country’s overall economic activity, the power of the Federal
Reserve to regulate stock market credit can be invoked.

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Sec. 7. (a), under the heading “Margin
requirements” says: ' :

“For the purpose. of preventing the ewcessive use of oredit for the purchase
or carrying :of ‘securities, the Federal Reserve Board shall . .. prescribe  rules
and regulations with respect to the amount of credit that may be: initially
exztgé(%ed and .subsequently registered on a national securities exchange” “((*)

. For initial extension of credit such rules and regulations must be based upon
a certain standard set forth in’ the act; but the board is authorized to prescribe
such requirements lower than'the standard as it “deems necessary or appropriate
for the accommodation of commerce and industry having due regard to the
credit situation of the country,” and such higher requiréments as it may “deem
necessary or appropriate to prevent the excessive use of credit to finance trans-
detions in securities.” ((*) pp. 35-36.) A ! ke

The control effected by margin requirements, although' bearing directly on
the lender, puts restraint upon’the borrower and: dampens ‘demand. It can be

““*Harry- L. Wuerth, Vice President, Comimerce Trist- Company, Kansas City, Missour,
*‘iATBagkezi g;é)i)kgx at Futures Trading,” Proceedings of the Banking Seminar, Chicago Board
of Trade, 1961, ' . sk P Ty : ;

3 Federal Reserve Bulletin, June, 1984, . M

3 Annual Report of the Federal Reserve Board, 1934.

h



accounts without putting up additional money on rising stock prices as well as
‘on growth of eredit employed in the stock market. ((*) p. 59.) G o

- 'The Federal Reserve in describing its ‘purpose and funttions points out that

by regulation of margin requirements the danget of excessive use of credit i’
the stock market, which caused serious disturbances to; the egonomy in the: ast,
has been minimized, Thus it is felt that a speculative stock market bhoom
financed by credit, like the one that culminated in 1929, ‘could ‘hardly have
occurred except on the basis of very low stock purchase margins, A boom and
collapse in the stock market is always possible, but without the excessive use
of credit it is not likely to assume proportions or to have the effects it has had
- 'on some occasions in the past. ; i
Aside from hgving to do with a specific use of credit, the authority with -

upon its use for business purposes in general. ((*) p. 60.) :
On the whole one may say that margin requirements should be regarded as one.

of the instruments of Federal Reserve action which serves the general piirpose

of regularizing. the flow of money and credit, fostering a stable dollar, and pro-

from their institution in 1934 to the middle 1950’s. g
For several years before the war, the Board’s regulations required marging
of 40 per cent. During the war the requirements were raised to 50 per cent, then
to 75 per cent, and in 1946 to 100 per cent. The 100 ber cent requirement was in
effect from early 1946 to early 1947, when it was reduced to 75 per cent, making
it possible for banks and brokérs to lend 25 per cent of the value of the col-
lateral. The margin requirement was reduced to 50 per ‘cent in the spring of 1949
at a time of moderate business recession and was restored to 75 per cent iearly
in 11951 when inflationary pressures following the outbreak of the Korean war
were at their peak. In early 1953, when these inflationary dangers ‘bad begun
to abate, the margin requirement was again reduced to 50 per.cent. ((*) pp. 58-59.)
"As an ‘example of how the use of creditin the stock market influences the.
decisions of the Board. in setting margin requirements, the commentary to the
July 10 reduction in margin requirements from 70 to 50 per cent, in the Federal
Reserve Bulletin of July, 1962, p. 840, was: i : : S
“In making this change the Board took into" account a sharp reduction -in s,
stock market credit in recent weeks and the abatement in speculative psychology.
Bank loans to customers forthe purpose of purchasing ior carrying registered .
stocks declined more: than'5 per;cent in June to a level of $1.8 billion. Further.
more, preliminary data indicate a’ $600 million drop in borrowing by stock ex-
change member firms from banks on customer collateral, the largest decline in
..the postwar period.” : AR SRR
The Board’s regulations require the lender to obtain the specified margin in
connection with the purchase, of the security. If,the‘(;pilatera]hseqqrit;y for the
indebtedness subsequently declines in value, the regulations do not require the
borrower to put up additional collateral or tb I‘é(iilCé the indebtedness. However, .
the banker or broker making'a'loan' may require additional collateral it he dééms
it necessary, ((*) p.58.) L. - VRS GE RRR T  ae  N e
It thus seemg clear. that’ the margin, requirements of the Federal Reserve
System governing transactions in'the stock market serve entirely different pur-
boses from those of the margins used in the commodity futures markets. Where
( rare’ cle > house, the former i§'a’ means for in-
~ fluencing the credit conditions in: the leconomy in:general’ and tise of credit on
the securities market in particular.. Where marging are ‘used in the securities

¢ The Federal Reserve System, Purpose and Functions, 'Wd'shingi:on, D.C, 19_5,4. ]f .




_him to us for that purpose..
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_ market for the protection of bankers and brokers i1 éase of Price chiinges, they
" are not subject to regulations by the Federal Regerve but are up to the dis:
eretion of the bankers and brokers themselves. ' :
- Mrs. SurLiyan. I want to advise the members of the subcpmmitt.ee
_that we have in the audience Mr. Alex Caldwell, who is the Adminis:
trator of the (Commodity Exchange Avuthority in the Department, of

¥ R

Atgriculture. He is here, not to testify for or against this provision

£ H.R. 11601, but to be available to provide us with any technical
information we may ask him for. He is here as a technical expert, not
an advocate, and I am grateful to Secretary Freeman for assigning
~ Mr. Caldwell, will you join these gentlemen ?
Thank you. .
T have a series of questions to ask the witnesses, but I will defer
. Eline, until the other members are finished, and I call on Mr. Stephens

M. Brooxs. Can I make my statement ? ; i

‘Mrs. Svruvan, I am sorry. I thought your statement was included
with that of Mr. Theis. But it is Mr. Chartrand, who is here with Mr.
Theis from Kansas City. I am sorry, ‘Mr. Brooks. Please go ahead.

Mpr. Broows. I have a summary which has been distributed. Our
organization subscribes to all the remarks #nd recommendations of
Dr. Gray and Mr. Theis as he is speaking for the Kansas City Board
of Trade.

1 would like also to make a request before I run through this briefly;
Madam Chairman. T would hope that the record might be kept open
so that those of us who have not had a chance to read and analyze
the subcommittee’s statement which you read this morning may have
a chance to do so and to comment on this favorably or otherwise. ‘
~ Mrs. Suneivan. We will be happy to do that. We will leave it open
 until the 25th of August. . it

Mr. Brooks. Thank you verymuch. . . 3

My name is William F. Broocks and I am here today to represent
the National Grain Trade Council. We appreciate this opportunity to
express our views in opposition to section 207 of the pending legisla-
tion which is designed to give the Federal Reserve System the same

‘powers to set margin requirements in connection with futures trans-
actions on commodities that the System niow holds in the setting of
margins for eredit transactions on the stock exchange.

For 20 years we have consistently opposed proposals to grant to the
Government or Government officials authority to set margin require-
ments on futures transactions in comimodities. We have opposed this
grant of authority because in our considered judgment no public
official or group of public officigls such as the Board of Governors, are

" so.omniscient as to determine when speculation might become excessive

in commodity transactions and to determine when any degree of spec-
* ulation in commodity futures contracts would haye the effect of in-
flating consumer prices. ..

‘We note| that the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve,
through its Vice Chairman, Mr. Robertson, oti August 7 advised the
cubcommittee in effect that the Federal Reserve Board wotild not be
the most appropriate agency to administer such commodity market
legislation @as is contained in section 207 of the pending bills. Mr.
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 Robertson stated the Board’s helief, which we share, that relati
little credit is used inconnection with futures trading. i

. The proposal embodied in section 207 is based on gnﬁscenoe,pbien of

 the nature of commodity contracts markets, on the nature of trading -
in commeodity futures contracts, and on the functions of margins in
connection with the commodity futures contracts when attempts ate
made to draw an analogy between them and the downpayment re-
quired to obtain title to stock or goods and chattels or real estate.”. :
. My statement develops the thesis that there is no analogy between

the margin required to enter into a contract for th@zfuturesali)e or
tain

purchase of a commodity and the downpayment re
- title to stick, or goods and chattels, or real estate. A
. My statement reviews for the subcommittee th &tud
by tﬁ,is and other committees of Congress when similar.
the‘p,end(ing propesal have heen considered in the past, v FO
e are now here today faced with a }J‘I‘DPOS@J to grang authority to
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve which, eequing; to .

their Spokesman, they do not, wish to have and are net qualified to

administer. This subcommittee is, in effect, considering & propesal -
~which in substance has, been considered:by otlter committees and sab-
~ committees in prior Oggi,-gressgesmnd found wanting. We recomn g
that this subconimittee make . imilar finding, - - . e
- We @%pose this grant of authority because we are convinced that
- this method of attempting to prevent inflated consumer prices will not

- work. We oppose this. grant of authority because an attempt by the
Government to exercise, gontrol ove margins may well catige a byenk-
&oWn in:the entire marketing «sﬁrugturéfeaving; State trading as the
‘only alternative. Raising margins will not keep prices from ‘going up.

- It seems to be admitted that commodities that have no futures market

i

are usually more erratic in price than those that have. By, raising

margins, you can reduce and. liminate volume of trading. But you

. eannot, control prices. And you:might wreck the market structure, . .
- Ishall be glad;to answer any questions which anyone cares t
Mrs. Surravax, Thank you very much; Mr. Brooks. Now X
all upon Mr. Stephens to start, the questionir go colinhge s el
- Mr. SteprEexs. Thank. you, gﬁﬁ&emen; for coming to be with us, I
appreciate having the ‘opportunity to have the material Dr, ,Gray has
presented of the circumstances involving transactions that you deal in,
I perhaps should point out to ‘you that I have introduced:a bill simi-
lar to the Senate bill that does not include in the bill (t::%e control of
the commodity exchanges. Sl e
~ Also, youare familiar with the statement made by Governor Robert-
son that he did not consider your transactions as credit transactions.
One thing I would like to ask for my own understanding is this: Sup-
pose that I put $500 into futures market. Maybe Mr. Rhodes can give
me the answer. If I should buy or put down a margin of $500 on.a
cotton futures contract that ‘would mean that I would be able to buy
100 bales of cotton. Now, when would T have to buy the 100 bales of
cotton ? [ : Lo Gt Bl g
-, Mr. Ruooss. That would depend on which month you bought. The
futures market operates 18 months in advance, in the case o - cotton.
You can buy January, March, July, October, or J anuary 1969, cotton
~ futures today. If you decide you want to buy f)ecember 1968 you Wouid
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ol dm% ‘econtract, tal ry‘ of the 100 :
ay ‘the full purchase prlce “within 24 hours. The
own is merely put up as a matrgln to protect the .

- the

~ would; if you 1
~ bales of cotton a d

- $500 that you
clearm housetg ich
- M. STEPHE?

- Mr. Ruobgs, fox
- ;%ou and the '$5i00 has beéfn used up, they Woul& call on you to put‘i P

handles the contract.

1 will get a specific price per bale?

ft phceshéuld rlse@
ppose the time c: e Wlthll’l the penod of tlme for
s balance of it—fo e tobuy it. - :
: us. Mr. Stephens, could T make one pfmnt? You wc)uld 5
be required e-??put up the addltlonal price if the cotton dropped

Mz Ruopzs: If the price went against him.
Mr. anAim “Yes. Some comment wa imade that ma,f ‘m was/

: , ‘get n ] o
upp of cotton? Suppoese T ji ust buy‘a $50
S contract and then when the tin "‘ce)mes, do 1 forfeit that if
» fthe balanc f the contract within a 8| yecific time? What
cottonatall? o
il y@u ‘want to purchase the
, & hundred bales of

L va pnt mu e and

the other si ie (EYf th contrac’b ‘before it mal ase
E E)ecember 1968 ‘cotton, 99 times out of 100, those are the statistics at

- , irc‘haser will sell a December 1968 contract before it
en one contract wipes ot the other, and you get, your~$500 e
s:um ﬁg ‘the price has not ge T $500 margin is there:
to guarantee the clearinghouse :
~event that the market ‘0es gam@i&

oes to proteet the
1e e event that the marke
ga,rdless of' whether you seller or purchaser.
exs. T am not sure I know what happened to my $500
: preé te your being before the committee, and from your expe- ;
; nes as you outlined, you ought to know every Way n Whmh cotton
.. mencango broke : .
"Mr. Ruopts. T would like to ‘make one very short statement if I
may. T*dori’t ‘desire to summarize my statement, but T do want to
point out that we should not overlook the fact that if excessively high
gins are’ imposed to dlscourage the use of futures exchanges in
is country, that' the ‘business of 'hedgma may well be transferred
to futures markets in other coufitries which have established markets:
or which veriy well can establish' markets. By doing that we could very
well lose the leadership which we now enjoy . m, thi s_tvpe of business. .
Just thlsmornmg T received a letter from the Indian Fervvard Mar-
) jon asking me ‘to write: an artlcl or their publication
0.2 tract whmh they is ‘gettmd started i

‘Let me explain that should the market gor against ';‘ o
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4 agaln Thele are cotton futures markets in Livergb‘of,"; Japan, and
II;‘ a, If action is taken that would make otir mark ets meffective in
this country, 1t would result in our business moving to these other

 markets,

At the present time we have a wool market in New York and much
of that business is being transferred to the wool market in Sydney,

Mr. StepurNs. In other words, what I understand you to say is
that this is a real competitive field, this market business, and that
regulation of the price that cconsumers will pay, if you take that com-
petition out, will make the consumer pay more. Is that what?
 Mr. Ruopns, That’s right. e e .
. Mr. StepaENS. One other question, Madam Chairman. S
~ From what Mr. Rhodes has said about the volume of the cotton
business, he could consider it more or less a thin market as contrasted
with grain, which would be a larger market, is that right, Mr. Gray?
 Mr.Gray. It would, unfortunately, be sucfl an example. As recently

as 1953 the cotton futures market was the world’s largest futures mar-

ket, and incidentally, to further confirm what Mr. Rhodes ‘said, we did
~publish a study inabout 1960 in which we explained the demise of
. the cotton futures market and its demise was owing, ydirectl‘y,to‘ighg

* fact that the Government assumed the _marketing function.”
- Mr. Srepurws. That would give price support to the farmer produc-

ing the cotton ? : . e S e s

Mr. Ruoors. Yes. 4 o e :

_ Mrs. Surrivan. Dr. Gray, the fact still remains, does it not, that

the objective sought in playing the commodity market is to maximize

- . galns or minimize losges ?

~ Depending on the ability of the proceSSdré to pass on costs, Whicﬁ
are extensive, any losses experienced as a result of playing the com-

ity futures market are passed on ultimately to the consumer.

- Given an economic situation characterized by mnflation orinflationary
b
- up. To the extent that restrictions are placed on commodity futures
- trading—in terms comparable to margin requirements on stock pur-
- chases—to this extent pressures to bid up commodity prices, above any
justified economic price, will be eliminated. This has been true as far
‘s stocks are concerned, and I do not see how anyone can argue that
oh the«iame could not be true regarding speculation in the commodity
markets, e L L
 Mr. Gray. If that is a question, Madam Chairman, the answer in
- a word would be “No.” If T may elaborate. A iy
- Mrs. Sviravay. Please do. oo Ceeii o : o
~ Mr. Gray. The commodity futures markets simply represent the
most eflicient price-determining mechanism that has ever been devised.
If you interfere with the function of the commodity futures markets,
then you encounter much greater likelihood of establishing incorrect
prices at either too low or too high levels. 2 3
. If I may illustrate with a couple of recent cases. The Congress did
prohibit futures trading in onions in 1958. Subsequent to that time

- we analyzed the price variability in 'cash onions,

ressures, or the prospects of inflation, commodity prices will be bid
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- Prior to the period when there was active futures trading in onions
and subsequent to the period when there was active futures trading
in onions, we published the results of this study, the price variability
was much greater prior to futures trading and after futures trading
than it was during the era of active futures trading. :

“One other example. In November 1965 Secretary of Defense Mc-
Namara took the tripartite action to halt what he considered to be
an unjustified rise in copper prices. He released, I believe, it was 200,-
000 tons of copper from the stockpile which of course had the imme-
diate effect of causing the weakness in copper futures and spot, copper.
prices. He raised. margins in copper futures trading to prohibitive
levels, and he took some steps with regard to the 1mportation and

.;exportationof“cppggr; Having prohibited by raising the m: %msﬂtlo

ly the

 prohibitive levels ft er really had simply &
effect, of the thermometer but it didn’t keep the tempera-

ntures trading in copper really had s
breaking,

‘ ‘ os and cash copper reached
 history. He dids St}OIP the price rise. He did

‘the law of supply and demand, e simply deprived cop-
_copper, consumers and ‘copper sellers of the opport 5

: ot

nselves against price change which the futures market

high level in histo

g oy

Err

g el
g

 Mr. Gray.|I did not, Madam Chairman, personally conduct. an in-
vestigation.info sugar futures prices atthe time of the rige. T am qiiite
willing to say that from studies that.I have done of m commodity

fiitures markets, that without the sugar futures market ou still would
have had—because of the basic underlying shortage of sugar supplies -
in the world—you. would have had ‘the price rise, that you had. The
© Pitures farkets provide the best device known fo enable. people 10
"to the facts of 1ife’ind price. If you had closed down the sugar

market you would have left Sugar users and sugar producers
h poorer position than they were in because they ‘could pro-
tect | elves against the price risé and against the subsequent decline
i;?l)ichf occurred, of course, after the supplies had once again been
: ;:‘Mré.pS?ULI;WAN. 1 certainly have not been proposing an end to specu-
lation in the futures markets. T want to see it regulated in order to

~ protect the public,not end it. ‘

~ Mr. Gray. Indirectly, my fear is that the proposal may amount to
that, particularly inso%la-r‘ as any analogy is'drawn and this analogy

continues to be drawn, oven in the financial community. Between trad-

ing in stocks and trading in commodity futures, it 1s of the utmost
importance that the commodity futures margins be kept as low—at the

~ lowest level possible. The essential reason for this, going back to part
- of my statement, these are essentially hedging markets. The enable

tho firms that T am representing here to protect themselves an thereby

~ operate on a smaller profit margin than they otherwise could do.

Now, from their standpoint, they always use a futures contract as a

hedc%e, which means they use it as a temporar; substitute for an in-
~tended later transaction in the cash commodity. So they routinely.
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engage in two transactions instead of one. And if you much raise the
price of engaging in the futures transactions, they will simply have to
resort to a kind of transaction pattern that is more costly that pre-
ceded futures trading before this device came along, and that has got
to be passed along to the consumer in the form of higher prices be-
cause this margin, their marketing margins, would go up.

 Mrs. Suriivan. Again I go back to the only market in which we have
made any kind of study, and that is sugar. In 1963 there was excessive
speculation in sugar futures leading to a sharp rise in both world and
domestic futures and in cash prices also. The large users of sugar, like -
confectionery firms and so forth, came in to see us to ask for help and
ask what should they do. Because if they had bought ahead as they
normally do, they would have had to raise the price of everything that
they were producing in the line of bakery goods, and in all products
that used sugar—candy, soft drinks, and so forth.

In the hearings that we held and the studies that were made, there
was definite proof that there was overspeculation. Brokers had been
enticing people to come in and turn over a fast dollar on very low
margin. This definitely increased the price of sugar at that time.

Mr. Wirriams. Madam Chairman. e

Mrs. Surrivan. I will give you your time in a few minutes, Mr.
Williams. I cannot speak about grains, Dr. Gray, or other commodi-
ties, because we have not made a study of them. That is why we asked
you gentlemen to come here and give us your advice. But I cannot see
how overspeculation in these commodities ultimately does not go down
to the consumer in higher costs of the things we buy, particularly in
the unregulated commodities.

Mr, Gray. Madam Chairman, when prices rise there is no doubt in
my mind that these prices must be passed on to the consumer. The
question before us is whether in general there is any tendency to
speculating in commodity futures to cause undue price fluctuations,
either upward or downward, because we have got to be concerned with
the appropriate price levels for producers as well as consumers.

The answer to that, as best as we can do in general terms—and it is
my experience at Stanford University for a number of years and they
have studied their cases—this has been studied intensively for a period
of some 35 years, and the best general answer is that price fluctuations
are minimized with futures trading rather than exaggerated. I am
sorry that 1 cannot speak directly to your one counterexample of
sugar. I did not make a study of that particular pricerise. =~

Mrs. Surrivan. The hearings revealed that while there was much
talk of a world shortage of sugar, it was only an estimate of what the
world would need in sugar, and there was really no shortage. And the
same thing happened back in 1954 in coffee from Brazil; and there
was no shortage of coffee. It was manipulation in coffee futures that
caused the coffee price increases in 1954 to the consumer, just as it was
the fear of a scarcity of sugar in the world market that caused the
excessive speculation in sugar in 1963 and the subsequent price in-
creases. , : : : . o '

Mr. Witrtams. T did not want to ask any questions, I wanted to
make one point. ' S v

Mrs. SurLivan. If you will pardon me, Mr. Williams.
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‘Mr. Binguanm. Regular order. ;
~ Mr. WitLiams, At the same time my time is being sacrificed.
© Mirs. Sutrivan. Please, Mr. Williams. You will receive your turn. -
 Mr. Halpern? : i

My, Witniams, We started on the,5-n;ii{iffef rule some time ago and
the past half hour we haye heard from two people. ’
.. Mr.HaveernN. Madam Chairman.

- First, I would like to commend the disting)
~ ing us on many phases of this legi-sla;tion;wﬁ
~ helpfultous. .. e e :
- IT'might add, as a little sidenote, that while the subject of commodity
- futures is rather dull to most people, I was interested in seeing a recent -
story in Playboy magazine that puts sex appeal into a rather little
known and complex subject. '

nished vpanel‘ffi'n‘ enlighten-
ich T am sure will be most

ek - 4 3 Ay
 Proféssor Griy, since the commodity markets are fairly complex
institutions, perhaps you would ‘be so kind to answer some basic

 questions as to the operation of these markets.

 leconomy. . .

First, precisely, what function do these markets perform that could
not be achieved by direct transactions between the producers of the
products and the commercial purchasers? = '
. Mr, Gray. Several functions, Mr, Halpern.

L.

‘irst, and most importantly, they enable hetter adju‘stment, a, better

allocation of the commodity over time which would be impossible with
“only cash or spot transactions which is possible but made very awkward
and expensive with forward contracts, forward contracting which is
done, so futures affect this allocation of the commodity through time
with much greater economy and efficiency than any other market.
~ Secondly, the job of price determinations and where you have a
well-used futures market for any commodity, then the price of the
commodity is actually determined on the futures market and all of the
cash or spot transactions are geared to or related to it. The advantage
here is the centralization, the bringing together of all of the supply
and demand influences into one marketplace so that you get a more
accurate, continuing reflection of supply and demand in price at any
one ime. . el L e T e ‘
. Finally,and partienlarly from the standpoint,of the firms that T am
representing here today, hedging, which would be impossible or pro-
Thibitively expensive if you didn’t have commodity futures markets,
-enables these ﬁmgls, for example, to obtain financ¢ing of their inventories
at considerably more faverable rates from the banks than they other-
' d do, Hence, reducing the marketing margin—hence reducing
of doing business, And again, it is.only because they can trade
tracts very cheaply with minimal deposits for protection of all
‘;the‘?‘,radin‘g, that it :is possible for them to achieve this

M. Hazer: Could you tell us exactly what the relationship is be-
tween the price I pay for wheat futures contracts on the commodity -
exchange anid the p

‘ price paid for a bu,she'l of wheat, by a_commercial
Mr.Gpav. The relationship isvery close, and it-is guided essentially

by thé'question 'of what we call carrying charges. If, for examiple, at

the present time you looked at wheat prices in say the Kansas, City
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prices and let’s suppose for illustration, thy

Board of Trade .you,,/,vr{f@oﬁld ﬁndmandl‘am speaJk;in%'5 fivst of cash wheat
might find the September contract, for fi

2 bushel or $1.53.  that were the case. hen
ﬂwting;a',carryjng:' charge, the cost of arryl

now until the September delivery date, =~

In Jother. circumstance: when there is a ¢ ge of com-
‘modity this relationship is still guided by the: ime consideration, but
it ma]y"tu_i'n out to be an inverse earrying charge becaus ere is need
to pull the commodity out of storage now and use it. e futures :
always guiding present usage versus future usage, and therehy again
performing. this allocative, Tunction of th commodity and thereby,
incidentally, achieving a diminution in pri variation through time,

RN. You suggest that more rather ‘ ation
1Ze pri S, yet there have been times v N
g and has driven commodity prices:

e futuresare

tabilizin
T have two queries in thisregard. g
- If margin requirements are not the proper vehicle f

- syich speculation, ; L pies o

- Second, what
any, has in the p

e 12, 1f any—what sort of control, if
‘ Jast been exercise ~~ovfe‘1";excéssiV@_,,,de{sta‘biii'z;ingvspecue
lation by th’e‘@o"MOdity'iExchahge,Coﬁgmiésiori,? e
 Mr. Gray. I did say In my statement that margin control would be
ineffective because one can really only aS@értain'igxg,dretrOSpe¢t; whether ;
_the price change that occurred was warranted or not. by supply and
demand conditions. e g e s e
. But if you should enCanj;gr,insta{nces, which yo T the
well-tiged futures ma;rkefﬁé‘w?}iére”’the*pr‘ic‘e change that occurred is sub-
sequently seen tobe upwardﬁgnwj@rmnted or could be demonstrated to
unwarranted, this Would”typqully be for one or two reasons, either
because the market ‘was mistaken in‘its aggregate judg:
a‘cdlleétiy?e",j‘fu’«igment‘]and it can make mistakes, Ab
think you can’t do anything. You cannot legislat
making mistales if they are honest mistakes,
Alternatively, occasionally this may oce
endeavors on the p; e ma

more question,

me. I am just veminded of one oth
clusion o other commodities under the Co
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: Excha,nge Act. So youv initial sta;tement refernng to the emlre panel
T can’t speak fora To £ them, but for me it isincorrect.

Mr rperN; You tend to identify speculation with volume trad-
i Yet, is there ROt & difference between stabilizing speculatlon ‘which
; leads to a balaneed market and destabilizing s eculatlon whlch tends
to overemphasize trends in one direction or another?

_ Mr. Gray. There can be, that distinction. I'tried i m my sbatement to
inction a little bit differently. I thir \Ic that the chronia
‘ty wﬁ, some of our thin futures markets is. inadequate s:pecua;
‘ a hen and gg proposition. Did -
‘becas y traded, or did the price go up
iebod traded there wasn’t a sufficiently large body -

. f?the pmcmg go u

bécause when somebo W
* of speculators in. that market to defend that prme2 And Ithinkmostof
~ the evidence would st t that the latter is a better inter} yretation of

al speculators, they
s more likely to Be :
ly to be smaller in
eny that you can

: ugg
- the events. If yox? have a large body of professio
will generally be ri ht on the price. The market

~ those circumstances which is, still, of course, ‘

find circumstances when the best collectlve ]ud t of traders will -
be mistaken for a perlod of timing and that there you have the ultimate
safeguards that it is supply and demand of a commodity that brmgs
the futures price ultimately back into line.

Mr. Harpern. My time is up. Thank you very much

. Mrs. Surrivan. Mr. Gonzalez? ,

- Mr. Gowzatrz, Thank you, Madam Chalrman
~As to wheat grain futures and the activity in that market did the
r%l;t &epletxon of the storage quantmes have any eﬁeet upon the

m ]
- Mr. Gray. I was thlnking the Kansas ‘City man could spea,k more
;acqumtely, and he may wish to expand on my statement v
T}xe degletwn of wheat stocks—it has been my meressmn the wheat
ks has improved the opportunity for trading in wheat so that the

s

. _volume has gong up. Not to the extent, however, that it has in other

~grains where the: extent' or degree of Government mterfereme into e
2 ym'\nglsstlllfa S . - :
oMy GONZALEZ

- prlces in 1959, fb‘ y }3
~ endeavoredto

hea,vy rtra &buyi"ng?;f ’
tdrtedﬁthe were too high fo
ﬂnlshment for thls effort was fi

- people who nge in a position to mo
that this price was too high, did so and deliveredi the
who had to pay too high a price for it, so it cost them G
were penalized by the Commodity Exchange Autho ty, and I ave

forgotten Wh?ct the penalty was. Th1s was 1&3@ meentﬁr ted buy1 g tq L
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brokers andithe\commi,s‘siqnfsﬁfm just lined up Tots ofcyixfst?mj‘fefs with,
lots of money and tried tg;ﬁush:tii& market price up, and temporarily
achievedithiss 1 ooved i I B B el o et

Py

: MI‘.GONZAVLEZV.TIQ?HJK}’OI\];_; et e US i  le
_ Mr. Caldwell, do you recall any recent efforts at manipilation in

this market, wheat grain, or any strong fluetuations that resulted in.
price increases to the consumer? T g ,
Mr. Carpwere. We haven’t had any within the past year. The most.
recent case in which we have brought charges involved ‘wheat ir'1963..
That case has not yet been settled. ‘
Mr. Gonzavrez, Thank you very much.
~Mrs. Surtitvan. Mr. Williams e , :
Mr. Traes. Madam Chairman, could I address an answer to Mr.
Gonzalez’ question ¢ : @
Mrs, Surrivan. Surely. i , '
. Mr. Tunis. I believe you asked if the depletion of the (fovernment.
‘stocks in the past few years—referred to the wheat stocks—had any-
imlg)llicatioﬁ on the futures contract market. ‘
[r. GoNzaLrz. Was it a factor ¢ i N
Mr. Tarzs. Yes, it was, and I shall quote you figures from the Kan-
sas City marlket. 5 iy fan B
In 1962 the volume of speculative trades were more or less the sdthe.
as the volume of speciilative trades on the Kansas City market in wheat
in the year 1966. However, the yolume of contraets in hedging in 1962
were approximately 25 million bushels, whereas in 1966 they were-
almost double. They were tmore than double. They were 58 million
bushels. So this brings the grain industry ifito play whete they are
carrying the grains on a hedge basis rather than having the grains.
carried by the Government in the case of surplus: Lo
Mr. GonzaLez. Thank you very much. L
Mrs. Strtivax. Mr, Williams? ° ,
- Mr. Wirriams. Thank you, Madam Chairman. - P
Dr. Gray, I would like to say that I think it would be helpful to.
this committee if you would take the ease raised by Mr. Stephens.
where he has $500 to invest in cotton futures and describe the various:
things that can happen to Mr. Stephens’ $500, and I would like to.
suggest that you submit that for the record. X
r. Gray. All right, I’ll endeavor to do that.
(The material requested follows:) ;

Bt BEN

; DISPOSITION OF MARGIN Drposrrs : :

. Take the price of December corn futures:to be $1.00.per bushel, and the margin:
requirement, to be $500 for a 5000 bushel futures contraect. When a December:
futures contract is purchased (or sold) at $v1>.-00'_%)ea;~;,bus‘1m§, the opposite side of
the bought (or sold) position is taken by the Cledring hétise, whieh: therefore
holds theé seller’s” (delivery) - obligation toward all' buyers; and the buper’s:.

(receipt) obligation toward all sellers. The basic purpose of margingis to proteet

the 'clearing house:in the event of griqe change; so that it can meet its seller’s
ob%iga‘tion in the event of price decline, or its buyer’s ebligation.in the event of
rice rige. | e Dy A U R T
» If prices rise to $1.05 per bushel; lialf of the seller’s margin has bden impaired;.
80 he would be called upon to; deposit $250 additional margin. If priees, rise.
further to $1.10, he would be required to deposit an additioma;t;1$250' margin, ete.,.
s0 long as prices continue to rise. If prices declined, then buyers would be re-:
quired to deposit additional margin according to the same schedule ($250 for each
‘B¢ price décline). Thus at 41l'times the cléaring house iy protected.. . Wi
83-340-—67—pt. 2——4 B
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. The market determined value of a futures contract at the moment it is bought
{sold) is zero.|Only as its price may subsequently rise or fall does it acquire any
~ value to buyers' (sellers). Marging'are‘established and maintained to ‘assure
. that any increments in value are transferred from buyers to sellers ‘(or vice
yersa) if and when they occur. .. ] e P
_‘As to what happens, then, to Mr. Stephens’ $500, the ens
(1) If price does not change, his margin is returne “him, minus ap-
‘proximately $20 cominission fees, when hig contract'is offset in the pit.
- (2) If price changes in his favor, his margin plus $50 for each one-cent
.. change in price is returned to him, minus $20 commission fees, when his con-
.. tract is offset in the pit. . .. . o R o A
: (8) Tf the price changes against him, his margin minus $50 for each one-
cent change in price is returned to him, minus $20 commission fees, when his
contractig offset in the pit. = s G S e
(4) If his contract is not offset in the pit; then a cash delivery t ansaction -
‘results, and the remaining margin is applied to this transaction, =« oo

«Congresswoman  Sullivan stubmitted  the following news reléaséﬁ‘from Office of Assistant
G g AR o B : Secretary: of Defense  (Public A,ffaifs)i,y. , s
- T e NOVEMBER 17, 1965,
- Secretary of Defense Robert S. McNamara stated that our greatly increased
. _defense efforts in Vietnam and recent international political disturbances threat-
enito- disrupt and distort the market for copper despite the best'efforts of ‘the
industry to supply the market. This market disruption can lead to strong in-
flationary ‘developments not only in copper essential to defense needs, but; also
" more generally throughout our economy. Such developments would seriously im-
- pair our defense efforts in Vietnam. To avert ‘them, the Government, after dis-
" cussion with members of the industry, is initiating.the following action:
a. Arrangements are being made for the orderly disposal of at least 200,000
. tons of copper from ‘the National Stockpile: i
¢ b. Bxports of; copper and copper scrap from the U.S. will be controlled for
" an indefinite period in order to conserve domestic supply.
¢. Legislation 'will be requested of the Congress by the Administration ‘to
permit the suspension of import.duties on'cepper which at present amount
to1.7¢ per pound. : ey s s A
d. Discussions will be held with the directors of the New York Commodity
Exchange urging them to curb excessive speculation in copper trading by
raising the margin requirements for ‘copper from the current ‘level ‘of ‘ap-
+ . proximately 10% to a figure more comparable to that required for'trading
on the Nety York Stock xchange. s e

My, Winiams, I am quite certain you are familiar with the Inter-
national Wheat Agreement which comes under the jurisdiction of this
committee, and we have the International Coffee Agreement which
comes under the jurisdiction of another committee. I believe these
agreements were entered: into with the understanding that the inter-
national price and production controls would eliminate undue specu-

, ions in prices. H

%

e ;
: ying:d gher. prices? .
. MriGrayudt is unquestionably true that wher
nents té ék. sort' the pricesof thedtiported trop

ive do as4 consuming, importing ; that.this is the effect

un'(‘jués}tigé)*nmly‘“frue;%h'ént he leading cause of continued high sugar
: the Americanhousewife isthe sugar quota:system whicl is

‘we enter into agree:
I egfpifmodities which

- prices fon't ;

inefféc questiofrably trvie that the payment-which flour millers
miiké i bkodes g tho ptloe of whiths, which'they pitlidase from fafiiers
to pay dor the market—for the farmer’s, marketing certificates ulti-

r the market—tor the. farmer’s m
mately increases the priees.of flour and, thi

. arefore, of bread: -

RSB

o




o ;Eeé;h@a' a bearing on the speculation in sily
 Mr.Grav. T don’t understand your question
My, Mixisa. The

t C

. the cotton futures market?

o chanfejﬁlé;d'a:S,tatemenp‘wmh the committee but did not come in. Do

. Mrs. Sgriavan. Mr. Bingham? -~ o
. Mx¥Bivemam: Thank you, Madam Chairman, T am interest
the comments made by Mr. Thy : ks
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Mrs. SuLLivan. Mr. Minish? 2 ke

- Mr. Manisa. Thank you, Madam Chairman. Sl g ;

Mr. Ruopes. Did I understand you to say earlier that you worked -
for the Agriculture Department? 5o e =
- Mr. Ruopgs. I did from 1934 te 1960. ‘

Mr. WJLLIAMS’. Thatisall I have. Thank you.

Mr. Minisu. 19607 Did you not. also say that théy ’ju‘s_,tf"zibéuatr wrecked

<

£

- Mr. Ruopes. Yes. s e S Enigeh
 Mr. Minis. Is that while you were there or after youleft?

Mr. Rroes. Part of it was done while I was there and it, was finished
off after I was there. oA v ity
- Mr. Mivise. Did you administer the cotton program? = :
Mr. Ruopes. I administered the cotton program in the Department
of Agriculture from 1952 to 1960 under the supervision of the then
Secretary Ezra Taft Benson. : ’

- Mr., MinisH. ngyou feel the actions of the Agriculture Départment -
~might have resulted in higher costs to the consumer ? :

- Mr. Ruopus. The price-support programs of the Department of Ag-
- riculture unquestionably increased the cost to the consumer. I don’t

think there would be any question whatever about that because the
price of cotton during the years that I was in the Department was held
up in the neighborhood of 32 cents to 35 cents a pound in this country,

- and it was being sold throughout the world from the low to mid dle 20

cents a pound. It is the chief ingredient in most household products.
Mr. Mintsu. Do you want equal time, Mr. Caldwell? ’, ,
Mr. Carpwerr. Mr. Rhodes is more familiar with that since [ did
not come under the cotton authority jurisdietion. =
~ Mr. Mixise. Mr. Rhodes, you mentioned earlier the foreign mar-

~ kets—do they set margins in foreign countries?

Mr. Ruoprs. Yes; sure, they have margins.
Mr. Minism. Can you tell us what they are? -

 Mr. Ruopes. No, sir; T wouldn’t be capable 6f telling you what, the
- margin in India or Japan or even Liverpool is, The Liverpool market

is very, very thin, too, now. i R D
“Mr. Mivisu. Dr. éray, I note ‘that the New York Commodity Ex-

ou

eel that the trading of silver which i

ind ‘producers could adapt to that Fising price
the wisdom to do so by trading in future contracts. =~

g urman, 1 am interested in
els about the necessity of controlling

Vo R R R g
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¢
margins. He referred to them on page 4 of his statement. I see yow
have a very detailed appendix on that subject. Could you quickly tell
us what are the criteria by which the proper margins are set? Does it
~ have to do with control of excesses of speculation ? ,

Mr. Tarrs, No, sir. ‘As far as the criteria for the setting of the
margin, I would like to go a bit deeper than what has been said here:
as to the opeération of the Kansas City Board of Trade and a little
~deeper than what is in the paper. 5 F
' The minimum margins are set by the board of directors of the
Kansas CitnyBéar‘d of Trade—for the minimum margins to guaran-

. tee that contract. However, we have the Kansas City Grain Clearing:
-~ Co. who takes the opposite side of these contracts, and all the trades

are cleared through them. They have margin requirements for that
~ clearinghousé. Therefore, the members of the Kansas City Board of
- Trade who are also clearing members are obliged to bring in the:

~ margin of either one, whichever is the highest,.

~As far as the directors of the Kansas City Board of Trade are

concerned in, the setting of minimum margins for our members, we .
review them, we review them quite often, we also look at the criteria:
Is this level high enough to guarantee the contract—is it also low
enough to afford the public and the hedger to come in and make full
use of the margin? : : , :
W sincerely believe the more forces we have in the marketplace:
~ dictating their thoughts as to the price up or down establishes what
we consider to be a true market price. : .

Mr. Bineaam. Is there any parallel between the downpayment
made on a real estate contract at the time of signing of the contract
-and what you refer to as margins in futures trading?

Mr. Gray. I think the closer parallel, sir, might be with a deposit
of earnest money rather than downpayment. Because the futures
margin is not a downpayment. The title to no capital asset has been
made when a futures contract is established by a transaction between
buyér and seller. . . : :

Mr. Binguam. That is also true in real estate. The downpayment

~ina real estate contract is, in effect, earnest money.

Ir. Gray. Yes. If, in the final analysis, if it were true, sir, that the
~ futures contracts culminated in delivery of the product, then the:
~ margin could serve retroactively or, retrospectively—it could serve as
W nent and the balance over and above that margin would
—would have to be paid in cash to purchase and own the
modity. To that extent you could say there is a parallel.
the important point is, the usefulness of markets is for hedging
poses—people who hedge do not ordinarily intend to take de-
Speculators rarely do. Therefore, some 99 percent, T suppose, in
sed futures markets are offset before they mature and, there-
don’t have thie commodity changing hands through this in-
and if you Took at that in retrospect you couldn’t say that
this margin deposit was a downpayment because there was no trans-
“action.” | = L
 Mr. Bivcmam. Let me ask you this question, Dr. Gray. It seems to
“me it is a rather key question. = 3 ,

I take it from what you have said before that you would agree
that excessive speculative buying in futures can force up the futures

¥

H o

st
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price. That is pretty clear. Now, the $64 question seems to me is, will
ithat ever affeet the price at time of delivery? o T2

Mr. Gray. Typically not. T ;

Mr. Bixemam, Why netd it g i

Mr. Gray. In the illustration I cited earlier what was the excessive
and manipulative in one contract in 1959, the ultimate effect on the
price of cash wheat was that a small proportion of the total amount of
wheat was delivered in satisfaction of,tlf)ese contracts, That being the
«case, the prices on those contracts was too high—to the same extent
‘that the futures pricing had gone too high. CaE s

More usually, in the event of excess speculation in futures this would

Suggests that with the futurésfmarkéts, a more precise job of ‘pric‘ing
is done, because you have brought al] the supply and demand forces to

bear at one place in determining this Drice you haye and yon have an

~ improved oppertunity for getting the correct prices established.
. Mr. Bineaam. What if anything does the Commodity. Exchange

Authority haye to say.about this¢ — * - ot L
Mr, Carowerr. The Commodity Exchange Alithority h nothing to -

i

do with margins at the present time. o i
Mr. Bineram, Before yielding back my time, T would like to expr

a welcome to those gentlemen who are here from New York City.. hese
markets do play an important role in the financial life of the city, and
I thank them for appearing here today. i Pl

Thank you, Madam Chairman. , Gy ol
Mrs. Surtiavan. T have a few question that I would like to ask. S
First, one of th‘e”witne‘ssesﬁl)r. Gray—recommended placing all of

“the agricultural commodities under re ulation. Do all of ‘you gentle-

£y placin iti %vtural commodities under regu-
lation, and also would you approve some similar type of r@gulatlfon"%ﬁf
nonagricultural products? Ts there anyone that objects to placing all

commodities under some form of regulation? = i
Mr. Ruoprs, T wouldn’t say I object. I think it is highly questionable

whether commodities that are grown entirely in foreign countries and

traded on foreign futures markets can logically be put under super-
vision in this country, , i :

Mr. Warrs. The New York Mercantile Exchange, finds no fault with
régulation by Commodity Exchange Authority. We welcome it -

“ Mr. Brooks. As you added the commodities to the responsibilities
of the Department of Agriculture, and you get away from agricultural -
forestry products and as the volume of trade, because of the economic
situation, seems to increase, there comes g point in our judgment
‘where the Congress might well look at establishing an independent
regulatory agency—call it the Commodity Exchange Commission—
divorced from a commission composed of Cabinet members—not unlike
that established in the securities field—hut you have to look at this
only when you get to the point in our j udgment, are these commodities
peculiarly agricultural or forestry? = e

1s. SurLvan. Mr. Watts, what in the world makes bags of 1,000

circulated or uncirculated silver dollars proper items for futures.




. the standpoint. of the participant.

. ‘W‘l%a;t‘is the rationale for that?
- Mr. Warrs. 1t is not & futures contract. It

! not & future is a spot contract. We
write a contract for futures trading in silver. dollars. TN
by several of our members, this spot-cash market

wi « y several of our members in order to, shall we say,
bring order out of chaos in the market for these silver dollars. It seems

{hat there is a considerable premium on some silver dollars and some

not. That is just—we just don’t let them—it, is a cash contract, not.
~ Mr$. SULLIVAN. Professor Gray, we on this Subeommitee all recog-
_ nize, I am sure, the legitimate role of the speculator in any com-
 modity exchange. Normally, these are knowledgeable people who buy
and sell as a regular thing, keeping up with the market, knowing the
range of trading values, and providing a base for the trade to hedge.
~ But what of the doctors and lawyers and merchants and schoolteachers
~and others who are to by their brokers into taking a flyer on
© some coxgmo&iﬁy‘*"wh‘ic' : purting upward—people who
~ have no idea o how the m: f~bu~t;_‘whoﬁai§g?’pulled in by
 dreams of sudden ri jes—and often end uj with a big hole in their
: “accounts as the market suddenly shifts? “° . i ol

hat legitimate role do such plungers play in an orderly market?
- Gray, Well, Madam Chairman, you have used some fairly color-

ray. W :

~ ful -expressions in that question—being touted kers to the
extent that ‘this does oceur, and if they are. ' o1l informed and
“responsibly treated by their brokers it 1s objectiona st from

ist as you indicated—péople with

. Now, if this Is, say, a doctor or den

 fairly high incomes in thi economy and if this affects a transfer,

payment from that segment of the economy:-to the wheat or potato
segment of the economy, T ‘wouldn’t pass & moral judgment on that
as being bad. It is probably ani“inefficient way to doit. . . j
Motre importantly, Madam Chairman, the marketplace is a con-
tinuing screening process. Those who do succeed are obviously doing
a good job of forecasting prices and those whosventure into this with-
out proper preparation, without proper understanding are, I suppose,
by and large, apt topay & price for that venture; nio differently, I think,
however, from ventures. into any kind of investment if they are ill
advised or ill timed or not properly prepared. We can’t—I think we
cannot :leg'is‘l’;i’p?eagé,i‘h“st foolishness. T think we cannot legislate against
_ people lacking wisdom and intelligence. To the extent, however—to
* repeat this—to the extent that it is irresponsible touting by brokers,
for example, I think it is squarely obj ectionable. : e
" Mrs. Suriivan. In asking this question, I was thinking back again
to our hearings and our study in 1963 in sugar because this is what
happened. And it was obvious that in the end the public does pay &
price for this and we did pay for it in sugar and we paid for it in coffee
when that market soared. Going over the records in the brokers’ ac-
counts, it was clear #hat many people who had never before speculated
. in anything like this were pulled into the iarket on the promise of
o fast buck—jjl hate to use that slang ,éxpxﬁesSiohT—but‘ that was the only

i

i
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: ' ot into it: They hiad been 16d to believe they cotild make it
big overnight. And we found that it took a very small amount of

rﬁ.dney,‘com‘f)aratiirely, to play for big stakes. The broker would allow
them to come in with a few hundred dollars and buy or sell contracts
~ worth thousands of dollars. Do not tell us it did not raise the price of
- sugar to the user, because it did. - e L E e
- Mr.Gray. Mad;amChair‘man,‘r‘naylicémment onthat? o
 Again, I apologize for not being able to deal in' any depth with
your single counterexample of sugar and futures trading. I simply
am not informed asto that articular price movement. B
T would say, however, that during the course of that T personally
- Was visiting with 4 commodity broker in San Francisco on another
matter and a young man came in and said to him that he would like
to buy a sugar futures contract and this broker said, “What makes
Xou think you would like to buy a sugar futures contract?” He said,

- My friend bought some and told me if I would gef $300 and invest
~in that, that T would make some money.” The broker said, “In the -
~ first place, T would not accept your account with $300, and secondly,
- I strongly advise you against trading futures and if you are going
to trade them you will have to do it some place else than with me,”™
" "This is the distinction I am trying to draw between ethical and re-
3 ble brokerage firms and those who may have, and T didn’t have
the evidence you evidently had, those who may have touted people to do
- thisirresponsibly. : A 2 S
 Mus. S}‘)w(;,m\{AN.'We are all aware of the need for, and the use of,
the futures market by the knowledgeable regular traders, whether they
be individuals who' snter as speculators or préducers or users of the
- commodity who are hedging. We are not trying to interfere with
~orderly trading. oot R }
. Frankly, this section 207 was put in this bill so'that tve could develop:
ore information about futures trading and thus have a better under-
standing of what happens when the futures market was' éntered ‘info
by people who knew nothing about it—who sre ‘led to -believe it is: -
- a way of making money fast. Often they find it 18 just as easy to loge

. it fast. That is their problem, perhaps, except that when such amateurs

agﬁragvate’ & volatile market, we all fée the consequences.
 Mr. Stephens? o R e : Tt

. Mr. SteprENs. Madam Chairman, one thing T want to do, and that

- is'tonot just leave in the record the answer to Mr. Minish’s question

about the support price for cotton as raisiiig the price of ‘cotton goods
to the consumer. Just by itself it sounds as if that is a great fault in
the price of cotton supported by the Government. T think the record
should explain the fact that the support is an incentive one to make
it profitable for farmers to continue to raise cotton in America. It'is
to supply the producer with a reasonable return for his work and for
his investment in order for us to continue to have textile mills that
will employ people in America so that we can compete with people
in other countries at a higher wage level than countries abroad and
~also in order for us:to support the worker in the garment industry
~in New York and Mr. Mi‘ni‘s}h’.sﬁdi-‘stridtf-‘—.—'whic?hWe; intend to main>

- tain—and I want t6 have it maintained, at a high level of employment, -
- high level of wages for people ini the cotton textile field. T we want




- 638 | CONSUMER CREDIT PROTECTION ACT

* todothiswe have to provide anincentive for them in America to grow
« -cotton.. - , i Comeeie
~ We have chosen the method of cotton supports:because the only
alternative to that would be in getting back to where we were many,
‘many years ago when we had terrific battles over tariffs. We either
had to raise the tariff to prevent these goods from coming in or pro-
vide the incentives that would make the farmer get what he gets. So,
- -if we are going to have prosperity in the whole field of textiles then
. ‘the consumer is going to have to pay a little higher price... . . ...
- Now, to get back to some of the impressions L got from our sugar
" investigation. The first was the fact that Cuba had gone out. of the
-market, of supplying the United States. Thist a lot of people think
i ) get into the market.

. that sugar was %mng'bo be scarce and they shoule
e o o tho Al b1 & b s g
 The other thing that 1 remember that was brot cht out in the dis-

.cussion we had was the fact that sugar was going to have to be pro-

duced in quantities in other places; that there was going to have to
laced . in, the: field of sugar p i

; ] 'oduction .some incentive and the
~ American people were going fo have to adjust to a-higher price.if they
~ ‘wanted to make people in other conntries go into the production of |
sugs ey could pay higher wages and pay for the cost of investing -
r plants. Tt Was-.not,@ggguse of speculation, there were gther
d that, is what-you had in mind, was 1t not, P :

Gray. Yes, sir. e L s
repHENS. Mrs. Sullivan did not enter, into th
ere other factors involved. arounid the h

\etor of speculators getting.into the

Wﬁblé @a‘i@t..tef;
ket. Those are.other

Mr. Ruoors. Madam Ch irman, I would like to say that I appreci-
ate Congressman Stephens’ bringing this point up again. My answer
was very short and it may have been misinterpreted. I am not opposed
to the cotton program. In fact, I have supported it and have benefited
m it for 25 years. It is only the way in which it

. fror for ¢ [ ; Thas operated that it
~ has affected the futures market. On August 1, 1966, the Government

~ had in its inventory over 14 million bales of cotton out of a total carry- .

 over of 16.7;million bales in the country. The Government owned and
,}i}md ir{ store over 14 million bales of cotton which they were offering
forsale. : % :
-~ Ifyou take cotton, in a cotton shirt that sells for $6 or $8, the cotton
 would be worth about 27 to'29 cents. So if you increased the price 50
percent you are onl talking about 6, 7, or 8 eents on that cotton shirt.
But it has increased the cost. ;
But T didn’t mean to infer that it was bad. Our farmers should
 have an income comparable to other people’s. : :
- Mr. Stepaens: I did not mean to imply you were giving an erroneous
answer. I did not want to leave in the record o statement that we had
~ cotton price supports without the fact that we had them in there with
- some good explanation. :
" Mus. Surnivax. Did the Goyernment take over that amount of
_cotton in order to support the price of cotton ?
‘Mr. Ruopus. The Government malkes loans on cotton to the farmer.
Mrs. Sunrivaw. It was to support the price the farmer receives.

i
b
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~ Mr. Ruopzs. At the end of the loan period, if the farmer has not paid
off the loan, plus interest and carrying charges, they take over the
commodity. On the 1st of August 1966, they took over about—nearly
6 million balés of cotton and they already had 8 million bales from:
prior years. ¢ wn 5 ‘
- Mr. SteprENS. In other words, the Government increased the inven-
tory of cotton in warehouses. i ’

Mrs. Surrivan. If the Government had not done it, what would

have happened ¢ Would the price of cotton have gone down ? . -
- Mr. Ruopgs. Present law which the Congress passed in 1965 changes
the way it is handled. Now the payments are made to the producer
directly and the cotton is allowed to move through channels of trade
and be handled as it is normally in other commodities. '

Now, I, as a cotton farmer sell my cotton to anyone I can sell it to
for the best price. I get my additional income in the direct payment
from the Government, not by having the inflated loan rate amg having
them take over the commodity. o

Mrs. SurLivan. Mr. Bingham ¢ : : ;

Mr. Binemam. I just wanted to pursue a little bit with Dr. Gray the
question that Mr. Williams raised about the cotton and sugar interna-
tional agreements, particularly in regard to coffee. I do not know
whether you intended to suggest that you were opposed to the coffee
agreement, Dr. Gray, did you ?

Mr. Gray. I have no ax to grind in this matter, Mr. Bingham. If one
assesses these agreements in terms of their economic efficiency, T should
say that they are not very efficient economically.

Mr. Binemam. May I suggest that there are other considerations?

Mr. Gray. That is why I limited it to just that consideration.

Mr. Bixaaam. The stability of the country producing these com-
modities; for example. ;

Mr. Gray. I am not opposed—I say if we limit our consideration,
because the question which came to me was as to the effect of price on
consumers. If we limit it to that consideration we would have to say

it is ineffitient economically. S ;

© Mr: Bineuam. Is there not also a very good argument to the effect
that if you do not try to regulate, for example, the prices governing
coffee, in Brazil, that you may have such wild swings in prices, such
wild swings in production that you end up not serving the interests
of anybody, not even the consumer of the United States?

Mr. Gray. This is, sir, an argument that is made in defense of this
type of agreement. I should say in general the answer must be that the
extent to which the producers in such a country as Brazil do give their
response to market prices and who respond rationally to higher or
lower priees producing less from the prices lower and more from the
price that is higher, to that extent the most efficient thing would be to

. rély on the free market system, assuming there ig adequate financing
here, and so.on. ‘

Bnt to the extent that that is not true and to the extent that other
considerations such as considerations of political stability, considera- .
tions of hemispheric relations coming into play, then these obviously
must be weighed into the total attitude about this. . :



el

I am in total not opposed to-or aproponent of the coffee agreement.
T£ 1 look at it just from thestandpoint, from the economic:standpoint,

I think I canindicate what the resultswillbe. = .

- Mr. Bivcram. For the record I would like to say that there are
many who say that we should have trade and not aid for the develop-
ing countries. If- we are going to have trade with the developing coun-

~ tries, you have to encourage trade in those commodities that they can
effectively. produce, and 1t is better in my judgment when ‘there is
some restraint on the wild fluctuationsin'price. =+ . v o0

Mrs. SuLravan. I would like to comment on that, toos During the

- debate on the coffee agreement-—and there was a'very hot debate on
the floor—those of us who worked on this problem had the feeling,
and the assurance, in fact, from our consumers, that consumers were
willing to pay a fairprice for any product that was wholly imported.

- But they were not. willing to pay the kind of high price that was the
result of manipulation of the market, such as happened back in 1953
and 1954 when, through a hoax on the consumer, the Brazilian coffee
people tried to frighten the American: processors with exaggerated

- reports about the scarcity of coffee, It was this kind of hoax we are
copposed to. We knew that if the supply of coffee was stabilized to
a certain degree under an international agreement, the price might be
Taised to the consumer. But we would be giving these underdeveloped
countries a chance to stabilize their economies by stabilizing their most
important product. And I think some of them have done it. We recog-
nize that an agreement on supply puts a floor on the price of coffee,
and we would want it to be a fair price. o

When a market is misused and manipulated, however, we have the
obligation to investigate and to try to correct the situation.

. This was the reason we went into those two products, coffee and
sugar. o Lmbat T el i
.+ We appreciate the willingniess of you gentlemen to come here and
help:us understand/more about this subject. It may very well be true, -
asyou haveall stated, that margin on a commodity futures contract
does not mean exactly the same thing as margin on a stock' market
transaction: But it means something very similar, in this ‘respect: -
people can come into your markets and buy and sell contracts worth
many, many times the amount of money they put for margin. Their

_margin can be wiped out in‘a/single day’s trading. They can’t always
get out of the market unless somebody is willing: to buy. them out.

I think the term you use is “locked in.” They can be locked in during .
enough days of trading to be ruined finanecially. That is their worry,

perhaps. S ‘ bR Gri ¢
- But when people who are jaded by the slow pace of stock market

- changes see a.chance tormake a quick killing for a small downpayment,
and are recruited into your markets by brekers.who tempt them with
vast riches ‘at small risk,  they contribute not stability ‘but chaos ‘to .
‘your markets, and I’m sure this happens periodically.. ¢

- You have pointed to technieal deficiencies 111 the languagé of our bill

- to accomplish what we seek to do. I am sure:if we were to corréet the
langmage technieally, you would stillwant ms to drop any provision
of this nature from the billy We hwill'takeyour gdvice under atlvise-
ment, b e ’ ‘ :

g
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I am hoping that before we mark up FL.R! 11601 th depar
Agriculture will have made public the Nathan report on this & ety
and will have some recommendations on the general subject margins

- on ‘agricultural commodities, at least. Depending on the research find-
ings, it seems to me that what would be important for agricultural
futures would be important also for the defense materials also traded
in the futures market. s o

I want to thank you, Mr. Caldwell. I appreciate your coming here
this morning and though we did not make very much use of your broad
knowledge and experience, I felt better in having you here as a back-
‘stop. DAt e Pl ey

, V%e will place in the record at this point a letter just received from
the Secretary of Agriculture on the general subject of margins, ex-

- plaining that the Department has not changed its position on margins,

but is still studying the new report before making any recommenda- -
tions. -~ o0 o

* (The letter referred to follows:)

DEPARI'MENT OF AGRIOULTURE,
. : 2 Washington, August 15,1967,
“Hon. LeoNOR K. SULEIVAN; = . L T
House of Representatives, ~ =
Washington, D.C. A ' S g &
-Dpar Mrs. SuLtivan: I regret the delay in responding to your letter on HR.
11601, your bill to provide comprehensive consumer credit protection. I had
hoped to have more specific information regarding section 207, the proposal to
‘give the Federal Reserve Board authority to regulate -commodity futures mar-
gins, as a result of a special study of this subject which we commissioned.
As I indicated in the departmental report on the bill; we have supported ‘mar-
:gin controls in the past, and we have not changed that position. i S

We are still in the process, however, of evaluating-the study. itiéxammé ‘the

nature of speculation in grain futures contracts; and represents-a pioneering

effort:to determine both the bearing of “excessrspeculation” on commodity price

fluctnations, and the effect of margin requirements on speculative activity and
copricess oo i : 8 e e sl
.~ More questions; were raised by the study than ‘wereanswered, and we want to
“.assess these ‘carefully before drawing any conclusions or making any recom-
mendations based on the study, T T S S
Let me cite a number of ‘questions to illustrat my p . We are reviewing
the basic data available for the study to make certain that it does not contain
errors which: could :weaken or nullify some findings. We need to clarify how the
‘various futures positions—such as anticipatory hedging, offsetting transactions
and others—were classed for the study to determi’neatheirvrelativé’éprice' influénce.
We are working with the firm which tnade the study to resolve these and other
‘questions, and we are hopeful that this final phase of the study can be completed
by early September. : L - ot Sy g e

- Until this phase is completéd, we do yinot feel that‘reaéonrablé 5udgménts’ ean be,
made, or that qualified recommendations should be attempted. © MR i
At that point we will be more than happy to discuss the study and 'r'eportgyviith

you and your subcommittee. We feel it represents a-substant
in an-extremely complex area as it is the first effort to obtain
to the questions of speculative activity by economic analysis
- Prior to then, we will be happy ‘to have the officials from
- change Commission be present at your hearings to di
- - Sincerely yt ! : Vel e

e B

i ey ; : ‘()itvﬁ;pn
- Mrs. Surnivax, hat I want to say tl
meet at 10 o’clock for a full morning and

! 0. It is a big schedule whi ho

Keyserlin
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‘President’s Council of Economic Advisers; witnesses from the Na-
tional Retail Merchants Association, and also from the National Senior
Citizens Association, and Mr. David Caplovitz, author of “The Poor
Pay More”; and in the afternoon at 1:80 we will hear from the Na-
tional Consumers League and the National Retail Furniture Dealers
~ Association, and from Prof, Vern Countryman of Harvard University
Law School. | . Shehiten : ;
With that we thank all of you who contributed to this interesting
diseussion. ¢ P , : : :
~ (The complete statements of Mr. Brooks, Mr. Rhodes, and Mr.
Watts and a statement submitted by the New York Commodity Ex-
change, Inc., follow:) -~ el DY B el T

SeatpMENT OF Wiriiam:F. Brooxs, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL GRAIN TRADE COUNCIL

My name is William F. Brooks. I am President and General Counsel of the
‘'National Grain Trade Council. We appreciate this opportunity of registering
. our views against the approval, by this Subcommittee or the Committee on Bank-

ing and Currency, of Section:207. : e i il T

The stated p%ﬁpose of -this section is to prevent “excessive speculation in and
the excessive usé of ¢redit for, the creation, carrying or trading in commodity
futures contracts, having the effect of inflating consumer prices.” To accomplish
this, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve would prescribe regulations:
which, according to the Chairlady, would give the Federal Reserve System the
~ game powers te set margin requirements in connection with trading in com-

modity futures dontracts that it now holds in the setting of margins for crédit
- transactions on the stock exchanges. :

On a number of oé¢casions Congressional committees have studied preoposals
which would grant to government officials authority to set margin requirements
oh futurey transactions in commodities. We have opposed this grant of guthority
because in our considered judgment, no public offieials or group ‘of publie officials,.

. gach ag'the Bodrd of Goveriers; are so omiuiscient as to determine when specula-

. tion might becotte excessive in eommodity transactions and to determine when:
any degree of speeulation in commodity futures contracts would have the effect
ovfinﬁ-atmgwnsthmérpﬂces. Bl ey OHRE L T s iEe
We are convinced that speculative transactions have little effect on the pri¢e
paid by consumerys foricommodities and that speculation is not a basic faetor
in determining the general level of prices in thelong run. We doubt that it is an:
appreciable factor even in the short run. o o e

‘We note that the Board of Govermors of the Federal Reserve, through its Vice-
Chairman, Mr. Robertson, on' Aughst 7 advised the Subcommittee in effect that
the Federal Reserve Board would not be the most appropriate agency to admin-
ister sueh commodity market legislation as is contained in section 207 of the
pending bills. Mr. Robertson stated the Board’s betief, which we share, that
relatively little eredit is used in eonnection with futures trading. =
. ©ur reeollectipn of his answer to one question: put to him by the Chairlady—
whether he thought the Department of Agriculture should regulate stock market
‘marging on General Foods er other food companies—is that Mr. Robertson stated
that the Department of Agriculture was probably as ill-equipped to deal with
security margins as the Beard of Governors would be to deal with margins on .
- commodity futures contraets. ~ ' s -
. We agree with that observation. . : G
The  proposal. embodied. in ‘seetion 207 is ‘bpased on a misconeeption of  the
nature -of commodity contract markets, on the pature of trading in commodity
- futures contracts, and on the functions of margins in conmection with the com-
“modity futures contracts when attempts are ‘made to draw. an analogy between
‘them and the down payment required to obtain title to stock or goods-and chattels
or real estate. | i B L o DA
Orgaiiized cohtract markets are récoguized commercial institutions. Most of -
* the eommedities for which futures trading is available, are subjeet to the Com-
modity Exchange Act. Additional commodities may become subject to this Act.
These recognized commercial institutions make possible an orderly ‘movement
of agrieultural commodities. from production to consumption. Their operations
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assure a rough equality on the buying and selling sides of the market. The avail-
ability of futures contracts makes substantial contributions to the financing of
€rops as they are planted, harvested, and start thereafter through the marketing
channels to ultimate end users. Speculation withinthe commodity markets makes
hedging possible and permits the operation of the Nation’s low-cost efficient grain
marketing system. :
The grain marketing System, because of the availability of futures markets

where people trade in futures contracts covering grain, is a highly competitive,
low-cost marketing system. The function performed by futures markets is to regis-
ter the forces of supply and demand by open public trading: In doing this through
the medium of futures transactions, producers, processors, exporters, and others
are offered an opportunity to obtain price insurance that today they may agree
-to deliver in the future something they may not now own or that today they may
agree to take delivery in the future of goods they may now anticipate they will
need, or that today they may obtain a_price certain for commodities they are
buying or have bought and intend to carry awaiting sales o1 use for processing.
Through trading on exchanges, a steady flow of commodities moves:from produc-
tion inte consumption. : : Lot § e ot

The rules of futures markets require that the users of these markets deposit
collateral in the form of margins, to guarantee the performance of their.contract.
The minimum margin to be deposited is determined by the governing boards. of
contract markets. Futures commission merchants can and often do: require. de-
Dposits in excess of the minimum established by governing boards. The minimums
required are subject to constant review., They vary by commodities, by type of
trade, and may be different for different delivery months. s TN

Attempts are at times made to draw an analogy between the margin required
to enter;into a contract for the future sale or purchase of a commodity, and the
down payment required to obtain title to stoek, or.goods and chattels, on real
estate. ... CAE b e il f ] i T i (B8 BT e
» There is no analogy between these trangactions. . - P gt if: i

/In speculative securities transaetions acgual. title to, the number of securities
traded passes from the seller to the buyer, The speculator:in: seeurities fdeposits
his own.money in the amount required by the Federal,Reserve Board .to obtain
title to the seeurities, and his broker then loans the balance, either from. his own
funds.or from g lending bank to complete payment for the trangactions;. Fn specu-
lative transactions actual title to securities, evidencing the acquisition or disposal
of an equity in a corporate entity, passes from.a seller to a buyer. [

So..toe,. as to transactions. involving goods and chattels or real estate. There

R TRt LIS ¥

buyer, the seller, and the bank, ‘The buyer receives.a. title t ssomething.tangible—
something he can use—something he can deal wi«th——subject,«ﬂu;f.,coqme;\;bo the
‘rights of his lenders—the seller or the bank—as those rights.may,be defined in a
chattel mortgage or mortgage deed.. iRy e

In transactions covering agreements to sell* or ‘buy commodities for future
delivery or receipt, no title basses to the buyer and no title passes. from the
seller. Each party to such a contract entered into on-a commodity exchange de-
posits with his broker an amount:of earnest money, to assure compliance with the
contract when, in the future, it matures, or until an offsetting contract. is entered
into. Only if the contract is completed by delivery, when it matures, does.a title
bass. And then, contrary to the practice in transactions involving securities or
goods and chattels or real estate, full payment must be made,

Implicit in each futures. transaetion is an intention on the buyer’s part to
make delivery, and on the seller’s part to. take delivery. These obligations often
are liquidated by offsetting trades. To the extent that they are not so. offset,
delivery will be made by:the seller and title to the grain covered by the contract
will be accepted by the buyer. e ;

The experience of late 1947 as to grain prices, indicates that in commodity
markets, where the: velume of speculative trading has been limited, prices react
in response‘to supply and demand factors. In October of 1947, as demanded by
the President, a 3314 percent margin was set by the exchanges for speculative
transactions. At that time: May. (1948) wheat at Kansas City was seling at
$2.64%; May wheat: continued upward, reaching nearly $3. During this period
the markets'lost much if not a1l their liquidity, and such trades ag were avail-
able to hedgers—processors or.exporters, country and terminal handlers—caused
rather wide changes in prices.
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No 'coinpemng'.publie ;inté’restz:existed dtiring World War II fo require the
“Government to attempt to govern :the margin requirements necessary: to con-

- tract,as a speculator, for the purchase or sale of commodities for future delivery.
It was not until April 1946 that ‘the OPA attempted to exercise such authority.
At that time this: agency decreed that margins on new speculative trades. in
‘cotton futures should be $50 a bale on transactions based on a price above 28
cents a pound. If news stories describing the promulgation of this order are
accurate, the then! Secretary of ‘Agriculture signed the order after he:had been
“ordered by ‘Economic Stabilizer Bowles to sign it.” Mr. Bowles at:that time

_ stated as‘the reason for the order “the prevention of further speculative rises
in cotton.” Why he then had to order the Secretary of Agriculture to sign is

. conjectural. The order to sign may have been required -because the then Sec-
~ retary of Agriculture believed then, as we do now, that it is not necessary but
rather harmful and dangerous for the Government; through the exercise of con-
trol over margins in speculative contracts for future delivery, to interfere with
the mechanism of' free, openy competitive markets, and that attempts to control
prices through this interference will not work. i e

It is significant that shortly thereafter, and before the decree became effective;
‘Congress repealed| the law under which the decree issued. «

This decision of Congress to remove (from the control sphere of the Govern=
ment) control over margins was undoubtedly a decision based on full considera-
tion of the merits of the question whether the Government should have authority

~ to'set margins on ﬁuture transactions in commodities. Whatever the Congressional
reason then; it is obvious that in view of subsequent legislative events Congress:

has been consistently convinced thereafter that there was little or no merit im
the request that the Government should have this authority.

In 1947 the Joint Committee on the Beonomic Report held extensive hearings:
on: ptices ‘throughout the -country and in Washington. During these hearings
people connected with 411 segments of those industries that make use of futures
markets testified on the operation of those markets. They explained the opera-
tion of those markets ; the function ‘of the speculator; the contribution he makes
to a'market’s li‘qlglidiﬁy,fthevuse of markets, in view of their liquidity, by .pro-
ducers, handlers, proceskors; exporters, and others, in buying, storing, processing,
and’ éxporting to insure inventories; and how, in view of these uses; sellers of
the ‘Nation’s grainsrare not left to the mercy of a few or a single buyer; and

" puyers of ‘the Nation’s graing, as it moves from production into consumption, are:

not left to the mercy of a'few or a single seller. 3 %

“*All opposed the suggestion that the Government should be granted the authority
to' set margins on speculative transactions. At that time, as now, the proponents
of the suggestion stated that thig authority was needed to prevent excessive specu-
lation by small tionprofessional traders. They agreed then, and they agree now,
that futures matkets, including speculation, perform an economic function in
movingicrops: for; by them, hedging is possible. They agreed thé@, and seem ‘to
agree now, that sf)eculation is a stabilizing force apd that its presence in open

regulated marketplaces “focuses all of the forces that affect price in one place
Where everybody ¢an see it.” $ : S :
Sincé that date responsible Committees of Congress have studied proposals
to grant cottrol to the Government to set margin requirements in connection with
trading in commodity futures contracts. - Loty Lo
' Tu February 1948 the Senate Committee ‘on Agriculture held*hearings on a bill
which, if enacted, would have granted margin control authority. Hearings on this
bill (8. 1881, 80th. Congress, 2d: gession) extended over four days with a number
of witnesses from the administration, the farm groups and industry interested
in futures trading, appearing before the Committee. This Senate Committee after
hearings and study of the testimony produced at them, took no action. .’
In the 81st Congress, companion’ bills, H.R. 4685 and S, 1751, embodying the
same proposal, were referred to appropriate committees. - :
Neithér bill'wag reported. ' LT e CE
i A“Subcoraniittee of the House Committee on Agriculture was named to study
1I.R 4685 i’ conducted & “investigation into’ the ‘operation of commodity ex-
anges)’ after this Subcommittee recomuiended that'no new: and additional
onit ddity‘exchahge‘s‘appeare&'necéssafry, O Bt sl o, i
11951, in conection 'with the Defense Production Act and its exten-
the™  Flouse ‘and Senate Committee on Banking‘and  Currency considered
proposals to grant to the Government authotity to'set marging in connection with
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" trading in commodity futures contracts. Congress ‘did not :approve the grant of
thisauthority. . v i i o e ap e A 3
" In 1966; a Subcommittee-of the House Committee on Agriculture held hearings
on a bill which would have granted a number of: authorities to-the Secretary of
Agriculture; including the authority to set margins on commodity. futures con-
tracts.:‘According to the U.P. ticker of April 6; 1966, Congressman Matsunaga,
after the hearings had been concluded, told newsmen that if this committee
approved any part of the:bill.it would only be in greatly modified form. The
samenews item reported that comments by other subcommittee members indicated
the margin control section of the bill was not expected to survive.
That subcommittee did not report & bill. s AT oty
. “We are now here today faced with a proposal to grant authority to.the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve ‘which, according to their spokesmen:they
~do not wish to have and are not qualified to administer. This subcommittee is in
effect considering a proposal which in substance has been considered by other
committees and subcommittees in prior Congresses and found wanting. ' We recom-
mend that this subcommittee make a similar finding.. ke ih e
+#We oppose this grant of authority because we are convinced that this method
of attempting to prevent inflated consumer prices will not-work. We oppose this:
grant of authority because an attempt by the government to exercise control over
margins may ‘well cause a breakdown in the entire marketing structure, leaving:
State trading as the only alternative. Raising margins will not keep prices from
going up. It seems to be admitted that commodities that have no futures market:
are usually more erratic in price than those that have. By raising margins, yow
can reduce and eliminate volume of trading. But you cannot control prices. And
you might wreck the market structure. .

Fay ¢

R i Frin b N ¢ SRR R £iFt ¢
STATEMENT SUBMITTED FOR INCLUSION IN THE HEARING RECORD BY THE NEW YORK.
‘ . CoMmoprry HExcHANGE, INC.

My name is Matthew S. Fox. I am President of Commodity Exchange, Inc.,
81 Broad Street, New York City. I reside at 201 Bast 19th Street, New York City.
I have been authorized by the Board of Governors of Commedity Exchange,
Inc. to appear before this Committee to express the views of the Board with
respect to: H.R. 11601 and, in particular, with respect to Section 207 of the Bill.
Before doing so, I should like to give the Committee a ‘brief picture of the
operations of our Exchange and its background. et
The Bxchange is & non-profit membership corporation which eoperates a
trading floor at 81 Broad Street, New York City, to ‘enable its membership to
engage in the purchase and sale of futures contracts:for the following com-
modities : copper, lead, mercury, silver, tin, zinc, hides and rubber. The Exchange
does not buy er sell commodities or futures:contracts: for its ewn account; It
merely ‘provides the trading floor and facilities for the operation ‘of a.futures
market. BEO ! S e ; ; i
Transactions executed on the floor of the Exchange are'reported by ‘ticker
gervice to all areas of the United States and other countries, providing ‘instant
dissemination of information asto the price of each purchase and sale. Trade
interests and others who have meed to follow: the price movements of the:com-
modities on the Exchange are thus provided with continueus: price quotations
as a guide to marketing policy. : i i i
All transactions on the Exchange are entered into as the result of open outery
at rings at which the floor brokers gather. It is a ‘true auction market with
bids. and offers freely and openly made. It thus reflects: with: gréat aecuracy
the relative impact of demand and supply upon the price of a given commodity
at any given moment. In a true sense the Exchange provides ran ‘aeceurate  in-
strument in a free marketing system. AFAE A R B
. We wish to call the attention of: the Committee to. the following considerations:
., 1. The purpose of the Bill, as set forth!in the introductory : paragraph, is,
‘among other things, to authorize the Board of Governors of:the: Federal Reserve
System “to. issue regulations dealing with the. execessive use of ‘eredit .for the
purpose. of ‘trading in eommodity futures contracts afféeting ‘consumer-prices”.
.. It is a misconception' of the meehanics:of Sfutures itrading - to::speak’of  the
‘“excessive” use of credit. When.a man;buys or sells’ anfutures contract, ‘his
broker requires a deposit of original margin in an amount specified by the
Exchange. This deposit is a down payment on the contract. The full purchase
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‘price is paid only when a buyer takes delivery. The full sales price is realizéd

only when: the seller makes delivery. Thus, trading in commodity futures is
-essentially different: from the purchase or sale of Securities where the entire
purchase price is payable ordinarily within four days of the execution of the
trade and where the broker furnishes a ‘part of that purchase price, thus ex-
tending credit to the customer. Such credit is never extended by the broker who
“handles the:actual delivery at maturity of the futures contract. At that point
the customer, Who is a buyer, must place the broker in funds for-the full amount
of the purchase priee. It dis obviously a misconception of the funectioning:of the
-commodity futures markets to relate the margin deposits which are required un-
‘der the Rules of the Exchanges with the use of eredit, i ’

2 The:futures markets perform an economic function which can only  be
-~ %erved properly if these mapkets have sufficient breadth and liquidity to enable
_hedgers to buy or sell their requirements’ without causing: price distortions. It
is unnecessary to elaborate upon thig function beyord saying that excessive
margin . requiréments ‘imposed by any Governmental ageney - will ‘inevitably
restrict the amount of trading and thus impair the economic functions which
the markets pprform.’ This ‘result does mnot serve to lower: the price to the
consumey ;; on ‘the contrary, it invariably results in sharper price fluctuations
because of the inability of the producer; dealer and consumer of the commodities
traded: to hedge their respective requirements and ‘positions and “thus reduce

heir inventory risks;. ; Bi S
4.8, The proposal to give: the Federal Reéserve Board authority to ‘deal 'with
this problem: is inappropriate in:any ‘case; It would place the Federal Reserve
in a position of|confliet with the CEA and would impose upon the Board respon-
sibilities for policing these markets which it has neither the'personuel nor the
-expertise to discharge adequately. ;

In conclusion, we respectfully submit-that there is no need for the proposed
legislation and mo justification for it in the light of conditions now prevailing
in our’'commodity fétures markets. Wé do not believe that it s in " the intérest
of the users of these markets or thé public thit Section 207 of the proposed
Bill should be enacted. e G e i .

LR Y R § " i v

¥

al ¥

Rubbes, Pansivinn, Net Yok ‘oo Bomhvon

e T O Hedyli et i & 7 i i
<New: Y 1Exehange files this statament in éppositibhi bo Seetion
207 of s H.R.11601: iwhich eonfers on the Federal Réﬁbrlve;iﬂbarq the power to <d

JaEAS

' “Fhe New York Gottsn

margins on commodity futures contraets; 5t cdyd T |
- We submit that the proposed degislation is bayed upon: misunderstasidihg of the
‘economie funotion of a futures market and a -misconéeption of the purposé of
mangins in afatures trangBetions. oridr. T o T Sk o, 0 s
o The: wording of:the: bill: clearly. showsi that it-is based on the -agsumption’ that
excessive speeniation on commodity markets hasithe effect: of inflating ‘consumer
.. Drices and ‘that)by increaging margine spdeutation! will be idiscouraged. A dtive-
ment of the Chairman of the Subcommitte in announcing the introduction: of
ELR. 11601 likens: the credit extemdeod on: stock ‘exchange transaetions to:'the
margins requiretl in-eommodity fiububestrahsaetions. | - i ; i
It is our purpose to'explain to the:Committee'that the function of marging on a
futuires exchange is entirely: different foom it fumetion on a Stock exchange and
that if speculatprsiare: discouraged ‘fromtrading ‘on acommodity ‘exchangs by
the raising of marging the effect will mot be to loweroprices: #o ‘eonsumers but
nather to .disrupt the: operations of the market and ‘destroy the ability of hedgers
to ‘utilige -the fiiture market. This will:inevease the wosts : of ‘produetion -and:
marketing of agricultural products ahd Will have an adverse effect on prices to
QCONJUmMErs. b ¢ L R LM £, 37% i R H
Inorder to develop our argument. I would like to ‘outline briefly: the sperafiony
of a commodity futures exchange, It is recognized by economixsts ‘and by ithe
Departmeht of Agricultute that a fittures exehange performsig vdluablélecornomic
function:in: the E:xmm«mterm.xmsw in business miust be ‘paid £o+. They are

p oy

generally -on to the consumer. o' the extentthut they can be elivhinated o
reduced, the consumer benefits. It is the fanction of a: commbpdity futures market:
10 eliminateior reduce ithé risk of price fanctuations: in the process ‘by* whiéh a
_ commodity moves from' grower to consumer. This is done by hedging on the
exchange. The hedging facilities afforded by a fitires market réduce the: cost

e
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of marketing and thereby permit the farmerto obtain a better ‘price for his
‘produce and enable the consumer to obtain products ‘at lower cost. i

_Among those who use a futures exchanige for hedging, citing cotton as ah’
-example, dare growers, shippers, merchants and’ manufacturers. Since there are
not an equal number ofhedgers taking long and short positions on the exchange,
'speculators are necessary to a futures market and, for an expected profit, they
Aact as insurers for those who deal with the actual commodity, 5

The hedger who purchases,, sells, or holds, a commodity obtains protection,
against a change in ‘price by taking an opposite position on a futures exchange,.
If he is a farmer or a merchant who holds cotton he hedges by selling a futures
«contract. If the price of his cotton goes down he lignidates his futures contract.
and what he loses on his cotton he makes up on his futures transaction, It is the
speculator who generally takes the position opposite to the hedger and performs

Teceives it within a few days and must pay the seller the full price in cash. If'
pe requires credit to finance his purchase he bqrrdws from his broker. The margin

Thus, when margins are low there is a greater demand for stock and this has a
tendency to increase prices. When the Federal Reserve Board is of the opinion
that excessive speculation on the stock exchanges is causing an excessive increase
in prices, margins are increased and it is believed that the effect is to reduce
the demand for stocks and thus stabilize the market.

Margin on a futures exchange is based on an entirely different concept. It has
nothing to do with the amount of money made available to purchase commodities.
It is not a downpayment on the price. A futures contract is a contract to purchase
and sell a-.commodity for delivery-in the future. Most ‘contracts are liquidated by .
offsetting contracts before the delivery date. Delivery is the exeeption. ‘¥n thoge:
cases where delivery is made, the purchaser pays cash and the margin put up
on his futures trade'is not related to the cash which he pays. The margin on a
future exchange is merely security to guarantee to.the clearing member the obli-
gatiens of the trader when-he ‘buys or sells a. futures contract; ; § SEay

What is that obligation? When a customer buys- a futures contract he:owes
nothing: If the price changes in his fayor he owes nothing. It is only when there:
is an adverse change in:price that he incurs an -obligation. When he;offsets his
contract by a eontra-contract he must pay his loss: The margin is. to guaran-
tee to the elearing member that he can pay this loss.: The amount:-of the margin
is fixed in relation to the loss which he may sustain as a result of an gdverse
change in: price. When the price ‘changes so that the margin is-partially : used
up additienal margin is called for and this additional margin: is- also merely
to guarantee to: the clearing member that the customer will be able to:pay the loss
resulting from an adverse change in: price. When the governing board-of an ex-
change seeg:a: likelihood of large price fluctuations, initial margins are:increased
by the:exchange because it is anticipated that there will be: g larger obligation
to pay for an adverse variation in price. { ¢

We have discussed the margin: applicable ‘to the:buyer. Every transaction on
a: futures exchange involves: a seller-and buyer. Generally-both parties are
required to put up margin. In a normal transaction on-a stock exchange, margin
Is required only of the buyer because the seller’s transaction is completed.:On .a .
futures exchange every’ single :transaction involves a -short sale and there are
speculative shorts as well as speculative longs. The amount: of the margin is .
and should-be:geated ito, the obligation of ithe trader which is 'to-pay for the
variation in price:when he closes out his transaction whether he is long ‘or
short. ‘ ? E R e fh [SETeatsl oo
‘When the:purposesof margin on’ a, ¢tommodity exchange is: understood-that
‘t-isinot.a.downpayment on theprice-~it should be apparent: that:an-increase or:
reduction inimargins will not he effective to:eontrol prices:iHowever,sany increase :
n margins beyond the point necessary to guarantee the obligation .of ‘the trader
nay interfere with the operations of a futures exchange in facilitating the

5

83-340—67—pt. 2
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: m’arkef.iqg of products by discouraging speculators from performing their func-

‘tions ds’insurers of the tisk of a change in price. And, if .higher ‘margins were |
" applied to hedgers as well as speculators it ‘would be more expensive for the
farmer and others who deal in commodities to protect the value of their crops
and products. |- : e g
- The ‘history of trading on the Neyv"YO‘_rk‘CpttonfExchange does not bear out

" the contention that prices rise 'when speculation increases. Cot prices have

risen when the speculative interést has been low, And when marging, have been
iticreased 'by the Board of Managers of the Exchange prices have still gone

“The manner in which & utures market operates requires ‘special knowledge.
 the Federal Reserve Bodrd were to increasé margins when commodity ‘prices
increase, in the mistaken belief that incréased margins would reduce . prices,

the economic ful fction performed by futures exchanges for the benefit of growers

 and processors and therefore for the benefit of the ultimate consumer will have

been destroyed. : e TR T e e T o R
- “Weé should not overlook the fact that if excessiyvely high margins are.imposed.
to discourage the use of futures exchanges in this country the business of hedging
may well be transferred to futures markets which' exist or can be established
“in foreign countries, ‘«’_!;hekle‘,adérship the United States -currently enjoys in world
commodity trade would be threatened. . .. o PR
1 think the record will show, that in general the exchanges have done.a good.
job in the establishment and enforcement of margins. The Board of Managers

and their administrative committees are ideally equipped to determine minimum

mal‘gins;and keep them ‘adjusted to current trading conditions.

DEEwBLLYN WATTS, ‘JR., OHAIRMAN or THE BOARD OF THE NEW
York MEFCANTILE EXCHANGE = L i
) Captiin iy 10y i g >

STATEMENT O

Inr'refsponrseafm the invitation: of Hon: Leonor K. Sullivan; Chairman of the’
Subcommittee  on :Consumer : Affairs; T am submitting herewithiour views on.
. Section 207 of HLR: 11601 which purports to vonfer on the Fedsral Reserve Board

‘the power to fiximrarging on commodity t‘taitures‘émhan“gues:w' flpsd T g

A bill introduced in the last Congress:i tthei request of the Commiodity Hx-/
change Authority, H.R: 11788, representing: a ‘comprehensive amendmenttof the

' Commodity Exchange Act, contained & provision giving power to the Secretary
of Agriculture to prescribe minimum marging on futirésexthanges, That bill was
the subject of extensive ‘hearings ‘in April 1966 ‘before the Subcommittee ‘on

Domestic Marketing’ and Consumer: Relations of the: House Committee ‘on: Agri-

culture at ‘which representatives of commodity exchanges, growers, processors,

cooperatives a id  others appeared and explained to the Committee why'it would
not be in the pu bliciinterest to have governmental control over marging on futures
contraets: Ji 4 e PR B : PR TR AR

As a result of thathearing the Department of Agriculture sought furtherlight
on this subject by ordering an economic report by an independent firm . 0f econ-
omists, The results’ of that report are not.known. However, the Départment of’

Agriculture has sponsored a new pill, H.R. 11930, to:amend the Commodity EX--

change 'Act which was introduced in the House. on July 81, 1967°by' Conigressman

Poage and thig bill no longer contains a provision for the control of margins on

futures exchanges. 5

The attempt to invest the Federal Reserve Board with control over margins
on commodity ' markets shows even less understanding of the subject than that
exhibited by the Department of Agrieulture in advocating governmental margin

control last year. HL.R. 11601 is based upon a misconception of ‘the operations of a
- commodity futures market and a misunderstanding of the function of margins

on commiodity lexchanges. Y pheg e

" Paken literally; Section 207 of the bill does not accomplish its stated purpose. .
In:its public statement of :July 20, 1967 ‘anmouncing the introduction of the bill,"
the Subcommittee said: D CTRA

_“Another: section of the:bill gives to the Pederal Reserve System the: same
powers to set margin requirements in connection with trading in -commodity '
futures contracts that'it mow holds in. setting margins for credit transactions
on the stock exchanges.” i « G e

i
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. “While that is undoubtedly the. intent of the bill it-fails to carry out that
intention and its failue is a result of a lack of knowledge of the character of
‘margins on: commodity: exchanges.-Nowhere in the bill is the word “margin”
used ; it ‘deals with: “credit.’*:T’

The draftsmen have confused margins with credit

arangements: because: the word “margin” is used on stock exchanges to repre- -

sent the difference between the price of a security and the amount of. credit

extended to purchase or hold the security and have assumed that the .same

meaning is aseribed :to the word “margin” on a commodity exchnge, Thus the
bill givesithe Federal Reserve Board power to:“preseribe regul ions governin;
* the ‘amount ‘of ‘credit that: may be extended or maintained on .any {[futures]
“‘contract.” Gt 5 BN e ey
.. Sitice no eredit is extended on futures contracts as far as
changes ‘are concerned, the proposed regulations would hayve oiLes 11
the bill should become law. and if it should be interpreted, as.its draftsmen «do,
to permit regulations governing margins on:commodity exchanges, we are con-
cerned that the same misunderstanding as to the margins utilized on futures
exchanges would prevail to the end that commodity futures markets might lose
‘their economic usefulness. i Wi : s
The operation of a -commodity futures market is technical and intricate. But
one does not have to be a n expert in its intricacies to understand the difference
between margins on stock purchases and margins on futures exchanges, The
former regulates the amount:of credit that may be extended on the purchase.of 2
‘security ; the latter has nothing to do with:credit on purchases and is merely a
‘fund to guarantee the customer’s: obligation to his clearing member when there
is a variation in price. : ; TR TR L T
 When a pérson buys a security on a stock exchange the. transaction is closed
within 'a few days and he:must pay for the stock and receive it. He may borrow
from his broker or-other lender a portion of the purchase price and must put up
the balance in cash. What he puts up.in cashis called margin in stock trans-
actions. When the margin is:109 he may borrow: 90% ; ‘when the margin is
70%, as now, he may borrow 30%: Thus when the Federal Reserve Board in-
creases margins it decreases the: credit permitted. on stock purchases. . . ;
The economic theory behind governmental control.over margins on stock ex-
changes is that' when-credit; is easy, more stock is purchased, and when there is
‘more buying; theresis atendency for prices to increase,. Thus margin controls for
_stock:purchases is‘believed to have the effect of preventing excessive prices, for
istocksi It ds. also " bélieved that such controls are, necessary to prevent stock
market collapses such ‘as occurred: in 1929 when marging \were. very low: and
stock prices'reach very high levels. R S P
'We have no-quarreliwith these economie theories. It. ig our purpose to show
that they have nothing te do with ‘commodity futures trading. A stock market
is a place where people buy stock with convenience. It is undoubtedly wholesoiiie
for'the economy generally and for the purchasers.in particular for the government
to prevent them from over:extending their credit. A commodity futures market
is not ‘set-up as'a place where people buy commodities. It is an intricate ‘device
for reducing the risks of price changes, by affording growers, producers, proces-
sors and merehants an opportunity to hedge those risks. b

.. When g person ‘enters, into a contract to. purchase-a cqmmddity on a futires ex-

change (which is a contract for delivery ata fixed time.in the future), he does
‘not incur an obligation to pay for that commodity within 'a few days as in the
case of a stock purchase. If he retains his contract, until the delivery date, which

. he rarely does, he pays the full purchase price in,cash, The margins contemplated
by the bill have nothing to.do with those transactions which culminate.in de-
livery and are the exception. In the usual transaction and almost always in the
“ease of a speculator; against whom the.bill is aimed, the person who contracts
to buy will actually not purchase the commodity but will instead discharge his
obligation to purchase by an offsetting contract to sell an equivalent amount of
the commodity. 7 : i ;
The margin which a purchaser of a contract on a commodity exchange is re-
quired :to put up by exchange rules is not a.down payment on the purchase
price, as in the case of stock. It has a different function. It is to protect the
_clearing member of the exchange, against loss resulting from the customer’s
transaction, What is:that loss? It is.the variation in price during the period
between the datethe customer entered into the contract to purchase and the
.date he cancelled ‘his contract by an offsetting sale. If there is a price change
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adverse to the customer during this period; he will sustaina:loss on the liguida-
“tion of ‘hiy contract. That loss will.be paid by hisclearing imember.. To secure
“his clearingﬂmen}‘bér‘;fot»fhis -obligation to pay ithe amount -ofithe loss, he puts
up cash in advance and’this cash is: called “margin” on a'commodity exchange.
" The amount of the margin required is measured by the:probable amount-of the
‘obligation to pay for the price differential. It has nothing to do with ‘the pur-
chase price and it/is not a down payment on the purchase price. -

The raising of margins‘on’a stock exchange will discourage purchases because
less credit againgt the purchage price is permitted ; -but there/is'no eredit-against
the purchase pricein a purchase on a ‘commodity exchange. To raise marging
on commodity trading is to force the customer to give excessive security to his
‘broker. Thig excess is not needed and would merely act as & penalty without
relation to-its purpose. ; s iy G e

"If more were needéd to'demonstrate the erroneous thinking behind this bill,
‘we might consider the case-0f a seller. Unlike the situation on a stoek exchange,
every contract to purchase on a' commodity ‘futures exchange involves a-ghort
sale and sellers are réquired to put up the same margin as buyers. This is so
because the margin is to secure the broker against variations in price and a seller
who liqui_vdates*higs position’ stands to lose as much as a.purchaser by reason of
chahges i price."Since’ marging should be the same for sellers and buyers, the
raising of margins beyond the point necessary to secure the broker, ‘would ‘dis-
courage 'séllers from entering the market with the result that (if the market
were still alive) prices would presumably rise. Ll Sy
- Assuming ‘that: experiénce has:-proved that increases in marging for stock
purchases has been effective to halt increases in prices, the experience. on the
commodity exchanges'has been to’the contrary. Without burdening the :Com-
mittee with details, we refer'to the testimony submitted last year at the hear-
ings on HL.R. 11788 which showed that'when margins were increased. for copper,
‘grain andcotton, prices did:not decline. Prices may:have risen because of the
‘discouragemient’ of short sellérs by making' it more expensive for them to trade
or for other regsons. In theory, however, there is no reason why in¢reased margins
should prevent inereased prices because they are not a part.payment.on the price
“and-are un,related to the exténsiontofieredit. o Ll 4ol e

" Inherént“in’the' thitiking ‘behind ‘this bill is'the’ dssumption: that! speeulation
is the root ‘of all evil dnd that excessive speculation causes-higher commodity
prices. Thus, the bill states that control is to be given to:the Federal Reserve
- Board to prevent ‘“excessive’ speculation i . . . in commodity futures;contracts

having ‘the effect of inflating ¢onsumer prices.”” . . AHET T sy i

This is a my
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\ 4 11 which again results from confusifig:stocks' with:commodity
futures. Speculatton ‘may be- detriviental when it Has:the effect ofs increasing
the price of 'stocks. But speculationig'an absolute necessity for the funetioning
O‘f’a ;f‘utureb;' market.' - Bt it B £ el LU A

_Commodity futures exchanges are récognized by economists as: important
mechinisms in the production, processing and marketing of agricultural prod-
ucts, The governient also recognizes: this value and an entire bureau of . the
Deapttment of Agriculture is devoted to the regulation of futures exchanges.
The economic good performéd by futures marketsis the reduction of risks result-
ing from changes in price. If thése risks were not reduced, it:would cost more
money to bring the product froih farmer to consumer and such increased costs
_would be passed on to the consumer. ' # s V] g

Growers, merchants and manufacturers hedge their commitments by taking a
‘long or short po‘sition on an exchange. Soniéone must take the opposite position.
This is done by the speculator 'who for an expected profit providesiprice insurance
for the hedger. ‘Al market without speculators cannot funection. ‘A market within
‘large speculative interest vsrpviqes more relidble price: protection to:the hedger.
_becaiise it 1§ more liquid. Where there are more bidy and offérs/the range of price
fluctuations is nafrower, ' ioo o SRR e el i R g
.. If higher margins are to be imposed on speculators as a penalty, it will drive
them out of the market and the hedging process will.be weakened or destroyed
to the. detriment! of ‘the’ nation’s’ economy and ‘at the ultimate éxpense'of ‘the
SCONSPMET. 0 L S B TR S A S G
The price of the actual commodity is not determined by the priee on the futures
" ‘markef. Even if we assume’ that the activities of Spéculatérs can drive a price
up over a short period (and we must remiémber that the price can also be driven
down, for there are speculative shorts 'ds ‘well'as spéeculative longs) thisdcannot
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have mueh «effect. on:-the price. of. the, actual; eommodity because the day of
reckoning comes, in. futunes markets; from four to twelve times a year, when the;
eommodlty must be delivered and must be received by.those speeulators who re:
main in the market. In:the delivery month, the price of the future becomes the
price. of the ‘actual Qommodlty, which price. is:established by the natural forces
of supply and demand. . :

~Your:Chairman has stated that H.R. 11601 contams many _provisions for the
protection of consumers., There does not seem to-be any reason why Section 207
should remain a part of this bill when so much doubt has been cast upon the
efficacy of governmental controls over commodity futures margins as. ev1denced
by last year’s hearings on the Department of Agriculture’s bill to control-margins..

Mrs. SurLivax. We will place in the record at this point a létter from
the New York Produce Exchange and statements filed by the New
York Coffee & Sugar Exchange, Mr. Robert L. Martin, chairman of
the Chicago Board of Trade and others 1nterested in  section’ 207
of H.R. 11601, :

(The material referred to follows )

NEw YORK PnebUGE EXGHANGE
bt © New York; NY August 11 1967
H‘on LeoNoR K. SULLIVAN
Chairman, Subcommittee on Consumer Aﬁaws of the Commwm on Blmkmg and
Cu'rrency, House of Representutwes, Washington, D.C. '

DEAR MRS. SULLIVAN : This will acknowledge receipt of 4nd thank you for yom'
letter of August 1, 1967 concerning H.R. 11 01, the Consumer Credit Proteetion'
Act, and particularly Sec. 207 thereof.

‘Mr. William T. Brooks, President of the National Grai)i Trade ‘Council, of
which this Exchange is a member, plans to appear before your Subcommittee
and will present the viewpoints of the Council which We, of course, endorse
without reservation, and he will therefore also be presenting our position on
Sec. 207. In addition to Mr. Brook’s testimony and statement we submit the fol-
lowing statement for the .record of your hearmg and. refer solely . to Sec. 207
of H.R. 11601 : >

We are opposed to Sec. 207 and we urge, m the strongest possu)le terms”
that it be deleted from the Bill."’

Sec. 207 would vest in the Federal Reserve System certain powers “For the
purpose. of preventing the excessive speculation in and the excessive use of eredit
for the creation, carrying, or tradmg in commodlty futures contracts having
the effect of inflating consumer prices . ... ."

Bxcessive gpeculation in commedity futures contracts has already been de-
clared by Congress as an undue and unnecessary burden on interstate commerce
and the Congress has vested exclusive authority in this area in the Commodity
BExchange Commission, specifically by Section 4a of the Commodity HExchange
Act as amended. The Commodity Exchange Act and the regulations issued there-
under provide ample authority for such regulation as is deemed’ necessary in
compliance with the Act by an independent agency of the Government composed
of ipersons far more knowledgeable in the field of commodity futures marketing
than are those who are officialsiof the Federal Reserve Board. We refer to recent
testimony before your Subcommittee by Mr. J. L. Robertson, Vice Chairman of the
Board of Governors in' which he states in effect that the Federal Reserve does
not have the knowledge or expertise to regulate- margins on commodity futures
transactions.

On ‘the other hand the Commodity Exchange Commission and the Commodity
Bxchange Authority, having been vested by the Congress with the responsibility
as indicated -above, have frequently in the past issued orders fixing speculative
trading position limits covering various commodities.

You will note that the authority given to the Commission resulted in action
related to trdading and position limits and not related to margin controls. The
reason we believe is obvious. Trading and position limits may be fixed specifically.
for specific purposes which on the other hand margin controls affect every person
or organization making transactions in comsmodity futures. Margins should
therefore be:set in the:light of their purpose which is in the nature of a payment
for a contract for future delivery, not a stock or a cash commodity, as a protec-
tion against price depreciation or appreciation as the case may be. :
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] resenﬁly seét'in’ &11 ‘commodity futures ma;rkets by the gmremmg
f it spective exchanges. They should continue to be so 'set as they

e fi @ and aha:nged from'time to time as circumstances'demand and by those
rsons in the mdu@try who are the most knowledgeable and the most responsible.

Margin controls do not constitute credit controls. There is no-analogy or simi-:
larity in margin requirements for securities and margin requirements for com-
modity futures transactions. Margin’ ‘payments on commodity futures transactions
do not constitute a down payment for equity and no possession of a commodity
nor title to a commodity is passed at'the time a commodity futures transaction is
executéd;{'l‘ramsfer of title to a commodity occurs at the time the contract ma-~
tures and is delivered at which time full payment must be made for the com-
modity invelved. On 'the other hand, margins (down payments) paid for stock
transactions constltufte; credit transactions as the purchaser of the security im-
mediately becomes the owner thereof and from that time is entitled to all benefits
such as equity in the 1ésu1ng company, dividends; stock splits, Tights or warrants,
ete., whale still owing a part of the purchase price.-Margin controls on commodlty
‘transamons have absolutely no effect on the extension of credit.

ng‘h margins or low margins have no effect in inflating consumer prlces The
price of a commodity future comes to: its relative value with the price of the
same cash commodity) when the delivery month becomes current. The price of
the commodity future lat that time does not dictate the value of the actual com-
modity but to the contrary, a.nd therefore commodity futures pnces cannot in«
flate consumer prices; | .

Here -again, the difference; in any potential: mﬂatmn factors ansmg ourt; of
purchases of 'secumtl and purchases or sales of commodity futures. becomes
apparent. When commodlty futures transactions are éntered into, money paid in
terms of margins comés from both sides ‘of the transaction and when the future
month matures the chaser receives the commodity - and’ pays its full‘vilue fo-
the seller. That transaction is then 013:5 of the market and the investment capital
ratio. has mot ahange . When, however, purchasés of securities dre arranged,
money  flows into the’ securities market as the money’ entermg on the purchase’
side of .the transactio: 3 ordinarily new camtal mong from sayvings or other
investments into the stock market .

We therefore conclude that the adoption of Sec. 207 would be unwise, unneces-'
sary and undesirable, |

‘We appreciate ithe opportunxty you have’ aﬁovded us to be heard.

Smcenely yours, .
R 'R B,

M(magmg Dwector

i

CHG ¥

i

STAT’EMENT SUBMITTEb FOR HEARII\(}v Rncoxm BY NEwW YORK Cormm AND SU’GAR
’ *g ,EXCHANGE Ino. f

The New: Yor »Oofﬂee ‘and Sugar Exchange Inc.; W1shes to go on: “record as
oppoSed to ‘Section 207! of proposed H.R. 11601, (a Bill to safeguard the consumer
in’'connection with the utilization of credit) ‘for-the following reasons : :

e M mrgms as -applied to-commodity trading are not credits. A transaction does
not result in immediate dollar obligations, since such obligations: only become:
existent 'whén - the previously purchased 'goods are delivered in the future. As:
in:/any buying and selling: transaction,: the buyer is:asked to deposit with the
brokerage firm @s o -stgn of good faith, a sum nelatedito the value of the contract:
Heris algo asked to maintainithe amount of thig:payment should market fluctua+
tions erode the commercial value of his purchase. This is not a credifinasmuch
as the brokerage firm ¢oes not make up the difference between the-amount of the
deposit and: the total'value of the: transac'tlon. In no sense can thisg practlce be\

called a:fferedit’’. | G

2. The Reller is alsa asked to: deposwt this emdemce of ﬁn(mmal responmbmty'
and ‘he, in ‘turn;is obligated to maintain the dollar amount:shouldsthé market
value be higher:than the otiginal sale ; but elearly, sinee the seller will‘eventually:
receive: paynienb upon dehvery, hw “bmder” i8 not a “wedtt” 1‘/n amj sense of the:
word.: K ;

18T he ult'mmte detarmma)twn of zmce is the relatﬂ?onshmpmf supply to dem(mdr
Commodity ‘trading: reflects thec¢hanging :opinions ‘en’ supply:demand from:day
to: day;; monthrto month. Trading in itself, does not change:the supply-demand
situation which!determines:the prices of‘commodities’ which go into.consumption.
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4, The investor who buys a commodity for market appreciation must sell it to -
someone else in order to realize a profit. The user is always the ultimate b
The investor purchaser does not reduce the overall physical supply of 1
modity. Thus, the control of commodity exchange marg ins as a tool to keep con-'
sumer prices down is not a practical measure. ey . e

5. 'Such control would not prevent the investor from purchasing directly ]
the producer for future delivery under the usual “cash-on-delivery’” or “cash-on
documents” terms without any margin whatsoever and without going through
any exchange:. = ‘ e

6. That we are correct in our premise is attested to by Dr. Roger W. Grafzf of
the Food Research Institute of Stanford University in his testimony before @.

Subcommittee of the House Agriculture Committee on April 5, 1966, in which
he said in part: “* * * Commodity futures transactions are absolutely sym-
“metrical with respect to buying ond selling, as stock transactions are not.”

7. Coffee and sugor are international commodities which are traded on foreign
exchanges, notably in London. Margin requirements that ‘would be considered
unreasonable or expensive, or both, would simply transfer futures trading to
foreign exchanges, where margin requirements are practically non-existent.:

8. The principal business now of our Exchamge. is trading in world sugaer
futures contracts. These contracts are in world prices. And this commodity is
not deliverable in the United States. Imports of sugar into the United States are.
under import quotas established by the U. 8. Department of Agriculture. The

amount of domestic sugar produéfion.and the quantity.of imports-are controlled
by the government. The domestic price of sugar is thus manipulated by the gov-
ernment in controlling, the domestic demand-supply: situation. - ..

9. The New York Coffee and Sugar BExchange conducts an active market in
world sugar futures contracts, but we have only a negligible activity in. domestic
‘sugar and coffee futures contracts.-We believe that the existence of government
authority to. ‘establish and make changes in margin requirementsAwouldf, in
due course, result in the transfer, of our world sugar futures market in its
entirety to the Buropean exchanges. Trading in coffee futures has already shifted
to the more favorable trading climate of London. S i

10. We believe that the curtailment in the United . States of trading.in sugar
and coffee futures contracts may: result in discontinuance of American-offices of -
some, foreign coffee and sugar firms; the loss of an estimated 15 million dollars
per year to local commission houses; business losses. to American banking
ingtitutions ineident to their participation in transactions worth millions of dol-
lars annually ; and the consequent loss of tax revenue, both corporate and indi-
vidual income,.to the Ui 8. Government from the closing of businesses and loss of
Jobs. It could force ‘American firms to meet foreign competition on; foreign soil
with a resultant investment in dollars having adverse effect on the balance of
payments. ; J R A T :

The Board of Managers of the New York Coffee and Sugar Exchange there-

rges the elimination of Sec, 207 from ILR. 11601 for the protection of the
Coffee industries, and, the American consumer. ; i

STAmmﬁﬁT"SQBMmTEﬁ‘m; RoBERT Ii. MARTIN, O;H.AIRMAN , CHIOAGO BOARD OF TRADE

The Chicago Board of Tradé appreciates the opportunity to file this statement
regarding F.R. 11601 and H.R. 11602, the' important consumer protéction measure
now before your Subcommittee, '« i L g R R S e

The Board enthusiastically endlorses the view that consumers should be pro:
vided with full ‘and complete information oh ‘the cost' of credit.- For, that reason
we favor most of the provisions of this'legislation. T am- sure, however, that, like
other commodity exchanges; we were asked to comment in this insthiice primarily
on Section 207 wiich provides for Federal Reserve Bodrd regulations of commod-
ity futures'margins.i - b b Wik s SRR L

We are opposed to Section 207 because we feel it i unwise and undesirable
to attempt toraffect’ commodity prices by Feédetal control of ‘comitodity futures
margins; In our view the Tederal Reserve Board function regarding Sectrities
margins i not comparable and it would be 'inappropriéte"for~th’e‘Fedexjal-Reﬁse‘rve
Board to exercise this authority. T R

Bécause of the ample coverage of Section 207 during hearings before the Sub-

committee, the reasons for our views will be summarized briefly here. Our com-
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ments are necessarily restrict
is limited'to this fleld, ey e b v
" Comrodity futures‘plan an essential role in the distribution of gricu
‘broducts to e‘on{” . First, 1 ovide a cont ricing mechanism which
© ‘guides future production and regulates the rate of consumption, Sécondly, com-

‘modity futures |protect -both farmers:and processors against the risk of price

‘change. Thus, the farmer, whose crop'"i,?;stjlyll in the ground; can assure that he
will receive a Known ‘price for it by se ling a contract for future delivery and
shifting ithe 'risk of a future price decline to the buyer. Similarly, ‘elev. O, }
tors and processors can plan for the future with certainty by hedging th

n of agricult

or requirements, i e PRI R a
~This redounds to the benefit of consuniers.” It provides a form of price insur-
ance which allows everyone from the fari to he store to operate at narrower

Drofit margins® than would “be ‘possible if i;liey were subject to ‘the; hazards of

future price fluctuations, L Y Gt
' The commodity’ futures market, however, is dependént on traders represent-

ing the 'Speculative interest for its strength and its stability. A thin market is

a volatile market, and ‘price fnstability is more likely to’ restilt from’under-

speculation than fromover:speculation, Our experience leads us to concur with:

the views presented to your. Subcommittee by distinguished economists and rep--
resentatives of the'futures ‘markets, and ‘apparently held by a majority of the
House during previous' consideration of margin control legislation. Essentially,
‘these viewk are sumiied up by a statement made on the House ﬂoor_lby“ 4 former
A imittee" Chairman: “where there has been a relatively Small
‘volume of trading ¢ incregse in prices ‘tends to be even, larger than where
there are many triders and‘much dctivity in the markd ’'96 Cong. Rec. 11754.
Or, as Representative Boggs stated in the‘same debates: “the idea that by, con-
trolling maigins and Seommodity exchanges, price advances can be controlled
tifis no foundatiof in fact.” 96 Cong. Rec. 11759, et
" Interestingly' eénough, this Dpoint of view was underscored several yéars ago
when the possibility of the Fedéral Reserve Board setting marging for com-
modity futures contracts was: first raised. At that time Chairman William Mec-
Chesney Martin, Jr. stated; R L fes
il The” Federal Reserve Board does not view 'its function ds ‘one of con-
“trolling security prices and has not tsed its'margin réquirement authority
; or this purpose. I ‘think it would be similarly undesirable or ‘even danger-
. ous for any ‘Government agency to vary margin' requirements’ in the com-
iy ino‘dity‘?l)ﬁai' ets ' for’ this purpose: (Létter to Senator Williams, 'Jattuary
18, 19640 0T Y Rl O
Tt is possiblé that some' confusion drises from use of the term “margin’’ itself.
In the securities market, under certain ‘circutistances, a down payment is made
for' seeuritié¥ purchased 6n credit. In the commodity futures markets a'payment
is made’ when a futures contract is bought or sold. Bach of these payments is:
calléd a “margin’f, but any similarity between them is more appérent than real.
- The securitiés down payment is 4 ‘partial Jayment, and the part not paid is
‘financed with credit. In a commodities futures contract no credit is involved
. the margin payment is 100% of the value of the margin at the time, and later,
if delivery is taken, the purchaser pays 1009, of the value of the commodity
purchased. This is no mere legal or economie distinetion, It is.a basic funda-
mental différence of function. ne “margin” is no more like the other “margin”
then “security” meaning a share of stock is. like “‘seeurity” meaning.a’ protected
condition. Testimony from -governmental as well as private witnesses before:
your Subcommittee has served to emphasize this point:; GeRche e e W
. Further it is qv{xmview that it would be ingppropriate as a matter. .of-funec-

tions as well as’ urisdiction for =thfe,,Federal‘_,Reserve‘.Board toi ‘regulate’ eoim-
modity futures m

rgins. The Board itself has. been the first-to point this, out..

to, ‘herein to the more. recent. testimony of Governor Robertson before: your
Subcommiﬁtee: “We have no knowledge that equips ‘us from any point of view:
to administer such legislation,” ; : ; S

Perhaps more conclusive is the point, also referred to by Governor Robertson,
that because commodity futures marging do not involve credit they are.outside:
the: jurisdiction of ithe Federal Reserve Board, the authority of which is limited
to transactions involving credit. L ok
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For the fiirég’ding‘reasonsfwe: would tirge that Section 207 be eliminated from
H.R. 11601 and H:R. 11602. In the view of experience as:well a5 economic theory,
it would not sexyé“ the important ‘consumer interest it is: intended, to protect..

s ¥ 5

k

WOOL ASSOCIATES OF THE NEW YORK COTTON "EXCHANGE, INC.

The Wool  Associates of the New York Cotton Exchange; ‘Ineé., ‘located -in
the City. of New York; wishes to register its objection to Sec. 207 of HLR. 11601,

Inasmuch as the proposed legislation.is.cited as the ‘“‘Consumer Credit Pro-
tection Act”, it is difficult to understand why the authors of this bill would
include ‘in ‘it @’ provision granting authority to the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve $ystem to presecribe: regulations governing the minimum mar-
gins the various commodity futures markets must require. The grant of power
proposed ‘appears to be based upon a lack of appreciation of the economic
function of a futures market and a. misconception of the purpose of margins
in a futures transaction. Mr. J. L. Robertson, Vice Chairman of the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, before this very Committee, stat%q

that: margins ‘as related to commodity. futures markets were not credit. ' *
" The arbitrary raising of commodity margins—by, no matter what st
agency—will not and can not have any effect to quell inflationary credit tend
cies in the economy, It is generally recognized by economists' that a fitt
exchange performs. a  valuable economic function in the' public 'interest
marging are raised to.levels that deter speculation, the hedger lose s hig_ ins
and must assume a greater risk. Thig added risk is, of necessity, p: d?
his customer and yltimately the consumer; thus adding to the spiral of inflati

. History ‘has. proven .that the Governing Boards of 'the various commodity
exchanges, being on the scene, have been effectively able to control margins
in all contingencies, With this in mind, and with the protection of the consumer
being the object of, this bill, it behooves this Committee to delete Section 207,

STATEMENT SUBMITTED FOR HrarING REGORD BY FrANK KNELL, P

for it can only be reiterated commodity margins are not credit. ¢

AMERICAN TEXTIEE MANUFACTURERS TNRTITUTE, TNC., e
© Wushington, D.C., August 2};1967.

Hon. LeoNor K. SULLIVAN, B , ‘ i :
Chairman, Subcommittee on Consumer Affairs, House Committee on Banking ond
Cwrrency, U.8. House of Representatives, Washington, D.C." " R :
Desr MEs. SULLIVAN : The purpose of this letter is to express the concern of
the ‘American Textile Manufacturers Institute ovér Section 207 of H.R. 11601.
The Institute is the central organization of the textile manufacturing indus-
try.. Its member millsy have traditionally used .commodity ‘futpfép markets to
minimize the losses that would occur from price fluctuations’ in' the normal
course of accumulating imventori,fs"pf,:rayv cotton and wool to sustain regular

;manuchtnringgxﬁrations. i AR L W g SRAE N
Section 207 of H.R. 11601 would direct thé Board of Governors of the Federal

Reserve System to establish regulations governing marging on the commodity

futures markets in a manner similar to those now governing the purchase and

sale of corporation stocks, S e : i

We agree with others who have pointed out the very distinct difference
between (a) commodity margins in futures transactions on commodity exchanges
and (b) stock margins in ‘credit transactions of stock certificatés”on the stock
exchangega Gt G i i i ;

The Feéderal Reserve Board is ‘properly concerned with the yoJume and terms
of credit transactions in which there is transfer of ownership suich as a transfer
of stock certificate ownership. However, a commodity futures transactions on
margin is not a credit transaction since there is no transfer of ownership but an
obligation to transfer later with one ddy cash settlement. Other differences éan
he pointed out which suggest that regulation of commodity transactions should
not be the funetion of the Federal Reserve Board. e Sl

Growers, merchants, manufacturers, or others who are involved in the han-
dling or processing of basic commodities, including cotton and wool, are, of
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course; n*ot specma*toré. Tov the contrary; they are- protected from disasterous pnce 2
fluctuations by an abundance of ‘legitimate speculators; Because there are
unequal ‘numbers-of ‘hedgers seeking ‘commodity - price protection. at any .given
time, the speculators are necessary for efficient functioning of the futures markets.
‘Unduly high margin requirements could-reduce the number of speculators, thus
serving to. ren«;ler futures markets less effective in their functions.

After carefut study’ of Seetion 207 we: strongly recommend that thxs SeCthIl
o be eliminated from the Bill.' :

Hr Bespectﬁully,

S

5 Ronm;'r C. JAcKsoN, e
. Ea:e_ ive Vwa Preswdent

| ; Yy VT i :
; NATIONAL Oo'm'(m COUNCIL OF AMERICA,
! e Washington,” D.C., Auyust 25 1967.
Representatlve Leonor K. SULLIVAN, ;
Chairman, Committee on Banking and Currency; Suboommttee on C'onswmer .
Affairs, U.8. House -of Represenmtwes, Washington, D:C.

DEAR Mgs. SULLIVAN : The National’ Cotton Council, the oveérall organization -
of the ‘cotton industry, adopted at its' “Annual” Meetmg in February, 1967, a
Qlution whlch urges that‘anj environment be maintained that will’ permit

t tion’ of the cotton futures exchanges. ‘.
m{verketmg

and processing of raw cotton: require;
errisk of wide price’ fluctuation' doe;
During, the p: 0 ‘or X

he risk’ i

! e Cel ing W

" its huge stoeks of cotton at & price just sllghtly abov the #floor”.

With no immediate rigk of any’ significant” prlce’change, ‘there was no oppor-
tunity to: speculate in gofton futures. In addition theére was no need to hedge
against a price change. The two purposes of ‘a futures exchange are to offer
the ‘opportunity to speculate on a price change and to hedge against one.

. During the period when speculation and hedging were no longer possible or
? ded, the New Orleans Cotton Exc¢hange closed and only very limited tradlng
- togk place on the New York Cotton Exchange. :

But stocks of cotton have been reduced to a pomt Whele the surplus will be
gone by. next August 1. Before: the 1968 crop is harvested, it ms almost
certain that there will be a shortage of. cotton staplmg 1346 inech. and,'longer As
a matter of fact the price of this kind of cotton is reported to have gone up .
25 to. 35 per cent above. the governmeut ﬂoor Aceordlngly, the government pro-
Sylts in,a ceiling on price.

1 Eh New Yor Cotton, Exchangé eetablished a new futures contract
ing in,'cotton stapfhng 11/56 inch. ’,[‘here has' been considerable agtivity
in this contracﬂ: as merchants and pr )ceRso 's”soughﬁtﬁ o;‘mmimlze the risk of

; ! l ;
We feel the transfer of authority {o set margin require ents ;from the com-
modlty exchanges to the Federal Reserve Board would ﬁ"‘rage ‘the efficient
functioning of the cotton futures markets. . o
The commod{?ny exchanges themselves are in & be ter position to judge what
1s an adequate argm than is an outside body. The various commodity exchanges
find it to theu& , interest to, set margins at a safe level, high enough to
prevent; an unduly . ;gh volume of apectulative transactions and ”low enough
to encourage ngitlmate use, of the futures market. for 'hedgmg purposes .
e, a comn}ipdltv frtures: n)arket with stﬁg ,exchange Th,e)c'
i8 4. fnn tal conceptional dlffereneexbetween th ut{lr s marks 3
shockpmarkets 4 tid’ufm;%zmarkets Tegulations ongh
stock markets’ regulations, Futurgs markets trﬂ it
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S T .7 " 'ROBERT MOORE&CO :

o g ' S New York, N.Y., August 11, 1967

Hom LEONOP. K. SULLIVAN : :

Ohazrmtm, Subcommitiee on Oonsumer Ajfaws of the. O'omm@ttee on chkmg zmd‘
‘Currency, Washmgton, D. 0.

DEAR ‘Mgs. SULLIVAN: I regret; that I wxl be unabke fto be in Washington to
..appear. hefore your Committee, but I respectfully request that my. objectmns to
~Section 207 11601 be presented to your ,ommlttee., :

'l‘hunkm you for this courtesy, : X G Ty :
o ver «

i The use of credit to regulate and dlctat pri ally :tmsound The law
“of supply and demand is the correct; proper and stabhshedapproach to control
pricesi To give any ‘governmental body the ‘Power to control prices is a mistake.:
_Should Section 207 of this Bill become law, it would defedt the purpose for

S Wthh futures Exchanges were established and ‘have proven during the century

"4 consumers,

~they have existed, to be beneﬁcml to the consumer. For example, let me uge the
New: York Gotton Hxchange as an illustration. I can do so thh the knowledge;,
that my. forefather was one of its founders. - e
"As a result of the war between the States, “eotton had become 0 scarce thnt ;
:Iats price had: advaneed to over $1. per pound. As production was resumed prices
Citell prempltously, causing serious losses tothe business world.and banks. In that
~era a great:lapse of tlme was required befare cotton could move from producer
- ito mills and consun great. pﬂee rlsk‘waﬁ incurred. The: futures
- market enabled the ‘thi 1

uxce lower: “the c?ost (o} the

The fundamentals 01‘ our modern busmess are based on. forward contracts, S

orsthe antlcmatmn of consumers ‘rieeds in the months ahead. Thus it:is obvious. -
that credit and price risks are:involved in all-types of general business. As prices
" gre determined by the amount o6f nioney needed in business: operations and as.
“‘interest rates are a realistic.instrument in the cost of goods to co ‘ g
power other than that controlled by the law of supply na demaﬁd present
unknown factor that will disrupt business.
The futures markets are the medium through which manv commudltleﬁ that
 make up consumers’ necessities of life are-distributed. Therefore, any arbitrary -
power given to any group of individuals—as in Seection 207 Qf H R. 11601——1s .
not in the National interest, and should not be adopted.. : :

/The Free Enterprise system that:made this country so great, cannot thrlve
‘when ‘its’ operations:are subject to: bureau atiecidictationy regardless of how
‘well the intention of these regulations are. If there is:any proof needed for this .
'statement, we refer you to the AAA of 1983, when Secretary Wallace started off
to help the producers-of farm commodities by Killing the little pigs and plowing -

_up our cotton. Since that time the taxpayers have béen called upon to pay 56
“ BILLION DOLLARS, with the problem still unsolved !

We find: today: that food. prices to consumers are sky high, whxle the prxces
farmers_are receiving are correspondingly low. This is especially so if one will
consider the labor necessary to produce our food crops Fasiern farmers are[
receiving only $1.35 per, bushel, for wheat; $1.40 4 &

_ for eggs. Where and why is the spread" Taxes,

“prices.’ : ‘
= Forward or future contracts are them’dsm :facif@‘rs 1 :
Government body is ngen the power that “shall prescribe regulations govermng
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- the amount of ‘Crédit that may be ‘extended ‘0 maintained on any’ contract”,
then no cont.rqctéganmben deemed binding on either party because the board of gov-
ernors. of the Federdl Réserve ‘systém will hiveé the right to ‘change the'terms
of the contract. Therefore, this Section of the Bill should be opposed by those -

- who will defend the private enterprise system, - :
- Respectfully submitted, '

ot

'PERRY E. MOORE,

“Hon. LEONOR SULLIVAK,  # ~ 10 © il tiie o Hes s e o :
Chairman, Subcommittee on Conswmer Affc SConiiitiee on ‘Bownking end
- Currency, U:S. Hous vbf'Répr mtdtw@;erMn*ytm;D.O.: b i
 Thank you for you to appear toflorrow befbre your
; ‘ : ance. Howe u :
} ; ! , truth-in-lending bill. Free
‘ ean lower prices to consumers and higher' prices to' producers
itensifieation of competition, and you have constituents in both cate-
Commodity margin “ugls%tel different from securities margins : Former
money, latter equity. Believe exchanges best qualified to determine prover
margins but if additional controld muSt come margins on agricultural commodi

‘ties would be more apprepriate . under USDA. Will be.in . ‘ashington. later: this
o week - to testify hefore House Ag Committee if able and telephone you.
e Ao S e - EvERETT B. HARRIS,
President, Chicago Mercantile Bwvchange.

froane

‘ ; ;‘: " );Y f

L g e St Y
" Hon. LEONOR K. SULLIVAN,

R MINNEAPOLIS, MINN
.. House of Representatives; Washington, D.C.: i

. fThe Grain Workers: Union is:on strike against SOmG:(; élevaﬁons« operatmg
- in this“market making it impossible for me ‘to attend scheduled hearings
-on:section 207, Please place in the record; my letter to you August 12, 1967,

to show: the. Minneapolis Grain Exchang nalterably opposed to granting -
ag:is proposed in:section 207 of .

- “margin:controli!ito the Fedéral Reserve Boar
. H.R.11601.- e .

. GuoreE WILKINS,
oapolis Grain Hxchange.

‘Boeoutive Vice Presiden

' MINNBAPOLIS GRAIN, XCHANGE,
: Mv’mn’ewpo‘us;’MMn;,?Augustl& 1967
" House of Repréée;mtatibes,hf' o Q ' ‘
Washington, D.C, v ot
DEAR MRs. SULLIVAN :~ e gt :

It should be clearly. understood by all members of your Committee, thig Bx-
change, (I'm sure all other;Exchanges will adopt the same position) ‘is, opposed
to ‘adoption of etion: 207, Reports- in -earlier years filed with Congressional
Committees considering margin.gontrol, document why we believe margin control
‘should rest with the organized Hxchanges not with a Department of the Federal
‘Government. - | A ; R g L

Sincerely, | ‘ it
: Sl b W dhs e e GEORGE WILKENS,
b SRR @i - Eoecutive Vice President.

The subcommittee will be recessed until 10 am.

5 AE

~ Mrs. SuLiivan.
tomorrow morning. .. i
_ (Whereupon, at 12:15 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene
Wednesday, A\Tgustélﬁ, 1967, at 10 a.m.) v
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WEDNESDAY,  AUGUST 16, 1967

*  House or REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE 0N-CONSUMER A FFAIRS ,
OF THE COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND CurgENOY,
; 5 Washington, D.C..

The subcommittee met, pursuant to recess, at 10:05 a.m. in room
2128, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Leonor K. Sullivan (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding. ‘ : g

Members of the subcommittee present : Representatives Sullivan,
Stephens, Gonzalez, Hanna, Annunzio, Bingham, Dwyer, Fino, Hal-
pern, and Wylie, Gt

Also present : Representative Widnall, member ex-officio of the sub-
committee. £ i g

Mrs. SurLivaw. The Subcommittee on Consumer A ffairs will come to
order. - Fovmar o » : : o

- We have a very heavy hearing schedule today on the consumer credit
bills, and I am very much'afraid from what I was told last night that
we will not obtain permission for the subcommittee to sit this afiter-
noon. Had we completed action in the House yesterday on the civil
rights bill, there probably would have been no problem, for I had
cleared with the leadership on both sides the question of holding our
hearing during general debate on the social security bill. - i

To our witnesses scheduled for this afternoon, and particularly
those from out of the city, all I can suggest is that you join ‘us in

keeping our fingers crossed that we can proceed: as scheduled,

: ne of the best things about our hearings so far has been'the good
attendance of the members of the subcommittee, and. I certainly ap-
preciate that. Most of them have been very faithful in attendance even
though this has left very little time for necessary ‘work in the Members’
offices. However—and this is no complaint, I assure you—the fact
that we do have such a good turnout of members means that whenever
we all take all of our prorated time in questioning, this could mean up
to an hour of questioning for each witness., . . .

- This morning, to assure an opportunity to each witness to make
hisoral presentation, and then to assure an opportunity to each mem-
ber to question, I am going to ask all of the witnesses to come to the
table together, make their summarizations in 10 minutes or so—and
I’'m sure all of you can do that—and that will leave time for each of
us on the subcommittee to question any-or all of you. We have used
this method several times in these hearings and I think it is the most

i e R T e (55859
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, eﬁiczent way to utilize the vntnesses knowledge and also prov1de

_ opportunity to each member to use his questioning time as he sees
fit. Of course, if we have additional time left after the first round
of questioning, we will go as far around again as posmbl

. Our w1tmssgs this mo are a.distinguished group Mr Teon 4
 H. Keyserling; former f@’ﬂmﬁmafn ‘of ‘the ‘Couneil'o; ”“Eéonnmlc Ad-

visers under Preéldent Truman iIMI' George H. Kimball, president

of Kimball’s in Portsmouth, N. , representing the Namonal Retail
‘Merchants Association ;. Mr: Fohn: W Edelman, president of the
National Council of ‘Senior Citizens, Ine.; and Dr. Dswld Caplovitz
‘ of Columbia Uni v, author of the book, “The Poor Pay More.”
~ Congressman Wyian Yo Nei Flam shire would like to introduce
~ his constituent to. us, and’ we- ar‘e happy to have you do that now,
 Mr. Wynany =
(We also‘want to hear from Mrs Sarah Newman, of thMNatmnal
_ Consumers’ Leagpe. et &
1 would ask all of you Wh()‘%e names called 17@ come up to t e
witness table where you will #ind your name eards.”
- ngressman; Wyman, would you mtroduce Mr Klmball to the:
committee and to the audience? '
O Mr. Wynmax. Madam Chairman, and members of the subcommlttee,
I won’t take a minute of your time, but T did want to come. here
today to present to you a: personal friend of mine for many years
who happens to be the representative of the National Retail Merchants
 Assoeiationyia; member of the board:of: direstors of that association,
the president 'and’ general’ manager of the largest’ geneml retail dry-
goods outlet In- Portsmouth, N.H., who'does a very: ‘substantial busi-
ness—a mih’ who has testlﬁed before Sénate committees, other coms
~ mittees’in this ﬁeld for 'more than ‘three times; 2 man: on whory 1
have.depended for advice for'many years as an attorney generaland
as a Member df ‘ se 'opini i '

hl h ;
}Xlnk YOU. W k

‘ﬁﬂd that Mzl Klmball’s testlmony w11] be's v‘ﬂu-
able contribution-to the deliberations of your ‘subcommittee, Madam

Chﬁ,lrman, an

commen& him' t "*you very hlgh]y it

~‘-«.fT it yans very' much"' gressy 4 d
3 mball inbé th‘k hearlng and to mtroauca. v

T w1sh you cou 4 qta 2 'you can ‘we would hke!to havewwm
“T'believe, Mr. Klmball, you hawve two gentlemen ae mpaiying you,
“including, if I am not mlsmken, ‘Mri Jares Wooley, who - sippeared
Wéek s '*1th the Armeriean Retail Federation and Mr.: Cianca.

g is not' here. Just Dr. Wooley is W1t’h mef-‘bh’lfs

; mormng : e

M. Qrmmvw 'We W111 start w1th”VI Caplovrtz, smée he isat

end of the' table, ol f b ¥
(‘an veu and will you please Bumma,ﬂ’m your statement m a,bout 10

finntes o tliat/we get the high points of it? ‘
D" CAI’I ovvrz 1 will domy very best.

I
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TEMENT OF DR DAVID CAPLOVITZ, NEW YORK,CITY, N.Y.
AUTHOR' OF THE BOOK; “THE POOR PAY MORE™ . .

' Dy, Cavrrovirz. The phienomenal ‘growth. of iinstallment. credit ‘has
brought in its wake a sharp rise in deceptive and fraudulent marketing
practices. Insofarias market transactions depended: .on: cash,, sellers
‘had less opportunity ‘and incentive:to employ deception. and fraud.
~ The consumer who could afford to'pay cash for an automobile or :
‘expensive applidnce was probablynore! deliberate and sophisticate
inhis shopping behavior-and there was no: poirit-in:trying to.conyince
the person without cash to. make’ ani‘expensive purchase. All, this
‘changed ‘with the advent of installment-eredit. . @ oo 11 - e

- Whether or not the consumer can afford the purchase has become
largely irrelevant. Once the contract is signed, the seller ean count on
the law to enforce his right to payment. Appropriate changes in the
laws governing corisumeér credit have lagged: far ‘behind the growth
of our credit economy. L e T R el T TR
~ The signed contract is treated as saerosanct in courts of law and the
fraudulent techniques used to obtain the consumer’s signature, so diffi-
‘cult to prove in court, are largely ignoreds It is a sad fact that.the laws
in most States are now heavily biased in favor of the creditor ; his rights
‘are much better protected than those of the debtor. ]

"1 shall skip to save time, = i gere o ns ; =
T cannot, stress too strongly the need for Government to do every-
thing in its power to stamp out consumer fraud and exploitation. The
need, is particularly great today when our cities are being torn asunder
‘by. ghetto‘“ri'ots; N ' < G T
“Last year, when I testified before -another - ¢ongressional subcom-
mittee, 1 suggested that resentment against consumer exploitation was
one of the many grievances that find expression in riots. 1 am even
more convinced of this today. Numerous newspaper accounts have
quoted ghetto ‘residents' as rationalizing the looting: on 'the. grounds
that they have been victimized and robbed by the merchants for many

STA

years. ' , B b i i el S e
" The common thief is severely sanctioned when apprehended, but the
credit merchants who abuse the law to bilk the unsuspecting consumer
run little risk of punishment. Untold millions of dollars are stolen each
year from ¢onsumers by disreputable used car dealers, home repair
firms, vacuum cleaner firms, and many other types of firms. But in-
‘stead of being met with criminal sanctions, the perpetrators of this
‘kind of thievery more often:thannot become wealthy men respected in
‘their commydinities. - 2o cllime g s T g usdie ) S
 How can wé expect, the disadvantaged to learn respeot for, the law
when those in pdsitions of responsibility do not themselves respect the
1aw? And how can we expect the disadvantaged to obey the law when
we do not enforce the'law for their protection ? I believe the time has
come when societycan no longer tolerate a dual system ‘of law, one set
of Taws for the disadvantaged and another set for those in respected
positions of responsibility. ; Srinin:
1t is in the light of these observations about the compelling need for
consumer protéction that T shall comment on the proposed legislation.
T wholeheartedly ‘endorse the provision for full disclosure of credit
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 costé in terms of & true dnnual yate. The arguments for this reform are
- so cogent and are'se well known that I need not repeat them. I should
only add that I particularly approve of the provision to include the
‘Cost of insurtnce that the de{;tor‘fis required to buy as part of the credit
R U R i Sy A Vg S
f *%“i'ém?thé viintage point of the consumer, this is part of the price he
must pay f ﬂ,i‘érmfitf'and it: makes little sense to exclude it from the
‘calculation of that cost. Moreover, it may well have the additienal ad-
‘vantage of bringing down the exorbitant, charges that are now being
wiade Tor tHis type of insuranee. I feel less strongly. abeut the pro-
'vision to fix & eeiling on creditichatges. With full disclosure of cost,
perhaps the market mechanism will be sufficient:to keep credit charges
‘at'a reasonable rate.: Sl e gl o i S g ol
T am in complete agreement with the provision to abelish confes-
‘sions'of 'jﬁd%zhént. The confession of judgment assumes that the trans-
‘actiont was scrupulously earried ont and that the debtor has no de-
fenses for defaulting on payments. Needless to say, this is not always
‘the ease. My own research has shown that many debtors stop payments
“when theybelieve they have been cheated. Since fraud is not uncommon
‘in credit transactions, the debtor should not be deprived of his day in
court. : i 3 .
Perhaps the most eontroversial feature of the proposed act is title
II which would abolish wage garnishments. I share the committee’s
view that this remedy of the creditor is frequently abused and often
results in severe hardships for the debtor, particularly when he loses
‘his job because of the garnishment. . - . S ;
Studies have shown that some of the hard-core unemployed are,
in fact, unemployable because they have garnishment records. Not
only doés garnishment impose a burden upen the debtor, but also it is
‘quite cestly for the employer as well. R A ,
- T see little point in making America’s employers into collection
agents for the ereditor. Nor, for that matter, should the courts have as
much of that respongibility as they new have. Studies have shown
that many of the minor courts in various States do little more than
collection work, and in some:States the minor-judiciaries make their
living from|the fees ¢hargéd on the debts collected. i ~
" Doing awhy Wwith garnishment might well make the more unserupu-
lous ‘creditors meore hesitant in foisting: heavy debt burdenson the
consSumer. 0o e : Bt e e ey j
* But all this notwithstanding, I .am not yet convinced,that doing
away with garnishment is either feasiblesat this time or would have
‘the desired éffects even if it were possible to pass such a law. . ...
" ‘For éxample, garnishment is not ‘permitted in: Pennsylvania: and
“yet ¢radit mercharts are thriving in that State;andyeonsumer fraud
s just &5 prevalent there asielsewhere. The ereditors,in Pennsylvania
“do not hesitate to attach both personal and real property;and sheriff’s
“sales’ of furniture and even homes are qiite common. To lose one’s
‘home because of a consumer debt iscertainly as:harsh a consequence
- aglosing one’s job. : 5 T
" Although/ elininating" garnishment is probably a desirable long
“fun objective; T would urge thecommittee to consider a more modest
Iproposal ‘niow-~the adoption: of a stronger version of the New York
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~ State law which prohibits employers from firing employees because
of garnishments: The New York law now ap?lies only to the first gar-
~ nishment, but there is no reason why such a law should not cover two
or even three garnishiments; Moreoyer, if the abolishment of garnish-
ment is not yet feasible, attention should also be given to the amount
- of income that is exempt from garnishment. Many States have harsh
- garnishment, laws, while some States permit garnishment on only a
small percentage of income. It should be noted that ersonal’ bank-
cy rates are higher where garnishment. laws are harsh.
Ithough problems may arise in trying to abolish garnishments
now, there is hardly any justification for wage assignments which
~ circumvent the courts entirely. I would strongly recommend that the
act do away with wage assignments which are not permitted in a num-
ber of States. S S A

If I may, I should now like to call attention to some aspects of the
consumer credit problem that are not covered in the proposed legis-
lation. One of the major abuses in the legal procedure leading up to

arnishment has to do with inadequate service of process. All too
frequently the debtor has no idea that he is being stted until his em-
ployér informs him of the garnishment, for the simple reason that
he was never properly notified. ' e e
 In some jurisdictions—New York, for example—improper service,
known as “sewer service”, is quite common, Needless to say, failure to
- notify the defendant of the lawsuit is a fundamental violation of our
whole legal structure, and gret this happens all too often. Many sug-
gestions have been made about correcting this abuse; one is to have
- Process served by registered mail,.I am not sure what the best solu-
“tion is, but T would suggest that the committee look into this problem.
As you know, the State of Massachusetts has recently passed a very
progressive consumer credit law and there are two provisions of that
law that I would strongly, urge be adopted in the proposed legislation.
~ One attempts-to control the frequent abuses that occur in door-to-
- door selling by introducing a cooling off period. _

In Massachusetts the consumer is given 24 hours in- which to re-
scind the contract in direct selling. In England, the comparable law
provides fora 72-hour cooling off period. I believe that a cooling off
period in direct selling would go some way toward reducing theé abuses
associated with this method of selling, ; o s

“The second feature.of the Massachusetts law that I think should
be adopted in this act has to do with the assignment of contracts to
ird parties. Under the “holder in dué course” ‘clause, ‘these third
rties are not responsible for any, defenses the consuther may haye
«agémﬁhe Oﬁglnali&ﬂler- TR B YA A SR Sl
According to the law, they are entitled to payment, whatever: the
involve tr L. As a''résult, maily finance com-
panies ,doinfot;«lle‘si{bate:;tg ;buy the contracts of unscrupulous merchants
who employ deception:to obtain the consumer’s signature on the con-
tract. These fly‘by-night credit merchants tould. mot long’survive
without, the ‘finance companies that buy theirpaper. ~— '
-+ Thus, one way of controlling fraud and increasing the protection
ofthe: consumer would be to do away with the »holdenyinegue-oeurse
-~ doctrine and thike the assignee also responsible for the transaction.

83-340—67—pt. 2— 6
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, €hie finanice companiés
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and that the perpetrators of stich fraud
anctions. This is not the case today. The
now have consumer fraud bureaus
York by Attorney General

for all his investigation of consumer co
otiate them, the attorney general of Ne ( ,
"to prosecute the perpetrators of fraud. S it

knowledge, not g single businessman in New York has been
ut, in jail for cheating s customers. Until strong enfofcement ma-
chitlery is instifuted, I see little hope of making xuch headway in
_eliminating frau . One of the merits of the proposed law is that
it does provide fo ing or violati A ‘

T would Tike, to she

4 tSaﬁd hi’é{ieﬂf"é’rts
ork does not, hai

150 ! ) f Y AU 1L ..l \‘1\5 :
gest that these penalties belstrengt{hﬁi‘i dand

made to cover even more offenses. In this connection, I would also like
to suggest that the responsibility for enforcement of the varlous pro-
 visions of the act be placed in the hands of the U.S. attorneys’
flices ;:ather‘thmin_the central office of the U.S. Attorney (Greneral.
' S. attorneys are much closer to the Tocal scene in which the
it for authority from

ur and they should not have to walf

neral. to act. et T :
, I commend the committee for attempting to come to grips
the major problems confronting America teday.
e §ta§temqnt of Mr, Caplovitz follows:) .. e

MENT OF DAVID CAPLOVITZ, ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR OF SOCIOLOGY, COLUMBIA
most grateful for this opportunity to testify, before the House Sub-
ymittee on Consumer Affairs on the proposed “Consumet Credit Protection
e ' eommend the Committee for ‘doing its utmost to' increase!the protection
“of consumers in: credit: transactions. ugh: proteetion: is.long overdue and the
need for it has neyer been greater. ... .. .. i N e e

generations ago, Americans had. a negative attitude toward debt. The
debt was viewed as somewhat less than an upstanding citizen. This is,
no longet true. ‘Conslimer credit has become ‘the fuel 'of ‘our so-called
ety. Americans in ell ‘walks of life see ‘nothing ‘wrong: with buying

w and. paying later: The growth. of consumer credit since “World War II has .
'n extraordinary, far outstripping the growth in_population. Tn 1945, e
'amount of outstanding instaliment debt was 2.5 billion dollars; in 55
climbed to 29 billion and by 1965, it had soared to- 66 billion.: Toda,
- debtistands at T4DilHOm | (G Gl L el i
: : 1 vth of installment credit hasibronght in ifsw ;
lent. 1 ﬁkféﬁng practices, Insofar as market trans-
~'geiters Trad' less opportunity ‘and incentive to employ
TThe ¢onsumer who:could afford to pay:cashifor an auto-
ppliance was probably more deliberateand sophisticated
oint in trying :to convince the

1 ke ar > purchase. All this changed with the
ent ‘credit. Whether or not the consumer can ‘afford the
eilargely irrelevant. Once fhe contract is signed, the:seller
o law to enfo his right to payment, Appropriate. changes in
rning consumer credit have lagged far behind the growth of our
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©As I'roted earlier, our society can no longer afford to'éondéne the crass’explof
tation of consumers that is. now so prevalent. If consumer fraud is to be done
away with, it'is essential that there be strong enforcement machinery and that
the perpetrators of such fraud be confronted: with criminal sanctions, This is
not the case today. The. Attorney Generals of some 23 states now have Consumer
Fraud Bureaus modelléd after ‘the one set up in New York b Attorney ‘General
Lefkowitz. But' for-all” his investigation of consumer eomplagnts*-and hig efforts
to’ negotiate: them, the ‘Attorney General of New York does not have the power
to prosecute the perpetrators.of fraud. To my knowledge, not a. single busine SS-
man in New York has been.put-in jail for cheating his customers. Until strong
enforcement machinery i8 instituted, I see little ‘hope of making much headway
[in eliminating fraud. One 6f the merits of the ‘proposed law is that it does provide
for criminal penalties for violations. i ‘would like: to suggest. that these ‘penalties
be strengthened. and made to. cover even .more offenses. In this connection, I
would also like to suggest that, the responsibility for enforcement of the various
provisions of the Act be placed in the hands of the U'S. Attorneys’ offices’rather
‘than in the central office of the United States Attorney General. The - U.S.
attorneys are much: ¢loser! te the local scene in which the violations occur and
they should not have. to wait for authority from the Attorney General to, act.
. In. closing, I again commend the Committee for attempting to come to ‘grips
with one of the major problems confronting America today. e
- Mrs. Surrvaw. Thank you, Mr. Caplovitz. L
~+ Mr, Kimball, do you think you could summarize your paper ?

Mr. Knusarr, Tmost certainly will. : e &
STATEMENT OF GEORGE H. KIMBALL, _PRESIDENT, KIMBALLS,
- PORTSMOUTH, N.H., REPRESENTING THE NATIONAL  RETAIL
- MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION; ACCOMPANIED BY JAMES WOOLEY

- Mr. KiuBarr, Since Congressman Wyman introduced me T will skip
over the introduction and you know what the National Retail Mer-
chants Association is. . S e oo
+ I will say that we are a group of reputable businessmen and the
large portion of our' membership is composed .of businesses doing
$75,000. to $2 million annually which is considered small business.
Sinee the original introduction of the first truth-in-lending bill in
the Senate, the National Retail Merchants Association has been work-
ing with and appearing before committees in an attempt to develop
legislation which can be considered fair and equitable to all concerned.
Our policy during this entire period has been and remains asfollows:
Consumer credit is an in@ispensable element of a sound and prosperous Ameri-
can economy. It has enabled the American eonsumer to enjoy a standard of living

unparalleled in the history of the world—a standard of living which could not
have attained without the liberal availability of consumer credit. )

- NRMA member stores. extend credit in response to:the needs and
~desires of their customers. We accept a responsibility to accurately and
- fully present to the consumer all the important facts pertaining to the
merchandise and its use, including the terms of purchase. We support
the principle of full disclosure of credit terms in a manner which is
truthful, complete, and meaningful to the consumer. £

Any legislation which seeks to regulate consumer credit should be
consistent with the prineiple stated above. It should not encumber the
retailer with impossible, burdensome requirements that might tend to
limit the availability of credit to the consumer. It should give recogni-
tion to the fact that the costs of extending consumer eredit represent
more than simply the cost of money, and give due regard to all of the
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g credit in establishing any minimum or maximum
o samie spirititoidiscuss my views on H.R.

respect. to, HL.R. 11601 we find. it difficult to understand how
time and effort spent by the. Senate, can, be ignored, The Sen-

' rings reports are filled with testimony showing that an accurate
annual rate canhot be applied to ‘revolving ¢redit. This, in fact, was
,; ‘ for the great delay in the passage of the bill.
 H.R. 11601 would be detrimental to my business, to the livelihood of

~ 'my employees, to the community of Portsmouth, N.H., and to the

entire country. Its erfactment isjunnqeessary,k"i}sat'the present ;‘pime
_weare furnishing our customers credit information, and the additional
- amount of information required by H.R. 11601, such as the “annual

5 ‘percentage rate” would only confuse and bewilder the consumer.

 Credit is a very important tool of the modern retailer,’and he can-
not survive without it. At Kimball’s 65 percent of all Saiesf:areﬁtrkans-

. acted on our optional credit plan, referred to in H.R. 11601 as a re-

 volvingoropenend creditplan. & :
- Without the éxtension of this amount. of ’c'r‘edit,‘“twq‘things would -
“happen that would put Kimball’s into red ink immediately. Anything
that would prevent consumers from using our credit plan would
y reduce our s volime, reduce our gross profit, while
hwould ‘remain the same. Our net profit would become
- a minus figure.instead of a plus figurei At the merchandising level,
~ the consequent, reduction in volume would increase markdowns, de-
~ crease selection, and further reduce our- ability to employ ¢itizens of
- Portsmouth, N.%’H.’, and to purchase merchandise: from ‘manufacturers

thronghout our Nation,:

° To be specific, I would likeits discuss section' 203(d), starting on line
98 of page 11-of FUR.11601. Under part (2) the bill requires a store
ike Kimball’s ‘to furnish, prior to the exteénsion -of credit, a- state-
‘ment declaring “the annual percentage rate of the finance charge to
beimposed” : Aol B ’ BY w Wi
~ I 'submit our invoice which wemail to each customer every b weeks.
In the lower left corner ‘we clearly explain about optional credit: ac-
~ counts: We tellithe custonier eéxactly how much she is expected to pay.
. Then we state] “The only -charge: for this .credit is 114 percent of

= amounts owed for 85 or more days per billing period-of 35 days.” At
~ the bottom we repeat that there will be a service charge on a previous

- past due balance— bold print. , :
Tt Kimball’s dées not have the only unique system in the country,

‘do niot think it would be fair to subject all stores to present a
customer with 'a ﬁeneljiﬂ figure which ‘would represent all system as
the same a$ all othiers. We'are already clearly stating to our customer,
in a'language she’ can understand, that our service charge is 115 per-

~ cent of ending balance per billing period. As it'is, our customers are
- smarter than we are.They charge at th beginning of each cycle and
. phy I staining ‘alriost 70 days of credit

thisliftot thé 18/percent that
ustomers, but'ean be lessthan 8
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- Tam very much po§ed to the statement of an %annuasl’
ra,te as it confuses the shopping public between the °
charge” and “interest.” Even the Internal Revenue £
that only one-third of the service charge can be used as :

“deduction on individual income tax returns. ‘Under revo r-cred

~ we supply our customers with extra service- for ‘which there is a Just :
- charge made. This charge dlscoumges excessflye chargl and it also

~ has the tendency to make customers pay their :glls more romptly
For example, we can send seven involces. to a customer f‘;‘ e pur-
,chaseofone$30dress £ i e

I show you the chart here:
: £ PURCHASE MAGE APR 5 1966
Invoice date Payments Balance due Service charge '
L : on account. . e s e
Way 10,1966, oo . om0 mn o wm

June 14, 1966

TR0 20038

he chart t:'z,_t she bought a dress on Apml -
$30,. very 35 days. Th cqstomer
mwde regu ' ments of $5, the total service char
‘tion was $1.18, or 3.9 percent of the sale cost. Th
~ have a unique system workin, on g th
b transaction necessitated sending ﬂ}
 The cost to the store was at least 25 «
“$1.75. We charged our customer $1. 18 o
sale. Tt actually cost the store 57 cents m «e than
in service charges.

- Over 50 percent of my customers want: and use revolvmg credlt
They have little or no objection to the service charge, such as we use.
They only expect it to be expressed in a language they can’ under-
_stand. They know what their ending balance is, a.nd they. can: multlply

-~ this figure by 114, and- know that their service charge has ‘been
“agenrately computed. If they do not want ;}0 pay. the charge, the;
t- m: 35

’ aJwas ha,ve 'bhe eptlcm of paymg the b111 W1

1n31s‘c1ng on, incl 9) rate dis

eredit transactions. : :
~The NRMA:, endm%s, as stated‘ in H.R. 11602 the exemp on ' pre~

scnbed for the clysed -end nstallment credit frozm 'amiA al I‘ate dxs—

closure transactions’ ic otal finance’ o ceed

$10. . This feat; ‘,1gm.sa,ll». recommended . by: eserve
Board w111 be a"deﬁmte aSSISta,n” ‘tothe smaller o spemai y store

: ‘they ! d, for rensons of eeononiics, t0 i oty

g 16T areas. n,glt relal
been m@l ded sm H R




t f Wg%, usur “and
_ hould _of, be cons derefl

, revious WltneSSes Bef()re th;s commiittee, mclud—
F ess,.the President’ Advmér on Consuhier Affairs
et : arr, and. J. L. Robert—
08t of these items are

. cone, L hat Wlé are oppbséd to
It encompasses many areas which in our opinio i
to truthful and accurate credit disclosure and'its’powers of etiforce-
ment given to the Federal Reserve Board far exceed normal needs.
The Board itself has said many times that it. does not -want thls o
authority. . G

: H.R. 11602 eli iminates all of f,hese additional and unrelated proposals .

~and in the area of enforcement leaves the major part of civil suits,

g the Board’s responsibility to regulating methods of dlselosure
sstablishing reasonable tolerances of accuracy. '
In addition e must continue to oppose FL.R. 11601’s mqn ‘me i

for full disclosure of an annual percentage rate for revolving creditc
As previously described at length this _provision would create false
-and misleading information thus creating a situation which we be—
]1eve would be completely contrary to the des1res of the Congress. -
- H.R. 1160{ a(zoes not. meet with the full a.ll of our mem ’

) the d. on between open-' ; ns
nq feel are conducive to developing a proper COmpetltlve situ
it i dustx‘y HOWevmr, lgl% 11602 répresents a compre
7 years of work and study. We would hope to-
provisions. However, if left with a choice
in HR 1602 or 1g)'zessn:m g to HR. 11601 we express
thP view of the nia] ority of our mem which would be a,cceptance of
H R. 11602.-
(The full staltements of Mr. Klmbaﬂ follovvs, as Well as a sample
1nV01ce ) , .

STA’I‘EMENT 01;' Gmem H KIMEALL ON:: BEHALF or THE NAT‘IONAL RE'I‘AIL
" MEBOEANTS Assocm'mom' i

- Madame Oh’airman and members of the Comni ee, my nam;e is G e
_ Kimball, a'resident of New Castle, New Hampshire. Kimbaﬂ’s store’is a family-
owned store specializing in women’s and children’s apparel. We employ 55 women
and 5 men on a pegular full-time basis, and peak periods have as. many: as 90
people on the payroll Our annual volume of business is around $950,000. Our
payroll amounted'to $191,160 last year. These people pay. approximately $40,000
in Federal income taxes. The store also pays $15000 a year in State and
Municlpal:taxes..[ wosuld classify Krmb;au’sr asia small: indusery in a‘smiall eom -
wunity in a sm Oﬁst 1

‘I come here today representing the Natlonal, Retau Merchants Association,
non-proji, rade éssociation With its exeeutive oﬂices at 100 West; 81st Street

rs ‘are storé owners: }r iﬁdlvidual es vol-
from: ,000. to $2: mﬂiion anmially. The members of NRMA -
engage in retail ¢redit transactions and a«re, of course, deeply concerned as to

, 5
{ .
R
I
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-any developments-in:this area..Since the original introduction. of the first, “Truth
dn Lending” bill in -the Senatg,,the;l}zational Retail Merchants Association has

been working: with and appearing before committees in ap. attempt to develop

legislation which can be considered fair and, equitable to all concerned.

Our. policy .during this, entire. period; has:been, and. remains as follows: “Con-
sumer credit is an jpdispensable element of a sound and, prosperous. American
economy, It has enabled the American consumer to enjoy a standard of living
unparalleled in the history of the world—a standard of living which could not

have been attained without the liberal availability of consumer credit.”

their: customers. We'accept a responsibility to accurately and fully present to
the consumer all the important facts pertaining to the merchandise and its use,
including ‘the terms of purchase. We support thé principle of full disclosure of
credit ‘terms in a manner which is truthful, complete, and meaningful to the
consumer. S . ’ e :
Any. legislation which seeks to regulate consumer credit should be consistent
with' the principleé stated above. It should not encumber the retailer with im-
bossible, burdensome requirements that might tend to limit the availability of
credit to the consumer. It should give recognition to the fact that the costs of
extending consumer credit represent more than simply the. cost of money, and
give due regard-o all of the costs of extending credit in establishing any minimum
or maximum rates, o]
I appear here today in the same spirit to discuss my views on H.R, 11601 and
H.R.'11602. : : ks ' fis
¥ With:respect to H.R. 11601 we find it difficult to understand how all the time
and effort: spent by:the Senate can be ignored. Thé Senate hearings reports are
filleéd wiﬁh'tesﬁmomy sshowing ‘that an: accurate anmual rate cannot be applied to
‘revolving credit. "Phisysin fact, was one of the major reasons for the great delay
in.the passage of ‘the bill, - 1 R T Ty ey
< "H.R. 11601 would- be detrimental to my business, to' the-livelitiood. of: my em-
Dloyees, to the community of Portsmouth, New Hampshire, ‘and to the entire
country. Its enaetmént ‘i unnecessary, as atthe ‘present time we are furnishing
our: customers credit-information, and the additional ‘amount of information
required by H.R. 11601, such as the “annual percentage rate” would 'only confuse
‘and bewilder the consumer, e ‘ J G .
" Credit is:a very important tool of the modern retailer, and he cannot survive
‘without: it.'At,Kimball"sGs% of all sales arve transacted on ‘our optional credit
plan, referred to in H.R. 11601 as a revolving or open-end credit plan, Lhdth ey
Without the extension of ‘this. amount of credit, two things would happen that
would put Kimball’s into red ink immediately. Anything that would prevent con-
Sumers from-using:our credit planiwould immediately reduce our sales-volume,
reduce our gross profit, while our fixed: ‘costs would: remain’ the: same. Our: net
profit'would become; a minus-figure instead of a plus. figure; At the merehandising:
level, the consequent: reduction 'in ‘volume would increase markdowns, decrease
sélection, and further reduce our ability ‘to employ citizens of Portsmouth, New
Hampshire, and topurchase merchandise 'from manufacturers throughout our
nation. ? : Y ¢
~"To:be specific, I' would like' to disecuss section 203(d), starting on’ line 22 of
Page 11 of H:R. 11601. Underipart (2): the bill requires a store like Kimball’s
to furnish, prior to- the extension of credit; a statement declaring “the annual
bercentage rateof the finance charge to be imposed.” ; ;
(I submit our invoice which we mail to each customer every five weeks. In the
lower left corner we clearly explain about Optional Credit Accounts. We-tell the
customer exactly how much she is expected to- pay. Then we state ‘The ‘only
charge for this credit is 1%9% of amounts owed for 85 or more days per billing
period of 35 days.” At the bottom ‘we repeat that there will be a service charge
on a previous past due balance . . . this in bold print. : ¥4
Kimball’s does not have the only unique systern in the country, and I do not
think it would be fair to subject all stores to Dresent a customer with a general
figure which would represent all systems as the same as-all others. We are al-
ready clearly stating to our customer, in a language she can understand, that our
service charge is 1%49% of ending balance perbilling period. As it is, our ctistomers’
are smarter than we are. They charge at the beginning of each cycle-and pay the
end of each cyele, thereby obtaining ‘almost 70 days of credit without any: service
charge. Believe: me, this is not the 18% that H.R. 11601 would have me tell my
customers, but. can be less than 8.0r:9 per cent on ‘@ simple annual rate. !

I'am very much 'opposed to the statement of an annual percentage rate, as'it
confuses the shopping public between the words “service charge” and “interest.”
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Even the Internal Revenue Gorvice claims-that only one-third of the service charge
~ ‘can be tsed as an'interest deduction on individual income tax returns: Under re-
- yolving credit, We'sﬁppl,your‘,«custbmefs' with extra service for which there isa
just charge made. This charge discourages excessive charging, and it also has the
tendency to make customers pay their bills more promptly.. For example; we can
- send seven invoices to a customer for the purchase of one $30 dress. I show you in
the chart here: - : : .

PURCHASE MADE APR. 5, 1966

Invoice date ; Payments Balance due Service charge

on account

' May 10, 1966 $5.00 $25.00 $0.38

* Jane 14,1966 5,00 20.3 3

July 19,1966 - - 5.00 15.69 23

- Pug. 23,1966 5,00 10,92 17

- Sept: 27,1966 5,00 6.09 09
Nov. 1, 1966. 5,00 10073 i i
Dec. 6,1966.. 1,09 emmemiecionon e

okl oo G ie i R EE 11.18

13.9 percent of sale.

You can observe by the chart that she bought a dress on April 5th for: $30, .and
we sent out Statements every 35 days. The customer made regular payments of
$5; the total service charge of this transaction was $1.18, or 3,99 of the sale cost.
Thug Kimball’s does have ‘A unique system: working on-a. 10-month annual plan.

The above transaction necessitated sending this customer ‘seven: separate bills. -
The cost to the store was at least 25¢ per invoice or a total of $1.75. We charged
our customer $1.18 or 3.9% of the actual sale. It actually cost. the store 57¢ more
than the customer paid in service charges. : e i
Over 509 of my customers - want and use revolving credit. They have little or no
objection to the service charge; such as we use. They only expect:it to be expressed
in a language they can understand. They know what their ending balance is, and
they can multiply this figure by one and one half, and know that their. service
.chiarge has been accurately computed. If they do not want to pay the:charge, they
. always have the option of paying the bill within 35 days, and thereby avoiding
any charge. dild : i o gy : 3
- H.R. 11601 would take me into a proven non-workable area by insisting on in-
clusion: of the.annual rate:disclosure for all typesiof ¢redit tran gactions. L
_ The NRMA -endorses, as stated in H.R.: 11602, the exemption: prescribed for:the
‘closed:end or installment eredit from annual rate disclosure transactions in which
‘the: total finance charges donot exceed ten -dollars;This feature originally recom-
mended by theFederal Reserve Board will'be a. Jefinite assistance to the ismaller
‘or Specialty store where they: are forced; ‘for reasons:of ‘econiomics; to maintain
.only:an installment type of account, This feature is notiincluded in H.R. 11601.
Other areas not relating directly to specific credit transactions have been 'in-
cluded in H/R: 11601, Areas such as advertising of ‘credit terms, standby controls,
pan on garnishment of wages, usury and a ‘National Commigsion of Consumer
Credit, should not be considered as part of a bill of this nature. As brought out by
previous witnesses before this committee, jncluding Miss Betty Furness,: the
Pregident’sradvisor on consumer ‘affairs; Undersecretary of ‘the Treasury Joseph
W: Barr, and J. 1T Rébertson;: vice-chairman,: Federal Reserve Board, most o
‘these itéetis are already under study by separate groups. - Ry SR
. Tn.onclusion we:mast'istate ‘that weiare opposed to H./R:111601.:It encom-
* passes Many areas swhich in: our'opinion are not truly ‘related to fruthiul and
“mecurate credit disclosure and its ‘powers of énforcement given to-the Federal Re-
. serve Board far exeeed‘:mrmalzneeds. The Board itself has saidmany times that
itdoes not iwant thig authority: = TR S FRE i BT
UHR, 11602 eli‘miriates.allf‘hﬁy hese additional and tnrelated proposals and in the
ared oftenforcement leaves the major part o civil suits, limiting the Board’s're-
sponsibility to regulating methods of disclosure ‘and establishing reasonable toler-
ances ofmccumcfy.?tf N et oty o UiiEey g vk T A T3 Lol s T rg s
- Tn addition we must continue to oppose:FLR. 116018 requirement for!full diselo-
gure ‘of an anniiglipercentage rate forirevolving eredit. “As! previously described
at length! thiyprovision:-would create false and misleading thformation ‘thus’ere:
. ating, @ sitwation 'which we ‘believe would be completely centrary:to the desires
‘of -the ‘@ongress) b T i A e T e L
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- HL.R. 11602 does not meet with ithe full approval of all ‘of our members. In fact,
as ‘brought out in testimony by NRMA before the Senate Banking ‘and Currency
‘Committee on' June 28, 1967, there are sections concerning the distinction between
open-end-credit plans which we do not feel are conducive te developing a proper
competitive situation within the industry. However H.R. 11602 represents a com-
Dpromise developed from seven years of work and study. We would hope to further
improve upon ‘its provisions. However, if left with a choice between accepting
H.R. 11602 or regressing to H.R. 11601 we express the view of the majority of our
<members, which would be acceptance of H.R. 11602. :

‘STATEMENT OF NATIONAL RETAIL MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION SUPPORTING THE Ex-
_ EMPTION OF CREDIT SERVICE CHARGES OF LESS THAN $10 FrRoM DISCLOSURE IN
"TERMS OF AN ANNUAL RATE

Governor Robertson recommended an exemption from annual rate disclosure
of credit transactions under $100 or where the credit service charge is $10 or less.
‘He said “. . . a small finance charge—in dollar amount—is not of great signifi-
cance to the credit user regardless of the effective rate of finance charge.” ;

The disclosure-of credit service charges in terms of an annual rate may be
desirable on large credit transactions, particularly where the terms of repayment
extend for periods as long as five years. It has no meaning or importance on
small sales with maturities of less than one year, For the small retailer careful
control of costs is necessary to remain competitive. He has neither the personnel,
the equipment, nor the time in connection with each small sale to convert credit
service charges into an annual interest rate. His customers would neither ap-
preciate nor tolerate the delay in being waited-on. Furthermore, such conversion
and disclosure would be more.confusing than helpful to the consumer,

Certain basic facts about credit should be considered. Most significant, there are
fixed initial costs of processing each credit application and credit transaction
which are constant régardless of the amount of the account balance or the amount
of the particular purchase.. Such costs include initial -interviewing and: eredit
investigation, clerical and bookkeeping costs, and collection expense. Because of
small purchases these fixed costs are spread over a sSmaller dollar amount; they
are disproportionate in percentage terms to the same costs-on larger transactions.
The disproportionate fized cost element of evtending oredit for short periods on
small sales is an economic fact which cannot be disregarded, and it should be
wiewed properly as a Service charge, rather than an interest charge for the use
of money. : c: i

.If retailers who sell small-ticket items almost exclusively are required, to
quote a dollar and cents service charge in terms of a simple annual interest rate
on transactions that liquidate in periods considerably shorter than ‘éne year,
that rate would appear to-be disproportionately hifgh. It would place these sellers
at a competitive disadvantage with those who include all or. part of the credit
costs in their cash pricing. When such disclosure discourages customers:from
making the more valid comparison of time price against time price, they “find
that in the end they have gotten poorer value for their money. .

Let us consider this illustration. A §12 soft-goods sale with: a-small service
<charge of $1.50 may pay out in three installments. A merchant” who competes
by maintaining a low cash pricing policy with minimal mark-up needs that'service
charge to defray the.costs of extending credit. Yet, by: quoting an annual rate
of 75% he may lose a minor but important segment of his business. His cus-
tomer, motivated by shock rather than reason, could pay as much or more by
patronizing a firm that includes credit servicing costs in its original prieing.
In this instance, the unwary shopper—most in need of protection—would be the
most vulnerable, : : g ! :

“Annual rate disclosure will adversely affect small retailers, and consumers
as well, in‘another important respect. Nearly all retail installment credit plans
allow the buyer to .add subsequent purchases to his aeccount. Retailers with
small-ticket-add-ons do not customarily refinance the entire package because of
the time and expense involved. The credit service charge is imposed on each
§eparate sale under- its ‘original® terims ‘and when the payment. ferm- of ‘prior
purchases is,extended by virtue of add-on purchases, no additional service charge
is assessed to the buyer for, the extended time, allowed., Should the seller: be
reguired to compute an annual rate on small sales of $100 or less, and be forced
to bear the expense of this additional work, there would be no reason for him
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not to. reﬁmhce all add-on transactions under g new-blanket contract.. This would
“result in a: greater charge. to the buyer, mga«qu;'ed by .the period of timefrom
the:due: date of the last installment on each priox purehase to the due date of the
last installment of the combined balance. £
While - the motion of having a simple, common denommator for all credlt
service charges has tremendous appeal ‘to the erudite among us, it is really
not that simple. Consumer credit, which is an-important tool of mass marketing
in our present day complex economy, takes ‘many forms and each  form has
“separate facets. The spectrum:is very broad, ranging from amounts of a few
dollars to many thousands of dollars; from maturities of a few months to as
many as 60 months or more. At the lower -end of this spectrum severe distortion
is apparent yvhen our “simple” common denominator is used. The impact of this
one, “simple”’ denominator may well dlsrupt ‘sound’ competitive practlg §if it is
applied acrogs the board w1thout proper regard for the 1nterplay ‘of "all’ of the
factors that enter into the pricing of all of the goods, ‘soft as well'as’ durable,
11} the market plape today. ! w
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19425 MARKET STRECT
| “PQRTSMOUTH, Ni H. 03801 - .
: © Phonie: : 436:1200

" pLEASE nl'l‘ACItl AND RETURN. upp:n ronﬂou OF THIS. -unn:u'r wwn \raun n:mn-mc: AMOUNT .
BILLING | " PREVIOUS 27
U BALANGE e PAYMBNTS | BALANCE.DUK

SIEE QFTIONAL CHARGE ACCOUNTS -
e %:c::{r OF BiLLL PAY AR MUCH A8 YOU WisH BUT NOT B 1. T

WHEN VOUI MINIMUM
‘BALANCE 1S -~ PAV‘MEN% 1s
UP T $60.00

$ 61.00 70 $100.00 .

, 101.00:70 ;140,00 .
141,00 Y0 | 170,00 .

7. 1171,00'10 | 200.00 .
.- 201,00 10 | 250.00 .
251.00 AND OVER % or lAunCl

“YKE ONLY CHARGE FOR THIS CREDIT 18 1% OF AMOUKTS
OWED .tou 35 OR MORE DAYS PER BILLING FERIOD OF 27

IMPORTANT, YOUR ORIGINAL SALES: CHECKS AND RETURNS ARE ENGLOSED, PLEASE SAVE
¢ 2. THEM AS THEY CANNOT BE DUPLIGATED, PRESENT THEM WITH THIS STATEMENTIF THERE IS
T ANY N QUIR’\‘. OR IF TELEPHONING, PLEASE ASK FOR THE BILL ADJUSTMENT DEPARTMENT,

ucouurs llE M& UPOR PMS!MANON*A SERVICE CHARGE Wil.l. BE \IAM oA PREVIOUS BALANCE PAST DUE.

- Mr. KIMBALL. I have with me today Dr. James quley of the New
; York office of the accounting firm of Touche, Ross, Bailey & Smart.
Dr Wooley will explam to the commlttee using a group of aceounts’
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atrandom the results of a study to determine the actual pereentage
of service fee on revolving accounts over a 12-month period.

‘Mrs. Surzrvaw. Thank you, Mr. Kimball.~ - SRR o o
M. Keyserling; I don’t believe you submitted a prepared statement.
Do you think you can pick out the points of the bill that you would
like to discuss in 10 to 15 minutes’ time ?

STATEMENT OF LEON H. KEYSERLING, WASHINGTON, D.C., FORMER
CHAIRMAN, COUNCIL OF ECONOMIC ADVISERS, CONSULTING:
ECONOMIST AND ATTORNEY, AND PRESIDENT, CONFERENCE ON

Ecommc PROGRESS

Mr. Keyserrne, Madam Chairman and members of the’ subcom-
mittee, I want to apologize for not having a prepared statement. This
is the first time in 35 years of appearances before congressional ‘com-
mittees that I have not had one for the benefit of the committee.

I set aside some time last week to do this and was called to Israel
at the request of the Prime Minister for an economic conference, and
just got back at the end of this week. So T am very sorry not to have
a prepared statement.

I can summarize my views within the prescribed time. o

I heartily favor the bill FL.R. 11601 in all basic respects. I think if
1§ 1((){1% overdue. I think it is well considered, I think it is imperatively
needed. 5
- T am not impressed with any of the objections to it that I have thus
far hegsd, 10 ann e A S R ‘ ]

I would like to sty that T am even ‘more strongly ‘in ‘favor of the
provision' for a ceiling upon the rate charged than the’provision for
«di’sclosut'eﬁ’althéu‘gh' I favor both. The fact of the matter is, that the
poor' and the oppressed and deprived are in a position that impels
them' to borrow money at whatever cost, because they have to. Dis-
clositig' what the cost is may help them, but taken alone, it doesn’t
help them enough. The even more ‘important thing is'to see that they
do not pay too much for a cotimodity that they have to usé; that is,
borrowed money. e

I think that the 18-percent rate is much too high, and is a sad com-
mentary as to the extent to which all of our national credit policies,
private and public, have tended to impose the smallést burdens upon
those who need help least and the harshest burdens upon those who
need helpmost. =~ it e £ b 5

One defense which some may offer for the 18-percent rate may be
that other interest rates have gotten so high, so unconscionably high,

that a. practical spread must be maintained between other interest
rates and these particular interest. rates. Lo R .

- For this reason, I'would like to'call to the attention of the committee
that, while this bill is essential and imperative, it is absolutely impos-
sible to accomplish nearly enough in the way of making’ credit avail-
able'to low-income people at reasonable costs, unless and until the
broader problem which is also within the jurisdiction_of ‘this com-
mittee is tackled. B L S e B oS PRt

I think it is in some respects and T do not ascribe this to this com-
mittee, rather ironic and éven tragic, that we should be attempting to
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~ impress upon private business the responsibility to be honorable and
~ just and fair and socially minded in its credit policies, even while these

characterizations, in my considered judgment, do not apply to the
credit and monetary policies of our Federal Government, and above
all, to the policies of the Federal Reserve System. The policies of the

" Tederal Reserve System have perpetrated a veritable outrage against
low-income borrowers from 1952 to date. The wrongful attitude of
the Federal Resétve peoplé is well indicated by their unwillingness to
aﬁsume‘thev"l’gespvn‘sibili’tsias that this legislation would impose upon

" am not in favor of the protests against the abolition of garnish-

_ ment, because I believe that garnishment is a clear example of people
who are unable to protect themselves that are being subjected to much
more rigorous penalties and procedures than others much higher up
on the income scale who have many ways of avoiding analogous rem-
edies; and for the same reason, T am against or I ymulg be against legis-
lative prohibition of assignments of wages. . .

_Goodness knows, the people who are affluent or rich have countless:
ways of assigning their income and property for legitimate and illegiti-
mate reasons, and prohibition of assignment of wages would repre-

~ gent, the tendency of tightening up most on those who need help most.

. T would like to say justa féw words about the relationship between.

the credit palicies embedied.in this bill and the more general, question:
of credit and interest-rate burdens and policies, because I believe that
this relationship is controlling in:many. respects, There is;naturally,.
~ under the very nature of out economic system, a spread betyween the-
interest rate,charged on Federal obligations, the interest rate' charged
‘on Stateand local obligations, the interest charged on home mortgages,.
the interest rate,charged on: business loans, and the interest rates:
charged on consumer credit. Consequently, so long as the Federal Gov-
ernment persists deliberately, in a long-range policy. of tolerating an
upward trend in the interest charges on its gwn borrowings, although it
is sovereign and. nltimately controls the money, supply, it is.a major
culprit in the increased interest burden being 1mposed. all along the:

line by everybody else. : : o o .

" In order to show this more:clearly, and how. it relates to the specific:

problem now before the committee I' am going to cite a few facts' and:
computations:that I have made in: the course of studies I have under--
taken over many. years. i . . Gl wanab et

" First of all, today, looking at the increased interest charges in the-
Federal budget alone, representing aplication to.the actual debt of’
the interest-rate increases since 1952, when, in my view, the infamous:
“accord” between the Federal Reserve Board and the Treasury took:
place, the annual interest charge against. the Federal budget now in
1967 ig about $6 billion higher than if the 1952 level of interest rates:

had been maintained. . - . PO ;

- Applying the same: method of computation, the increased interest-
coststo State and local governments are now more than a billion dollars:
a year. The increased interest costs to all private borrowers, including-
borrowers on consumer credit, are now running at an annual rate of $10
to $12 billion. Thus, the American people are‘now paying thesé in--
creased interest costs at an annual rate of from $17 to $19 billion: And:
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all this represents, by deliberative national policies, a transfer of in-:
come mainly from those who have not to those who have, a transfer of
- income from.those who borrow to those who lend, a transfer of in-
- come from those who cannot protect themselves to those who can protect
themselves. ; G ot $ig )

The increased interest rates, since 1952, on all one- to four-family,
- nonfarm, home mortgages are now imposing an additional cost upon

- homeownersof about $2 billion at an annual rate.

And this in itself means that, on a $10,000 house which might be
bought by a $5,000 family, the increased interest payout by that family
over a 2b-year mortgage is about $2,000, or.about 40 percent of the.

~family’s annual income before taxes. e
. The increased interest rates on total consumer credit, which is:most:
directly; within the scope of this hearing, may now he costing these
types of borrowers as much as $2 billion at an annual rate. . = =

As I have said, the excess interest costs in the Federal budget alone
are now at an annual rate of about $6 billion, Here we are, a nation
with riots in the streets fiddling while Detroit burns,, claiming that
we are unable to afford adequate expenditures for slum rebuilding-or
education or health services or most other needs of high national
priority, or even for the kind of employment.programs that might be.
created with the right kind of expenditures, and yet tolerating these
fantastic interest tributes to those who lend money to the Government
itself.. The annual excess interest cost. of $6 billion in,the Federak
budget alone is much.more than twice the proposed fiscal 1968 Federal.
budget outlays for education; about 30 percent higher than outlays
for health services and research; about twice outlays for public as-
sistance; :almost. four times outlays for labor, manpower, and other
welfare services; about twice outlays for agriculture and agricultural
resources ; six times our outlays for hoysing and community develop-
ment—even though we have proclaimed thislack as a source of -alliof*
the trouble in our cities—80 percent higher than outlays for natural
‘resources; and about 314 times outlays for the Office of Economic
Opportunity.: .. ..« . ; . o

Now, over the next 10.years, and I have estimated that as of now the,

nationwide. increased interest costs are $17 to $19 billion at an annual
rate—over the next 10 years, with the increases in interest rates which
are still'in process; but.more importantly because more-and more debts;
which were not covered by the rising interest rates will be refinanced at
the higher rates, I estimate as a minimum, that over the next 10 years,
at least $25 billion a year, or $250 billion over the next 10 years, will be:
transferred fromthose who borrow to those who lend through the.
rising interest rate policy alone. ;

. This comes to estimates of about $80 billion over the next 10 years
in the Federal budget, about $20 billion over the next. 10 years on State
and local budgets, and about $150 billion over the next 10 years on all
private debts. As I figure it on the interest-bearing consumer debt, it
averages-at $2 to.$215 billion annually, or $20 to $25 billon over: the.
next 10 years, - \ A S R ey ek s :
. What does the average annual excess interest. cost: of $8 billion a
: year over the next decade in the.Federal budget alone—which T
estimate to be more than likely unless the prevalent monetary policy
is drastically changed—really mean? This figure comes to-about eight:



|
o678 | CONSUMER ' €HEDIT BROTECTION' AGH
, | ~

times the fiseal 1968 Federal budget ‘proposal for housing and com-:
munity ‘development, about 214 timesthe proposal for natural re-
“sources, almost three times the proposal for ¢ducatiorn; about 80 percent’
higher than the proposal for health services and research, about five’
times the proposal for labor, manpower, and other welfare services,’
about 224 times the proposal for agriculture and agricultural’ re-
sources, and more than four times the proposal for the Office of’
Economic Opportunity. it o
And what does my estimate of a nationwide excess interest cost,
public and private, in the neighborhood of $25 billion annually over
the next decade really mean % This is roughly equivalent to $3,600 per’
year for every American family of four. Less than half this ahnual
- amount would measure the difference between the current. incomes
of all of the more than 30 million poor families in the Uniteéd Stites’
and the incomes that all of these’ people - would ‘need to rise above the
poverty-income level. This shows dramatically’ how much we could
easily afford to do, if only we redirected our: efforts along lines ‘of’
economic eommonsense and social justice; o o & e
“'Now, what'are the reasons -given for this monétary travesty? The
first reason given is'that it stops inflation. I do not understand how
it stops inflation to increase the cost of that precious eommodity whichi
everybody in need has to use, even though everybody does not have to:
use bread 'and‘some would be better off if they do not use it. Bl
A second reason given is that it is necessary to slow down the rate
of ‘economie growth. As a matter of fact, our ‘econoniy has been in’a
period of stagnation for'the last couple of years. ‘And now we are
in a fantastic ‘position where we are asked to enact ‘a 10-percent sur-'
ciarge, which will ‘bear down excessively upon the low~ and middle-
_income families who have already béen so seriously hart by thiese rising’
~ interest rates, on thé alleged ground that'we need to increase taxes in'
ordér to be able to have ' lower interest rates: This s one of ‘the most’
Ffantastic economic propositions evér'conjired out of the minds of
misguided people.: LR e ST SR DG 2 RN
If a large portion of the American people are being burdened too’
heavily, relative to their ‘resourees, and relative to 'the wealth and
power of the U.S. economy, how do we help them’ by taking one step’
forward and one step backward, by increasing the tax burden on them'
in‘exchange for lowering the interest rate burden on them, even' as-’
suming that the Federal Reserve Board in its éonstruction of good
cconseienice would respond to-the increased taxes by lowering the inter-'
st rates, which'it hagnot'done before? : R
Actually, the dolaramounts by which the'tax burden’on thé lower’
middle income people would be increased by the proposed 10 percent:
surcharge would be much greater than'the dollar amounts by which.
these same families' would benefit from any conceivable reduction in
interest rates which' might follow in donsequence of the proposed tax
inorefse, ioil BEY UGS T S BT A LIRS, SRR 3 B e s T 81 TR
'The truth' of the matter is that thé Federal Reservé System, which'
in recent years has proved itself unworthy of the trust, imposed upon’
it by fhe Congress to 'deal with monetary Ec’i}icjf, i§ now taking’ over
fiscal policy ‘as well, Having succéeded in’disengaging itself from:
its appropriate ‘duty to ‘ooperate With the purposes of the fiseal
policies of the Féderal Government, the Federal Reserve System has'

|
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now taken the additional step of pointing a pistol at the Federal Gov-
ernment, and threatening o increase interest rates still more unless

the Federal Government increases taxes as quick ‘and as much and

to the President, and not truly resporisible to'the Congress, and there-
fore, not responsible to the people of the United States, although that
system is a public instrumentality created by the Congress, has assumed
< the role of being the most ‘powerful arbiter of the econiomic ipolicies
of the Nation. This is dangerous beyond description. ‘ seki
There has hardly been a time during the last decade and a half
when the Federal Reserve Board has not used the bogy of “inflation”
to inflate the fat, and starve the lean, to repress the rate of economic
-growth,, and to hold the,level. of unemployment, especially: among
the vunerable groups, to dangerously high levelsi Today, with-our cities
In turmoil, and our nationwide tranquility and domestic gécord more
seriously jeopardized than at any time during this century, and with.
a direct relationship between these troubles and the economic distress
and unemployment which afflicts scores of millions of our people, the
Federal Reserve System, With a vengeance is agdin frustrating those.
national policies which might repair the, situation and dedicate us.to
our great national purposes and-priorities. T I i e ta
I ‘believe that we need to consider ‘these varieties of problems care-
fully. I cite them first in reenforcement of the imperative need to take
the small but important step toward helping these people in the ways:
provided in. the proposed legislation. And even more important; T'am
firmly convinced that; unless'we stop engaging in the dreantof! Sélvin’gf'
great national problems. with extremely liniited, thotigh worthy pro-
grams, with programs which grab hold of only one-fiftieth or one.
one-hundredth of the real problem, unless as part of this process we
move toward a just and American and fair and decent and honorable
credit and, interest rate policy for the N. ation as a whole, which, can
be provided only through the action of the Government and the
Federal Reserve System, we will not accomplish very much by dealing
only with' one specific aspect of the problem as represented: by the
- proposed legislation, although T compliment this subcommittee for
tackling this aspect of the problem so forthrightly, courageously, and
constructively. Al : ; ;
‘Mrs. Surrivan. Thank you very much, Mr, Keyserling. Every time
you appear before us you ‘give us food for thought. T think you have’
given us a lot this morning. - ; Rt ,. ;
Next we have Mr. John W. Edelman, president of the National
Council of Senior Citizens; T think you' are accompanied by Mr.
Hutton. Do you both have statements? 4

~ STATEMENT -OF JOHN W. EDELMAN, NATIONAL COUNCIL OF :
* SENIOR' CITIZENS, INC, AND WILLIAM R. HUTTON, EXECUTIVE
«DIRECTBR b ‘{‘i:Zi 5y : : " % <3 i 3
Mr. Epmracax. Madam C‘hafimnaln,”as’ it happens, I am présiding
~ officer of two national organizations that are appearing here today.
- The National Consumers’ League will be represented by Mrs. Newman
and the National Council of Senior Citizens by Mr. William Hutton.
o 83-340—67—pt. 2—7 e :
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The National: Consumers’. League is an- organization 70 years 0ld—it
is in effect, a kind of elite organization which hasbeen eoncerned with
problems in this area for.many,many years while the National Council
of (Senioyr Citizens ° i
very poor ;egldeltfy people Who,are peculiarly oppressed by the evils ofr
d!niﬂis:.te"edfredit-f?«mngvem&ntst«
simply: wish. ommend. these colleagues of mine to this com
nd I will not take up amy further time. . - LREi ek
d statement of Mr. Hutton follows:) .
R ‘HoTroN, HXBCGHVE DIRECTOR “Or THE NATIONAL'
NIok CITIZENS, WASHINGTON, DO ©

ns whichiis;a mass organi-zatieg representing many

R. Hutton, T am E’xééut,i‘i@,nirect%

: 19 ‘ ¥ ongr dhd a privilege to be
assoeiatod /with John Bdelman who Lias been’such & stalwait of thie consuter:

moyement for so many yearsio - Ao § gt el e
As, you, hayve heard, the National Council’s position: on Truth-in-Lending calls-
e nd complete disclosure of the cost of consumer credit as President
Johnson' requested in his ‘consumer message to' Congress early this year. Mem=
 penrs ofi the National ‘Council of ‘Senior Citizens are solidly: behind H.R. 11601,
the consumer protection bill; backed by the charming and courageous ‘Subcom-
mittee Chairman and five. pther, subcommittee members, Congressmen ‘Henry B.:

Gpn"‘z‘ale'z‘of‘l‘exés‘; ‘Joseph 'G. Minish of New Jersey, Frank ‘Annunzio of ILli-
nlois; Jonathan Binghani and Seymour Halpern, both of New York.: ' AR e
Members of the National Council of: Senior’ Citizens urge the House of ‘Repre-

sentatives to plug ‘the gaping holes in the Proxmire Truth-in-Lending measure

that has passed the Senate. We ar particularly disturbed at the failure of the.

Proxmire bill to deal with chargé counts (revolving credit), first mortgage:

lodans and credit' fransactions involving less than $10 and garnishments. :

¢ Older Americans encounter ‘all thé consumer problems that plague the young!

‘and middle aged. In-addition, they have special problems of theirown. .. 1

With few exceptions, incomes of the elderly are fixed, The great majority of
the 19,000,000 who are 65 or over live on socigl security. Approximately 15 per

“cent’ get industrial pensions’ in addition to ‘Yoclal Security but this extra income
ig“often pitifully small. More than ‘60 per:cent ‘off those 65 or over have:cash or

. other -assets amopnting to less than$1,000. ¢ - foovd D0 e

.- _'The socia] security recipient getting $84 a month—a little over $20 a week—-

the averagé old age and Survivors’ benefit, or the couple getting §126 a month-—

or'a meagre $31'4 week, the average for recipient and’spouse, must make every
penny:count, They want the biggest bang for their puek when they go shopping:

Millions of elderly frequently face the grim choice .of 'getting ‘enough to eat
or payingfrfqr,oqis»trxi{ 'pres;crip{i-on drugs they need to stay -alive. Those fortunate
enough to own Homes often hiave to choose between food purchases and spending:
for essential home mainténdnce. Many lonéome retirees must go without food
and other essentials so they can visit their children or close relatives. = = %
. Our nation’s pecent. on youth, which, consigns even those 40 or 45 yearsiold
who become u\nﬁm},p;oyed‘ to 4 he industrial scrap heap, forces the great majority

65 or over tolive on a razor's edge of financial insecurity. Syt LA ]

Today’s retirees are the men and women who began'their productive years
during ‘the Great!Depri idsioniof the 1930°s. For most of them, low ‘wages and Te-

Acm;ritng,{fMnempli,@yment have, meant scandalously inadequate -social Security: -

henefits, T Ry 1

‘" Unlike' today!s wage earners, who cal

' rapted employment and constantly rjgingv wages promising top soqig1_"s¢cg¢;i§y_

g% money. in’the-bank ‘upen/retitement, fiie elderly arel by ‘and. largeiwithout

" adequate incomesand lack sqvipgs jor other. cash asgets to see-them through-an

 emergency. ! e - A

Because the e;lderly are so often without cash, they‘are more and more forced
to rely on costly store credit. Every dollar exacted from them in exorbitant in--
terest payments, fér credit; purcliases leaves: thén with oné dollar less for-food -

or medicatiom. | iy AT e R R G

Fimag ¢

¢ Ry A R 1 FLLyTS ,,", £ a:'f
1ook’ forward ‘bé“éo yea'r’s‘“‘un»in.tef'-

AR
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money lenders ‘but' what:they lose can.often be ‘made up from future earnings.
The ‘vast -majority of those 65: or over-depend on infrequent social security in-
creases for improvement of their economic situation. Social Security increases
‘0£ 7Y% per cent in 1958 and 7 ‘per cent-in 1965:did notieven keep up with the rise
in living costs. . & : g i :
*The :National: Council of Senior Citizens is campaigning: for: the 20 per. cent.
ovier-all: social ‘security increase: recommended ‘by ‘President Johnsoen: but swith
full knowledge that an increase in this amount would be but a step toward a level ;
of payments sufficient to: assure:elderly poor a modest:but adequate standard of
living. =~ . S gt R ’ P
‘The Heuse Ways and Means Committee, which recently reported out a social
sec»uxi:ity ill, refused 'to go along even with' the modest-increase asked by the:
President. . . . Frit o Lo T e
. The National Council of Senior Citizens feels strongly that Congress and the
nation‘owe: older Americans, who helped make today’s affluence possible, a great
deal more than the inadequate social 'securityipackage that-has come out of the
House Ways and Means Committee, s e e
. Members: of thé Nstional Council are well-aware of the:requirements of the
-Vietnam War and the additional cost of needed domestic. improvements, but they
are saddened and angered at the spectacle of those who would play pelitics with

human misery by using the Vietnam situation as an excuse to hold down needed..

social security benefits, Medicare and:Medicaid improvements and to cripple or
destroy the anti-poverty program and other much meeded domestic programs; :
" The"leaders of the Senior Citizens clubs affiliated with the. NCSC. are abso-
lutely ‘astounded: at those lawmakers who have even gone so far as to refuse;
with whoops of hilarity that will haunt them, a modest appropriation for control
of rats that spread disease and inflict injury in our city slums; i o st
- We of the National Council would like to:point out that the main opposition
to truth-in-lending ‘and’ other' consumer- protection legislation comes from those
‘who' obey - the «dictates of the business interests that insist they should:decide the
ethic§ of the marketplace regardless of the harm done the consumer, i
The National Council of Senior Citizens is a non-partisan organization enjoy-
ing'support of leading Senators and Cdngressmen 'of both major parties but we
béelieve in calling a spade a spade. - i 1o i dpmy e iy ni e el 2
‘We -invite those Senators and Congressmen who have a sinceresinterest in:
economy and are not simply using this'issue as‘a club-to-beat down all. pro=public
legislation, to consider the need for a strong Truth-in-Lending law, for-here is;
an area that-involves absolutely no expenditure of Federal funds other than the
comparatively insignificant amounts that might be required for .enforcement.
The National -Council further points out that as a nation we may -soon be
called upon. to pay more Federal taxes! By enacting a strong Truth-in-Lending

measure and other needéd consumer legislation, Congress could offset any ‘tax
increase that may be imposed on the taxpayer by helping him or her save. by’
stretching their spending money. rEhad el Bl s et i
'We are happy to note that the Subcommittee Chairman’s bill duplicates the
coverage: of .the original Truth-in-Lending bill sponsored. by £former. Senator Paul
Douglas of Tllinois for many years in the Senate and that it plugs the loopholes
in the Proxmire Truth-in-Lending bill:that recently passed the Senate.

The harmful effect of costly revolving credit and garnishment on wage earners
is expressed in many letters onthese subjects received by .the National Council

of Senior Gitizens.... - . . F e

-~ Hi a letter from an‘Ill‘iné)is niember.on revolving credit : . g -
S m* the Senate passed the Truth-in-Lending bill but I was surprised to
jee the: nothing in it on store credit. I-usedto ¢harge what I bought until I
found gutithat I was bagying 24 per cent a year on what I owed, That’s four times
the amount of interest you pay on an ordinary bank loan. Not man ople real-
ize-what they cost and that explains why theére are so many charge’ dccounts.:
Here’s hoplitig, when thé Truth-in-Lenditig bill is finally passed it will have some-

‘hing in it'to control-the interest people pay for store credit?: . £yt
A California member writes on garnishment : : i : o
. (I .see. where the Senatq has passed.a Trnth-in-Lending bill, That’s good. But,
rom what I understand it has nothing in it about getting g%kniéhee‘&erm*rétt;réd; ‘
yut, when I wa ¢ i

ni‘one installment payment. T:Weatly: lost my jéb: Now, my: son; swho has a: wife
wd five: kids, iy being ‘garnisheed,and it’s murder. His? take-home. pdy is cut

unger, 1 had my pay garnisheed just for getting 4 1116 behind
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inhalf and his family is having a réal tough time. T think the Séndte should have:
puil; t;he clampion garnisheeing a man’s pay when it passed the Pruthsin-Lending’
bilL” o : R T . Gl s b teeid
sMembers of the National Council of ‘Senior Oitizens, who' have written: on:
2 ;Tmth-in-Lendﬁng, agree with Congressman Jacob Gilbert of New: York, who:
o n a speech on'the'House floor that ‘.. . perhaps no proposal (before Gon-
gress) has‘more ‘to ‘recommend it than ‘the Truth:in-Lending:” They ask with
Congressman Gilbert i « »i b ook DTt T &l
. “How can any Member of Congress dedicated tosthe public inte
regulations designed to assure honesty in the marketplace?...” = i ;
. Consumer:credit has become an area of theimost severe exploitation of $he poor.
Tt takes the'form of deéeption often Jeading to garnishment-oftem with: the lossiof-
jobs. BEven when disaster does not result, exhorbitant interest charges gie«a
constant drainion family ingome: - SERL T e B D R i
- The lenderstprofit from consumer eredit is not peanuts. CONSUMETS NOW: OWe:r
$95 billion' of which$75 billion is:for instaliment credit. The interesticharge on:
‘this debt is a whopping $13 billion a year. = st sgprc iE b e e p e
; T«herelﬁtiotjship?befween’e'onsumet:oredit and garnishment:#§ bighly important.
Byen the threat:of garnishmentis énough to compél:a wage earner to pay through.

el i:#be agmnst

" “the nose for ja deceptively’ sold product because, frequently as not, ‘garnish-;

- wages, . v sitgo

t can cause loss of employment. P TR ST 1

{5 no accident that states with the harshest garnishment-laws usually have
the ‘mst congumer ‘pankrupteies; For exdmple, Oalifornia aughorizedi garnishs-
‘ment up: to half of a debtor’s wages: Fhas a bankruptey: rate five times greater
~ than New York which’ allows garnishment up to no more than:10,per cent of

- Increasingly, due to high pressure advertising, desperate debtors.go to a small
loan company to“‘eonsolidate’ theéir:debts. Highest charges for credit are charged
‘by these outfits. The people'who pay them canleast afford toipay thepechargessi: .«
- Interest rates are set by state law at 2 to 3% percent: a- month .on small, loans.
' . This is the equivalent of 24 to 42 percent interest a year. Typical.is ‘the 3 per
- cent a'month 2 arge on loans ranging from $150 to $300. iy Y

‘Some of the most pitiablervictims of the burgeoning small loan industry.are
the eldexlylon} whom some of these loan company blood-suckers Show:! ne .compas-,
sion whatever. .= . & LOSET G R ST B s s Uae d Oty

" "The Nationhl @ofmcil-of Senior Citizensijoins with Betty Furness, the recently
_named Speeial Assistant to the President for Consumer Affairs, in insisting that::
“At a time W};}mememr"lfves ‘aré tun mofre and more on credit, the least we can do
is permit‘aborrower to know exaetly how: much he is paying for.a loan or credit
purchase.” ' 1~ : vl 535 e Lrootia n
- Mrs. Sunnivay. Mrs. Newman, 1 think you have a statement. Can
you summarize yours:in 10 minutes? -
will be glad to try. e i

- Mrs. Newman. I

o

 STATEM

AY. ¥, NEWMAY, GENERAL SECRETARY,

" Mrs. Newumay. One of the things' afrhave impressed me isthat we
~don’t argue any longer abont whether we ought\, to have truth’in lénd-
" ing or not. Apparently industry: has joined. consumers in their. rec-
 ognition that thisis actuallymeeded.” = . i gn
~ The impo 16w 18 to decide how—whiatkind of bill
e 4 Ss. 'f . . :: ,1" N.‘l

-om hawing to disclose the annt

‘One of the arguments used to: persuade the Senate committeerto ex-
empt this. ségmentefﬁthe indtistry was that revolving credit constitutes




~thep

~given a means by which to compare costs of credit, and if
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le' this mmy be true,
inted out fear}ier‘ i

- Senator Douglas has go X hese hearings that the
amount of revolving credit jumped while the Proxmire bill:was urider
consideration from $314 billion to $5 billion: .. =~ (00" & o0

. And a member of the banking industry has predicted that in 5 years

’a‘vé‘?"‘fsﬁdll ‘percentage of doriswniter credit.
ctureis changing everyday. =

- revolving credit will represent 50 percent of all consumer credit inthis

country. My prediction is that if we get S. 5 or H.R. 11602 instead
of Hl% 11601, the rise,'changeover to revolving credit will Be even
‘more rapid,‘and you couldn’t blame the merchants fordoing this be-
- “'eause they don’t want to be discriminated against. - - BoEa s
I was glad to hear the representative of the American Bankers

“sociation say that “uniformity'is essential if the consu

- industry is to bé permitted to operate without optimnm effectiveness”
and we agree with him completely, although we do/disagree with the
- ABA in their preference for themonthly rate. =~ * . "0 o
- Another argument is that if revolving credit charges be disclosed
by an annual rate it woudn't be telling the consumers the truth: I was
‘not able to be present when Dr. Wooley presented his tables the other
day but I have heard others trying to'make this'same pitch ; namely, =
- that consumers charged at a one-and-a-half-percent monthly rate end
up paying less than 18 percent a year and, therefore, would not be
getting the truth if they were told the annual rate was 18 percent.
" But none of these avid seekers of truth was able to prove that one
‘and a half percent monthly rate was any truer than the 18-percent
~ annualrate. : ‘ ; e A
- %+ Credit costs should be figured from the date the service charge

~begins and not from the date of purchase. If calculated in that way the - .

‘annual rate isalways 12 times the monthly rate. .~ - e
- Actually, if you pay on the first day after the charge is imposed you
may be paying not 18 percent, but as high as 540 percent. Such'ex-
amples, of course, are never given. Of course, 'i&hzey,’({)on’t show: figures
like that and most people wouldn’t pay off that way. But it isjust an
indi&a’tion that what we need is an annual rate which we can all under-
stand. ' Geish AR e ' =
- One of the witnesses today and also the ABA witness said that the
monthly rate would give the consumer all the information he needs
~for comparing credit costs because he could easily convert the monthly
rate into an annual rate by multiplying by 12. It really is that easy and

it shouldn’t be any harder for the merchant or the extender of credit -

~to_do that multiplication than it is for the consumer to doit. =
_ 'We feel that the 114 percent monthly rate misleads the consumer
into thinking he is getting a much lower rate charged him. :
- I have here a bill which is issued by one of the stores—Klein’s—in
‘this area using revolving credit and I would like to put this in with my
- statement for the record. It shows on the back of the bil—
~ You may at any time pay the entire balance or.more than payment due. No
service ‘charge if payment in full received ‘within 30 days of billing" date. =
- That’s very clear and anybody who buys at'this store knows that
within ;‘thatgﬁ-dajr period hye can pay off the whole amount without
~_paying any service charge. - IR
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1 not going to have a charge im-
: a%s dvaz of the%rEdlt

ve fwmﬁ er ch
'or should I take the mone»y out of »the .
om & credlt union. and pay !

dinary ;co"' ""merV compam 4
'tlonvvi"

nsumer could eazslly tell" :

-on'Tate of $5 per hun-

lvm ‘credit account?
for: the Ford Mobor

' side j charge
Cwiaesmﬁed onceata Senate hea ng, an

o vamety‘and eoﬁifﬂexity of “financ :
i <>charges for th ]fm, are ‘suchias to almiost def; compreihenslon
‘the average buyer to appraxse ‘the mtesoffered -as comﬁar“
~ available elsewhere. g ; : :

tis ;unpx}ssible for =
wi'th ‘alternatives -

-aep
] otection zblms leglslafmon shonuld i
iy ling. Disclosure must be on a uniform basis for all types
- of credit; so ‘that the consumer can make easy and accurate: oompamson :
: n dlﬂ'arent types of credit available to him. i
‘H.R 11601»d1f§ers‘froin % b alsof‘zb‘ ﬂlhdmgrthose itramsa 1%ons,
»1 \ a,tlonatl C«msume»r&

L semessz'o ol ra@taeach of whab wauld’be emmpt "

 Actually, fairlylarge items would be exempt, up to a,bout $100 For

' ‘many consumers,a large proportion of their purchases would thus be
~exempted from: .the disclosure. For instance, take the purchase of a

$50 chair and 4 $30 appliance:bought for $10 down ‘and 12 monthly

payments of $6.60. The buyer. will pay $89.20—$10 down plus $7 9.20

, thly ayments. The ﬁnam charge is $9.20, T




*‘annual rates on the outstandin;

It is just as m& rtant for consnmers to hawe fu
oty pe ofitransaction as it is for someone wl
of furniture. It is specious to argue that tho T¢ e
sinformation ‘will ‘either make credit unavailab ‘the
cut down significantly on ‘purchases. A constimer needin
«chandise ' will ‘still buy it. He may just look elsewhere fo:
‘arrangements or decide to save up the money and buy for 8
“the poor need help in getting cheaper sources o oredlt, other bvern- o

‘ment programs are already working in this area. : by
- H.R. 11601 would also extend the disclosure requ: ]
- tisement of credit, and the National Consumers (}Jea,gue st»rongly en-f' .
- dorses this provision. Just the other day, on my way to these hearings,
T heard ‘an ad from a finance company urging those harassed by a
iplicity of credit payments to come to them for loan: whic
sufficient'to pay off‘all other.creditors. <+ ' :
~“At'notime was any mention made of how'much the loa would cost,
, ‘nor ‘that the consumer would probably merely be adding onto his t@tal
“indebtedness by the loan. Newspaper ads and store window signs con-
stantly lure customers with so-called easy credit ‘terms( ut ly, it
ever, do they quote interest rates. Advertisements of credi e
_ required to give all the information requi L the
s0 that consumers are not misled into be
By ineluding revolving credityan
and’ providing for truth-in-credit: adve
- for disclosure which will be meaningful; d
the beleaguered consumer in the jungle of today’ s credit World :
~ The National Consumers League Is also in'favor of mcludmg home
: ages in the disclosure provisions of the act Whlle it has been the
‘custom to quote the interest rate on m y s'of th ‘

of the total cost of the mortgag Fo
; edge might well lead to/larger d
emﬂy a}fva,r*e of» the

,ihlgh time some

real estate transactwn g ,

- On thie provision to ”pifohibit*garnis-hméﬁ f wag ;s,“g

' would’ récommend a somewhat different approach. There is no questmn'

-about the devastating effect of garnishment on the lives of many. I

- understand you were given some hair-raising testimony on this last
“Friday when I was, unfortunately, not able to be pr at the he&trr

- ings. We feel that garnishments should be regula 7e’d’ v

~actasa significant deterrent to the present un: . ]

We have no exact fi d but sugggsgt that

, 10 1 % endous cos ime and
our p by garnishment procedures, a,nd hope L
that this committee w111 be'a le to come u Wlt a provision, short of
‘prohibition of igarmshmént which woul own on these costs.
"Merchants should be required to pay, the: courﬁ
‘act as collection agencies for those Who extend
-mdenatao bxhty ofithe :
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us whg d@ pa»f our ,debts. It is umfaw aompahtmn to those who: exj;end
~,,-_ered1t more ca;reful y. I have seen data which show that in some cities,
“ene or two merchants are involved in most of the garnishment p:
“cedures. Restrictions on garnishment should be such as to- make it

unprofitable for merchants to extend credit too loosely. .

The leaguealso endorses the provisions for: establishment of a b1-» '

partisan National Commission on Consumer Finance. We would hope
-that there would be adequate consumer representation on the-Commis-
sion, and that it would look into many ‘of the questlons Whmh have been
‘raised at these hearings. -
.1 The league has no posmmn on the sectlon (i)f H.R; 11601 which deals
_with ‘the regulation of credit for commodity future ﬁdmg This'is
~a-very technical question, which we have not looked inte c&mtﬂy to
formulate a pglcy kewise, we have no position on sta )

credit controls, or on the provision for an 18-percent ceil

sonal feeling-on the latter is that

being a floor as well as alceiling,
o womb ity eommenflpo; e of

r the very serious attentmn that you are gwmg tlns

e for consumers - and Wevare dehghted to have a chance to

resent our: oint ef‘v - het : b :

n attmdanae at these hea, :'ngs for ‘bhe past L

',Mr C»ha,lmlan, my name ‘ ! epals

the Natwnal Gonsumers,League, an or‘gamzatw Which silgce its formation in -
1899 has_concerned. itself both with protection of the consumer and with the
‘the cofisumer to those who- ‘produce the’ g00ds and services which'
swe purchase and use. The League has always operated by first mvestlgatmg the
facts, then: educating its membership and,'when. necessary; campaigning for solu-
‘tions to the problems. Lon  before President Kennedy announced as one of the
four fundamental Tights of the consumer the “right'to be informed”, the League

‘was convinced Fhat only with full informiation could eonsumers be equipped to -

carry out their responsibility to themselves, to their: families, and to; the nation. -
- We are, therefare, very pleased to -appear before you today in support of HL.R.
11601, a bill ‘which would substant;ally 1mprove the consumers right to- ‘be-in-
~_formed.of thé cost of credit. ,
-+ -I'have been tremendously: impresged during these heiairmgs with the fam that

‘there is hardly any dissentas to the desirability and need for enactmentofa '

credit disclosure.
opposition to Truth-in-Lending seemed adamant and almost monolithic, it is as
if a fresh breath of spring has swept through the atmosphere, and ‘we can Tow
~all get dowii 'to working out the details of a bill which will really dothe job.
" 8o I will not take your time to list all the reasons which justify :emactment
_by the Congress of a bill which will bring back more, effective competition in
the lending industry and enable consumers to male g rational choi ce in, this
multi-billion dollar area of expenditures. Instead, I would like to afidress myself
“to ‘the ‘provisions of H.R. 11601 which differ from §. 5 -as it passed the Senate.
‘The National Gonsumers Tweague does mot believe that 8. 5 will provide con-
sumers with the information they really need. Although we are indee leased
_that the Senate has finally passed a-credit bill, and although we understand why
compromises were made in ‘that bill, we are grateful ito you ‘Mrs. Sullivan, and
‘to ‘these othier members of ‘fhe ‘House, for introduding H.R. 11601 and giving
-us another. opportunity o ‘obtain the kind of kﬁaelmme which, will: eliminate
"the confusmg terminology and pm'a@ticesw i;haJt ‘have ansen in the credit industry

1L, After long years of lengthy detailed hearings in which the . -



“Our main. objection to . 5 is that it exempts a large part of revolving credit
transactions frem ‘having to disclose the annual rate. One of the arguments used
to persuade the Senate Committee to exempt this segment of the industry was
that revolving credit constitutes a very small bercentage of all consumer credit;
While this may still be true, the picture is changing every day. As Senator
Douglas pointed out in his testimony before you, the amount of revolving eredit
jumped while: the Proxmire Bill was under consideration. from $3.5 billion to
$5 billion. A member of the banking industry has predicted that in five years
revolving credit will represent 509 of all ‘consumer credit in this country, And:
if -Congress. passes credit legislation which gives revolving. credit: this special
exemption, I predict it will rise even more rapidly. Merchants will be changing
over to revolving credit as fast as they: possibly can. And they could: not be -
blamed for. it, because otherwise, they would be forced to operate under a. law
which discriminated against them in favor of their competitors. SRR
I'was glad to hear the representative of the American Bankers’ Association
say that “uniformity is essential if the consumer is to be given the means by -
which: to compare costs of credit, and if the credit industry is‘to be permitted
to operate with optimum effectiveness.” And. ¥ join him in urging that you
provide a “single, non-diseriminatory system of time disclosure to be uniformly-
-applied to all creditors and all types of credit,” even though I disdagree with
the ABA in their preference for the monthly rate. S, 2 g
Another oft-repeated argument - against -the provision that . revolving eredit
charges be disclosed by an annual rate is that to label a 1149, ‘monthly rate an
189 annual rate would: not be true. T was unfortunately not. able to be present.
when Dr. Wooley presented his tables, but I have heard others who  tried ‘to
make the same pitch—namely, that consumers charged at a 1149 monthly rate
~end up paying less than 189 a: year, and therefore would not be getting the
truth if they were told -the annual credit charge was 189%. But none of these
avid seekers of truth was ever able tto prove that a 1149 monthly rate was any -
truer than the 189 annual rate. o . o ;
Credit costs should be calculated from the date the service charge begins, not
from the date of purchase. If calculated in that way, the annual rate is always 12
times the monthly rate. This is the true basis for the charge, and e don’t have, -
to worry-about the fact that consumers do not all pay at the same time during:
~the period. Actually, if ‘you pay on the first:day after the charge is imposed, you:
may be paying not 189, for.a 1% % monthly charge, but as high as 5409,. Such
examples, of course, are never-given. The important information for the con-
sumer to know is the annual rate at which the. charge is calculated, and when it
begins. The-ABA,witness,suggested;,that ‘the monthly rate would give the con-
sumer all the information he needed for comparing eredit costs because “he could
easily conyert the monthly rate into an annual charge simply by multiplying by
twelve” (p. 6). It really is that easy, and it should not be any harder for:.the
~extender of credit to make that multiplication than for the consumer to do-it.
Let’s not' mislead. the ‘consumer - into thinking he is getting cheap- credit ‘by
quoting a low monthly rate. : Rt Lot S : Gt
I have there a bill which. is issued by.one of the stores in this area which uses’
revolving credit. As you can see on the reserve side of the monthly statement,
there 'is an explanation. In the lower left hand corner it states very clearly, “No
service charge if payment in full received within thirty days of billing date.”
Item 4, on-the right; states that the service-chdrge is “114 % of tlie balance at the
beginning of the monthly billing period.” H.R. 11601 would: require only one
change—viz, that the Service Charge also be. stated as 189 per year. It would
be very easy forithis-store to make this ¢hange, and the new figure would be just:
as true ay the one they now use. We feel it is important that the;charge be; stated:

that the eonsumer could then compare: .credit costs from- different sources of
credit. 'When I deal with this merchant, I have two choices. T ean pay off the.
entire‘amount: within 30 days of billing date and pay no service charge; oriI ¢an
elect to defer payment and incur the charge. If I do not have the cash, before I
. can make an intelligent decision as to whether I should use the merchant’s credit
plan, or take the money out: of a savings dceount, o' borrow the money from a
credit union and pay before: the credit period starts, I must know the relative:
costs of these procedures. ‘If I'm: getting: only 49, for:my savings inca ‘savings
loan institution, it ‘would be foolish to pay 18% for the use of eredit at the storey
But how do you. compare 4% advertised by the savings institution with 134 %
» stated ‘by. the store? What consumer: could easily tell whether it is: cheaper to:




" ig not in fact true:

o ‘sddion ratéof $5 per $100, or 1jo% 8 month onithe revolv-
~ ‘account? A former Vice!President in ' ; : the

Motor Conipany testi tua Sehate Hearing onee,““The variety and complexity
of findnce and insurance arrangements, and the ebarges for them; are such as to-
' “defy comprehen “is impossible for the average buyer to appraise

. offered, as compared with alterngtives available Bl
he Commmittee, there are over: $5 :bil e no
To give the fastest:growingsegment of consumer credit preferential
roul . ofily be diseriminatory legislation (including a ‘Mont=
‘and exem ‘t;in‘ngjearsiRoebuck;vin'vcluding a bank but-exempting
sre) it ' weuld stri OW A art of the protection
ctén m; basis for:

ontracts’ each:
‘iexempt, up’

3 ed from the
. 0 0 -chair dnd «a $80 appliance-
© bought:ifor $10 . 2'm iynients of '§6.607 The buyer: will ‘pay
$89.20"($10' down plus'$79:20 i :'inonthly‘payHienfés:).}’L“hﬂafﬁn&naechlarge is $9.20.
te of inter n the $70 credit comes to over 269; but since the total
interest charge is:les an. $10, this rate would not have to be disclosed under .
. the provisions ‘of 8. 5.'It is justias impc rtant for consumers to have full infor-
_mation in this type ‘of transaction’ as it'is for ‘someone who buys- an: expensive. .
. suite of furniture. It is specious to argue that the requirement to give such in-
“formation: will elther make credit unavailable to the poor; or will'cut down
ntly on' purchases. . er: nieeding the merchandise: will still ‘buy
/ credit arrangements or decideto save up
' ielp in- getting cheaper sources

S THLR. 116 ) : e @ uirements to advertisement
of credit, ‘and'the ational Consumers League strongly endorses this provision:
Just the other day, on my way to these heavings; I heard an ad from a finance
company urging ithose harassed by & multiplicity of eredit payments: to:come to
_them for a lean which would ‘be sufficient to pay off all other creditors. At'no
 time was any’mention made of how much the loan would cost, nor that the
consumer would ‘probably merely be adding on to his total-indebtedness by the
loan; Newspaper ads -and store ‘window signs constantly:lure customers with so-
~called easy credit terms, but rarely, if ever, .do they quote interest rates. Ad '
tisements of credit should be required to give all the inforination required:

the 'actualtransac “so that consumers-are not misled ‘intd b ":"’hg what

ving credit, andall -jtt"ansactioﬁs;lafgeg nd small, and pro-
¢, HUR; 11601 proyides for disclost re which
ous value to the beleaguered consumer in the:

By including revolving
viding for truth in credit advert
will be meaningful, and of treme
: jmé}gh}e of today’s credit world. =

. 'The National Consuniers League also in £ ’i*blf’of,,ihéiﬁding «homé mortgééesf "
in the disclosure provisions of the Acti While it istom to quote the .

r 1 v has been the
_interest rate on mortgages in terms of the simple annual rates on
_ing balance, coiiumers rarely are. aware of the total cost of the mortgage. For

“ rnany home buyers; such Xknowledge might well lead ‘to larger down spayments.

‘buyers generally aware of the many charges they face at-time of

‘eloquently urged: by Mr. Barr:earlier in these hearings; it is.

. hair-raising testimony on this last Friday whe T was, unfortunately, not able

' ‘hearings: We feel that garnishments should be: regulated

to' bet present at'th
i’ such a‘'way s toac

fas Asignificant deterrent to'the present unwise extension

finance for the Ford

‘ofl the eutstand-
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of credit. We'have no exact figure to recommend but suggest that only a-small
Dercentage of a wage-earner’s salary. should :ever be taken in garnishment action.
‘We are well aware of the tremendous cost in time and personnel of our courts
taken up by, garnishment procedures, and. hope that this Committee. will be able
to come up with :a provision, short of prohibition of garnishmient which would
cut down on these costs. Having our courts act as collection agencies for those
-who extend credit without any consideration of"the ability of the buyer to pay
i3 ‘a costly burden on all of us who do pay our débts. It is unfair competition
to those who ‘extend credit more carefplly. Restrictions on garnishment should
be such as to make it unprofitable for merchants to extend credit.too loosely,
The League also endorses the provisions for establishment 0f a bi-partisan
National Commission on Consumer Finance, We would hopeé that there would
be adequate consumer representation on the . Commission, .and that it ‘would .
look into.many of the questions which have been raised at these heari e
The League has no position on the section of H'R. 11601 which . Jeals
regulation of credit for commodity futures trading. This is a-very technical qi ¢
tion, which' we have not looked into sufficiently to formiilate ‘a policy. Likewise,
we have no: pesition on stand-by: consumer credit: contro 801 onthe provision:
for an 189, ceiling. My personal feeling on the latter. is that is might easily:
result in 18% being a floor as well as a ceiling. i : o e
We wish to commend you, Mrs. Sullivan, and all the members of this Subcom-
mittee, for your serious efforts to get an effective consumer eredit bill: As Mrs.
Dwyer said, your econcern must be the welfare of -the ‘American consumer, his
right to full information and to protection against what is deceptive and mis-:
leading. We feel that the prov, sions of H.R. 11601 which we have endorsed would -
~achieve that objective. The National Consumers” League thanks you for the
opportunity to présent its view on this legislation.’ SEOTIR AT s
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Mrs. Surtivay. The next witness-is Dr. James Wooley to dlscuss

the approximat@y.mmal;pgmeménge; rate on revolving charge.
© STATEMENT OF J. W. WOOLEY, NEW YORK, NY.

Mr. Woorny. Thank you, Madam Chairman. - o . .=
First let me apologize for appearing again. My colleague who was
" due to appear was unable to come and T'm a last minute fill-in. There-
fore’,"I'(E)- not have a prepared statement and I am sorry for this.
Mbs. Surzivan: You are welcome to explain the chart, which is a
- different one fr?mthe’ one you presented last week. =~~~ .
~ Mr. Woorpy. T would like to read a couple of paragraphs ai
marizewithit. . o i
My testimony is restricted to the problems of calculating an annual
effective percentage’ rate for service charges under the terms of the
bill. In order to determine the applicability of this provision of the
bill to actual customer transactions, a sample of 40 customer accounts
was drawn from a department store. s
‘The annual percentage rate under the bill was calculated on the
 Dbasis of the customer’s balances, periods of time covered ard service
charges imposed. A year’s history was developed for each customer,
coverin% transactions from February 1,1966, to January 81, 1967
The illustration which T used last week was drawn from one of these
40 accounts selected from this sample. e i
~ The sample was randomly selected, with about 20 customer records
taken from the beginning of the alphabet and the remainin records
- chosen from the alphabetical segment beginning with the %etter R.
The initial sample included 42 records, one of ,vw%ich was eliminated
because no transactions were conducted during the year and another
was eliminated due to an apparent machine malfunetion in calculating
service charges. This left 40 usable customer records. =~ .
‘Finance charges are one and a half percent a month calculated on the
opening monthxfy balance. - Vi b : ‘
The finding of the calculations were arranged by annual
charge rate. They reveal some interesting findings. For exampl

is a wide “scatter” of rates, so that no single rate can be des
“representative.” The range is from 19-plus percent for one acco
to zero finance charges for four accounts. The latter are due to the
use of the 30-day option privilege to eliminate finance charges. -
Looking at the annual service charge rate incurred most often, there
is again no clear picture. Five customers paid 16-plus percent, while

- four: customers paid 17 -plus percent, four paid 14-plus percent and
. four didn:otpa{E rany finance charges. = S
~ The impossibility of pinpointing one true annual service charge
- rate for all customers is reflected in this sample and supported by tl%g
followingpoints: . i
- Mrs. Suzuvan. When E)B’Opleﬁ don’t pay any rate at all, that is per- -
" fectly understandable—they pay their bill on time and don’t have to
- pay aservice charge. , E ‘ o
~ Mr. Woorzy. I would agree with you. - et
 Mrs. SuLuvan. But if it is a charge of 1% percent and it is for 1 of -
12 months in a year it is still 18 percent. - i r

|
i
!
i
{
i :
é’
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©Mr. Woorey. No, Madam; it is not. It is not 18 percerit, because re-

- gardless of the fact that the individual pays this, it 15 not. The fact still
remains he is making use of the store’s money or funds until such time
as he does pay his bill. The store is paying, carrying him in essence and
so there is a charge to the store for letting him use it whether or not he
pays it or not. ; ;

Mrs. Surrivan, That has been done forevermore—the department
stores have done this as long as they have been in business. It is to
encourage the customer to come in and do more buying, knowing they

~don’t have to pay for it until the end of the month. ' > &

Mr. Woorey. No question about it, but the fact still remains that the
store is still carrying the individual. ' -

The rate as compared to an annual true rate, under H.R. 11601, this
is the rate which would be reéquired on the statements of the retail es-
tablishment as thel}; issue. This charge shows you actual rates paid for
by customers in the store, in this particular storeé. These are the 40
accounts. They range from zero to slightly above 19 percent.

Let me emphasize: ; v ,

1. No customer paid 18-plus percent, the presumed annual rate if the
114, percent monthly charge were to be multiplied by 12, as the bill
suggests.

2. Nearly half of the accounts paid less than 10 percent.

3. Three-fourths of the accounts paid less than 15 percent.

4. Four persons, or 10 percent of those sampled, did not incur any
finance charges, although transactions were ma(?e. :

If you insist on‘requirin%1 people to say that they are charging 18
percent, these individuals who actually ‘paiZi less than 18 percent would
be deceived if they went to other sources and paid charges at higher
than the rate, that you would actually be doing & disservice to such a
consumer rather than a service by telling him he is paying 18 percent
‘when in reality he is paying a much lower percent. This is a randomly
selected sample. ‘ ' :

It was not drawn out simply to illustrate our point. It was drawn out
on an impartial basis and as a result of this drawing we calculated these
percents. I think the illustration is very elear' and points out again the
impossibility of stating in advance the 18-percent figure.

Thank you. ' s

Mrs. SvnLivan. Mr. Fino?

Mr. Fino. What is the highest figure you have there?

- Mr. WoorLry.:19.4. ’ B ! £ ,
- Mr. Fixo. Can you give us an illustration of that type of account?

Mr. Woorey. I think I could fall back to Mrs. Newman’s comment
where she said if an individudl happened to pay the day afterthe
service ¢harge were imposed it cou}g go as high as 540 percent.

The fact is that this customer happened to ;;a‘y just a little bit ahead
of the billing cycle and as a result went s i%\htly over 18 percent.
What does happen, though, as illustrated by this chart, most people
do not pay in that manner. Most people are around the 10-percent

cafls&gm*y.gi ‘ 3 : ) e St
Mrs. Sovriavan. Let us go back to Mr. Kimball’s charge account

billing record. . i SRS s T
Here he givesan example on the monthly or35-day statement which
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 _says.if youn bill. rea,ches 4 evert.am ameunt you mush, pay. a certam
amoutat edch month;
Now, do all of the stores»fmm Whlch you took these 40 exam les tha.t
you have on the chart—and I am not referrmg to.Mr. Klmbaﬁ)is store,
for:he has. alﬁeady answered this for his: store—but do the others in
their revolving charge accounts tell each customer how much they have
to pay a month? .
‘MI};WOOLEX Td the best of - m knowledge, and Mr. Clanca, who
. wasnit; here is here now, he is proga,bly better qualified to answer.this
quesblon than I am—but;to the best of my knowledge most stores re-
(quire 'a:eertai %1 minimum, payment .as the balance reachesdifferent
dollar levels he minimum paymem; that I has been famlhar wlth is
2 $10 minimum pﬁnfmomr A
- Mirs.SULLIVAN |

\\\\\

accoynts n. every store )
- Louisa Very; hmgten and I, have never had, one
~of them tell me how much 1 haye to. pay; a. month S
Mr. KIMBALL.. Maadam Chalrman’l : e

Mrs. Surrvan. Mr. Kimball.” ,

My. Krmpars, The purpose of this—- ‘

- Mrs, Surrivay. L see your purpose. You are telhng the people what
they have to do.

Mr. KiMBALL. i\ihlfs is to encourage them to bring the total amount
outstanding down ost, retailers, when they allow credit to different
people. put, ceilings on. what, then' ablhf,ty tq pay is. We “don’t want
them to get overindebted tous. = .

If a person should say,- start: chﬁr,glng $100 a, month and makmb

$15 paymentsiand, contipue to charge $100 a month, at the end of 5

or 6 months he would be up to $400. or $500. He would be extended
over 24 months, ma,ybe, and we don’t, want to get involved with our
aceounts and most reputable mercham:s don’t want to get involved with
theirt accounts, 80 as.the, ba&an@e goes,up we encourage them to pay
more so they Wlll be more open to buy and come back and do. more
‘ﬁhO plngb _s e vy et

Themain purpose f the servi :;charge is to encourage them to pay
fa,ster and we find this.is actual practice, .,

Mrs. S‘ULLIV]AN. Are.there any other retail men in the audlence who
have any knowlea%e about the practice of other stores in. telhng cus-
tomers how much they should pay each month (e ;

(Noresponse.);

Mr. StePHENS. I am not a retall man but in the years 1 have been
‘paying this money, I know that everyone that I have, received—a bill
like one, from Sears, Roebuck carries ithat on the back-and I believe
most of them carry the minimum amount and tell you exactly what you
are required to pay in- order to. stay m busmess, Most ef the: b1lls that
I have had do give that information.. : - -, .

7 llllrs SULLIVAN Thavenever seen it on, a.Sears or' Montgomety;Ward
1 I d Dty
- Me. KIMBALL You had a w1tness here ;from the dlSCOunt deparb-
ment store in Boston recently, and in their credit apphcatlen they
,hwe something very similar to this, only their mqmrement is'a 10'to 1
mtlo where my minimum is 6 to 1. N
- This form: thab e have is cepied, from G‘rlmbel’ Sdn. N,ew York
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. M. Sviravan: Is that,on the monthly invoice-or is that just on the
formthe customers fill out-when they signup? - .. -~ 55
. Mr. Krmsarr. The discount department store that testified here at
your committee has it on their application and also has it on the forms

like this, that they have it throughout the store and give it to custom-
ers.-As a.matter of fact, I took the time to go into this store in Boston
and tried to apply for a charge account and this is the information
they. gave me. They spoke nothing of an.annual rate at all. They
just told' me what my monthly rate would be and how much the

_payment would be required:if I bought a sewing machine or radio or

 televisionrand it-varies./Some stores have a 10-to-1 ratio, some have.a

1240+l Tatio; Ours happens to be 6-to-1 ratio. - oy
swMrs; Susrivan. Did yougo inthere before——
‘M. Krmeari: This was a month or so.ago.
- Mprs. SunLrvan. Mr. Willett Smith was in
mere’s in:Cambridge. = = ; Cstonsge :
- Mr. Kimsarwn. This is the store that I am referring to. 8

Mrs. Svrnivan. He showed us where they do show an 18-percent

annual percentage rate on their statements. o i

Mr. Kimparr, It is on their application but I went in as a cus-
tomer. I didn’t go in as Mr. Smith: I went in as a customer. for the
purpose of buying an appliance and the clerk told me to go to the
credit, department which I did. They gave me a form, an application
form which in very condensed:type on the left-hand side did state, not
in numbers but in letters the words “18 pereent” spelled out.

On the right-hand’ side of the application was this information,
similar to what we have done here and the girl taking my credit ap-
plication told me that my payments should: %e at this rate which was

- one and ‘a‘half percent of the unpaid balance. She said nothing about

18 percent. i s e e e bl
- "Mr, Wynre. Will the Chairman yield?

Mrs. Svrivan. Mr. Wylie. -~ o0 i ,

‘Mr. Wyniz. I have a question for anyone. Perhaps Dr. Wooley should

- respond because he has been referring to it. It might be more appro- .

_ priate. o ; s T

» C%uld not each seller using revolving creditstate an average annual
ratebaoibn wo o apnni ot we et e e b s :
oMr. Woorey. I think«—-—. 2/ P e s T

* Mr. WyLe. What I am thinking here is, the:Chairman has indicated
that revolving accounts set up on the basis of 114 percent per month
should state interest:rates on the basis of an:annual rate of 18 percent.
You say that is not possible. Is it possible to show an average annual
rate In each store? I T R ey

Mr. Woorey. This could be calculated for'prior year periods. I have
no doubt about that. We do have some slig%t samples of this and it
comes out around 10 to 11 percent as the actual rate that is paid. Some-
thing that could:be worked out but it:would have to be historical. It
would not tell a customerin advance what he had paid. caromATy

 Mr. Wy, I was thinking it might be done from the previous year’s

‘,{LC@:OHntS:?’, i i ‘ gt Pt e M e o

‘Would it be possible for a member of this committee or a member
of the staff of this committee to go into a store to check accounts to
demonstrate this is not a stacked deck? ~

here -Mona’a.y from I;;ech;
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*“ Mr; Kinparr. T livein Portsmouth, N.H. We are on the New Hamp-
shire seacoast; we have delidious lebsters.'I would be most happy to
invite you as eur guests to Portsmouth to a nice shore dinner and I
would take you into my store. We have 7,000 charge accounts. They
make 200 payments :?e'r ‘day; they have 4,000 charges per day, entries
made. We cannot tell prior to anybody’s account when they are going
- to eome in to buy anything, make a charge. We cannot tell when they
‘are going to make atpa“ﬁfment. They can make it on the 23d day or 32d
day. We never know when the collections are going'to come in. =
fﬂ is impossible prior, as your bill requires, the explanation, and I
note also your defiriition on page 6 of “annual.pereentage rate”—says
- U.S. rule by an actuarial method. I assume that is what we learned in
grammar school. That means on the ‘per diem basis. Ff the:customer
‘makes five payments during the course of a month-—they pay by the
week—it is impossible for me to know whether they are going to pay
me $2, $5, or $10 and tell them any percentage rate according to the
way this bill reads and, as a matter of fact, in my store it wouldn’t be
18 ﬁ@ercant anyway. . 1 A e
~ Mrs. Sutuivan. I am going to let Mr. Wylie have his time now ; we
awil all have time toiquestion. SIS wy PR »
I would just like to reply to what you said though, by pointing out
- that we don’t know how much interest we are going to get when we put
money in a bank, either, because we don’t know at that time how long we
- are going to leave it in. They tell us they are going to pay us so much but
_ it all dependsion what wedo. ‘ o o
- *‘Mr, KimBatr. If you take your money out of the bank you don’t get
any interest. But'if you do put it in the bank on a certain day they tell
‘you if you put it in by the 10th of the month or by the 1st they will
‘pay you 414 percent providing ydu leave it in"for 8 menths or 6 months.
- This is something they tell you you are going to do. But it is impos-
- sible—I have been down to the Douglas hearings and Proxmire hear-
. ings and I asked the committee—I am mest willing to explain to my
 customers in thedanguagéithey can understand and disclose all of the
- information if your-will just tell me how to:de it. Nobody hasbeen able
to tell me or any other merchant how to compute it. :
- Mrs. Surrivan. Mr. Wylie? et el n s s kg
‘Mr. Wyrie, Would you have objection to stating in dollars and
cents in cash how much a customer has paid out over a year’s period
in interest and/or service charges? -~
 The point of my question is this: I doubt if stating an interest rate
 on'a monthly basis or.an-annual basis is very meaningful to most cus-
~ tomers. And-showing ¢harges in dollars and cents, in eash, how much

they have paid out is much more meaningful.

- What weuld be your feeling about that : L
. Mr. Kimarz, I think the consumers, when they are trying to buy
- something, they areitrying—let’s say they are buying a dress—they are
primarily interested in whether;the dress fits, whether the material is
what they want, how goodt looks on thém, and then they are going to
buy the dress; They are not interested in the rate of interest at that
point. They are buying the dress which they like. However, whetr they
et the hilbatihome at the end of the month they want to be able to
pare out whab the service charge of 88 eentis was on their bill.

1o
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- Why was the 38 cents? And the. Aaverage consumer can multiply t,he
ending balance by one and a half—if they owed us $25, multiply that
by 11/2 and 1t comes out. to 38 cents and they. know they haven’t been
gypped at all. This is what they want to know.:

- Mr. WywLie. Bui; th@ point is they Want to know the amount———38

cents.

. Mr. Kivpazs. That's why on our’ invoice we tell them this.

Mr, Wyrie. They want fo know how much they pald out, 1ot the
percentage.

- Mr. Kimearr. On the i mvm,ce We swy balance due, $25, sm:vme charge
38 cents, new purse, something else, And the new ending balange.

r. Wywe. I have just been handed a, U.S. savings bond, a series.
E bond and on the back of it it says if you hold itito ma,turmy ‘youget
$100. It is a $75. bond which returns. an interest of 4, 15 percent. But if
you cash it at the end of the first half year you get $75; no interest, in

“other words if you cash the bond between ¥1e first half of the year to
the first year, $75.84 is paid. That is meamngful Tth umounts to lper-
~cemt, a,pprommatel

I don’t think it would have much meamng if they ]ust smd 1 pement
I thlnk we are getting more actual knowledge if we 'say how.much
you’re actually receiving or. how much you pay out in dollars and
cents.

Mr. Kimparr. We state to the customer what the service cha;rge is.
-each month and we tell them how we computpeit, pid

Mr. Wywiz. Thank you, Madam Cha,lrman.

Mrs. SuLvivan. Mr. Bingham?

Mr. Bineaam. Thank you, Madam Cha.lrma,n

First of all, I would like to join in compllmentlng the mtnesses
I have great respect and. admiration for Mr., Keyserling and- have
known him for many years and I think he is one of the most. provoea-

- tive and imaginative commentators on economies‘of our time. :

-~ I am also glad to see Mr. Edelman and Mr. Hutton here. They do a
splendid ;wb and L. ha,ve enjoyed Workmg with them on various.
‘matters,

T would Tike to direct my questlons to Dr. Wooley, hoWev&r

Dr. Wooley, I take it your position essentially is that 18 peroent is:

. not an accurate statement of an annual applied rate, but, if that ig so,,

~why isn’t it just as inaccurate to say 14 percent a month@

Mr. Woorey. We coverad this in quite ‘a bit-of detail when I was
bere. But the point is, When you try to annualize a figure you are
assuming a percentage ‘rate on an annualized basis, the service charge
is simply a charge applied at a point of time. It does not take into ac-
count i;at has occurred before or after that time-—only as it applies
to the balance at that point in time. One and a half percent. on the
beginning balanee does not take into account what has occurred before
that got to that balance or in mest oases What owufrr:ed asfter 1t g@t to
that balance.

That is an entirely different thing: t,hmn statfmg 18 Wcam ;

Mr. Binesam. I understanid what you say. But the fact is that some
of the stores refer to it as @& 1l4-percent monthly charge. I presume
you would. have to agree. thwh 14 perecent doesn't represent: the earned
interest or the yield but it is the applied charge.

83-340—67—pt. 2——8
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t iy aippliedcha,r ' yes.v
£ iMr‘ Hann: breu ht ‘this’peint ou ,
M. Brnamam. 5 is not the' yleld In the same ,
percent is th a,pphed ‘¢harge on an annual’b L3 ol
Mr. Woorzey. I think Mr. Bin mﬁlm’ the problem comes in the other
areas where you have an installment contract. What you are st&tlhg
is an effectiveiinterest rate and this is what you are after. -
If you want to be consistent you have got to be able' to apply an
effective rate for the revolving credit account, too. You ‘can’t state
_to the retailer; you have to state yourself on an applied rate while

_ theYothers are’ eetabilshing theirs on an effective rate. This w111 tgon-

fuse the consum’er, won'’t help him. °
Mr./‘Bineuam, This is what you want to dd You Wa,nt to. ﬁate the
charge & an applied rate on a’ ‘monthly basis but’ ‘you don’t want to
‘multiply ‘that by ‘12 becafuse 18 percent looks 9; lot; 1gher than 1%_
ercent.
A Mr.: WOOLEY T am not sayifip' that 4t all. We are usmg the applied
rate, not an effective rate and if you make it appear that it is an effec-
tive fate rather than an apphed you are gomg to confuse people, not\
gomg to help them. *

‘Mr. Brvemam. The bill can indicate that it is *the apphed rate that
is required to be stated and I think it should and it shouldn’t indicate
anything about the actual yield. That is quite unpredictable—I agree
with you there. You can’t possibly state that either beforehand or
after. But you can state accurately what the apphed rate is. ,

Mr. Woorzy. In that case Mr. Bingham, how is a consumer to com-
pare interest rates? What possible chance can he have if he is appl‘ymo'
m applied rate versus an effective rate on another contract?

' Mr. Binewir. /Between store‘s he can compare what he is g g tO\
Yo paymg ' : ~ B e

Mr. - KiMBAtL, nWhat is my’ rabe*‘l v :

Mr. Binguahe, As: you inidicated it is 114 percent on'h o5-fdhy period
T don’t know if thet comes: outt equally or'evenly for a year. " ;

Mr. KIMBAL?L There are 52 Weeks in a year and we send out bllls
every 5 weeks. :

Mr. :BineuaMm. Why do you use a 35 day period ? fopif

~ Mr. Krmsarr, The principal reason we went into 'this was When
the 3-cent stamp went into the 4-cent stamp and the 4-cent stamp went
to' the 5-cent ‘stamp and now you people are taking it up to 6 cents.

- Our: billing costs are going up ‘constantly. When you think how
much it costs for the plece of paper and envelope and the girls’ time
to make the Statement'and’ do her posting, if I can send out 10 state-
ments instead of 12 statements a year T think I have miade a savitigs
of: almost 16 percent in billitig costs and now you want to pass'a la,w

to make me tell 'my customers something that isn’t true at all !
. ' Mr. Bingmam. My time has expived. / Sl B

Mrs, Svriivan. Mr. Halpern? = L _ L Thikd

Mr. Harrery. Madam' Chairman, 107 0 '

- First, T'would like to compliment our: dieﬁmgulshed pahel *bhls morn-
ing on:their valuable presentations which:T am sure will contribute
- .greatlyto this nommlttfee’s eﬂ*erts to come up w1th meammgfui legisla—
tion. 3

|

}
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- Icommend you and certainly. weloomeyow:
~Mrs. Newman raised an:i ¥ = m&g{g
that t ‘ ed.an: interssting p
i ta}l: ti,t% peitan initerest; monthly int
tatement of 18 percent anni :
th%} rightt 0 18 poroent annuslly could
~ Mrs. Newman. What I said Wé,s, tha,:: th\é'- 18
than the 1 percent, and actually, it is what we srob
what we have to pay that we wan# tok: :
. Mr. Haveern. Since Sears, Roebu
would like to ask whether:it istrue that v
monthly or annual interest is mentioned
- Can yowanswer that possibly 4., i+
‘Mr. Woorey. I received a bill fro
- Mr, Hareerx, If this is not so;is
retailing? : Gy
_ Mr. Woorey. With the permission of the chairn
introduce Mr. Cianca who is an expert in retailing
fqr a number of retail clients who can answer the qu
directed and which is also related, He is: itting
me. I would like to have him answer the
Mr. Cranxca. Thank you. All invoicesion rev.
114 percent. It also will state wh .
They will have opening charge; new pur
They also will state what 1s requirec
on a revolving credit term. Each custo
~ poses and the store tells'the lady she ma,
over a period, 6 months,say. . e, R
If she pays one-sixth each month She,can 't
So the $100 goes as revolving credit, She bu
pays. Those terms are spelled out on the s
Tt is also spelled out in the application
in for her credit. A e
This is pretty generally true of all ti
Mr. Harpern. Isn’t she allowed to
and buy ? N
Mor. Cranca. Not on her credit. She isigiven the cre
1f she goes over it they will stop her buying. 1f;she p
the first month if she pays one-twelfth of that hund
may buy that again. If she doesn’t:pay that,
until the $100 is down. She can only buy up
Mr. Hazeery. May I go back to Dr. ‘Wooles
Mr. WonazL, Will the gentieman yie
Cianca a questlon. 1. rois 4
Iy son and my ‘son-in-law, who .l

places, have told me about, their exp,erienéés,_

trying to establish a, norma credit account

aceount, On two different occasions they made
account and they never received approval' g
purchased some furniture, with thef_u;;lcller
pay within 30 days. Fle was billed and the b
revolving fund account, was. established-—n:
up by the store. My son-in-law had gxactly:
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o . e yod.
/‘1 t(»;“étz{biiSh' a normal credit' account:. T'hey bolﬂéei‘ecetl)\lfli %}%ey'
ri(:,s they can prove their credit standmg comp ve e };;ith L ey
&1‘7”6 no’t been able to establish a normal credit account with ,
1l ; : :
Roebuck. ! i
' ciewlgiﬂd like to haxie ltill'lle answer. v
‘ A | t know. . . - .
1\‘l\ég" %?1?1\?:1,5 ('.llovl‘lrill furnish you the documentation of it. The whole

’ . , )
ion i ing to have a revolving account or not. |
questloréls,}ftﬁ y(())gx-%gr? gstores have an option accour&o Wl}gzg}g you
’>h Me';r.theli)ptic;n to use the revolving credit or pay 0 1p ys.
s adam Chairman ¢ : :

i 1\1\%11: KIMI}‘A% you_are given credit to use either the révoleillg-

|

ycfu ‘have any kind of normaleredit aceount that

WIDNAL Jou | h
esn’t end up as amvolving account ? : :
K %g CV)\ITANGA 1t is pessible to delay payment beyond 30 days with-
eing charged interest? .
ou};sgﬁm et a; i Sears, particularly, Idon’t know.

= Mrp Kimparfl.. Madam Chairman.
- ““Mr.Haveery. Twill yield further. '
. Mr. Krmearsn. In Kimball’s store when they come in and apply for
a credit account we ask them to fill out the application, we give them
© this form, We tell thepethere is only one type of charge account
~ we have. Tt isl kn as an optional credit account. They can do
hat they wang-with it. They can pay in 35 days, we give them 5.
‘grdce over most stores and there is no service charge ever put
on- their account. b s i ¢ :
- If they-want{te extend it into 6 months or 12 months payment plan,
thatis thé’fn—opgg)n. We do tell them, as Mr. Cianca said, we do put a
ceilin%on their| account. We tell them they can go to $200, $500, $100,
and when they get up there and start going over it our eredit manager-
will call them and tell them they will have to make bigger payments.
to get-their oul standing amount down. We only have one account
and to my knowledge Sears, Roebuck has only one type of account,
i wﬁél‘ th%:t is the optlolnal. / ' £
50,11 you want the option o ying in 30 days you pay in 80 da S..
- Mr. Wionarr. T would cermi?lly t}{fink that_}; gersg)rr };vho”" ay pl:lyes:
for eredit at & store fills out a formal credit appheation, ‘and does it
- twice, two diff ent; times ‘over a period of months,” would" at ‘ledst
- be entitled to an answer from the store at one point or amother,
“Mr. Kimparw, T agree with you. They are entitled to an answer
should be explained clearly. My girls are instructed to explain to
deh and every customer who applies just exactly how this works.
As far as I khow they @6 a satisfactory job because we ‘don’t get

~ tell 1he and yet the law requires in M h that she s ’
telltrme 13 b, W req assachusetts ;th;a‘tt v_she} should
_ Mrs. SULLIVAN. Mr. Cianca, there is' some confhision ‘here about
- your affiliation. We thought you were from Sears biit, apparently,,
| [ \ ! k '
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you are not. Would you introduce yourself for the record, and tell
us who you represent? e Y

Mzr. Craxca. I am a partner in the New York office of Touche, Ross,
Bailey & Smart. ean Lo Cimeiians

Mr. Haveern. Mr. Cianca, if this customer was’stogped at $100 and
she is paying 114 percent, isn’t that 18 percent a year?. = - P

- Mr. Crawca. %ou are going to get me involved in the applied and
effective rate. It is applied at 18 percent. The effective rate would be
something different. All I say is, you take my 114 percent on the $100,
at that period—my billing 1s usually on the 17th of a month. When
I get my bill on the 17th of the month, that 114 percent is applied
to the balance. That is an applied rate, that 114 percent,

Mr. Haveern. T would like to go back to Dr. Wooley if T may.

Dr. Wooley, I listened to your presentation and it may be that no
one customer paid 18 percent per annum on their revolving accounts.
How many of those customers actually paid 114 percent per month?

- Mr.Woorey. I don’t have that answer—115 pereent on their monthly
balance? All of those but four who paid zero percent had some service
charge account attached. Exactly how many payments I don’t know.

T can’t recall. There are 40 records with a multiplicity of items.

Mr. Hateern. Mr. Kimball; T would like—incidentally, I would
like to thank Mrs. Newman for her emphasis on what is probably the
major point to bear in mind in térms of annual rate on revolving credit
accounts; that is, whatéver arguments can be mustered against a
statement of an 18-percent annual rate would apply equally to the
11/4-percent monthly rate. o SN

Now, ‘Mr. Kimball, first, on what grounds can youw suggest that
114 percent is‘more accurate when the validity of this rate will also
depend completely on the time limit of purchases and payments and
is 1t not true that if the purchaser is paying 114 percent a month he is
also paying 18 percent a year? : G :
- If he is not paying 18 percent a year neither is he paying 14
percent per month. T ‘ e .
- Mr. Kivsars. In answer to the first'question, I think what we ti
do ‘as merchants is to serve our customers and ‘explain to them ‘it
language they can understand. Now, we have many customers éach
‘day in our store and so does every store in the ¢ountry, and they can
find fault with the paper bags, they can find fault with the way zippers
are put in, they can find fault with the way certain things last or gar-
ments wear, and we try to make every operation with our éustomeér
so that we don’t'get:into any arguments with them. = Fe

By sayig 114 percent per month, a customer can understand this,
We tell them we are going to put a service charge on their account
and whatever their ending balance is, we multiply that by 114 percent
and we say service charge, 38 cents on a $25 balance. This a customer
can understand. ; G N e

Secretary Barr came to the Senate hearing with a table like this.

I don’t think any of the Senate committee could ever understand it.

Mrs. Surrivax. Mr. Kimball, he didn’t apply that to revolving
charges. I want tokeep the record straight. -~~~ .
~ Mr. KimBar. How can you explain to a customer that yot are
charging him 18 percent when you are not charging him 18 percent
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" dhd the ma]orlty of the cases this char(z shows that 39 out of 4:0 cases‘ :
never even reached 18 percent ? : :
- ~Mrs. SurLivan. Mr. Keyserling, T wonder: 11’ you, asa dlstmgulshed
- economist, would want to get into this and comment on thae 11/2 perc
- monthly‘rate a&agamst 18 percent a year:: ; e
: Mr KE LING. ould hke to ¢ mment on it ug’
; futsed Jf)y some

p ik
Tt seeins to me that a very s;tmple and elem’enta,ry proposition 1s m-» :
: volved in'the proposed legislation. : :
. It I buy a Government bond or if I deposit money in the ank and g
they tell me they are going to pay me 3 percent per annum, com-
goundedi semiannually, they can also tell me how much I w111 get 1f
leave it there a year, . ; S amle sy
L it is perfectly tru& that nelthex t 01{«:1 ‘l,m(lw What,Ia am
o gomg to get, because I might, cash it in ;or1 mght miss out: on
a Semmxmual aompmmdm 1 or 2 days, and so forth, It is simply
telllng me on yeaa : Is ‘Wha_}ﬁ this,fm

- Now, if I bormw money in the formx of gettmg consumer goods on
credlt, and,I, art out at a 115-percent monthly interest rate, I am
_at an 18-percent, annual rate, and not all the spinning of
. s around all the needle points in the world can destroy that fact.:
- And this plain truth has. nothing to do with. the fact that very few

customers may pay. the 18 percent, because most of them liquidate the
_ debt before the year is out. That has nothing to do. wlth it If they were:
charged 8 pareént amonth, they ought to be told they-are bein

- at the herrendous rate of 96 percent : and it w

eharges It is very ea,sy to et mto
all attention to:the faet that the
ays mterest on the national debt.
4, -call it servicing the national debt. So,
gem%onom ' @&ncept 18- ho ‘much it costs to borrow
r th it; to finance Government programs or
b ‘ or w ther hey borro, finanee consumer up-.
o chases What hlts them economically, what takes money out of their -
pocket, is how much it costs them You can haye all kinds of refine-
ments and divisions between service costs and interests costs, but the
fact: Temains that it-is the cost of borrowing the money that counts.
if you have a system. where it costs 175 percent a month-—just
‘to take an. .arbitrary case—if you pay it back in 1 month, and if you:
. hold it a second month you pay 1% /Y percent the second month plus.
& servige charge, and if you hold it '3 months you pay: 134 percent
for 3 ‘menths, plus -another service charge, the fact is that it is not
~ unfair. to; add ithe whele thing up and say; that. this is the cost of
~ borrowing ove ! an b 'translate& :
- into an: annua '

SR

'ame« token it"
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- I think it fair, sound, and right that the purchasers should know
hypothetically ‘what it will cost them to buy something on eredit if
they pay dt back over a year, regardless of whether they may pay

~ CONSUMER  GREDIT PROTECTION ACT

it back in 8 months, 6 months, and regardless of the fact that there :

may be a difference in the cost per month if they pay it back over
different periods of time. I don’t see all the complexity. Maybe 1
don’t understand it. o NELR it
- Furthermore, the regulatory agency, if it be the Federal Reserve
Board .or any other, will have the brains, if it has the will, to work
out the details of the question of exactly what is the correct com-:
putation ‘on. an Aaxmuapl.?ba,sis, -and if 18 isn't the right computation,
. then there is nothing in the legislation that conflicts with that. All
the legislation says, as I understand it, is that there shall be-a, proper
translation of the shorter period charge to an annual basis; 114 comes.
to 18, as I see.it. If it comes to 17%, I take it that it would equitably
meet the purpose of the proposed legislation to tell the customer: that
it 1s 17%% on an annual basis. o e
So, T don’t really understand what all the excitement. is about.
Mrs. Surivan. Thank you, Mr. Keyserling. This is exactly what
we have been trying to do—to stop the confusion for the people who
borrow the money or use somebody else’s money for the things they
would like to purchase. They have gone over this argument again
and again for 7 full years in the other body. There is never going to be -
any meeting of the minds among those who are going to use the
figures in a different manner from that in which they are customarily
applied.. We have gone into this numerous times in the last 10 days -
and: we have gotten no closer to changing the minds of the retailers
on . this, nor have they come: any closer to changing the minds of.
those of us who feel as Mr. Keyserling does. S
So, I would like to go on to some other aspects. Ch o R
Mr. HarperN, Madam Chairman: I had the time and I certainly
welcome the point that you raised with Mr. Keyserling. My time is -
up. But I had some questions that I did want to propose to Mr. Key-'
serling. I received the answers in the expressions of views that-he just
- made and I certainly want to thank you for your very forthright
and most welcome and valuable expression that you have just made.

¥

7

Mrs. Surravan. Mr. Stephens?:: il R R R
- Mr. StepmENs. T haveone question I would like to ask and, of course,
Mr. Kimball, I do not anticipate that you can answer it now bt
you might supply it for the record. ; : o] st R
I have mentioned this to some other witnesses, too.: i
- Weare trying to get a comparative kind of figure so the consumer
can see, what he is paying for his money. That’s the purpose of the
legislation. Why would it be too much of a burden upon you to supply
the historical -account of the figures like Mr. Wooleyhasxprovideg 4
- Would it be excessively burdensome costwise for you to provide at
the.end of theiyear what the customer actually paid out in the form
of service charges? If we had this charge in retrospect % If the average.
was roughly 10. percent? How much extra charges would it cost to:
you? What would the cost to you be if you gave the consumer:that
information?: The: reason I asked that question is because ifiwe-dre
going to consider the fact that we are'seeking to educite the con-:
sumer in the thinigs that he ‘should know, we dor’t have to do it by
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- an-educational process of telling him ahead of time; we can begin the
education now by saying at the end of the year, “We will'let you know
- whether you paid 10 percent or 18 percent?” I would like to know
_‘how burdensome you would consider that? = '~
You might not want to go into it now but would want to think
about it a little bit and provide it for the reeord. = 0
Mr. Kmmearr. Ihave an answer. ~ c fen e
The majority of stores in ‘this country are small stores. They are
stores that do anywhere from $75,000 to a million dollars annual vol-
ume. We don’t have computers, we don’t have large staffs. Our margin
of profit is very minute when compared to the total volume of business
‘we have to do. .. o g P T
Just as I have to control my billing costs and saving on postage
stamps -and envelopes, any additional information such as you sug-
_.gest—our machines do not have totals—could give us the total service
«charge. Our eard has no space and Kimball’s is a modern store. There
are little “Pop and Mom” stores that don’t have any machines at, all.
- Mr. SrepaeNs. How many of the kind of stores that youhave talked
-about use revolving credit? - i ~
Mr, Kimparr. A great deal of them. This is becoming more and
more prevalent because people are asking for extended terms. In other
words, if they would pay their bills in 35:days or 60 days it wouldn’t
be too burdensome. But when they want the eredit extended over 6
months or 10 months or a year we have to put a service chiarge on to
encourage them to pay theirbills faster. . =« ..~ o
But for me to keep a record, I have 7,000 accounts and then to take

T P

a total of each custonier’s purchases for a yeariand the total service:

charges and. then figure that out and evéryone would be a different
._answer, believe me—simple annual rate. Ify you came up with a for-
mula—it would be complicated. ; A ,
Mr. StepuENs. Let me point thisout. GErL
- Mr. KmmBarrn. It would be very burdensome to the small stores of
the country. Bk : , i ;
Mr. Stepanns. I agree personally that you can’t tell a man ahead
of time’how much he is going to pay. I agree with the thoughts of
Mr. Wooley I also would like to commention the fact that T-agree with-
what Mr. Keyserling says, too. That sounds like it is a paradox but
it iginot. We aré not going to tell the customer the ‘truth in‘the sense
of what the retail merchant would consider.a fair competitive interest
“rate if we tell him what you would have if you let his account:.go for
the entire year and paid 114 percent—it will amount to 18 percent if
you go the whole year, .~ - = " il ‘ G ;
I can see the merchant’s standpoint on it. Because the man looks at
that and says if I am going to pay 18 percent I am'going to borrow
the meney someplace else. But what you are saying is, he'is not going
- to pay 18 pertent. if you havethese other factors and I think that the
answer to the thought that T had and the purpose that T have in mind
in supporting any truth in lending proposition was to give the man
an oppertunity to compare, but I don’t think it has to be in prospect. It
canbe in retrospect, o0 Ll g

To conclude what I have to fséuy,‘ and pémihentrto our inquiry, is the
story I heard which concerned a man that had a country store. He gave
_credit to a farmer for his food and fertilizer as well as all the items’



 devise.
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‘that he needed for his crop. At the end of the year the farmer didn’t
pay and he came and got-a year’s extension of his time, At the end of
2 years the farmer eame in and paid in cash for all he owed. Then
- he'went across the road to his ére&bor’s ‘conipetitor and loaded up his

entire wagon with all kinds of goods and. paid the competitor cash

'when he had some cash money he went to his competitor to trade.
The farmer looked at him in surprise and said, “I didn’t know you
sold forcash.” ‘ COCTLENE L RS e St
Mr. Kimparr.: This is true with customers. If they don’t have the
‘money they sometimes go to a store which-loads the credit charge into
the price of their ‘merchandise and-they say they don’t put any service

charge on their accounts at all but'they have loaded the: price and the

customer, so long as he needs the credit will go to that store. o
“"When he has cash he will 2o to'a cash discount store, let’s say, and
‘he will dohis purchasing there because he can buy it cheaper,
Mr. StepuENs. To conclude, I wish you would give a little more
~ thought to providing an answer, 1f you could, breaiw it down into an
- annual cost to you: in money as to what this would be. If you can do
that, T could seé what we are requiring if that is the method

; Mr, Kimparr. 1 will see:if our association can gather so y figures
FOEYOU, & vlii oy e Sy Lt Vo mdeh Sl
. Mrs. Surrvan. We are not quite finished with you, géntlemen. You
have all so much to give us on this le, islation that it is a shame that
we can’t ask all the questions we would Weuinpiinn o,

- However, if we can submit further questions. to ‘you in the next
few days. I hope that you will he able to give us written answers for
the record when you correct your transeript. - e ey
~In the meantime, Please stay where you are seated and I will ask
our afternoon witnesses to_join you. V(}Ie have learned that we can’t

- meet this afternoon: The two witnesses that we were goin to hear then

~are here in the audience, so we will call them now—Prof. Vern Coun-
“tryman_and Mr., Charles 8. Stapp. I wonder if you two gentlemen
would come up to the table, o e
~Mr. Countryman, if you can Summarize your statement in 10 min-
utes, we will then start the‘questioning with Mr: Fino and Mrs, Dwyer
-who haven’t had a chance to do any questioning, ‘We will keep on
going until the bells ring, calling us to the House floor. = S
S,M‘r‘s.? Dwyer, would you like to introduce your constituent, Mr.
ta 0 Lo ; LA o
' I‘Is; Dwyzr. Madam Chairman and members of the subcommittee,
it is a special pleasure for me to welcome our next witness, Mr. Charles

D. Stapp, president of the N ational Retail Furniture Association. Mr.

Stapp is from Westfield, N.J., a valued constituent, and one of myicon-
gressional district’s most outstanding citizens and civic leaders.
Mr. Stapp has distinguished himself reatly in his chosen field.
President of Koos Bros. of Ra‘hway',"N:%;, one of the East’s great
retail furniture,establishments;; Mr. Stapp has also served as chair-
man of the board and, for three terms, as president of the New Jersey
Furniture Association. In recognition of his leadership in the induys-
‘try; he was presented the New J. ersey association’s annual award and
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'We have joined together: as a group to represent the: noncompiiter
 iretail stores who are concerned about the unfair treatmefit that would
‘be arbitrarily thrust upon them tunder-the provisions of the truth-in-
lending bill passed by the U.S:Senate, 8. 5. = ol paaa
- Because we are presenting the common views of six associations, we
are prepared to discuss only the features of the bills that coneern
~credit diselosure. We have not:had time to fully study and reach inter-
~ ‘assoclation agreement on the other provisions of H.R. 11601. i
<. Our noncomputer stores are concerned about the revolving credit
‘compromise which is a special formula that gives those who offer
‘revolving credit -a competitive advantage: over those who sell: on
-installment credit. In effect, S. 5 is a regulation of installment credit
only and does not offer customers the opportunity to compare credit
-service charges offered under different credit plans. Our noncomputer
“stores are concerned about the way that S. 5 discriminates between

itwo types of revolving credit. ; Sy P e

In passing S. 5, the Senate defined three different types of:credit’ -
and has given special treatment to one type of revolving: credit plan—=
the plan used principally by our giant chainstore competitors. Most
of our specialty stores, however, use installment credit and are forced
to disclose an annual rate under the terms of S, 5. Even those of our

specialty stores that do use revolving credit plans face a competitive .

«disadvantage in that they typically retain title and have to-disclose
- the annual rate while their Targe store competitors who do not retain
title, are free to disclose the mionthly rate of 114 percent. We agree
with the statement Secretary Barr gave earlier in these hearings, that
the special exemption given to revolving credit does discriminate
against our small independent specialty stores. . ol il
In the minds' of ‘customers, rates of 114 percent a month and 18
percent a year are not identical..The difficulty of explaining the two
different rates to- customers is a practical one. Mr.' A. G: Bastham
in his testimony before the Senate in'behalf of the National Retail
Furniture Association related his firm’s experience in explaining credit
rates to about 200 new customers. In the study donein his Store, some
customers were told the credit service charge on the new account they
were about to operi would be 114 percent a month, whilé othér customers
opening new accountsunder the same terms were told the credit service
charge would be 18 percent a year. Each time the store’s credit counselor
quoted the 18 percent rate he was involved in a 80- to 45-minvute dis-
cussion of what it was going to cost the customery but when the:credit
~counselor quoted the 175 percent rate it:was quite readily understood
and accepted by the customer.’ ' o v T SNt
 We are convinced, therefore, that'the definition of ‘three different
types of credit in'S. 5 does not aid easy consumer understanding and
does not permit the customer to readily understand, compare, and
determine which credit plan is the cheapest. In fact, S. % does’ just
the opposite. It really males it more difficult for customers to compare
credit ostd, 1 Mo i vl Hindieily ok e B IR F
In addition to the need for provisions in a truth-in-lending bill that
“will permit easiereonsimer understanding’ oficreditcharges, any legis-
lation ienacted iby' Conpress should” haveruniversal swpplication o all
consumer credit transactions. . i
8. 5 would require annual rate disclosure for nearly all credit sales
made in our smaller specialty stores but would barely touch the credit
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~ sales of our big: competitors. Mr. William M. Batten of J. C. Penney
" @o. disclosed this when he testified in the Senate that his company had
- -$400 million on their revolving credit:accounts but only $40 million on
their time payment or installment-type accounts.. b,
On page 18 of our written statement there is-a chart that compares
two similar transactions of $400—one on a revolving credit plan with-
_out title retentiony the other on an.installment eredit plan. On the
revolving plan where the credit service charge would be $13.50, the
store could quote a rate of 114 percent. But, on the installment plan:
‘with the 90 days of free time that is &' general and widely used prac-
tice in many small independent specialty ‘stores partiéularly those in
~the furniture industry, there would be no credit. service charge at all-—
. iyet the store would be required to:quote a rate of 18 pereent merely
because the store retains title to the merchandise until it is paid for. .
. Problems like this would be eliminated by‘any bill that provides for
the universal application of an identical rate for all consumer credit
. transactions. [Universal application of an identical rate would auto-
‘matieally eliminate the false standards such as title retention, length
‘of terms, and/method of repayment that have been established in'S. 5
to separate the variousitypes of credit plans.

Although we want to'point out the diserimination contained in S. 5,

~owe did not come here today merely to talk about what we don’t like.

‘We are here|to suggest solutions to the problem of discrimination

within revolving credit itself. There are four basic'methods for elimi-

nating the discrimination. Each method provides for the universal
.application Qf a single disclosure method for all consumer ocredit

transactions. Dl e v e
“One solution is dollars and cents disclosure, or a variation in the

_form of dollars per hundred per year or cents per $10 per month. The
Governor of Tllinois has recently signed into law a bill that requires
disclosure in dollars and cents.. =~ =~ :

Asébond solution is a monthly percentage rate for all transactions.

‘A monthly rate can be computed for installment credit merely by
dividing the annual rate by 12. ' -

| . L)

The third solution is a combination of both monthly and annual

disclosure for all transactions. This is the type of disclosure that S. 5
now requires for the so-called “installment open credit plans,” the
revolving eredit plans with title retention. The annual rate is deter-
.mined by multiplying the monthly rate by 12. : ! Fa

The fourth solution shown in the one least understood by customers.
It is an annual percentage rate for all transactions. ; #
‘No segment of retailing should be given by law a competitive
merchandising advantage over any other segment selling similar goods
by being allowed to disclose credit service charges in a more favorable
manner. | :
If Congress really wants consumer understanding of credit terms—
- Tf Congress really wants meaningful disclosure— :
lIf Congress really wants to eliminate discrimination in the market-

plhiosie - e e .

' Tf Congress really wants to provide equitable treatment for small
indegfdent merchants as well as for the giant mercantile establish-
ment; v s e

" 1 b 54 : i ~;",\l'\":‘ '1v'\),,":
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Then, we believe, this committee will not accept the discriminatory
growsmns of S, 5, but will require all consumer credit transactlgons to

isclose credit service charges on a similar basis. . -

Our six associations, and the more than 45,000 members we repl‘e- ;
sent, will support any of the four eredit’ dlsclosure proposalv that is
given universal apphcatlon‘to all consumer credit transactions,

‘We urge. the committee to, supﬁ ort our recommendations for fair--
: pl ay and: to ut all stores, both the giant merchantile establishments

~ and the small independent noncomputer spe¢ialty stor
footing in’the miethod of losing credit seryice cha;:ge :
way, customers can:be given;a basis to compare and demrmme
is'the cheapest rate available in the marketplace. -

(The full statement of Mr ‘Stapp follows:)’

STM‘EMEI%T oF CmARLES D. STAPP PREsmmN'r, oos Bm% Ra
- ANn PRESIDENT, NATIONAL RmAIL FURNIT’URE A,ssoc'x

1 am i@h&ﬂe& 'D. Stapp; President of Koos Brothers ‘of Rahway; :

““Today, I am appearing in behalf of the Nation Retall Furmture Association
- and five other natiohal Assbeiations: the National Appliance Radio & TV Dealers
Association, the National Association of House tO House Inistalliiént Gompanies,
the Natlonal Association of Music Merchants; Inc., the National Retail Hard-
ware' Association, and ‘the National Sporting’ Goods ASsem,ation T am speaking
for-a group of indeﬁendent retail merchants who' operate more than 45, ,000 stores’
up aid down the main streets of cities and towns throughout the ‘United States.
They are the home-town “merchiants who support e local little league basei)all
teams, who'Serve as block captains for the Unitéd Fund ‘campaign; n:d ‘who
buy the ads in the High School yearbook. Most of th‘e@e :
always have been family-owned businesses. * . = L
- Our A t«ig@g agree with the idea. of full d;sclo;sure of credxt service eh,a;
We support, f e basic objectives of the Truth.In Lending bills. We encourage our .
members to provide a detailed expression of credit charges to all customers.
We have Jmned, mgetheer to remesen@t,h : on~computer retail stores who are.
concerned about, the unfair treatment, that, wi be arbitrarily thrust
tshem gel,néder the provis:,qns of the- '.I,‘I‘Ugth In Lend;i g b111 pmed by the :
eng D B
Because we ara preseznting th@ commm vwws & y
prepared to discuss only. the features of the bills nmax ooncern cmdit di;s,cloaure :
We have not. had time. to fully study and reach ?
the other pmwmz;&esf H.R. 11601 i

3 &"sa vegulmmn pif mst@lment credlt only a.nq does,nﬂ oﬁ s

the oppemumty to compgreeredit service charges offered: X 3
plans, Our non-computer. stores are also eoneerned. about, 1 ,
criminates between two types of revolving credit. . . (e

And so we are herertoday to-do three things. Pirst, to ask the commlttee to.

put all consymer seredit: transactions on an equal. footing by ;requ,lnng stores
using credit service charges of any type to disclose these chazge@ on 4 ]

- basis: A common denominator applied-to all forms of eredit is the

: whlch Will enable consumers to c»ompare and determina ;h ch- 1

‘A‘n t . we ame -here to oﬁer the sugpport @f hhe@
¢ ‘1mlll®p§£,dﬁm stail stores &’0;‘ a co‘msumer»are@it djsalosuré bill that »
. sally to.al cred ’ .

e N
! ion: about consumer cred
:80- she can.make wise use of credi*t, JAny. blll

i this should be based on two tmderly'
- - Consumer: Underst ing and Umwersal Appueatmn R
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; OONSUMER f'UNBERSTANDING

, tion bill (HLR. 11601 and Truth in Lehding
bill (S 5) state that the informed use of credit; parti

wills emhance ecenonbic stabmzatlom inerease sound competitibni'
d y

ng nv&rbed ~the pui"poses ofﬂz ]
nd suggested the following approdich as a p
e ing the particular provisions of the proposed bills

: 1. Consumers are to be protected through discle

~ transactions an;l proposals; suc h,dwclosur ; ould be‘ ]
”‘best;n‘ [ o )

10,000,000 -units of;,
h | tion, the goal wi .
ihave 10 0{J>0 000 units (or more) marketed annually aft/er the legisla-
( presuma,bl‘v ata lo;vg;ri)c;edlt cost. to- the imy

: t 5

i ‘\;'cnnstant'prices or
: th nust: evggtualg be p}a:,l(llugyhthe n
orpulic,, anges caused by the proposed statutes shor (
b smesa andpinc;, little ossible. Hoj ped.’ully, once adjustme:
ve. been “costswill: be no. gr th. at‘xer time

of repayment The “gnnu ;
tion is difficult; and there ‘belier ‘o
- _occur in a: eonsiderable nt er “of cases. Here, however, the small’ indepe
“businessman’ faces 4 difficy ind ‘expensive problem” whiéh it is beheve
- greate ‘economic’ c&‘ﬁts tha possible gains for the 1

T s v enate Subcommittee

every' payddy: Paydays are every
$20; the time' pﬂc%v s 822, five

S,
purchase,. th po
1 }:emtnal-—-—having th :
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costs, and; a 30 year. mortgage calculated at" 6% «percexm (not neeessarﬂy the
- annual rate.as prescribed by the proposed statutes): involves: an interest cost of:
$23,093.00.:(18.:5 'Senate Hearings 1967, p. 593).This:total:dolldr interest assumes.!
that the family invelved can. id: such & charge by notipurchasing the home.’
This is ungealistic. If the: i continues to rent a-home:or: an -apartment, a
s1gmﬁcant ‘portion:of the: monmly ‘and annual rental is commrable “interest’ on
the landlord’s investment.:Since: the Congress, through THA and many oth
statutes, has endeavored to increase home ownership by individual famili
‘total dollar interest charges on mortgages: may, ‘without detailed explanation, ;
create substantial consumer misinformation. The annual interest rate alone -
would ap ‘ar ‘to be:most ‘helpful to the publi¢, in’ comparing*’ altern s
*continue rentmg or to tbuy

and the hke—there is’ max1mum cmhpetitlon'; sen credit grantars, 'both
rétail'and financial agency, and the consumer has the greatest-variety of alternate
credit plans available. Full disclosure'of all details which distinguisli'the credit
service charge from the cash price are essential. T'wo questlons of major“ mpor- e
tance then arise ‘(a) what method"” of statin“ edit service charg ‘is mlo
useful to. the public; , i i 1 5 ]
- tains_ effective competition best and discriminates least
“Where & large - group of items fallmg in the intermed ¢
purchased at one time, the credit is commonly ‘multi-year and:the likelihood
of substantial prepayment small; such mlght be ‘the complete furmshing of
of a'new home. Here the most appropriate stdtement of the credit service charge’
would: ‘appear to be some sort of rate. Percentages mean more to some péople, :
dollars-per-hundred appear to mean:more to others. And this techniqiie ‘does not:
.appear to upset the: compentrve sxtuanons between retall credit grantors and i
financial institutions. ; s
For the convenience of both customer and credit grantor various types of
revolving or “open-end” credit have been developed and have grown rapidly
during the last twenty years. Oharacteristically, these giVe the customer a “free
- ride”. or limited peériod after purchase without ¢redit : ; e a o
credit'limit, the ¢tistomer can’add-on purchases at’
" are calculated currently edch month or billing pené
full during - any month without credit’ charge for the
~ In'the case of the i i nsumer, the montlr’l
consumer can avo rg
before 'the nex sannual’ ‘equivalent rate may
comparisons: but is beheved to be deﬁmtely secondary in
coxégxderatlon ) ‘
b :

is explamlng 'credit rates tb uaiborut 200 nés
¢ some o; Me’s more experienced crédit
rethod o 5

~the sameiterms Wére : ce )
! ;Eaeh ﬁime the @red lor quoted th 18 per

‘what it was going to

3 and ‘thé ainoun @Zf:‘the Gredit
a. ﬁyplcab rwolving »ehm‘g@ a@émﬂﬂ:. *?B
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the 134 month.lyf servtc@ehsarge amounts to $8 40 for 4 year on an original balance
~ of $100. This provides the store credit personnel & cotivenient way to. explain. to
the customer that this-credit charge is less thai the $10 per $100 per the
‘eri%im.l baland ’elrmxgwby eompetimg»s&oa-es on: instalme creditisales;
'O meet the i g

ns in -a Truth In Lendgfng b111> per-.
ting &5 credit; charges, any. legislation-enacted. by .
,e;unirversal annlwatwmto all congumer:credit. transactions. If
? - of the credit ge: 1ce charge.as a monthly percentage rate 1s to. he re-’
quired for one ype of ing credit. plan, then all
tlonsa—-mgluqu; ot);;eu: ypes. of revolving credit pla alme
be requ ) dlgel,aye ‘the. mght ser ‘gezcharge ay

‘ t h pplie +t0;
’ nates a»gawst the maall non-compute Stores. i ...
stores usmg revolving, c;-eglit to quote their credit service :
f .rate, but forces sm; ;stores.usging installment eredit to: quote
a resu 7 ,ﬁeffeet of 8.5 is one
: Whﬂe permxttmg certain - ‘types of revolvingf eredit to. dlselosa their: credit ..
service charge in monthly- terms that the customer eannot ‘conveniently: cmnpaﬁ
with alte,mative sourceq of cred that-are. requ;r;ed to be dxsclosed in annual,

ipercentage x

hout:, title Tretention, 8 percent
ou title retention, 135 ) i
thout title retention. 18 pemeut a year, .
[diserimination. contained in the bill, but,be-
Tang thast, Jhad ,,been arranged to get the bill

' m;e the OGmmltteé mdicated that c;gfgdi
yen..a compet»ltwe ntag the.

yes of re ‘rﬁv’oiwug
: ﬂ;,e;g;@mhandise Dasses to, the buyer at the
dit plans in which the seller retains title
 final payment for it Un
e:mlving plan without, title retention’
; ite, while in an identical transae: .
me repayment terms, the sell 1 using a mvalnng plaan;;wmsh title
ve to discllose -an amabpememage rate.: : :

ile; “the street a . (sneeialty
.ﬁw s&me «repwymenv tema mm

of regulating installment credit . -
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finance: charge would- have to tell. the .customer the finance charge would be: 18
percent a year.”. . . :

“The. two disclosure requirements result from the fact that in dne'case',th% s

seller retaing title to the merchandise until it is paid for and in the other case
he does not. This kind of discrimination is to be regretted, despite the fact that
the committee worked diligently to find a way to work out the most equitable
‘answer to a truth-in-lending bill that is aimed ‘at giving consumers the kind
“of protection that experience has found is required in our present economy,” *
The inequity of the use of title retention ( Security interest) as a characteris-
-tie in determining the method of disclosure is also pointed out by our economic

monthly payment. Although certain stores commonly pass titie immediately
‘under their revolving credit plans,. certain other types of retailers, mainly
.il.ldependent specialty stores do this less frequently. The same problems of Hfree

may reach about thege problems, avoiding serious discrimination between credit
8rantors offering the public comparable eredit arrangements should, it ig bé-
lieved, have a high priority. g

“Large stores and smaller specialty stores are direct competitors in both mer-
-chandise and services, and credit is an important service. Customers who make
frequent ‘purchases in a store, because of the many departments within the
store, have a high degree of interest in maintaining their credit rating with that
store and, therefore, the need for title retention is greatly lessened. On the other
‘hand, in specialty stores with a single line: of merchandise, where- customers
purchase less frequently, there is a greater need for title retention. Stores with
‘many departments often include a furniture department, an appliance depart-
‘ment, a musical instrument department, a sporting goods department, a hardware
department ; each of these major departments can be considered as a specialty
store within the large store (and sometimes such departments are leased ‘to

and 17 other organizations in the home furnishings field, was conducted by three
research firms: National Family Opinion, Ine., Toledo, Ohio; Social Research,
Ine., Chicago, Il ; and Arthur D. Little, Inec., Cambridge, Massachusetts. L
" The results of the study—reported at a special conference here in Washington,
D.C., this week—demonstrate that the customer makes her decision on where

reveals that home furnishings shoppers will not visit a store that does not have a
“good” reputation in the community. Thus, S. 5, which would permit large stores
selling home furnishings to quote a monthly rate of 1% percent would give furni-
‘ture stores quoting an annual rate of 189, a reputation of being “bandits” who
charge a high credit service charge, even though the actual credit charges are
the same in both stores. ' R

. Retailers for many years have been divided into two groups, large mercantile

switching to revolving credit. If Congress permits stores to continue to respond
to customers desires—and does not establish road-blocks 'to hinder this move-
ment—I am sure that there will be even more progress in this direction in the
years ahead. i .

Years ago the 30-day charge account was beset with the problem of paying
in full each month and out of this problem grew the option to pay in full or
monthly. So it took on aspects of the time bayment instalment plan. The main
difference was that the service charge was computed monthly, At the same time,
the instalment sales plan moved toward an open-end plan with the service
charge computed monthly., . ) . .

83-840—67—pt. 2——9
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Today the two plans are essentially the same. The principle difference between
our specialty stores and the large mercantile stores is the size of the transac-
‘tions, and in some cases, title retention. ‘

SPEGIALTY STORE REVOLVING CREDIT

Specialty 'store revolving credit plans (with title retention) today have all
the payment characteristics of typical large mercantile store revolving credit
without title retention. Specialty store plans require an initial revolving credit
account agreement to be gigned the same as on a large mercantile store revolv-
ing account. The customer has a free time period or “free ride” during which
the account can be paid in full with no credit service charge applied. This free
time can run from 30 days up to 59 days, or even longer. As in typical revolving
credit plans; the eredit service charge is payable and applied after the free time
has expired, at|a rate of typically 1% % a month. The customer may pay any

.amount she wishes each month, either the agreed minimum payment, which

often is as low as $5.00, or any larger amount. Many customers pay their ac-
counts up well ahead of time, thus reducing their credit service charges. The
store sets only minimum payments. These specialty store open-end revolving ac-
counts are identical with large mercantile store open-end revolving credit with
the single exception that they retain title until the goods are paid for. Otherwise,
there is no distinction between them, and it is discriminatory to require disclo-
sure of the credit service charge at an annual rate on a revolving account which
hag title retention, and permit disclosure at a monthly rate if the revolving ac-
count does not involve title retention. Title retention has nothing to do wih
disclosure of the cost of credit. Therefore, we recommend that any bill approved
by your Committee have universal application to all eredit transactions without
regard for whether or not title (or any security interest) is retained until the
merchandise is paid for. : ! :
Any treatment that is universally applied to all consumer credit transactions
wil eliminate the need for establishing false standards such as title retention,
length of terms, and method of repayment; and at the same time will accomplish
‘the goal of helping customers Jetermine which credit plan is the cheapest.
" Attached to this statement as Tixhibit B is a copy of a monthly account state-
ment used by one of our ‘member stores, Breuner’s, of Sacramento, California.
The statement: form has all of the characteristics of a statement of a typical
" large mercantile store open-end revolving account statement—except that under
the .Breuner Revolv-A-Count, the title to the merchandise remains with the
store until it is paid for.

WHY SPECTIALTY STORES RETAIN TITLE

Marny questions have been asked about why our specialty stores do not just
_give up title retention and offer a revolving credit plan without title retention.
‘This, we are told, would permit specialty stores to compete with large ‘mercantile

store revolving credit plans under the provisions of 8. 5. !

1t would be impractical for us to do so. We are in no position to compete in
this way with the retail giants who have the sales volume and financial resources

to offer two or three types of eredit plan.

Our non-computer stores are essentially small independent family-owned busi-
_nesses that could not afford to install the kind of expensive bookkeeping and

computer equipment needed to operate several kinds of accounts. !
- Our stores. operate in a much smaller universe of credit than do the retail
giants. Many large stores with open-end credit, some with large national chain

operations, are able to “gpread the risk”. of their credit operation over a wide '

universe and into many various types of merchandise. Our stores, on the other =

hand, have a much smaller number of customers and a limited line of merchan-
dise. Therefore, there is a much smaller universe of credit over which to spread

the risk. As a result, our stores ‘must maintain a more direct security interest in
' the merchandise until it is paid for.

In addition, if title retention was dropped many “marginal credit risks”, the
very people the Truth In Lending bills are designed to help, would be screened
out and denied credit which is now available to them under title retention credit
plans. R ) ) o

In general, the stores we represent have over a long period of time established
a method of floing business that fits their type of merchandise and satisfies the
customer by giving her what she wants. Such methods of doing business, care-
fully worked out in an industry, are not changed jnstantly merely by the enact-
ment of a new federal law. L ‘ :
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CONSUMER COMPARISON

The difficulty the customer will face in comparing the costs of credit under the

- provisions of 8. 5 can be illustrated by a comparison of similar transactions. For
example, take a sale of $400 to be repaid in 4 regular payments. On a typical
revolving account, the customer would get the first month as “free time” with
no credit service charge. The second month the credit service charge would be
$6.00, the third month $4.50, and the fourth month $3.00, for a total credit service
charge of $13.50. Under the provisions of S. 5, the customer would be told the

_ credit service charge is 14 percent a month. On the same sale on an instalment
account at a typical specialty store, the customer would get 90 days “free time”.
A “free time” period of 90 days is a general and widely used practice in inde-
pendent furniture and other specialty stores. Therefore, by making four pay-
ments of $100 each, one at the time of the transaction and one each 30 days
thereafter, the customer would pay no credit service charge at all. Yet under the
provisions of 8. 5, the customer would have to be told that the credit service
charge is 18 percent a year—merely because the store retains title (security
interest) in the merchandise until it is paid for.

Revolving, 114 percent, Installment, 18 percent,
30 days free time 90 days free time

Amount Credit charge Amount Credit charge

 $100.00 0 $100.00

1st payment.. 0
2d payment. . 106. 00 $6.00 100. 0V 0
3d payment. . 104. 50 4.50 100. 00 0
Final payment 103. 00 3.00 100. 00 0

Total. o it 13.500 + Syl 0

There is no basic difference in the specialty store open-end revolving account
and the large store open-end revolving account. What minor differences there are
certainly do not warrant putting a whole new restrictive provision on this type
of consumer credit. The distinction between these two types of credit is not in
the area of title retention. The difference between them is in whether the entire
credit service charge is computed at the time of the transaction and applied as
an “add-on” to the amount to be financed, or whether the credit service charge
is computed monthly and billed to the customer on her monthly statement.

To provide for truly universal application, not only should the two types of
revolving credit be required to disclose their credit service charges in similar
terms, but similar disclosure terms should apply as well to retailers who sell
under conventional instalment credit plans.

DISCRIMINATION BETWEEN INSTALMENT AND REVOLVING CREDIT PLANS

It would be most unfair and confusing to customers to require retailers who
sell on conventional installment plans to state an 18% amnual percentage rate,
while at the same time permitting retailers selling the same goods on an open-
end revolving credit plan to state a monthly rate of 1% % even though they
amount to the same thing. This would be a severe form of discrimination against
retailers selling on conventional instalment sales contracts, particularly the
smaller retailers who have not yet changed over to revolving credit.

A store using an open-end credit plan is not limited as to the type of merchan-
dise that may be charged to it. All kinds of items can be charged, big ticket items
as well ag small ticket items. The big difference is that 80 or 909% of the goods
sold in our specialty stores are durable goods whereas 80 or 909% of those sold
in the large stores are consumable goods. For example, Mr. William M. Batten
of J. C. Penney Company testified in the Senate that they had $400 million on
their regular revolving credit accounts and only $40 million on their time-pay-
ment accounts.

The stated objective of the legislation has long been to enable consumers to
shop for credit and to make meaningful comparisons of the cost of credit offered
by competitors. Requiring one merchant to state an annual percentage rate on a
mattress and box spring set, for example, and allowing his competitor across the
street selling the same mattress and box spring set to quote only a monthly rate,
is not the way to make it easier for consumers to shop for credit and make
meaningful comparisons of the cost of credit.
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To the uninitiated, the wide difference between 1% % and 18% would cause
‘decisions to be made in favor of large mercantile stores over principal competi-
tors. The end cost to the customer is the same. To the small business man, the
independent specialty store owner, the result could be disastrous. He has neither
the personnel nor the time nor the technical knowledge to convince customers
that the annual percentage rate and the monthly percentage rate result in the
same cost. Even more seriously, the different forms of disclosure could actually
mislead the customer who is denied the information she needs for making a wise
choice of credit terms. We urge you to abandon this approach.

SOLUTIONS TO THE PROBLEMS OF DISCRIMINATION

Although we want to point out the discrimination contained in 8. 5, we did not
come here today merely to talk about what we don’t like. We are here to suggest
solutions to the problem of discrimination between revolving and instalment cred-
it and discrimination within revolving credit itself. There are four basic methods
for elminating the discrimination between revolvng and instalment credit: and,
at the same time, eliminating the discrimination between the various types of re-
volving credit. Each method provides for the universal application of a single
disclosure method for all consumer credit transactions.

One solution is dollars and cents disclosure, or a variation in the form of dollars

per hundred or cents per $10 per month. Customers readily understand credit
service charges!that are expressed in dollars and cents. It has been demonstrated
that disclosure in dollars and cents can be written into a credit disclosure bill.
In Tllinois, for éxample, the Governor recently signed into law a bill that requires
disclosure of credit service charges in dollars and cents. Section 27 of the new
Illinois statute istipulates the amount in dollars per hundred per year that can be
charged on various dollar levels of credit. Section 28 specifies the amount in cents
per ten dollars a month that can be applied as a credit service charge on revolv-
ing charge accounts.
. If the Committee ‘decides that a percentage rate should be disclosed, in addi-
tion to dollars and cents, our second suggested solution is a monthly percentage
rate for all transactions. A monthly rate can be computed for instalment credit
simply by dividing the annual rate by 12.

The third solution we suggestisa combination of monthly and annual disclosure
for all transactions. This is the type of disclosure that S. 5 now requires for the
so-called “instalment open-end credit plans”’—the revolving credit plans with
title retention. Here, the annual rate is determined by multiplying the monthly
rate by 12.

Our fourth solution is the one least understood by customers—an annual per-
centage rate for all transactions.

SUPPORT UNIVERSAL APPLICATION OF DISCLOSURE

As T stated at the opening of my statement, the non-computer stores represented
by the Associations I speak for today are sympathetic to full disclosure of credit
service charges on consumer credit transactions.

There should be no discrimination in disclosure requirements against retailers
who sell under conventional instalment plans and in favor of retailers selling the
same goods under various forms of revolving credit plans. )

No segment of retailing should be given by law a competitive merchandising
advantage over any other segment gelling similar goods by being allowed to
disclose credit service charges in a more favorable manner.

If Congress really wants consumer understanding of credit terms . ..

If Congress really wants meaningful disclosure . . .

If Congress really wants to eliminate discrimination in the marketplace . ..

If Congress really wants to provide equitable treatment for small independent
merchants as well as for the huge national mercantile establishments . . .

then, we believe, this Committee will not accept the discriminatory provisions
of 8. 5, but will require all consumer credit transactions to disclose credit service
charges on a similar basis.

Our six Associations, and the more than 45,000 members we represent, will
support any credit service charge disclosure proposal that requires the universal
application of either-dollars and cents or an identical rate for all credit grantors
whether it be monthly, monthly and annual, annual, or any other rate that will
enable customers to compare and determine which is the cheapest rate available
in the marketplace.
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We urge the Committee to support our recommendations for “fair play” and
to put all stores, both large and small, on an equal footing in the method of
disclosing credit service charges on consumer credit transactions. In this way
customers can best be assured of a sound basis for comparing credit costs
-whether it be in dollars and cents or as a percentage rate,

NAME_____ Mps, John Customer Accr NO-—-‘LZZQ

ADDRESS.
TERMS: WEEKLY._____ MoNTHLY._$ 9.00bpue paTe__l1st |
DATE PURCHASES | PAYMENTS CREDIT BALANCE TRANS.

TAng 1-66] 113.300 13.30 -100.00

2ISep 2-66 ' 9.00 91.00

19 af bl )3 oo senv. pus 92.3

4loct 3-66 | _9.00 83.36

5 ILI&[A‘ I:IU{ CR. STRY, £HO. :27A

6 [Nov 1-66 | 9.00 ! . 75.60

7 ”1/7&4! /114 |cR. SERV. CHS. 1‘74
8Dec 3-66 9.00 67.7h

9 m./z,'/—gi, ; “1OQ | SRV EHS 68,7
10\Jan 3-67 . 9.00 1 59.76
Y //6/e7| Q0 Jor serv. chs  4nLe
12 Reb 1-67 9.00| 51.66

IT IS AGREED THAT ANY AND ALL PAYMENTS MADE HEREIN SHALL BE
APPLIED AS A CREDIT AGAINST MY GENERAL ACCOUNT AS A WHOLE,

13 Z/Iv_/ P .78 | ta sErV.[CHG. 52.4y
14 Mar .67 9.00 L3.Lk
15| 3 !A,[ﬂ oL 4| oR. sERV. o, Y408
18 hpr 3-67 9.00 35.08
17 ﬂ/&/&l ¢ 52 | ci. SERV. THG 35.4¢0
18 May 2-67 9.00 | 2660
19 5;/4/47 1 Y0 | CR. SERV. EHG. 2700
129 lun 1-67 9.00 : 18.00
21 Mj ¢27 | cr serv.|cHe /8.27,
22 Jul 1-67 9.00 9.27
221 7/e/67 | 413 | cn serv. ona, 9.Y0
24y 1-67 |77 9.40 -0-

GOOD CREHIT IS YOUR MOST VALUABLE ASSET

PLEASE NOTIFY US IF YOU CHANGE YOUR ADDRESS J

G::Tl:f CO.-ATLANTA
ToraL Ca. Sere.Chg, #8.4D

8. 4% ow ORt&/NAL BAaLawee
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REVOLV-A-.COUNT ®
Please show amount 1o be applied on your
30 Day Monthly
Charge $... I

BREUNER'S

home furnishers

since 1856
PLEASE DETACH AND MAIL WITH YOUR PAYMENT, OR IF PAYING IN PERSON, BRING ENTIRE STATEMENT s
;Ti 4 WE HAVE DEDUCTED YOUR
FROM YOU! PAYMENTS | DOWN PAYMENT, |  CREDIT AND ADDED LEAVING A MONTHLY PLEASE PAY
ON T ‘| SERVICE CHARGES NEW BALANCE
PREVIOUS BALANCE OF RETURNS OR PAYMENT.
oATE oF CREDITS OF CHARGE of OF 1S THIS AMOUNT

PAYMENTS, PURCHASES OR
RETURNS. MADE AFTER THE
ABOVE BILLING DATE WILL
APPEAR ON YOUR NEXT
STATEMENT,

DO NOT DESTROY
THESE PAPERS
THEY TELL HOW WE HANDLED
YOUR ORDER, IF -YOU WRITE,
OR COME IN ABOUT THIS.
STATEMENT, PLEASE BE SURE,
O SEND, OR BRING, ALL THESE:
PAPERS. WE SHALL NEED ALL

Good_will Is our chisf ssset. Breuner's is anxious fo-plests you I
Saod Xie hops hat the manner in which we have handled this order
BREUNER'S bring vou bick with fuure erdery Our interest does not end with the sale.

i od o merchandiie plests call 1
SACRAMENTO Any vime you ore disatisied W R UNER: ke re » 3 DAY ACCOUNT S AREVOLVA.COUNTD]
Please Pa) Pe
PHONE 4448051 PLEASE MAKE PAYMENTS ON OR BEFORE AGREEMENT DUE DATE This Amovet “Amount
——X

. ' YOU MAY AT ANY TIME PAY YOUR BALANCE IN FULL.
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USE BREUNER’S
- Revolv-a-count

One "ALL PURPOSE" account.

One low monthly payment buys
anything that Breuner's sell.

You can add on a purchase any time.

Credit service charges are only for
the time used .. .... .. no extras.

-OR-

Use it as a regular 30 day charge
account, with no credit service charges.

 Schrbukt ik EXAMPLE OF PAYMENTSs-\--\-‘s---q

l With monthly |
, paymentof.... ... | $10 $15 520 $30 | $40 $SO

you purchase

PO . i 200 | 300 | 400 | 600 | 800 | 1000

and add amounts
equal to paymonh

made. ... | 200 | 300 | 400 | 600 | 800
Thus your Oalal
purchases in 24
months could

I‘
amountto ............ 400 600 l 800 | 1200

LN LRI REAREELAGLRLAL AT LLRLLIRRRTRRRRRRRRT R R

g

CARANNAVRAARRRRARRRARS

g
g

LR eLlAREARBRRARS

8 BREUNER STORES TO SERVE YOU:
SACRAMENTO, OAKLAND, CAMPBELL, STOCKTON, SAN CARLOS
VALLEJO, RICHMOND AND SAN FRANCISCO

717
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Mrs. Svruivan. Thank you, Mr. Stapp. You have given a very
thorough yet concise picture of your position on this issue.

Mr. Vern Countryman is a professor of law at Harvard University
Law School. Mr. Countryman, please summarize your statement and
bring out the important points that you would like to share with us.

STATEMENT OF VERN COUNTRYMAN, PROFESSOR OF LAW,
- HARVARD LAW SCHOOL

Mr. CountrymAN. I do not appear here to testify on all aspects of
H.R. 11601. I am not an expert on consumer credit—a subject I have
just begun. to study. I have gotten only far enough in my efforts to
know that reliable information on the subject is scarce and that there
is a real need for the sort of investigation which title ITI of H.R.
11601 would authorize. ce )

- T appear to testify in general support of title IT of H.R. 11601, which
would prohibit the garnishment of wages, although I have several
suggestions to make for changes in the proposal.

The problem with which title IT would deal is a nationwide one
because nearly all States permit wage garnishment. Some limit the
~ remedy to creditors who have first reduced their claims to judgment,
but most }I)errhit the creditor to garnishee the employer when suit is
initiated. ITn some States a separate levy is required each payday; in
others, the initial levy is a continuing one until the creditor’s judgment
is paid. : :

A1l States exempt some portion of the debtor’s wages from garnish-
- ment, but the exemptions vary drastically. In some States they are
expressed in dollar amounts and they range from $350 for married
debtors and $200 for single debtors in Alaska to $50 for all debtors in
Rhode Island. In other States they are expressed in percentages and
range from 50 percent in Arizona to 100 percent in Florida, Pennsyl-
vania, and Texas. Most exemption laws, also, are confined to residents
and afford 1o protection to the many debtors whose employers can be
served with garnishment process outside the State of the debtor’s
‘residence.

The best and most recent survey of this bewildering pattern of
State wage garnishment laws is an article by Mr. George Brunn, pub-
lished in volume 53 of the California Law Review in 1965. I have a copy
of that article with me and would ‘be happy to submit it to the com-
mittee if you would care to have it._

Mrs. Surrivan. We will be glad to receive it. We may already have
that in record—we will check that later.

(The article referred to may be found in the appendix, p. 1102.)

Mr. CountryMAN. The Consequences of wage garnishment are prin-
cipally three:

1. If garnishment of the employer is effected outside the State of the
debtor’s residence, he may find his wages shut off entirely. If it is
effected in the State of his residence, he may find himself left to support
his family on $50 a month in Rhode Island, $67.50 a month in Ken-
tucky, $20 a week in New Hampshire, or half of his $75 a week wage
in Arizona, or 50 percent of his wage or $25, whichever is less, in
Vermont. '
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_ 2. Without regard to the amount of the exemption, the debtor may
find himself unemployed. Many employers do not take kindly to the
extra bookkeeping required by garnishment levies, particularly if they
are repeated. Labor unions have been largely ineffective in protecting
their members against such employer retaliation although some col-
lective bargaining contracts give the employee one or two free garnish-
ments before discharge. i

3. To save his job and support his family, the debtor may be driven
to resort to bankruptcy in many cases where he would not otherwise
do so in order to dissolve the garnishment levy or prevent threatened
levies. As the number of nonbusiness bankrupticies has increased more
than twentyfold, from 8,500 to almost 176,000, between 1946 and 1966,

 this is a matter of some consequence to the Federal bankruptcy courts.

Precise information on the relationship of wage garnishment to
bankruptey is, of course, not available. But there is enough evidence
to support a recent statement of the Bureau of Labor Standards that
“There seems to be a direct connection between the number of garnish+
ments and the number of personal bankruptcies.” (Debt Pooling and
Garnishment in Relation to Consumer Indebtedness, fact sheet No.
4-F (1966).) :

Mr. Brunn, in his California Law Review article, made a study of
the 10 States with the highest and the 10 States with the lowest per
capita personal bankruptey rates in 1962. The results are so interesting
that I reproduce them here. - S ‘

Personal bankruptcies per 100,000 population

Alabama i g 279 | North Carolina __._ ..

1
Oregon : 200 | Texas .. 2
Tennessee 184 | South Carolina . -8
Maine s 153 | Pennsylvania — - cocmicme e 4
Georgia 149 | Maryland 5
Arizona 147 | Florida T
California 145 | Delaware i 10
Illinois 134 | South Dakota - i 11
Ohio 132 | New Jersey 11
Colorado 131 | Alaska 13

- Of the States with the lowest personal bankruptey filings, Florida,
Pennsylvania, and Texas had a 100-percent wage exemption; North
Carolina, South Carolina, and South Dakota authorized exemptions
up to 100 percent if needed to support the debtor’s family ; New Jersey
had a 90-percent exemption, and Alaska exempted $350 for married
and $200 for single debtors. Maryland exempted only 75 percent in
some counties and $100 in others, but wage garnishments were little
used there because of the necessity of a separate levy every payday.

Of the States with the highest personal bankruptcy filings:’ :
Alabama had a 75-percent exemption. : ‘

- Oregon exempted $175.

‘Tennessee exempted $17 per week for the head of a family plus $2.50
per week for each dependent under 16, and $12 per week for debtors
who were not heads of families. -

. Maine allowed garnishment of not to exceed $30 per month but pro-
vided that at least $10 should be exempt. - b o

Georgia exempted $3 per day plus 50 percent of the excess.
Arizona had a 50-percent exemption.
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_ California exempted 50 percent but authorized more, up to 100 per-
cent, if needed to support the debtor’s family and if the creditor’s
cldim was not for necessaries. ‘

Ohio exempted 80 percent of the first $300 per month and 60 per-
cent of the balance (with a minimum of $150), and $100 for debtors
‘whowere not heads of families. ' ' ‘ : ;

Colorado exempted 70 percent for heads of families and 35 percent
for others. : ‘ \ ‘ , ‘

Illinois had the highest exemption in this group—85 percent or $45
per week, whichever was more, with a maximum of $200 per week. But
 the Illinois experience is instructive further. Until a 1961 amendment
to its law, its exemption was only $45 per week. Between 1961 and 1964
Mr. Brunn found that personal bankruptcies in Illinois declined 9 per-

cent, while they were increasing 18 percent nationally. And I find

that they have declined another 4 percent in Illinois from 1964 to 1966

while they have increased another 2 percent nationally.

- Mr. Brunn also studied the experience of Iowa, which moved in the
opposite direction in 1957 by abolishing its 100-percent wage exemp-
- tlon and substituting $35 per week plus $3 per dependent. Since 1957

personal bankruptcies have multiplied 8.6 times in Iowa while multi-
plying 2.8 times nationally. 8 ‘

It may be said that these figures alone do not prove that wage
garnishment is a contributing cause of bankruptcy. It may merely b
a series of remarkable coincidences. Or it may be that the financial
difficulties which led to garnishment would have led to bankruptey
had there been no garnishment. L

But we need not rely on the figures alone. Last week you heard the
testimony of three able and experienced referees in ban ruptcy from
States where wage garnishment is heavily employed (Oregon, Ten-
nessee, and California). They were unanimously of the view that wag
garnishments caused bankruptey filings by many debtors who W(m%g
not otherwise have filed. ‘

.That view is 'supported also by studies of personal bankruptcies in -
which the bankrupts were interviewed. In one such study, involving 84
bankrupts in Michigan, 75 percent indicated that garnishment or the
threat of garnishment was the reason for their filing in bankruptey.
~ (Dolphin, “An Analysis of Economic and Personal Factors Leading to
Consumer Bankruptey” (1965), page 18.) In another study in Illinois
in which 78 bankrupts were interviewed, 35 said that threat of garnish-
ment or fear of job loss was what caused them to go into ban ruptey.

- (Stabler, “The Experience of Bankruptcy” (1966), page7.) Other sim-
lar studies which did not include personal interviews with the bank-
rupts reveal : o '

. Out of 300 cases in Seattle, 69 debtors had suffered one garnishment

in the 4 months preceding bankruptcy, 14 more had experienced two

garnishments in that period, and four had been garnished three or
more times. (Brosky, “A Study of Personal Bankruptcy in the Seattle

Metropolitan Area” (1965), page 39.)

Interviews with bankruptcy attorneys in Utah revealed their opin-
ion that most personal bankrupts have either had their wages gar-
nished or havel been threatened with garnishment. (Misbach, “Per-
sonal Bankruptcy in the United States and Utah” (1964), page 383.)
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To this I would like to add my own opinion, based on discussions
with many referees in bankruptcy and bankruptcy attorneys, and on
the examination of the files in hundreds of bankruptcy cases, that
~wage garnishment, either actual or threatened, is a precipitating cause
in a very substantial number of the personal bankruptcy cases.

I have previously estimated, based on my studies of the official bank-
ruptcy statistics published by the Administrative Office of the U.S.
Courts, that over a billion dollars in creditors claims per year is being
discharged in bankruptcy cases and more than 90 percent of these
cases are personal bankruptcies. (Countryman, “The Bankruptcy
Boom”—77 Harv. L. Rev. 1452 (1964).) A more recent analysis of the
statistics has persuaded me that my prior estimate was far too low and
that the amount of creditors claims discharged is now approaching
$2 billion per year. ; -

This figure may not reflect serious damage to the bankers, loan com-
Ka,nies, and finance companies whose losses probably do not exceed one-

alf of 1 percent of loans outstanding, nor to the installment seller
operating on a 100 percent markup who breaks even whenever he loses
only one-half of his claim. After all, they can shift half of their rela-
tively small loss to the Federal fisc when they make out their tax re-
turns. But there are other small-volume, low-margin creditors for
whom the bankruptcy of a debtor is a painful blow. ;

Moreover, bankruptcy is a catastrophe for the debtor. As one ob-
server has said: , ‘ ,

Although uniformed people may minimize the gravity of the consumer bank-
. ruptey problem by saying that only one-tenth of one per cent of the population
goes bankrupt, there is a qualitative dimension in human distress that is under-
stated by such statistics. (Myers, “Nonbusiness Bankruptcies, in. Proceedings of
10th Annual Conference, Council on Consumer Information,” page 9.)

I would agree, and would add that the studies referred to above,
and others, indicate that the typical bankrupt has three or four de-
pendents, so that the human distress is felt not merely by the 176,000
personal bankrupts, but by families whose members number from
700,000 to 880,000. : :

My conclusions about the relationship of wage garnishments to
bankruptcy lead me to my first suggested change in H.R. 11601. I
would suggest that the finding in section 201 of the bill be not confined
to the effect of wage garnishment on interstate commerce, but that it
take account also of the effect of wage garnishment on the Federal
bankruptcy system. It is ludicrous, unseemly, and uneconomic to have
most of the States providing creditors with a remedy for collection and
the Federal bankruptcy system providing debtors with a countervailing
remedy to undo what State law has allowed the creditor to do. It’s well
within the power of Congress to do directly what it now authorizes in-
directly and to relieve the Federal bankruptey system of the burden of
cases where bankruptcy petitions are filed only to avoid garnishment.

Second, I would suggest that the term “wages” in the title of title IT
and in section 201 is probably too restrictive, and that the same is true
of “wages or salary” in section 202 (a). The compensation of many of
those you would want to protect from garnishment is derived, wholly
or in part, from commissions and bonuses. I would suggest, instead,
that the reference in the title and in section 201 be changed from
“wages” to “personal earnings” and that in section 202(a), the opera-
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tive section “earnings in the form of wages, salary, commission, or
bonus as compensation for personal service” be substituted for “wages
or salary due an employee.”

1 would delete the second reference to “employee” in section 202(a)
because of experience with the wage priority under section 64a(2) of
the Bankruptey Act where it three times became necessary to amend
the original language, “wages due to workmen, clerks, or servants,”
once by adding “traveling or cit%( salesmen,” again by adding “on a sal- -
ary or a commission basis, whole or part time,” and finally by adding
“whether or not they are independent contractors * * * with or with-
out a drawing account.” 4 o , ST

If this suggestion were followed in its entirety, section 202(a) might -
read:

No person may' attach or garnish or by any similar legal or equitable process
_or order stop or divert the payment of earnings in the form of wages, salary,
commission or Ibm;)nus as eompensation for personal service.

‘Third, I am sure it is not the intent of FL.R. 11601 to disrupt the.oper- |
ation of wage earner plans under chapter XIIT of the Bankruptcy Act. -
These are purely voluntary proceedings, initiated on the debtor’s peti--
tion only, by which a wage earner debtor may pay off his debts from
future earnings over a 3-year period. But section 611 of the Bank-
ruptey Act does give the chapter XIII court exclusiye jurisdiction over
the debtor’s earnings during the period of consummation ¢f the.plan,
section 64b does require that the plan include provisions for the sub-
mission of future earnings of the debtor to the supervision and control
of the court, and section 658 does authorize the court to order the em-
ployer of the debtor to make payments from his earnings directly into -
court. It would be prudent to indicate, either by a proviso to section
202(a) of the bill or by a statement in the committee report, that sec-
tion 202(a) was not intended to affect these sections of chapter XTIT |
of the Bankruptcy Act. : e :

Fourth, I doubt the necessity of prohibiting garnishment of all
earnings, regardless of size. I see no necessity for immunizing all the
income of entertainers, corporate executives, and others whose incomes
approach or run into six figures. . : ‘ DY

I realize the difficulty of fixing a limit. One recent proposal sug-
gests a poverty-level limit of $3,600, which I regard as much too .
Tow (Karlen, Exemptions from Execution, 22 Bus, Law. 1167, 1171
((}1967 ). The present working draft of the Uniform Consumer Credit -

ode, a project of the National Conference of Commissioners on Uni-
form State Laws which is not yet in final form, would put the limit
at $100 per week for debtors with dependents and $65 per week for
others (and would limit the protection to consumer credit claims.) .
This seems too low to me, also, but I have attached to my state-
ment, a copy of the pertinent sections of the present draft of the code.
so that the committes can examine them. (See p. 729.) '

The studies of personal bankruptcies to which I have previously
referred indicate that the typical bankrupt has an income of about .
$5,000 per year. I would take that figure as an indication that the
protection against garnishment should extend considerably higher.

Figures compiled by John A. Gorman, Associate Chief, National
Income Division, Office of Business Economics, U.S. Department of
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- Commerce, and reported in the Wall Street Journal, May 81, 1967,
part 1, column 6, show the following average family incomes,

Year Amount, actual Amount, revised

1570 1,747
5, 000 5, 275)
5,670 5, 839)
6,220 6, 360)
735
718 I

I have been in touch with Mr. Gorman and he advises me that be-
cause of a revision in national income accounts the figures for earlier
“years should be revised as I have indicated in parentheses. o

I should suppose that protection against garnishment should also
extend well beyond the income of the average family. It therefore
seems to me that a figure in the neighborhood of about $15,000, trans-
lated into $285 per week, would be appropriate.

Mr. Gorman’s figures illustrate another problem, however. That is

a problem of obsolescence, since laws like these tend not to get periodic
revision—the Connecticut exemption law still saves to a debtor 10
bushels of Indian corn. Obsoleteness accounts for the inadequacy of
many of the State wage exemption laws which employ dollar amounts.
But the percentage exemption laws produce excessive exemptions for
large income debtors and inadequate ones for small income debtors,
regardless of the percentage used.
- The present working draft of the Uniform Consumer Credit Code
would solve this problem by using dollar amounts and authorizing
an administrator to change them whenever there is a change of 10
percent or more in the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers. Under
H.R. 11601 the same function might well be assigned to the Federal
Reserve Board. '

An alternative method of handling this problem would be to tie
the exemption to a legislatively fixed figure which does seem to receive
periodic revision—the amount of earnings subject to tax under section
209 of the Social Security Act. Currently, that figure is $6,000, al-
though H.R. 5710, as reported out by the House Committee on Ways
and Means, would raise the figure to $7,600. An exemption in H.R.
11601 for twice the amount of earnings taxed under the Social Security
Act would come very close to the $15,000 exemption I have suggested.

Fourth, and finally, if you go no further than to protect wages from
garnishment, you may not accomplish much. In many States the credi-
tor still will be able to reach the debtor’s income by taking an advance
assignment of future wages at the time of extending credit. And since
employers find wage assignments as annoying as garnishments, there
will be the same jeopardy to the debtor’s job. Again the debtor will
be driven into bankruptcy—this time to get the debt discharged so
as to free his postbankruptcy earnings from the lien of the wage
assignment.

Mr. Justice Fortas, while still a law student, made an exhaustive
study of the use of wage assignments in Chicago (Fortas, “Wage
Assignments in Chicago,” State Street Furniture Co.v. Armour & Co.,
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49 Yale L. J. 526 (1933)). That was followed in 1935 by a statute
limiting assignable wages to 25 percent and limiting the effectiveness
of the assignment to 3 years. Later reports indicated that the situation
was not much improved—see Satter, “Wage Assignments and Garnish-
ment Cited as Major Cause of Bankruptcy in Illinois,” 15 Per. Fin.
L. Q. Rep. 50 (1961—and in 1961, when Illinois liberalized its exemp-
tion from garnishment, it also amended the wage assignment law to
limit assignable wages to 15 percent. As previously indicated, the
rate of personal bankruptcies in Illinois has consistently declined
since 1961. A few States have by statute prohibited such wage assign-
ments and others, like Illinois, limit the amount of wages assignable
and the period of time the assignment may cover—see Annotations,
137 A.LR. 788(1942) ; 37 A.L.R. 872(1925) —but in many States they
are valid and enforceable in the courts. Hence, to complete the job, I
would suggest a new subsection (b) of section 202 reading :

No person shall take any assignment of the future earnings of another in the
form of wages, salary, commission or bonus as compensation for personal service,
and all such assignments shall be void and unenforceable.

If the committee were to adopt my suggestion of a limit on earnings
protected from garnishment, and considered a similar limit appro-
priate for wage assignments, the new subsection (b) might read:

No person shall take any assignment of the future earnings of another in the
form of wages, salary, commission or bonus as compensation for personal service
save for the amount in excess of $285 per week, and no such assignment shall be
valid and enforceable save for such excess.

1If either of these proposals were adopted, present subsection (b)
of section 202 should be redesignated subsection (c) and amended to
cover violations of either subsection (a) or subsection (b).

In conclusion let me anticipate that there will doubtless be testimony
* that the abolition or restriction of wage garnishments and assignments
will bring ruin to the institution of consumer credit. Any witness tak-
ing this position should be invited to explain data presented to a Cali-
fornia legislative committee by the Associated Credit Bureaus of Cali-
fornia, and summarized by Mr. Brunn at pages 1239-1243 of volume
53 of the California Law Review, which indicates that installment
credit thrives as well in Alabama where 75 percent of wages are exempt
from execution, in California where as a practical matter only 50
percent is exempt, and in Colorado which exempts 70 percent for heads
of families and 35 percent for single persons, as it does in Texas and
New Jersey with 100 percent exemptions, or in New York with a 90-
percent exemption, or in North Carolina which exempts up to 100
percent where needed for support of the debtor’s family.

Thank you.

Mrs. Suriavan. Thank you very much, Mr. Countryman.

(The full statement of Mr. Countryman and a draft of a uniform
consumer credit code provision on garnishment follow:)

" | STATEMENT OF VERN COUNTRYMAN oN H.R. 11601

My name is Vern Countryman. I am Professor of Law at Harvard Law School.
I have been teaching the law of creditors’ rights and bankruptcy since 1946,
. save for a four-year period, 1955-1959, when I practiced law in Washington, D.C.
T do not appear here to testify on all aspects of H.R. 11601. I-am not an ex-
pert on consumer credit—a subject I have just begun to study. I have gotten only
. 'far enough in my efforts to know that reliable -information on the subject is
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scarce and that where is a real need for the sort of investigation which Title III
of H.R. 11601 would authorize.

I appear to testify in general support of Title II' of H.R. 11601, which would
prohibit the garnishment of wages, although I have several suggestions to make
for changes in the proposal. )

The problem with which Title IT would deal is a nationwide ones because nearly
all states permit wage garnishments. Some limit the remedy to creditors who
have first reduced their claims to judgment but most permit the creditor to
garnishee the employer when suit is initiated. In some states a separate levy
is required each payday ; in others, the initial levy is a continuing one until
the creditor’s judgment is paid.

All states exempt some portion of the debtor’s wages from garnishment, but
the exemptions vary drastically. In some states they are expressed in dollar
amounts and they range from $350 for married debtors and $200 for single
debtors in Alaska to $50 for all debtors in Rhode Island. In other states they
are expressed in percentages and range from 50% in Arizona to 100% in Florida,
Pennsylvania and Texas. Most exemption laws, also, are confined to residents
and afford no protection to the many debtors whose employers can be served
with garnishment process outside the state of the debtor’s residence,

The best and most recent survey of this bewildering pattern of state wage gar-
nishment laws is an article by Mr, George Brunn, published in volume 53 of the
California Law Review in 1965. I have a copy of that article with me and would
be happy to submit it to the Committee if you would care to have it.

The consequences of wage garnishment are principally three :

(1) If garnishment of the employer is effected outside the state of the
debtor’s residence, he may find his wages shut off entirely. If it is effected in
the state of his residence, he may find himself left to support his family on
$50 a month in Rhode Island, $67.50 a month in Kentucky, $20 a week in
New Hampshire, or half of his $75 a week wage in Arizona, or 509, of his
wage or $25, whichever is less, in Vermont., y

(2) Without regard to the amount of the exemption, the debtor may find
himself unemployed. Many employers do not take kindly to the extra book-
keeping required by garnishment levies, particularly if they are repeated.
Labor unions have been largely ineffective in protecting their members
against such employer retaliation although some collective bargaining con-
tracts give the employee one or two free garnishments before discharge.

(3) To save his job and support his family, the debtor may be driven
to resort to bankruptcy in many cases where he would not otherwise do
S0 in order to dissolve -the garnishment levy or prevent threatened levies.
As the number of non-business bankruptcies has increased more than twenty
fold, from 8,500 to almost 176,000, between 1946 and 1966, this is a matter
of some consequence to the federal bankruptecy courts. ;

Precise information on the relationship of wage garnishment to bankruptcy
is, of course, not available. But there is enough evidence to support a recent
statement of the Bureau of Labor Standards that “There seems to be a direct
connection between the number of garnishments and the number of personal
bankruptcies.” Debt Pooling and Garnishment in Relation to Consumer Indebted-
ness, Fact Sheet No. 4-F (1966).

Mr. Brunn, in his California Law Review article, made a study of the 10
states with tthe highest and the 10 states with the lowest per eapita personal
bankruptey rates in 1962. The results are so interesting that I reproduce them
here.

Personal bankruptcies per 100,000 population

Alabama _______________________ 279 | North Carolina _________._.______ 1
Oregon _____ i - 200 | Texas ____. RN T I S s W 2
Tennessee 184 | South Carolina __________________ 3
Maine ____ il 158 | Pennsylvania ______.______ .~ 4
Georgia ______._________________ 149 | Maryland 5
California __ - 145 | Floridar —___________ _____ """ 7
Arizona ________________________ 147 | Delaware - e 10
Illinois o __ 134 | South. Dakota ___________________ 11
Ohio o 132 | New Jersey s 11
Colorado - --- 131] Alaska _ 13

Of the states with the lowest personal bankruptey filings, Florida, Pennsylvanizt
and Texas had a 1009 wage exemption, North Carolina, South Carolina and
South Dakota authorized exemptions up to 100% if needed to support the debtor’s
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family. New Jersey had a 90% exemption, and Alaska exempted $350 for married
and $200 for single debtors. Maryland exempted only 75% in some counties and
‘$100 in others, but wage garnishments were little used there because of the
necessity of a separate levy every payday.

Of the states with the highest personal bankruptcy filings:

Alabama had a 75% exemption.

Oregon exempted $175.

Tennessee exempted $17 per week for the head of a family plus $2.50 per week
for each dependent under 16, and $12 per week for debtors who were not heads
of families. )

Maine allowed garnishment of not to exceed $30 per month but provided that
at least $10 should be exempt.

Georgia exempted $3 per day plus 50% of the excess.

Arizona had a 509 exemption.

California exempted 50% but authorized more, up to 100%, if needed to sup-
‘port the debtor’s/family and if the creditor’s claim was not for necessaries.

Ohio exempted 80% of the first $300 per month and 609% of the balance (with a
minimum of $150), and $100 for debtors who were not heads of families.

Colorado exempted 70% for heads of families and 35% for others.

Tllinois had the highest exemption in this group—859% or $45 per week, which-
ever was more, with a maximum of $200 per week. But the Illinois experience is
jnstructive further. Until a 1961 amendment to its law, its exemption was only $45
per week. Between 1961 and 1964 Mr. Brunn found that personal bankruptices in
Illinois declined 9% while they were increasing 18% nationally. [And I find that

“they have declined another 4% in T1linois from 1964 and 1966 while they have in-
creased another 2% nationally.]

. Mr. Brunn also studied the experience of Iowa, which moved in the opposite
direction in 1957 by ‘abolishing its 100% wage exemption and substituting $35
per week plus $3 per dependent. Since 1957 personal bankruptcies have multiplied
3.6 times in Iowa while multiplying 2.8 times nationalily.

It may be said that these figures alone do not prove that wage garnishment is
a contributing cause of bankruptcy. It may merely be a series of remarkable
‘coincidences. Or it may be that the financial difficulties which led to garnish-
ment would ha\%e led to bankruptcy had there been no garnishment.

“"But we need not rely on the figures alone, Last week you heard the testimony
~of ‘three able and experienced Referees in Bankruptey from, states where wage
‘garnishment is heavily employed (Oregon, Tennessee and California). They were
wnanimously of the view that wage garnishments caused bankruptcy filings
by many debtors who would noit otherwise have filed.
_ That view is supported also by studies of personal bankruptcies in which the
bankrupts were interviewed. In one such study, involving 84 bankrupts in Michi-
“gan, T5% . indicated that garnishment or the threat . of garnishment was the
‘reason for thei;i' filing in bankruptcy. Dolphin, An Analysis of Economic and
“personal Factors Leading to Consumer Banlkruptcy (1965), p. 18. In another
study in Illinois in which 73 bankrupts were interviewed, 35 said that threat of
garnishmpnt ‘or fear of job loss was what caused them to go into bankruptcy.
Stabler, The Eaperience of Bankruptcy (1966), p. 7. Other similar studies which
did not include' personal interviews with the bankrupts reveal :

Out of 300 cases in Seattle, 69 debtors had suffered one garnishment in the four
nmonths preceding bankruptcey, 14 more had experienced two garnishments in
“that period, and 4 had been garnished 3 or more times. Brogky, A study of Per-
sonal Bankruptcy in the Seattle Metropolitan Area (1965), p. 39.

Interviews with bankruptey attorneys in Utah revealed their opinion that most
personal bankrupts have either had their wages garnished or have been threatened
Wi§g4 gami;gme nt. Misbach, Personal Bankruptcy in the United States and Utah

.. (1964), p. 33.

To this I wounld like to add my own opinion, based on discussions with many
Referees in Bankruptey and bankruptcy attorneys, and on the examination of
the files in hundreds of bankruptcy cases, that wage garnishment, either actual
or threatened, is a precipitating cause in a very substantial number of personal
bankruptecy cases. :

I have previously estimated, based on my studies of the official bankruptey
statistics published by the Administrative Office of the United States Courts,
that over a billion-dollars in creditors claims per year is being -discharged in
“hankruptey cages and more than 90% of these cases are personal bankruptcies.
Countryman, The Bankruptcy Boom, 17 Harv. L. Rev. 1452 (1964). A more recent
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analysis of the statistics has persuaded me that my prior estimate was far too

low and that the amount of credxtors clalms discharged is now approachmg t,wo
billion dollars per year. ’

~ This figure may not reflect serious damage to the bankers, loan companies and
finance companies whose losses probably do not exceed one-half of one percent
of loans outstanding, nor to the installment seller operating on a 1009 markup
who break even whenever he loses only one-half of his claim. After all, they can
shift half of their relatively small loss to the federal fisc when they make out

 their tax returns. But there are other small volume; low margin creditors for
whom bankruptcy of a debtor is a painful blow.

Moreover, bankruptey is-a catastrophe for the debtor. As one observer has said,
“Although uninformed people may minimize the gravity of the consumer bank-
ruptcy problem by saying that only one-tenth of one per cent of the population
goes bankrupt, there is a qualitative dimension in human distress that is under-
stated by such statistics.” Myers, Non-Business Bankruptcies, in Proceedings of
Tenth Annual Conference, Council on Consumer Information, page 9. I would

" agree, and would add that the studies referred to above, and others indicate that
‘the typical bankrupt has three or four dependents, so that the human distress is
felt not merely by the 176,000 personal bankrupts, but families whose members

number from 700,000 to 880,000.

- My eoncluswns about the relationship of Wage garnishments to bankruptecy

lead-me to my first suggested change in H.R. 11601. I would suggest that the

finding in Section 201 of the bill be not confined to the effect of wage garnishment
“on interstate commerce, but that it take account also of the effect of wage gar-
-nishment -on the federal bankruptcy system. It is ludicrous, unseemly and un-
“economic-to have most of the states providing creditors with a remedy for col-

lection and the federal bankruptey system providing debtors with a countervailing
~remedy to undo what state laws has allowed the-creditor to do. It is well within
“the power of Congress to do directly what it now authorizes indirectly and to

relieve the federal bankruptcy system of the burden of cases where bankruptcy
“petitions are filed only to avoid garnishment.

“‘Second, I would suggest that the term ‘‘wages” in the Title of Title II and in
“Section 201 is probably too restrictive, and that the same is true of “wages or
-galary” in Section 202(a). The compensation of many of those you would want

to protect from garnishment is derived, wholly or in part, from commissions and

bonuses. I would suggest, instead, that the reference in the Title and in Section
©201 be changed from “wages” to ‘“personal earnings” and that in Section 202(a),
- the operative Section “earnings in the form of wages, salary, commission or bonus’
-as compensation for personal service” be substituted for ‘“wages or salary due an

employee.” I would delete the .second reference to ‘“employee” in Section 202(a)
- because of experience with the wage priority under section 64a(2) of the Bank-
“ruptey Act where it threetimes became necessary to amend the original language,
““wages due to workmen, clerks, or servants,” once by addlng “traveling or city

salesmen,” again by adding “on a salary or a  commission basis, whole or part-
~time,” ‘and finally by adding “whether or not they are mdependent contractors

. with or without a drawing account.”

If this suggestion were followed in its entirety, section 202(a) might read:

“No person may attach or garnish or by any similar legal or equitable process
“or order stop or divert the payment of earnings in the form of wages, salary,

commission or bonus as compensation for personal service.”

Third, I doubt the necessity of prohvbltlng garmshment of all earnings, re-
gardless of size. I see no necess1ty for immunizing all the income of entertainers,

~corporate executives, ete. whose incomes approach or run into six figures.

I realize the difficulty of fixing a limit. One recent proposal suggests a poverty-
~level limit of $3,600, which I regard as much too low. Karlen, Exemptions from
- Baecution, 22 Bus. Law. 1167, 1171 (1967). The present working ‘draft of the

Uniform Consumer Credit Code, a project of the National Conference of Com-
‘missioners on Uniform State Laws which is not yet in final form, would put the
“limit at $100 per week for debtors with dependents and $65 per week for others
- [and would limit the protection to consumer credit claims.]. This seems too low

to me also, but I have attached to my statement a copy of the pertinent sections
of the present draft of the Code so that the Committee can examine them.
. The studies of personal bankruptcies to which I have previously referred indi-
- cate that the typical bankrupt has an income of about $5,000 per year. I would
* take that figure as an indication that the protection against: garnishment should
extend considerably higher.

83-340—67—pt. 2——10
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Flgures compiled by John A. Gorman, Associate Chief, National Income Divi-
sion, Office of Business Economics, U.S. Department of Commerce, and reported
in the Wall Street Journal, May 31, 1967, p. 1, col. 6, show the following average
family incomes.

Year Amount, actual Amount, revised

3, 860 $3, 945
$ ( %9 7)

(I have been- in touch with Mr. Gorman and he advises me that because
of a revision in national income accounts the figures for earlier years should
be revised as I :have indicated in parentheses.)

I should suppose that protection against garnishment should also exitend well
beyond the income of the average family. It therefore seems to me that a figure
in the neighborhood of about $15,000, translated into $285 per week, would be
appropriate. i

Mr. Gorman’s ﬁgures illustrate another problem, however. That is a problem
of obsolescence, since laws like these tend not to get periodic revision—the Con-
necticut exemption law still saves to a debtor ten bushels of Indian corn. Obso-
leteness accounts for the inadequacy of many of the state wage exemption laws
which employ dollar amounts. But the percentage exemption laws produce ex-
cessive exemptions for large income debtors and inadequate ones for small in-
come debtors, regardless of the percentage used.

The present working draft of the Uniform Consumer Credit Code would solve
this problem by using dollar amounts and authorizing an administrator to change
them whenever there is a change of 10% or more in the U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage earners and Clerical Work-

.ers. Under H.R. 11601 the same function might well be assigned to the Federal
Reserve Board.
© An alternative method of handling this problem would be to tie the exemption
" to a legislatively-fixed figure which does seem to receive periodic revision—the
amount of earnings subject to tax under Section 209 of the Social Security Act.
Currently, that: figure is $6,000, although H.R. 5710, as reported out by the
House Committee on Ways and Means, would raise the figure to $7,600. An
exemption in H.R. 11601 for twice the amount of earnings taxed under the
Social Secumty Act would come very close to the $15,000 exemption I have
suggested.

Fourth, and ﬁna,lly, if you go no further than to proteet wages from garnish-
ment, you may not accomplish much. In many states the creditor will be
able to reach the debtor’s income by taking an advance assignment of future
‘wages at the time of extending credit. And since employers find wage .assign-
ments as annoying as garnishments, there will be the same jeopardy to the
debtor’s job. Again the debtor will be driven into bankruptcy—this time to get
the debt discharged so as to free his post-bankruptecy -earnings from the lien of
the wage assignment. Mr. Justice Fortas, while still a law student, made an
exhaustive study of the use of wage assignments in Chicago. Fortas, Wage As-
signments in Ohicago—State Street Furniture Co. v. Armour & Co., 42 Yale L. J.
526(1933). That was followed in 1935 by a statute limiting assignable wages
to 259 and limiting the effectiveness of the assignment to three years. Later
reports indicated that the situation was not much improved [see Satter, Wage As-
signments and Garnishment Cited as Major Case of Bankruptcey im Illinois, 15 Per.
Fin. L. Q. Rep. 50 (1961)1, and in 1961, when Illinois liberalized its exemptlon
from garnishment, it also amended the Wage Assignment Law to limit asmgn—
able wages to 15%. As previously indicated, the rate of personal bankruptcies in
Illinois has consistently -declined since 1961. A few states have by statute pro-
" hibited such wage assignments and others, like Illinois, limit the amount of
wages assignable and the period of time the assignment may cover [See Anno-
ta‘tlons, 137 A.L.R. 738(1942) ; 37 A.L.R. 872(1925)], but in many states they
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are valid and enforceable in the courts. Hence, to complete the job, I would
suggest a new subsection (b) of Section 202 reading:

“No person shall take any assignment of the future earnings of another in the
form of wages, salary, commission or bonus as compensation for personal service,
and all such assignments shall be void and unenforceable.”

If the Committee were to adopt my suggestion of a limit on earnings protected
from garnishment, and considered a similar limit appropriate for wage assign-
ments, the new subsection (b) might read: )

“No person shall take any assignment of the future earnings of ‘another in the
form of wages, salary, commission or bonus as compensation for personal service
save for the amount in excess of $285 per week, and no such assignment shall
be valid and enforceable save for such excess.” :

If either of these proposals were adopted, present subseetion (b) of Section
202 'should be redesignated subsection (¢) and amended to cover violations of

In conclusion let me anticipate that there will doubtless be testimony that the
abolition or restriction of wage garnishments and assignments will bring ruin
to the institution of consumer credit. Any witness taking this position should be
invited to explain data presented to a California legislative committee by the
Associated Credit Bureaus of California, and summarized by Mr. Brunn at pages
1239-1243 of volume 53 of the California Law Review, which indicates that in
stallment credit thrives as well in Alabama where 759 of wages are exempt
from execution, in California where as a practical matter only 509% is exempt,
and in Colorado which exempts 70% for heads of families and 859, for single
persons, as it does in Texas and New Jersey with 1009, exemptions, or in New
York with a 90% exemption, or in North Carolina which exempts up to 100%
where needed for support of the debtor’s family.

NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS
UNIFORM CONSUMER CREDIT CODE
(Working Draft No. 4)

Section 1.106. [Hscalation.] )

[Certain dollar amounts in this Act which are designated as subject to escala-~
tion pursuant to this section shall be changed from time to time by action of the
Administrator in accordance with changes in the United States Bureau of Labor

. Btatistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers.

On or before April 30 of each even-numbered year the Administrator shall com-
pare the index at the end of the preceding calendar year and at [December 31,
1967] and shall calculate the percentage by which the Index has changed. If the
change is 10 per cent or more, he shall promulgate a rule changing the dollar
amounts in this Act which are designated as subject to escalation pursuant to
this section, unless any change required by this section has already been made by
the Administrator in a prior rule pursuant to this section. These dollar amounts
shall be changed to the extent of the change in the Index, except that they shall
be changed only in integral multiples of 10 per cent of the dollar amounts appear-

~ing in this Act at the time of its enactment. If the percentage change in the

Index is more than an integral multiple of 10 per cent, the fractional portion
of the change shall be disregarded. The changes made by the Administrator shall
become effective on the July 1 immediately following promulgation of the rule.]
Section 5.105. [Limitation on Garnishment of Unpaid Earwings.]
(1) A creditor may not receive in payment of a judgment arising out of a
consumer credit sale, a consumer lease or a consumer loan unpaid earnings of the
debtor through garnishment or like proceedings directed to a person other than

_ the debtor, except to the extent that the amount received by the creditor repre-

sents earnings of the debtor earned from all sources in excess of $100* in any
calendar week in the case of a debtor with dependents, and $65* in any calendar
week in the case of a debtor without dependents. For the purpose of determining
a debtor’s weekly earnings, any amounts paid or payable to another creditor
because of a previous garnishment or like proceedings directed to a person other
than the debtor, or irrevocable assignment of ‘earnings, is not included in the
amount earned. i )

(2) This section does not subject either the levying officer or the person to
whom garnishment proceedings are directed to any liability if earnings are paid
to the creditor in violation of this section.
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©. (3) Figures in thig section marked with-an asterisk are subject to escalation
pursuant to Section 1.106. : S E g
" - Mrs. Surravan. I want to thank every one of you witnesses for giv-
" ing us your time and your knowledge this morning. The bells have rung
~once and are going to ring again and at that point we will have to go to
“the floor. I just can’t tell you how much I appreciate the patience and
cooperation of everyone of these outstanding witnesses.
~ Ithink all of you have shed light on thislegislation. o
Unfortunately, we have no time for extended questioning. ‘I
promised Mr. Fino, who gave up his time before, that I
~would call on him. What I am going to ask all of you is, if we have
some specific questions to put to you—and I think our committee
counsel will certainly want to submit some questions to Mr. Country-
man for our further information on the points that you brought out,
professor—if we can give these to you quickly, could you get them back
to us when you go over your part of the transcript? We would appre-
. ciate it very much. , ;
~ With that I am going to call on Mr. Fino because I promised him
* an opportunity to question and then we will adjourn. e

Mr. Fivo. I just wanted to ask Mr. Keyserling one question. -

Do you think that the credit unions in this country are doing a good
job in supplying loans to members for consumer items ¢ ; “

Mr. Kryseruine. I think they are helping. I don’t think they are
completely meeting the unmet need by any means. I think they are
a helpful instrumentality.

Mr. Fixo. You know for a fact that the credit unions do charge 12
percent per annum interest rates; is that right ?
~ Mr. Keyseruing. I am not aware of the details of what they charge.

Mr. Fixo. You have, if I understood your testimony, expressed some

~ fears about an 18-percent national usury limit.

What would you suggest? . ,

Mr. Kevseruineg. Well, let me explain myself a little bit on that.

T don’t want. to sound extremist, but our whole national conscience
“on the subject of interest rates has gone absolutely wild, and this is
one aspect of it. S .
- Our great corporations get money for their investment purposes
~ without paying anything for the cost of the money, because they
. finance it out of retained earnings and out of the consumer through
.-the price structure. : - : IR i
- Furthermore, they are supplied with extravagant tax bonanzas like
g deplet?n and depreciation allowances, which are neither needed nor
“merited. . FOURTRE | SNt o e
So, in effect they are paying a zero or a minus rate of interest.
I read ifr the papets recently that one of our biggest business cor-
" porations—I read this—one of the big corporations, I cannot recall
_ the name, recently obtained money at the rate of 6 or 7 percent, which
is the highest they ever paid on record. I could carry this all up and
- down the line. The point is, it is personally repugnant to me, if no more, -
" that we should regard 18 percent as a proper ceiling for the interest
- rate—and T won’t quibble about the differences between the interest
rate and service charges; 1 have already expressed myself on that—
for the poorest and most lowly and most unable to protect themselves,
~ who are under the greatest compulsion to borrow because they other-
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wise simply cannot make ends meet, even for necessities. Almost half of
the people in our country dissave on net balance—they spend more
every year than they earn. So I find it deplorable that we feel bound
to set an 18 percent interest rate ceiling for these people, which is
three times the rate at which (as I have cited) a powerful corporation
can borrow money on bonds while many of our greatest corporations
finance themselves and do not have interest costs of large significance.

I think the ceiling should be very much lower. I don’t put much
stock in the idea that they should pay a higher interest rate because
they are a greater risk. They may be a greater risk for profound rea-
sons which should require that they get moneys at lower rates of
interest, not higher. Indeed, I don’t know that they are a greater risk
because in general the records don’t show that poor people don’t meet
their obligations as well as those higher up. It may be the reverse. I
can’t suggest a particular figure, because it goes to the question of
other interest rates. There was a time in my recollection when some
of the most conservative Members of the House and Senate joined
with me in the idea of setting maximum interest rates on housing loans
that were 50- to 75-percent lower than the effective rates now. The
whole trend at that time was toward bringing interest rates down-
ward. This was not only socially desirable; it was good for the coun-
try, for reasons that I can’t elaborate here, due to the shortage of
time.

The whole trend since 1952 has been moving in the opposite direc-
tion. If I had to pick a figure out of a hat, I would risk it and say that
15 percent or 12 percent would be better than 18.

Now, you will get a lot of objection to this on various grounds, and
I couldn’t support a precise figure at this moment. But 18 percent
seems to me very much too high.

Mr. Fino. Are you telling this committee that at least 12 percent
is the necessary figure?

Mr. KeyserunG. No, sir. I am not saying that. I am saying that
12 percent or 15 percent would be better than 18. I am not going to
take the position that even 12 percent is a conscionable interest rate
for the kind of people borrowing money for these kinds of purposes.
They ought to be able to borrow for much less, even if this requires
new public programs.

Mr. Fivo. Thank you.

Mrs. Surrivan. If any of the witnesses this morning have any other
comments that you would like to add to cover the points raised today,
please attach them to your transcript when it comes to you. We would
be most happy to have them as part of the record.

With that the subcommittee is recessed until tomorrow at 10 when
we meet with Secretary Wirtz, Mr. Farris Bryant of the Office of
Emergency Planning, and Mr. I. W. Abel, president of the United
Steelworkers of America.

(Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene
at 10 a.m., Thursday, August 17,1967.)
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THURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 1967

House or ReprESENTATIVES,
SuBcommITTEE ON CONSUMER Arrarrs,
OF THE COMMITTEE ON BANKING AND Currency,
Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to recess, at 10 a.m. in room 2198,
-Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Leonor K. Sullivan (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding. , ‘

Members of the subcommittees present: Representatives Sullivan,
Stephens, Annunzio, Bingham, Dwyer, Fino, lgalpern, and Wylie.

Also present: Representative Widnall. :

rs. SurLivan. The Subcommittee on Consumer A ffairs will please
come to order.

We are approaching the end of 2 long weeks of hearings on FL.R.
11601 and H.R. 11602, two very different bills dealing with consumer
credit, and we can look back now from this vantage point to see a
tremendous amount of progress in delineating the issues involved in
the Senate-passed truth in lending bill compared to the Consumer
Credit Protection Act.

Again, T want to pay tribute to the faithful attendance of so many
mem%)ers of the subcommittee and the hard work and thought they
have devoted during these past 2 weeks to this most important
legislation.

Today, we will hear from the last two administration witnesses
scheduled to testify on this legislation. We have already heard testi-
mony from an imposing array of top administration leadership—the
Secretaries of Commerce and of Housing and Urban Development, the
Under Secretary of the Treasury, the z(];)irector of the Office of Eco-
nomic Opportunity, the Administrator of Small Business Administra-
tion, the Special Assistant to the President for Consumer Affairs, the
Chairman of the Federal Trade Commision, the Vice Chairman of the
Federal Reserve Board of Governors, and the Commissioner of the
Federal Housing Administration. :

Today, we are privileged to have as our first witness the Honorable
W. Willard Wirtz, Secretary of Labor, whose eloquence and wit and
good hard sense make him one of the best witnesses any congressional
committee could ever ask for. He is the only man I know in public life
who could possibly have written some of the late Adlai Stevenson’s
speeches, for he has the same skill with words and concepts which
made Mr. Stevenson’s prose so delightful to hear. :

Following Mr. Wirtz, we will hear from Mr. I. W. Abel, president,
of the United Steelworkers of America, one of the outstanding leaders
of the American labor movement and one who has worked diligently
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for the improvement of the conditions of living of all Americans.

Then, later in the morning, Gov. Farris Bryant, of the Office of
Emer%ency Planning, will testify on the section of H.R. 11601 dealing
directly with the question of ‘wartime or national emergency standby
credit controls—section 208.

The House is going to meet at 11 oclock this morning. We have been
assured, informally at least, that we could get permission to sit while
the House was debating the social security%)ill. But all of us are very
anxious to know the details about that bill, which is so important
to our constituents. So, what we are going to try to do this morning
is to hear all of our witnesses before 12 o’clock, if possible. We will di-
vide most of the time up between Secretary Wirtz and Mr. Abel, with
Governor Bryant coming in about 11:15 or 11:30. We have made ar-
rangements for other witnesses who are coming in to present their state-
‘ments for the record. I think it might be best, Mr. Secretary, if you
would try to summarize your statement and then we will cut down
the time for questioning by the members to about 3 minutes apiece
instead of the usual 5 minutes so that we can make sure everyone has
an opportunity to question. S ‘

We are particularly interested in your views and those of your De-
partment on title IT of H.R. 11601 dealing with the odious and cruel
use of wage garnishment by unscrupulous credit or loan companies
as a selling tool in extending credit without any attempt at assessing
the applicant’s ability to repay the debt except through the garnish-
ment of his wages. : ' ; ‘ :

Of course, we welcome your views on any and all provisions of the
legislation. Again, I want to say how pleased we are that you have
accepted our invitation to appear. If you will proceed, Mr. Secretary,
we will be very happy to have you start out this morning.

'§TATEMENT OF HON. W. WILLARD WIRTZ, SECRETARY OF LABOR;
ACCOMPANIED BY ESTHER PETERSON, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
- FOR LABOR STANDARDS \ | o

" Secretary: Wirtz. I understand the statement I filed will be made.
pa,ptki)‘f the record if that is agreeable, and I can summarize very
quickly. : . » : ; ) ~
Mrs, Sunrivan. The entire statement will be put in the record. -
_ Secretary Wirrz. In going over the record of these hearings I have
come to two conclusions, (1) that they are very closely related to the
proposals at hand, and (2) that they have been eminently construc-
five as far as the illumination of this subject, indeed so that there is
very little left for meto say. : ; i
T den’t want to burden this record. I don’t want to be misunder-
stood. I incorporate by reference all that has been said by the other
witnesses in support of this legislation and really, only add two other
things. First, to point out that my particular reason for being here
is that under the 1%)e};)a.rtmefnt of Labor’s organic law the Secretary of
Tabor is identified as having responsibility with respect to the interest
of wage earners, and I know of no interest of a wage earner which is’
larger than the interest in the protection of his credit.
 Because, when you think about it, there is as much importance to
him in what his money buys as there is in the money that he gets be-
cause he spends most of it and T have pointed out in this statement
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that some abuse of credit can have exactly the same effect on a wage
earner as a reduction in his wagesora layoi%t ‘

. Itis just the other side of earning it. I pointed out, too, that we try,
in our imperfect way, in this soclety to balance up the odds on the
two sides of most bargains that are made in our capacity as producers.
_ As.a producer, the wage earner is typically organized. As a con-
sumer he is not organized. He bargains collectively on his wages but
he buys alone. He buys without the advantage of advice of counsel
which the other side has and he does it without knowledge of the fine
print. I think that this legislation is an important vehicle to try to
even up the odds as much as we can. DL

I would have preferred, as you know, to be testifying in support of
even broader provisions than some of those included here. I respect
greatly your statement on the floor that your purpose is to introduce
some matters that go beyond the immediate prospects of passage.

I should be happy to be testifying in support of all of them. But
because of the dictates of practicalit , our interests center on the
truth-in-lending provisions at this point $0 it is with respect to those
provisions that my testimeny is developed. o ' :

I have in the statement made reference to some of the other things
which were in the original form of S. 5—some of the things which are
in H.R. 11601. But T have noted too, that it does not seem to be a
a compromise of principle to give reasonable recognition—and by
reasonable I mean no more than is practically necessary—to the part
which time plays whenever there is a change to be made. =~ :

I urge as strongly as I can the enactment of the truth-in-lending
provisions, but I also urge that we keep on the agenda the other
points that are raised in FL.R. 11601. v , ,

_ I would like to say something about garnishment because it has
played so large a part in your hearings these last several days, that
not to say something about it would be to be misconstrued. :

I expect I have a personal bias about garnishment. S

I grew up in a small town where my family ran one of the two
furniture stores in that town. That furniture store was run by a'man
who simply refused to bring the authority of the law to bear on his
customers. Now, I expect that there was a little of the small town
morality in that, and I expect it was not untinged by the realization
that in a town that size you do business with people more than once
and you just don’t hit them the minute they leave the store.

He would never garnish a customer’s wage. L

There was another store in town which advertised easy credit. I
don’t remember the name of the competitor, but I remember what we
called him around the supper table—it was “easy”’—that was the
term that was used. He was out of business in about 4 or 5 years, but
he had quite an influence on the furniture business in that town and,
frankly, T will be very happy to be here when “easy” and all his suc-
cessors are caught up with because I don’t like that way of doing
business. , .

As Secretary of Labor, T know there are a great many people in this
countrﬁr who are denied employment, because their wages have been
garnished. Tt is just that simple, just that direct. And whenever there
1s anything which has the effect of denying employment to those who
nee(cil it most I don’t like it, and I think it is something we must at-
tend to.
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It was, therefore, with very great satisfaction that I saw the Presi-
dent’s statement, as you did, in his March 14 poverty message in which
he set out very clearly the necessity of doing something about garnish-
ment and asked that a study be made by the Attorney General, the
Secretary of Labor, and the Director of the Office of Economic Op-
portunity. :

The study is being made and it isn’t completed. I think probably
it should be completed before there is definitive action in this par-
ticular area. :

Strongly as I feel about the necessity of correcting this situation, T
feel equally strongly we have to do the right thing about it, and by

the right thing I mean whatever will be most effective. We know
enough of the law on this subject to know that garnishment developed
after we had prohibited imprisonment for debt. We left an opening
and we don’t want to do that again. This is not a simple subject. There
are some hard questions. As an illustration, there is the question of
whether there should be exemptions to any prohibition, of garnish-
ment in the case of family debts—obligations such as alimony, child
care, and so forth. That is not an easy one.

The experience of the States, of course, has been very extensive on
this subject. It presents the question of whether there should be a pro-
hibition or whether there should be a protection of a minimum wage.
The experience in the States also presents the question of whether
another effective remedy would be to prohibit discharge of an employee
for having his wage garnished.

I originally thought the later was perhaps the answer. But now
T don’t think it is. I think that that puts the employer into an impos-
sible position. So, I doubt that that’s the answer. I think there is a
serious question of what we do about wage assignments if we are go-
ing to prohibit garnishment, and I have listed some of those matters
in my statement. I only say this, Madam Chairman and members of
the committee, I think it is constructive counsel to suggest that there
is still some more information to be obtained and some debate to take
place with respect to how we may most effectively deal with the gar-
nishment problem.

1 suggest that, not as a counsel of delay, but as a counsel of doing the
thing right. I come to the conclusion that there is more consideration
swhich should be given to this matter than we can give now.

In concluding this summary, Madam Chairman and members of
the committee, I think the country is in your debt for these last 2
weeks of illumination of this subject.

When I look back over the record of these hearings I realize that
it is just almost incredible that we have waited this long to be this
frank about something so important as this whole credit business.

I wish T could add more to it, and I stop only out of respect for
what has already been developed and invite, with Mrs. Peterson, who
is experienced in this area, I hardly need mention, whatever questions
you have.

(The Secretary’s full statement follows:)

STATEMENT OF W. WILLARD WIRTZ, SECRETARY OF LABOR

Madam Chaﬁrman and members of the subcommittee, there is legitimate ques-
tion at this point whether much more can be said, without burdening the record
unduly, about H.R. 11601.
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The appearance here during the past two weeks of representatives of eight
Government agencies and the Special Assistant to the President for Consumer
Affairs attests the broad significance of this legislation and the full recognition
of its importance.

So I shall be brief even to the point of risking misunderstanding,

The organic law of the Department identifies in the Secretary of Labor, how-
ever, a particular responsibility for “the interests of the wage earner,” and few
such interests are larger than that in protecting against abuse of his-or-her use
of credit. For what is earned is useful principally for what it buys, and: the
effect of an unfair credit charge on a wage earner is indistinguishable from
the effect of a wage reduction or a temporary layoff.

Wage earners are organized, to a considerable extent, in their capacity as
producers; but not in their capacity as consumers. They bargain with em-
ployers collectively ; but they buy alone, and at the disadvantage of unfamiliarity
with the hazards of fine print. When they make purchase contracts, only the
other party has the advantage of advice of counsel. They are entitled, at the
very least, to have plainly stated truth as an ally when they go into the market-
place to buy the fruit of their own labor.

I make only the point that we try, in a variety of ways, to even up the odds
between those who do business with each other and to prevent, so far as is
practicable, undue advantage to either side in bargains that have to be made.
The legislation under consideration contributes to this purpose in an area where
it has been too little served.

Disclosure of the rates charged for consumer credit is an essential and im-
portant step toward more rational and fair consumer credit practices. Certainly,
it is basie in deciding whether to borrow to buy. Without intelligible information
on the cost of consumer credit, good management of family income ig virtually
impossible.

The buyer has every right to be told the price in. words and figures he can
understand—in terms which enable him to compare the rates offered by one
seller or lender with those of another. And he should have the facts to permit him
to decide whether he might not better wait and pay cash.

Both H.R. 11601 and H.R. 11602 contain workable disclosure provisions re-
quiring the disclosure, in advance, of the terms of a consumer loan. They also
require an itemized account of the cost of credit including all relevant charges,
in dollars and cents, and the finance charges expressed as an annual percentage
rate.

This means that the thoughtful buyer can gauge whether he will be able to meet
the payments in dollars, and then—armed with an annual percentage rate—ecan
make comparisons of charges between lenders or sellers. Without that calculated
annual rate he ig lost in a maze of confusing calculations.

I would prefer, frankly, to testify in support of the original provisions of 8. 5,
covering

—*“open end” or “revolving credit,”

—transactions where finance charges are less than $10,

—first mortgages on homes,

Revolving credit—while still small in volume compared to automobile loans,
for example—is the most rapidly growing type of consumer credit.

Department stores, mail order houses, furniture stores, jewelry stores, all
advertise credit arrangements, many of them “revolving” or open-end. One has
only to look at the advertisements in the Sunday paper to see how universal this
has become. Accounts are invited, and indeed are urged on everyone strongly !
Without a statement of the annual rate on such accounts, consumers will fre-
quently not know what they are really paying for the credit they use.

The exemption of credit transactions involving a $10 annual credit charge or
less, leaves out a great many credit purchases, especially those of the poor.

As a general rule, the rate of interest on most first mortgages is clearly stated
and the various charges are itemized. But with the recent scarcity of first mort-
gage money and the prevailing practice of charging “points” for financing, some
home buyers may not realize that they are in fact paying a higher rate on the
total charge. Home buyers should be entitled to credit charge information, as are
other borrowers.

There is a great deal to be said, too, for required disclosure of credit terms in
advertising. If credit is offered this way, the offer is the place to apply the rule
of whole truth—where less than that may mislead.
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I note, too, the great service the Subcommittee has performed by bringing
forward for public debate the other proposals contained in H.R. 11601, including
7 An189% limitation on credit charges;

A prohibition against “aonfession of judgment” clauses;
- Authority to regulate credit for commodity futures contracts;
~Authority to restrict consumer credit during national emergencies;
Establishment of a National Commission on Consumer Finance ; and
A 'prohibition against garnishment of wages. k

It iy’ no compromise of principle, however, to give reasonable recognition
{(which means no more than is practically necessary)  to the part which time
insists on playing wherever there is change tobe made. .

I accordingly urge the enactment now of the truth-in-lending provisions of
FH.R. 11601, with| consideration of further safeguards given its separate timing.

A decent regard for -a companion principle of truth-in-testifying prompts my
saying a little more, however, about one of these further safeguards which has
become the subject of particular attention in these hearings.

Perhaps my personal attitude about garnishment is influenced by having
grown up in a family which was in the retail furniture business, but which was
dead set againstithe idea of calling the law in to go after a customer’s earnings.
It seemed to the man who ran that store some way unfair to throw that much
weight against anybody he did business with. Perhaps it was a small town moral-
jty—possibly even tinged with the realization that in that kind of community you
count on doing business with the same person more than once. But I think it
involved a more basic ethic, and a sense of the wrongness of ever letting: institu-
tions—and “the  system”—get too large an advantage over jndividuals. 7

Perhaps, as Secretary of Labor, there is bias in the view that anything which
results in the unemployment of people who are most in need of employment is
wrong unless it is proven right on some more fundamental basis. When we sur-
‘veyed the unemployment situation in ten slum areas last November, an astonish-
‘ing number of people who were out of work listed their garnishment records
as one of the reasons they couldn’t get a job. - :

Whatever the explanation, I found basis for great satisfaction in President
-Johnson’s saying, in his March 14 Poverty Message to the Congress:

{ Hundreds of workers among the poor lose their jobsor most of their wages
each year as-a result of garnishment proceedings. In many cases, wages
‘are garnished by unsecrupulous merchants and lenders whose practices trap
the unwitting workers. . ) :

I am directing the Attorney General, in consultation ‘with the Secretary
of Labor and the Director of the Office of Economic Opportunity, to make
a comprehensive study of the problems of wage garnishment and to recom-
mend the steps that should be taken to protect thé hard-earned wages and

' the jobs of those who need the income most.

This study is well along. It is not completed. It has to be, for whatever cor-
rective action is taken in this area should be the right action; and some of the
questions about dealing with garnishment are not easily answered :

‘Whether outright and unqualified abolition: of garnishment is the right
course ; or

Whether tax debts and family relation obligations should be exceptions;

Whether only a minimum wage should be protected ;

Whether the correction should be (although I think not) a prohibition
not of garnishment but of discharge for having your wages garnished ;

‘What, if anything, to do about wage assignments ; and :

Whether the commerce or the pbankruptcy power can be more wisely used
here. ! ;

Nor is it possible yet to be confident regarding what treatment of garnishment
_will prevent the development of some alternative procedure—just as garnishment
developed as an alternative to imprisonment for debt.

- The President has indicated his purpose to pursue “the steps that should be

“taken” to remedy the garnishment situation. The remaining question is how to do

‘this. As strong as my own feeling about this practice is, I think it is constructive

counsel that the garhishment issue be handled separately—after the truth-in-

lending issue is disposed of, and after the garnishment study is completed—so
that we can be certain that the corrective action is right and effective.

‘A8 President Johnson stated in his OConsumer Message, “The American con-
sumer today enjoys the highest standard of living ever experienced in the world.
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And it has risen rapidly in recent years.” But the President went on to point out
that—

- .. the march of technology that has brought unparalleled abundance
and opportunity to the consumer has also exposed him to new complexities
and hazards. It has made his choices more difficult. It has made many of
our laws obsolete and has created the need for new legal remedies and
safeguards.

This admonition is particularly pertinent to the need for consumer credit and
wage garnishment legislation.

This concludes my statement. Assistant Secretary Peterson and I welcome the
opportunity to repsond to any questions You may have, ' ’

Mrs. SurLivan. Thank you very much, Mr. Secretary.

I am delighted that you have brought Mrs. Peterson along. We are
all very Weigl acquainted with all of her talents and T am certain that
either you or she can answer all of our questions. )

I have just three short questions that I would like to ask and then
as I said before, we will divide the time so that each member can
have 3 minutes apiece to question the Secretary. ‘

. Mr. Secretary, we have had some very, very fine witnesses in these
past 2 weeks on this garnishment problem.

Last Friday we had five gentlemen from the Federal court bank-
ruptey system, including four who are referees in bankruptcies. Their
testimony was extremely enlightening and yesterday we had a Harvard
professor of law who discussed some of the details that should be con-
sidered in writing this legislation. It was very helpful and they con-
sulted with our counsel before they left.

Garnishment is a big problem, and T agree it is a problem that needs
a lot of consideration, but it is a definite part of the overall picture of
consumer credit because the misuse of credit so often results in garnish-
ment and then, in turn, in personal bankruptcies.

Mr. Secretary, are you aware of a 1965 study done by the National
Industrial Conference Board which showed that of the employees
surveyed 43 percent had a policy of firing their employees in instances
of repeated garnishment ?

Given the fact, as one witness estimated for us the other day, that
there are upwards of 4 million wage garnishments per year and in
view of the clear policies of so many employers to fire workers who
have been garnisheed, this would appear to have a serious impact on
our economic stability, do you not agree ¢

Secretary Wirrz. Yes, I would. There are a number of such studies
which we have been looking into and surveying. '

The NICB survey sugﬁes*ts figures that are in line with others. We
are trying to arrive at a figure of the number of people who lose their
jobs in this country as a result of garnishment. I can’t tell you yet what
that figure is, but I can give you the range. We think it is some place
between 100,000 and 300,000.

That is the magnitude of this problem. It was reflected, too, in No-
vember 1966 when we went into the slum areas in 10 different citios to
find out what unemployment looked like—not statistically but on a
much more intensive basis. I think it was really the results of that
study that brought this subject into such sharp attention. We found
in those areas one of the significant factors is garnishment,

More people explained their unemployment on ithe basis of garnish-
ment than their police records, which brought us up short.

Mrs. Svrrivan. It is my understanding that in most States where
an employer fires a worker because of garnishment the worker is
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ineligible to receive unemployment benefits since such firing is con-
sidered to be a discharge for cause, is that correct ?

Secretary Wirtz. We are checking that. T don’t have the complete
report on the States. I cannot give you an up-to-date count but it
is true that in a number of States that is the consequence.

Mrs. SurLivan. Can you tell us why the Department of Labor,
in supervising unemployment insurance, accepts the policy that the
discharge of a worker for wage garnishment is a discharge for cause,
making him ineligible for unemployment insurance benefits? Could
the Department change this policy without statutory amendments?

Secretary Wirrz. The Congress has in its wisdom taken the position
we should not go any further with State standards than we have so
far gone. The particular point to which you refer has not been raised,
but the effort last year to extend the standard concept, the Federal
standard concept; was rejected and so the answer would have to be
that we do not, in line with the last part of your question, now have
authority to prescribe the standard.

Mrs. Surtavax. Mrs. Dwyer?

Mrs. Dwyzer. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

I, too, would like to say that it is wonderful to have Mrs. Peterson
back on the Hill. Tt is always a joy to work with you here.

Mr. Secretary, is it my understanding that you prefer the garnish-
ment provisions in this bill excluded ? _

Secretary Wirrz. To answer that question one way or the other
would be a little deceptive. I think quite sincerely we must find out
more about what ought to be done with respect to it. I would—if the
question is simply whether we go for straight abolition as provided
in title IT of HL.R. 11601, I would have to say that I think that this is
very possibly not the right answer, at least not in that form. We have to
find what the right answer is with respect to these various points that I
have mentioned.

I don’t mean to evade your question. But I want our answer to be
constructive. As the President has said in his poverty message, we
must take steps to meet this problem.

If your question is whether I think we should take that step at
this time, immediately at this time, I would think not.

Mrs. Dwyer. Thank you very much. That would be all.

Mrs. Surrivan. Mr. Stephens ¢

Mr. Steeurns. Thank you, Mr. Secretary, for coming before us.

As I gather from your statement on page 3, that you would prefer
this bill as it came out of the Senate ?

Secretary Wirrz. I would argue for it as it went into the Senate.
I don’t think it was strengthened there. T recognize, of course, the
practical considerations involved.

Mr: STepreNs. What you mean, then, by the original provisions of
S. 5, is not what came to us but what was originally introduced ?

Secretary Wirrz. I want to make clear that I do support many pro-
visions of 8. 5 as it came out of the Senate, but I made no bones, and
Mrs. Peterson has made none, that there are some other things we

think should be done that were in S. 5 as it was first reported.

Mr. STepEENS. In respect to garnishment, we are all interested in it.

But I think I would agree with you that we need to look into it more
before we make a complete prohibition of it. Because as these areas
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have developed I have learned =a lot more about it than I thought I
knew. T have been in the practice of law and have used it upon occasion
when I was practicing law. : '

However, we have a provision in our State of Georgia about the
amount that could be taken under garnishment proceedings from a
wage earner. But there are some things that have been pointed out
and you have pointed out some of them—the fact that 1t goes just
beyond the fact that you are going to garnishee & man’s wages. You
might also prevent some wife from collecting alimony payments that
are due to her.

Secretary Wrrrz. Or child care.

Mr. SrepuEns. And also a very important item : The Federal Gov-
ernment uses the garnishment procedure very much. In a complete
review of garnishment it is true that the position of the Federal Gov-
ernment also may cause people to be discharged because of garnish-
ment.

I have a tendency to feel that this committee, not composed of law-
yers and people recognized in that field, might better wait and let the
Judiciary Committee go into extensive hearings. They have more ex-
perts than we have on our committee in the field of judicial processes.

I would like to ask you to develop with me further if you would the
differences between the original provision of S. 5 that we now have be-
fore us that would be preferable to what we have. ,

Secretary Wirtz. My statement at the top of page 8 lists the three
principal differences. As S. 5 started out it did cover the open end or
revolving credit. It did cover first mortgages on homes and it cov-
ered transactions where the finance charges went down below the $10.
The three changes made in the Senate were with respect to those
points. Those are the ones that I have particularly in mind. T would
add another one, that wasn’t in the original S. 5, on which there has
been considerable discussion. I think there is a considerable case to be
made for extending these truth-in-lending requirements to advertising
of credit.

That was not in the original S. 5, 50 I mentioned that in a separate
category. It is in 11601 as are the other matters listed on page 4.

In specific answer to your question, it is the three points that were
in the original S. 5 and were dropped out.

Mr. StrpaeNs. Thank you very much,

Mrs. SurLivan. Mr. Fino?

Mr. Fivo. Thank you, Madam Chairman.,

Mr. Secretary, in view of the fact that you did not read your state-
ment, I don’t know whether you did cover in your statement two other
points that have been the subject of some testimony and controversy
before this subcommittee, .

One of them is the garnishment which you have elaborated on. The
other one is the standby controls on consumer credit. Some of the
Government witnesses have testified.

Do you have the same position ?

Secretary Wirrz. T know there has been that discussion. T am afraid
I can’t answer on that. T have no sensitivity to testifying, I just don’t
know enough about it to know what standby controls might be neces-
sary here.
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Mr. Fixo. The other point is on the question of the 18 percent na-
tional usury limits. There again, Government witnesses have indicated
that they are not so sensitive on that phase of the bill.

Secretary Wirtz. My position would be the same on that as on some
other points—it is a pragmatic position. We need more information.

Mr. Frxo. Mr. Secretary, you have expressed in connection with the
garnishment ban a great concern about the evils of garnishment and
yet the Federal Government, with the exception of Internal Revenue,
does not permit garnishment, , , .

Yet, although it does not permit garnishment of Federal employees’
salaries it does fire employees if they have an accumulation of bills and
- get letters from creditors that the employee owes money.

Secretary Wirrz. The Federal Government does? :

Mr, Fino. We have seen that in the postal service. Some of these
postal employees have come to me complaining their services had been
terminated because they had an accumulation of bills. I was wondering
about that. g e

Secretary Wirrz. I would be opposed to it. I don’t know on whose
toes I am stepping but it is my greatly, deeply held conviction. It
would not be my own sense of good management and it would not be
therule of the Department of Labor. - : e

Mr. Fivo. Getting back to garnishment, if we were to prohibit gar-
nishment per se don’t you think that would have a tremendous effect
on our credit system in this country, in that retailers will not extend
credit to anyone unless he pays for cash? g :

Secretary Wirrz. I read the testimony of the witnesses last Friday
before the committee and this is another area in which we are looking
in connection with the study. Many have been assuming if we abolish
garnishment, it would mean some reduction in the use of credit. This
seems to me to follow almost automatically. Yet, I am frank to say
that it is very hard to identify that effect when you look at the situation

in Texas and Pennsylvania and Florida, which have abolished gar-
nishment, and in several other States which have come so close to it
that it has almost that effect. : : ,

You can’t find the resultant effect on credit. It is a hard thing
to measure. But I am willing to go along with the commonsense sug-
gestion that if you tighten up on the use of this kind of practice 1t
must have some effect on credit. It seems to me that plain.

1 would be willing to accept that effect, but apparently it is less
than I would have thought and perhaps by your question you seem
to imply so., My answer—it: could be a lot shorter—I think it must
have some 01% thateffect. = ’ ~

Mr. Fivo. May I interrupt you, more articularly with the poor
people? They will be the ones who will suffer the most because if you
say retailer— '

Secretary Wirrz. Suffer the most?

Mr. Fivo. Because they will not get the credit they are looking for.

Secretary Wirrz. I don’t think suffer. It seems to me they would
be protected more. They really get themselves into a terrible situation.

Mr. Fino, When I say “suffer,” they will not be able to make pur-
chases the way they are makin% purchases now.

Secretary Wirrz, I think that would be a blessing. Because when
they put themselves dangerously in hock for a television set I don’t
believe they have done themselves a good turn.
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In this morning’s paper, there were some references bearing on this
In the news of the disturbances last night. Now, I know we are not’
going to find the answers to our questions in what a rioter does. I
think that is wrong. But you can’t, help noticing that, in the troubles
last night in Houston and in Syracuse, amon ‘the ‘institutions the
rioters hit in both cases were discount, houses, dome discount houses,
as you and I know, are a real ‘advantage to the consumer. I don’t
suspect that was the kind of discount house that was burned last night.

I repeat again, to look at the riots is likely to give us more wrong
answers than right answers. I don’t respect the judgment of an arsonist
or anyone of that kind, but I can’t be unaware of the fact that in all

- of the trouble that has developed this summer there has been a, very
interesting concentration of bitterness on those institutions which ap--
parently follow the most extreme practices of repossessing, high"
charges, and so forth, that you are talking about. Ly

Mr. Fixo. Thank you. o

- Mrs. SurLivan. Mr, Annunzio?
' Mr. Axyuwnzio. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

I take this opportunity to commend Mr. Wirtz for his excellent
statement and contribution to the committee. But I also would like to
point out to you, Mr. Secretary, as one of the s onsors of H.R. 11601
and one of those who has long advocated the elimination of garnish-
ment laws, you made reference to the President’s message of March 14, -
and § or 6 months have gone by and this study has not been completed. -

Tt is needless for me to tell you, as I have told all the other govern-
ment people, how disappointed I am. We have been holding hearings
for 2 weeks and in that 2-week period we have received information
to substantiate the point of view that I have long held. With reference -
to your colloquy with Mr. Fino, I would like also to point out one of
the most important factors about garnishment of wages is that before
a furniture store or a retail store or any other store would give credit,
they would give more careful consideration to the application before
authorizing credit which, in turn, would be a protection to the con-
sumer. e ‘ :

~ Also, we would avoid some of the situations that have been happen-
ing. As you know, there have been many, many suicides reported in
this country because of the garnishment laws. . t

I have brought to the attention of this committee the laws of the
various States dealing with garnishment showing the percentage of
a man’s pay or the dollar amount of his pay which would be exempted
frém garnishment, and these laws are usually quite harsh. I have also
brought to the attention of this committes the situation in Los An-
geles County and in my own countIy‘of Cook. The record shows that
thousands—in fact, miflions of dol ars are being spent merely in the
litigation of this garnishment law in our own courts—money that
could well be spent for the poor. S ’ i E

So I am hoping, Mr. Wirtz, that this study can be completed as soon
as possible, T know that you attack all the jobs that are assigned to
you with vigor and I know the o'utstand‘in% job that you are doing
as Secretary of Labor in administering the labor laws of this country—
and as former director of labor for the State of Tllinois, T know some-
thing about administering labor laws. i ‘

Secretary Wirrz. A praise from Caesar.

83-340—67—pt. 2——11
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" Mr. Axxunzio. Mr. Secretary, I hope you will use whatever in-
fluence you have with the Attorney General, the Office of Economic
‘Opportunity, and your own Department, which is involved in this
investigation, to complete this study as soon as possible because I sin-
cerely feel that garnishment is one of the really important problems:
facing the American worker in this country. o

'~ Secretary Wirrz. Iam grateful for this comment.

Mrs. Surzivan. Mr. Wylie? P

- Mr. Wrzie. Thank you, Madam Chairman. :
 Mr. Secretary, Mrs. Peterson, 1, too, express my appreciation for

Kour taking the time to zﬁpear here this morning. I, too, think the
“hearings have been most educational, at least for me and part of the
reason is that we have been able to hear witnesses of your high caliber.
Thank you. ¢ e o ‘

Apparently the area of major controversy, maybe the only area of
controversy 1s in the area of revolving credit. :

Have you formed an opinion regarding the revolving credit provi-
sions of the two bills 2 One bill provides that an effort should be made to
relate revolving credit to an annual rate and the other bill provides for
disclosure of the monthly rate of interest. ~

" Secretary Wirrz. I know this is a difficulty. Tt was debated out on.
the Senate side quite fully with the conclusion reached contrary to the
original bill we had supported. We had sup orted the original bill
which did cover revolving credit and it would be a mistake to say that
we have changed our mind about it. In my judgment, and in our col-
lective judgment, it should be included. :

My answer is, on the merits, I think there ought to be a requirement
of truth in lending which ‘extends to the revolving credit situation.

" On the practical question of time, without seeming to be presump-
tuous or invading your province, my reaction would be that we have to
waitonthat, = fo " ; ,

“Mr. Wrrae. T don’t mean to be presumptuous on that, either, but
there is some objection to S. 5 on the basis of what the revolving credit
people have to disclose. It may be an advantage to them if the disclosure
is based on a nhonthly rate of, say, 134 percent, whereas the installment
seller disclosure, say, 18 percent on annual basis, and disclosing interest
may not be too meaningful to the person going in to make purchases,
anyw.ay' ! é} L : EERED . RS -

‘1 have two questions then. One, would it be more meaningful if we
said that everybody, every seller, had to disclose their interest charges
onamonthly basis?

Secretary Wirrz. A monthly basis? It would be better on the annual
basis straight across the board. I think they all ought to be on the
same basis, Mr. Wylie. =~ i

Mr. WyLie. That was my: point. Maybe they should all be on the
same basis so they could actually relate the charges. If you could do it
o0 all interest charges could be on the same basis, an annual basis would
be your preference? = . ' g ‘ - -

Secretary Wirtz. That is correct. We have grown up in terms of an
annual figure. The only reason they say 1% percent is that somebody
is going to relate it with the low 4 percent they grew up on, and I think
they havea point. ' :

Mr. Wywie. That may be true.
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How about the possibility of disclosing the amount of interest or
‘f)erx.n(ée charges in dollars and cents rather than on an interest-rate

asis ‘ T : T

Secretary Wirrz. May I invite Mrs. Peterson’s reaction ?

Mrs. Perersow. I don’t think it is a substitute for knowing that
these service charges are really charges for the extension of credit.
Therefore, I would prefer certainly that the annual rate be shown,
too.

Secretary Wirrz. On a percentage basis rather than in dollars,

. Mrs. Pererson. The bill requires that it be stated both: ways. But
1n order to make a comparison, the annual percentage basis is necessary.
I would prefer that. :

Mr. Fivo. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Wywie. I would like to ask one other question.

Do you think there is any danger if we establish a ceiling as to the
rate of interest which becomes a usurious rate, that this might, in
fact, become the floor ¢ . S

Secretary Wirrz. I surely do. That is a real concern about that 18
percent. I think T would have great trouble brin ing myself to the
support of an 18-percent limit for the very reason,t%;lat’ you just talked
about. I am afraid it would become par for the course.

Mr. Wyrie. Do you think that same thing might occur on the an-
nualizing of the percentage rate ? :

Secretary Wirrz. No, I have no disagreement, with annualizing the
percentages. : o

As for putting in the 18 percent as a limit, that is one provision
which on the merits would give me personally some pause because I
am afraid it would attract all charges to that level as well as limit it.

Mr. Wyrie. I have been informeg my time is up. T have a little fear
-about this, too. And I think maybe more and more people have become
accustomed to the monthly charge system and I think more and more
credit is being extended on a monthly charge basis than on an annual
basis so that we might well face up to that and educate people to
monthly interest rates. c ~ C

Secretary Wirrz. Maybe.

Mr. Wywrie. Thank you. ~ ' :

Mrs. Suriivax, I think we are talking about two different things:
one, setting a top rate of 18 percent on all consumer credit; and the
other, disclosing a rate of 18 percent on revolving credit.

Secretary Wirrz. That is c¢orrect.’ oy L

Mrs. Svrrvan. Your idea is that you don’t want to see a Federal
usury law. . : : Sl e

Secretary Wirrz. That is correct. ~ - TR .

Mr. Wyrir. T don’t think you can separate the two. I think establish-
ing a ceiling on interest rates bears a relationship to the establishment
of a usury law. , , ; ety T b,

Mrs. Svrrivan. I don’t agree that they are related. We are not
setting a ceiling on revolving credit by requiring its disclosure on
an annual basis. We are just making them show.the charges. The
18-percent. ceiling would apply to all credit. . .

Mr. Fivo. Will the Chairlady yield? ~ ;

In connection with what Mrs. Peterson said and what the Secretary
said, I am trying to clarify in my own mind if Mrs, Peterson said that
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" she preferred to have a percentage-rate disclosure rather than the

dollar disclosure? =~ - : 3 : e

' Mrs. Pererson. What I am saying is, they need to know the annual
rate they are paying, if the monthly rate is 114 percent.

Mr. Fivo. Do you think the average person, I happen to be a
lawyer—do you think I am concerned with how much the rate is
rather than dollars and cents? ‘ o g

Mrs. Prrerson. I think you are completely right; people think m
terms of what the dollars and cents charges are. But also that leaves
something to be desired because you have to know the annual rates
_to'make the comparison between credit costs of different lenders.

 Mr. Fino. Mr. Secretary, did I understand- you to say that you
would rather see the dollar disclosure?
~ Secretary Wirrz. T think we need both dollars and annual percentage

‘rates. 4 - " ~

We lucky college graduates think our lives through in terms of
percentages. I am not sure how real the percentage rate may be in some
“other people’s minds, although we are all used to it in our mortgages.
T do think there is a communications advantage in letting people know
how much their purchase is going to take out of their paycheck for
the next year. So I can make a.good argument for a statement in terms
of dollars. But since other elements in the conditions of sales discounts,
duration of payments, and so forth, differ so much, you can’t easily
"compare one seller’s costs with another unless you have the annual rate.
A lot of our thinking has been channeled in percentages. T think it is
a good thing that the bill provides for both.

- Mr. Frvo. I want to thank the Secretary for his frankness in this

-conneetion. L ) , :

* Mrs. SvLuvan. When you are shopping for a loan, for instance,

“and find you pay back $108 for a $100 loan at one place'and $100 for
a $100 loan at another, but only get $92, the dollar amount of the cost -
is the same at both places—$8. - Ly

But if you know that you are paying 15 percent for one or 18 per-
cent for another, or 36 or 42 percent on some ‘other kind of loan—
even if you don’t know how to figure the percentages, you know which
is higher. B '

Secretary Wirrz. You and I do. But you would be surprised how
many times in connection with the letters that we;get, the mail that we

- get about the unemployment figures it is indicated to us, and it comes

 as a shock how many people think 0.4 is larger than 3.8—that decimal
point is a sophisticated concept and so that males you wonder how
generall communicated percentages are.

I don’t want to overpress the point because I agree it would only
be disturbing to move this thing out of the percentage pattern.

" Mrs. Surrzvan. Our bill calls for disclosure of both the amount
and the percentage. But the percentage rates are all expressed in the
same way, on an annual basis. :

Mr. Brnemam. I wish we could continue under the 5-minute rule.

Mrs. SvrLuvay. Mr. Bingham? :

Mr. Brvemam. I hate to be the one to interrupt my colleagues.

Mr. SrepemNs. My question is pertinent to the one being discussed.

Go ahead. © ' : ‘
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Mr. Binemam. Thank you. I, too, would like to welcome you, Mr.
Secretary, and Mrs. Peterson. I have the greatest admiration for work
you are doing.

On a small loan of $50, $5 does not sound like much, but it is
actually 120 percent. But people with very little education will come
up with a jolt if they are tol they are going to Ppay 120 percent per
annum.

As to the work of your committee, it’s nothing new that garnish-

toughness of the garnishment laws, I realize you hadn’t had an oppor-
tunity apparently to study these matters,

Secretary Wirrz. You are wrong, Mr. Bingham. I am familiar with
the article.

I don’t believe there is a difference between them and I don’ believe
the testimony springs from ignorance. I stated as clearly as I could
the fact that the studies revealed no reduction in the use of credit

when these things come in. ;

- Mr. BingraMm, I thought. you said you were surprised by the testi-
mony.

Sejérebary Wizrz. I still would retain the feeling that when you re-
move a loose credit device there is going to be some reduction in the
use of credit. But I would like to make the record clear that my infor-
mation, limited as it may be, coincides with yours as stated previously
in the record that there is no evidence in any State in which garnish-
ment has been abolished of a reduction in the use of credit.

I repeat that statement.

r. Bineaam. I would like to ask you what your position is on the
enforcement, provisions contained in the Sullivan bill, 11601, that is-
the proposal for administrative enforcement that is not present in the
Senate bill ?

Secretary Wirrz. Well, it is in general, Mr. Bingham, that, the pro-
visions in the Senate bill are adequate but are going to have to be

about leaving the remedies up to the individual who is involved here. I

think especially in this situation that is going to present some question.
-, As between the two bills T would personally take the stronger en-
forcement provisions of H.R. 11601, but as in the case of other addi-
tional features of the bill, practical considerations are involved. I
think I view either proposal with enough confidence to go along with
it, but with the understanding that there might need to be improve-
ments in the future.

Mr. Binemam. Thank you, very much.

Mrs. SurLivan. Mr. Halpern ¢ '

Mr. Harperw, Thank you, Madam Chairman.

First, I wish to commend the distinguished Secretary for his forth-
right testimony and for giving us the benefit of his views. I am cer-
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‘tain they will prove most helpful to this committee in developing an
effective and meaningful bill.

I am also delighted to see our dear friend, Esther Peterson, here.
Few persons know the subject before us better than this great lady and
these hearings would be incomplete without, her. It is a pleasure to
have you here and I welcome you to this committee.

' Mr. Secretary, you stated that the original version of S. 5 is pref-
erable to-the bill finally passed in the Senate.

“The bill in the other body excluded revolving credit, small transac-
tions and first mortgages. : '

Could you possibly elaborate on the actual disadvantages that might
ocour in the final version of S. 5, if that were to be passed ?

Secretary Wirrz. Not helpfully, Mr. Halpern. I think the bill as it
came out has many good features. As for elaborating the significance
of the three changes which were made in it, I would have no specifics to
spell out the significance further. I think the largest one, the one that
bothers us most, is the elimination of the annual percentage rate on
open end or revolving credit. That has come into very general usage.
T would grade them this way : 1 would think that is significant. I doubt
if the elimination of the provision of the coverage of the first mortgage
‘has anything like equal significance.

“Now, I can tell you that as far as the third one is concerned, where
the disclosure provisions do not apply to transactions where finance
charges are less than $10, that is going to cut pretty deep as far as
poor people are concerned. ‘

Mr. Harpern. You feel that the bill should include all transactions
where the finan¢e charges are $10 or less.

- Secretary Wirrz. No question about it. But T have to couple that
with just the practical reaction that right now—and I don’t propose

to intrude upon the province which is yours—we need to pass this
very important truth-in-lending legislation.
T I seem a little timid about not wanting to risk that, it is because
we have wanted it for so lonig. That’s the only qualification.

Mr, Haveery. I would like to clarify some of your earlier remarks.

First, you stated that you don’t think it would matter whether you
disclose Tates on a monthly or annual bagis—an annual rate—as long
as all rates are comparable, yet as long as savings accounts, bank loans,
and other financial instruments express their interest or service charges
on an annual basis for purposes of competition, is it not necessary to
express other credit charges on an annual percentage?

ecretary Wirrz. I want to be clear, I think it should be on an an-
nualbasis. ; .

Mr. Harpery. Since H.R. 11601, the bill that we are deliberating
on now requires expression of both dollar and percentage terms, does
this not satisfy all your desires in this regard ?

Secretary WirTz. Yes. ‘

Mr. Harpery. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Mrs. Struivan. Thank you very much, Mr. Secretary. You and Mrs.
Peterson have been very helpful and generous with your time.

(See letter from Secretary Wirtz, p. 793.)

Secretary Wirrz. Thank you very much.

Mrs. Svruvan. I now call Mr. L W. Abel, president of the United

Steelworkers of America. Mr. Abel heads one of the largest trade

unions in the United States, and one of the best."
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The late Philip Murray, who founded that union a little more than
30 years ago, was always ready to serve his country by sharing his
knowledge and wisdom with Congress and the executive department,
and he participated in numerous governmental programs directly. -

Mr. Abel is carrying on that tradition of public service by serving
now as a member of the President’s Commission on Civil Disorders—
2 tremendously important assignment which is taking a great deal of
‘the time and energy of those Americans selected to serve on it. Con-
sequently, we appreciate even more, Mr. Abel, your courtesy and
helpfulness in coming here today. You are the only president of an
international union we shall be hearing on this legislation, and we
are happy to have you here. : ’ ,

As T asked the Secretary to do also—because the House is going to
meet at 11 o’clock and we want to get in as much of your testimony
as possible and also have time for the members to do some question-
ing—will you please summarize your statement rather than read it in
full. The entire statement will go into the record, of course. You can
g0 t%ilrough the various parts of it, as prepared, or highlight it, as you
see fit.

‘STATEMENT OF I. W. ABEL, PRESIDENT, UNITED STEELWORKERS -
OF AMERICA; ACCOMPANIED BY JOHN J. SHEEHAN, LEGISLA-
TIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Arer. I would prefer to go through the statement as prepared.
I will try to accommodate your wishes. ‘

Mrs. Surrivan. All right. - T
Mr. Aper. My name 1s I. W. Abel, I am president of the United
Steelworkers of America which is an organization comprising over
a million and a quarter working people. I appear before you to support
the prineiple, incorporated in H.R. 11601, that all finance charges,
involved in consumer credit, be converted to the common denominator

of an annual percentage rate and be disclosed to the consumier.

At long last the issue of truth in lending is before a House com-
mittee. For more than 7 years, this legislation was trapped in the
Senate Banking and Currency Committee without any glimmer of
hope that it would reach the floor of the Senate for a vote.

It was during those years that the heroic efforts of Senator Paul
Douglas kept the legislation alive. The American consumer owes a
great debt of gratitude to this man for his crusading spirit to protect
the average working man from misleading and, at times, unserupu-
lous credit practices in the marketplace. ‘

The hard work and persistence of this committee will, I hope, be
instrumental in correcting some unneeded compromises made in the
‘Senate-passed bill and in contributing some new concepts of its own
to the original bill. :

During the last few years there has been a growing grassroots con-
-cern about and awareness of the plight of the consumer.

As a matter of public policy, the o%d adage, “Let the buyer beware,”
has been rejected by the American people. Congress, for the most part,
has reacted favorably to this demand for legislative actioh. A consumer-
oriented Congress has gradually expanded the areas of its scrutiny
where the safety of the consumer was at stake. . G
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Tt has also taken some steps when his economic interests were in-

volved. Congumer credit vitally affects the economic well-being of
every American family. Statistics presented to your committee mdi-
~ cate the phenomenal growth of consumer credit from $56 billion, just 6
years ago, to a current rate in 1966 of $95 billion. The interest charges
are over $1214 billion. ; : el

Proper use of credit is, of course, an important, factor contributing
to the economic growth of the economy. However, the consumer can-
not make a wise decision in the use of credit unless he has sufficient
knowledge about the credit transaction. The consumer has the right
to know the true cost of borrowing, just as he had the right to know
- the price of any other commodity he purchases. :
" Furthermore, as was pointed out to this committee by Sargen

‘Shriver, Director of the Office of Economic Opportunity: '

Tt is the low-income consumer who is most likely to fall prey to the unscrupu-
lous merchant or lender, because it is the low-income consumer who is under- -
educated, who! needs the eredit, and who must hunt for the bargain with the
low downpayment. i . )

Tt is little wonder, then, that pent-up resentment in the ghettos
~ can become the fertile ground for the violent militant.
 Just yesterday some of the members of our commission toured the
ghettos of Harlem and certainly there is evidence at hand of every
place you turn in areas like that of the impact and the need for this
kind of action. - ,

The truthin-lending legislation, therefore, would provide both in-
formation and protection.gl‘he key tool is the provision which requires
~ that there be a full disclosure both in dollar terms and in annual per-
_ centage rates of the cost of credit which is extended in making a pur-
chase or obtaining a loan, : i
~ When credit transactions are reduced to a common denominator
in terms of an annual percentage rate, then there can be an adequate
comparison between the various forms of credit which are offered.

Furthermore, the consumer will be in a position to determine
- whether he can afford the credit. This, I think, is very important. The
consumer should, at least, be given the information so that he can make
that choice for himself. - '

I emphasize this factor of “ability to pay” because it has been the
experience of saving and loan associations in Pittsburgh, Pa., that
the primary cause of default for many homeowners has been the over-
burdening monthly payment obligations on other consumer debts
- and loans. These borrowers admit getting into financial difficulty with-
out knowing it. When they came to a realization that they could not
keep up their payments, they lost not only the articles which they pur-
chased on time, but their homes as well. :

The unwary consumer is too often misled by the sale with the low
‘downpayment and the low monthly rate. He is usually not aware that
the final priee of his purchase may well be beyond his means.

The small loan companies, by failing to disclose the annual interest
charge, or by misrepresenting the charges to be only 6 percent, are
able to extract from the consumer rates which vary from 35 percent
up to 100 or 200 percent. - ;

Four years ago this month, the Senate Subcommittee on Banking
and Currency went to Pittsburgh, Pa. A number of steelworkers testi-
fied before that committee. One of them, a president of a local union
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with many years of seniority in a United States Steel plant, was a
d credit risk. Yet on a loan of $152 he paid an interest rate of over
1 percent. He was completely unaware of the charge and could have
obtained the same amount at the local bank for much less interest.
There is no need for me to enumerate the various methods of sub-
terfuge used by small loan companies and finance institutions to hide
the true annual rate of interest. This committee is by now fully aware
of them. As a matter of fact, nearly every member of this committee
has introduced a rate disclosure bill, Let me, however, address myself
to some areas of controversy,

(1) REVOLVING CREDIT PLANS

There is absolutely no reason why the open end or revolving credit
plans should be exempt from coverage of the annual disclosure re-
quirement. Claims have been made by retail associations that the rate
cannot be translated into annual percentage terms. These claims have
been refuted by reliable experts.

Most department stores charge 114 percent per month on the unpaid
balance. This equals 18 percent a year and the stores should be re-
quired to make such a disclosure. The family which is counting its pen-
nies can ill afford to have its income sifted away at rates of 18 percent
a year. :

}],)espite arguments to the contrary, the so-called “free ride” period
does not really represent free use of credit. During those periods, the
lack of credit charge is reflected in a higher price of the article. Hence,
the credit should not be measured from the date of the purchase, but-
from the date the service charge actually begins. H.R. 11601 rejects
the spurious argument of the retailers that revolving credit charges
cannot be calculated on an annual basis. We agree.

The bill introduced by Congresswoman Sullivan rectifies the com-
promise which the Senate made on this issue by requiring annual per-
centage disclosure of all charges incurred in these plans. I can concur,
surprisingly enough, in the statement of the American Bankers Asso-
ciation that this category of credit should not be exempt from the
same requirements which apply to other creditors. According to the
ABA, a single, nondiscriminatory system of time disclosure should be
uniformly applied to all creditors and all types of credit.

The competition which the banks are offering through bank credit
cards could be beneficial to the consumer.

I would like to insert for the record an article pertaining to. this
that appeared in the Wall Street Journal.

Mrs. Svrnivan. Without objection it will be made a part of the
record. (See p. 762.) ;

Mr. Aser. If we are interested in giving the consumer a real op-
portunity, then there’s every reason why we should encourage whole-
some competition among these creditors.

Furthermore, the Senate’s version could become an escape hatch
whereby installment or closed-end credit plans could be converted into
revolving credit plans and thereby escape annual disclosure.

The “installment open-end credit plan” wherein the creditor retains
a security interest in the property purchased and the borrower does
not pay more than 60 percent of the unpaid balance within 1 year is
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arbitrarily designed to exempt other open-end or revolving credit
. plans. We opggse such-exemptions and, hence, the need for the above-
mentioned definition.

(2) FINANCE CHARGES

We strongly urge that H.R. 11601, which includes credit health
and/or life insurance premiums within the definition of a finance
charge, be approved. The Senate bill excludes these premiums even:
though, in most cases, they are incident to the extension of credit.

The use of this insurance, in many cases, is a subterfuge for raising:
the true cost of the loan to the borrower. By quoting a lower interest
charge and then requiring the borrower, as a condition for receipt of
the loan, to purchase a credit life insurance, the creditor, in reality,
may be charging a very high rate of interest.

Moreover, there is growing evidence of a tie-in between the small
loan companies and credit life insurance. In testimony before the
Senate Antitrust Subcommittee evidence was given that banks, finance
companies, and other consumer-loan institutions require their bor-
rowers to take out certain insurance policies for which they are get-
ting kickbacks from the insurers. In such cases, the creditor accepts
the highest bid rather than the lowest for this type of insurance
because he can receive the difference in a kickback.

In many cases credit companies set up their own insurance com-
panies. In an article which appeared in the New Republic, James
Ridgeway discloses that the (gFT Finance Corp. through a wholly
owned subsidiary, the North American Co., insures its credit life
insurance policies wherein there was a gross profit of 50 percent in
premiums or $6.8 million in 1965. And this profit is on top of the rate
that is already being charged for the loan. ‘

I should like to submit two articles for the record dealing with this

subject. (See p. 758.)

. (3) SMALL INSTALLMENT TRANSACTIONS

Unfortunately, the Senate bill exempts from coverage installment
sales and loan transactions in which the finance charge is less than $10.
The reason for this exclusion defies explanation.

In a bill which is admittedly designed to afford the consumer pro-
tection, the proponents for this dropout from coverage claim that the
interest rate is so high that, and I quote from the testimony of the
Federal Reserve Board :

The creditors, may be understandably reluctant to disclose a high annual
percentage rate, and might instead simply discontinue thistype of credit.

Well, all T can say is that the consumer himself might well decide
to discontinue this type of purchase if he knew what the true charges
were. It is that right which we are trying to provide by this legisla-.
tion.

We are also concerned that a single unit of purchase might be sub-
divided into parts in order to come under the $10 finance charge loop-
hole. The purchase, for instance, of a $50 chair with a $5 finance
charge at the end of the month amounts to a 120-percent annual rate.

The exclusion of these transactions would, of course, have a real
adverse impact upon the low-income wage earner who needs the pro-
tection of thisbill the most.
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(4) GARNISHMENT

Madam Chairman, a Federal antigarnishment law is long overdue.
You are well aware of the vicious repercussions of garnishments. Many
employers, rather than undertake the costly procedure to garnishee
wages, will discharge the worker. Or the worker, driven by the threat
of discharge or loss of reputation, will seek out other loan companies
to pay off the original loan. Eventually, many of them end up in the.
hands of the “loan sharks.”

Garnishment increases the security of the creditor thereby making
them willing to extend credit to borrowers that they otherwise might
not accommodate. The protection, which the creditor thus obtains,
makes him most eager to entice the wage earner into his tender trap.

Stripped of this privilege the lenders will be more cautious in their
extension of credit. The labor movement has consistently opposed the
garnishment of wages. It is reminiscent of the days when workers were
thrown in jail until such time as they would pay their debts. Now,
instead of seizing his person, they seize his wages and, in many cases
his job.

Lg,st ear the Wall Street Journal carried an article indicating that
at the Inland Steel plant in East Chicago, Ind., each pay period the
company makes deductions from about 2,000 production employees—
all of whom are members of our union. Inland annually pays out more
than $500,000 in withheld wages to creditors. ; :

Even the editorial page of the Journal remarks that:

In their own interest lenders could stand a stronger dash of self-restraint.
By paying a little less attention to boosting their business and a little more to a
borrower’s actuial ability to repay, they not only would protect their own solvency
but possibly head off new restrictive legislation. i :

Inland Steel has written to Congressman Annunzio expressing their
concern that these garnishments not only are a heavy financial burden
to the company but that “this repayment device may well lead to the
extension of credit to wage earners in situations where credit more
reasonably might be withheld.”

Mrs. Svruivan. Your attachments will be made part of the record.

We previously had a letter from Inland Steel that Congressman An-
nunzio inserted in the hearings. :

Mr. Asrr. I, too, have a copy of Inland’s letter and I would like
to attach that to my statement.

Mrs. SvrLivan. That will be done.

Mr. ABeL. A recent study conducted by the Labor Department “How
Garnisheed Workers Fare Under Arbitration,” which appeared in the
May issue of the Monthly Labor Review, mentions that a worker’s
going into debt, like any other off-duty conduct, generally should be of
no concern to the employer. However, if defaulted debts are subject to
garnishment, then arbitrators tend to treat this the same ag off-duty
misconduct and uphold the right of the employer to discharge the
worker. -

Mrs. Svrrivan. That, too, without objection will be made part of
the record. , ,

Before you continue, Mr. Abel, I want to announce that we will
recess for a few minutes in a little while but if any of the members
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wish to go over to the House floor now and have their names recorded
and then come back, they may be excused. ‘

We are going to continue here until we get through with the wit-
nesses.

_ Mr. Aper. In many States the labor movement is trying to get the
- State legislatures to pass laws to prevent discharge due to garnishment.
Where there is an organized plant the discharge is subject to the griev-
ance procedure and arbitrary discharge is prevented. But what about
the many unorganized low-income workers who are most subject to the
blandishments of easy-money advertisement. What recourse do they
have where there is no union to protect them. At the very least, there
should be a Federal law prohibiting the discharge of employees be-

cause of garnishment.

In some cases the tenacious lender pursues the employee into another
State jurisdiction where there may be more liberal garnishment laws.
One steel corporation has actively pushed a bill in Congress to prevent
the courts of the District of Columbia from issuing a garnishment de-
cree which is not consistent with the State law in which the worker re-
sides and draws his income. For instance, the State of Pennsylvania
prevents garnishment but it is of no avail to the worker if the District
of Columbia courts can attach his wages.

Strong testimony was given to you by a group of referees in bank-
ruptey wherein they attest to the fact that in those States where there
is no garnishment there is a drastic reduction in the number of personal
bankruptcy cases. -

According to Mr. Elmore Whitehurst, Texas:

It is my consiflered judgment that it is the result of these prohibitions and
not a mere coincidence that the bankruptcy courts in Texas have a far less
number of wage earner cases than states of lesser population which have
severe garnishment statutes.

Furthermore, there is no evidence that a prohibition of garnishment
of current wages has by any means put loan companies out of busi-
ness. It has not happened in Pennsylvania. We are confident it will
not happen elsewhere.

The experience of many of our State labor federations at the State
legislatures indicates that a Federal law is necessary, In some States
there is absolutely no protection.

In others, there are various degrees of protection. Only three
States—Texas, Florida, and Pennsylvania—have a total prohibition.
It is now time to have a uniform Federal prohibition. I, therefore,
urge that this committee retain the antigarnishment provision of

“H.R. 11601.

I would like to conclude right here and have in the record the
remainder of the statement. I did want to touch on our position with
respect to garnishment provisions of the bill.

Mrs. SuLrivan. We are very happy that you did, Mr. Abel.

Your full statement will be placed in the record at this point.

(The statement and additional material referred to follow :)

|
STATEMENT OF I. W. ABEL, PRESIDENT, UNITED STEELWORKERS OF AMERICA

My name is I. W. Abel; I am President of the United Steelworkers of America
which is an organization comprising over a million and a quarter working
people. I appear before you to support the principle, incorporated in H.R.
11601, that all finance charges, involved in consumer credit, be converted to
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the common denominator of an annual Dercentage rate and pe disclosed to

consumer‘orien‘ted Congresg hag 8radually expandeq the areag of - its

Where the safety of the Consumer wyg at stake. It has ajgo taken some .

is €conomic interestgy were involveq. Consumerp credit vitally affects
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There is8 DO need for me to enumerate the various methods of subterfuge used
by small loan companies and finance jnstitutions to hide the true annual rate of
jnterest. This committee IS by now fully aware of them. As & matter of £act, nearly
every member of this committee bas introduced a rate disclosure pill. Let me,
however, address 'mylseltﬁ to some areas of controversy. .

1) Revolving oredit| pum&-—'rhere is absolutely 1o reason why fhe open-end

or revolving eredit plans ghould be exempt from coverage of the annual dis-

aims have peen made by retail agsociations that the rate
can not be translated hto anpual cperCentage terms. These claims have been re-
futed by reliable experts. .

Most department stores charge 1Y% percent per month on the unpaid palance.
This equals eighteen percent a yedr and the stores ghould be required to make
such & disclosure. The family which is counting its pennies can 111 afford to have
its income gifted away at rates of eighteent percent & year.

Despite arguments to the - contrary, the go-called «gree ride’ ! riod does not
really represent free use of credit. During those cperiods, the lack of credit charge
ig reflected in 2 nigher price of the article. Hence, the oredit should pot be meas-
ured from the date of the purchase, ut from the date the gervice charge actually
pegins. HR. 11601 rejected the spurious argument of the retailers that revolving
credit charges cannoti be calculated on an annual basis. We agree.

The bill jntroduce | by Congresswoman Sullivan rectifies the compromise which
the Senate (18-5) ma e on this issue by requiring annual percentage disclosure of
gll charges incurred§ in  these plans. I can concur, surprisingly enough, in the
statement the American Bankers Aﬁssueiation that this category of credit
should hot be exempt from the same requirements which apply to other creditors.
According to the AB.A., 2 gingle, nondiscﬂsminatory gystem of time disclosure
should be uniformly applied to all creditors and all types of credit.

The competition which the banks are offering through bank credit cards could
be peneficial to the eonsumer. (See attachment 92). If we are snterested in giving
the comsmmer a real (mportunity, then there ig every reason why we should en-
courage wholesome competition among these creditors.

Furthermore, the iSenate’s version could become an escape hateh whereby in-
gtallment or closed-:emdcredit plans icould 'be converted into revolving credit plans
and thereby escape annual disclosure. ) :

The “in«stall;ment open-end credit plan” wherein the creditor retains a security
jnterest in the property pumc\ha\sed and the porrower does not pay more than sixty
percent of the unpaid palance within one year is arbitrarily designed to exemp
other open—end or revolving credit plans. We oppose such exemptions and, hence,
the need for the'above mentioned definition.

(2) Finance chqrges.——We strongly urge that H.R. 11601, which jncludes credit
health and/or life jnsurance premiums within the definition of & finance charge,
be approved. The Senate bill excludes these premiums even though, 111 most cases,
‘to the extension of credit. The use of this insurance, in many
cases, is a subterfuge for raising the true cost of the loan to the borrower. By
quoting @ lower jnterest charge and then requiring the borrower, as a condition
for receipt of the'loan, to purchase credit life insurance, the creditor, in reality,
may be charging & very high rate of interest.

Moreover, there ig growing evidence of a tie-in between the small loan com-
panies and credit life jnsurance. In testimony before the Senate Antitrust Sub-
committee evidence was given that banks, finance companies, and other consumer-
loan ‘mstttutionsf require their porrowers to take out certain insurance policies
for which they are getting kickbacks from the jnsyrers. In guch cases, the creditor
accepts the highest bid rather than the Jowest for this type of insurance because
e can receive the difference in a kickback. ‘ B

In many cases credit companies set up their own insurance companies. In an .
article which appeared in the New Republic, James Ridgeway discloses that the
CIT Finance Corporation through & whoﬂy-owned subsidiary, the North American
Company, insures its credit life jnsurance policies wherein there was a gross
profit of fifty percent 11 premiums or $6.8 miltion in 1965. And this profit is on
top of the rate that is already being charged for the loan. (1 should like at this
point in my testimony to submit two articles for the record dealing with this
subject). (See}attachment 3.) ' R :

"(3) Small 'nsmumewt trtmsactions.——Unfortunately, the Senate bill exempts
from coverage‘installment gales and loan transactions in which the finance charge
is Jess than $1,10, The, reason for this exclusion defies explanation. In a bill which
19 admittedly designed to afford the consumer protection, the proponents for this

drop-out from coverage claim that the interest rate is so high that, and I quote

EERAEERRERSSE T
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from the testimony of the Federal Reserve Board, “[The creditors] may be
uuderstan.dably reluctant to discloge 4 high anpya] Dercentage rate, and Iight
instead simply discontinye this type of credit.” Well, all 1 can say is that the
vconsumer himgelf might we]] decide to discontinye this type of purchase if he
knew what the true charges were, It is that right which.we are trying to provide
by thig legislation, - )

willing to extend credit to borrowerg that they otherwige might not accommo-
date. The Drotection, which the Creditor thyg obtainsg, makes him most eager to
i T

tention to boosting their business ang a little more to a borrower’s actual ability
to repay, they not only would bProtect their own solvency but Dossibly heaq off
new restrictive legislation,” )

I understangd that Inlang Steel hag written to Congressman Annunzig ex-

A recent study conducteq by the Labor Department “How Garnisheeq Workers
Fare Under Arbitration,” which appeared in. the May issue of the Monthiy Labor
Review, mentions that g worker’s going into debt, like any other off-duty con-
duct, generally should be of 10 concern to the employer, However, if defaulteq

ebts are Subject to garnishment, then arbitrators tend to treat this the Same as
off-duty misconduet and uphold the right of the employer to discharge the worker,
(See attachment 5.) i s
In many states the labor'movemefnt is trying to get the state Iegislatures to

N ; f

Strong testimony wag given to you by g group of refereeé in bankruptcy
Wherein they attest to the fact that in thoge states where there'is ng garnish-
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ment there ja°a drastic reduction in the number of personal pankruptey cases.

‘According to Mr. Elmore Whitehurst, Texas, “It is my considered ]udgment that

‘it is the result of these prohibitions and not a mere coincidence that the bank-

‘Tuptey courts in Texas have 4 far less number of wage earner cases than states
‘of lesser population% which have severe garnishment statutes.”

Furthermore, there is DO evidence that a pmhibition of garnishrn.ent of
féurren-t wages has By any means put loan companies out of business. It has not

; happened in Pennsylvania. We are confident it will not bappen elsewhere.

The experience of many of our state labor federations at the state legislatures
indicate that a federal 1aw is mecessary. In some states there js absolutely no
protection. In others, there are various ‘degrees of protection.. Only three states
('Texas, Florida and Pennsylvania) have a total prohibition. Tt is now time to
pave a uniform federal prohibition. 1, therefore, urge that this committee retain
‘the anti-garnighment provision of H.R. 11601 (See attachment 6.)

‘ Enfomeme%t.——H.R. 11601 is stronger than the Senate bill in that it provides
more than “self-emfofcement.” ‘Administrative enforcement of the Act by the

Tederal Reserve’ Board through cease and desist orders are & necessary’ comple-
ment to the right of an aggrieved individual to pring civil suit where information
has not been properly provided. We note that the Board is reluctant to assume
this "responlsi‘bilityf, although it recognizes that tigglf-enforcement ig probably less
effective, however, in the field of advertising.”

Usury.———'l“he' question. as to what should be the maximum ceiling for jnterest
charges is quite @ different one from whether there should be a ceiling. We
agree that usurious rates should be proseribed. We are not ina position, how-
ever, to advise this committee what that rate should be. The various types of
credit situations‘should be reviewed DY this committee. The relationship of an
interest rate to the all-inconclusive finance charge must be made. But we support
the idea that all charges which are incident to the Joan should also be included
in any calculation of a ceiling. Otherwise, wWe are fearful that a low-interest
ceiling will be compensated by high finance charges. Certainly, the question. of
the rate could be an area of investigation by the proposed National Commission
on ‘Consumer Finance. Te salutary effect of 2 disclosure bill will, we hope, create
an atmosphere of competition among creditors which would help to drive down
interest charges:

C’oncmsion.»—Madam Chairman, we know that effective 1obbying by financial
institutions has pr‘evented an earlier enactment of a truth-in-lending bill. How-
ever, in the process he American people have been educated about the issue.
There is nOW both a need and 2 demand for this legislation. A national con-
gensus has evolved. Your committee, we hope, will give legislative expression to
that consensus. The United Steelworkers of America appreciates the opportu-

nity to"appear before you 1n order to add its voice to that consensus.

e

SENATE UNIT INVESTIGATES CmARGES THAT CREDIT INSURANCE Is “TED IN~ TO
: i CONSUMER L.oANS

According to geveral witnesses who testified pefore the Senate Antitrust Sub-
committee last week; consumer-lending companies are forcing small porrowers to
puy credit jnsurance at excessive rates. Subcommittee Chairman Philip A. Hart
(D-Mich) est{l‘mated that 85 percent of all-consumer installment credit is “tied
in” with insurance that guarauntees repayment of a loan in case a porrower dies
or becomes i1l ;

,Allegedly, panks, finance companies, and other consumer-loan makers who

require their ‘borrowers to take out these jnsurance policies are getting kickbacks
from the insurers. :
i Although jnsurance regulation is now left almost entirely to the states, the
" Antitrust Su committee believes it may have jurisdiction over these credit-in-
surance arrangements because of the tie-in feature. Even some state insuranc
commissioneirs, the hearings revealed, reluctantly admit that federal regulation
may be needed to protect gmall borrowers against exorbitant credit-insurance
charges. B . : s :

. Senator Hart announced that he is going to send the transcript of his Sub-
committee’s?; eredit insurance hearings to the Justice Department and the Fed-
eral Trade Commission. He will ask the agencies to see if the testimony un-
covered any violations of jaw and to explore the possible avenues of federal in-
tervention in this field, including use of the antitrust laws.
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On May 16, James H. Hunt, Vermont’s Commisgioner of Banking ang Insur-
ance, -said he doubted that the states, “ag g group, are dealing affirmatively
and effectively with this problem” 13 years after a previous investigation, of
~abuses by the Senate ‘Subcommittee, While he shies away from recommending
Tederal action in g field which ‘Congress hag reserved for the. states, he saig
there “would be many advantages to federalregulation” and he would not “worry
much” if there were “dual regulation.”

“In most states,” Mr. Hunt testified, “the debtor is baying excessive Premiums
and needs help. .. Credit insurance ig subject to Wi‘despread‘abuse.” He claimeqd
that “fantastie profits are being made from the incidental sale of insurance in
tonnection with loans and other transactions.”; C ; ; A

The real culprits. and beneficiarieg in this;insurance tie-in, system ‘are the
creditors, not the insurance companies, Mr. Hunt asserted. Since the lenders

ferences in kickbacks in ope form or another.” He called this “reverse competi-
tion’”*competition that pushes rates up rather than down, “The debtors form
a captive market for the insurance anqg have no ability to evaluate the reason-
ableness of the insurance charge,” Mr., Hunt addeq, .

‘ABUSES

coverage, the addition of finance charges to the m‘sr,ulfanée' bremium, and failure
to refund finance charges On prepayment of a debt due to the death of an insured
debtor., . ;

if they had to compete on a price basis.” : : -

Many of the Vermont commissioner’s views were echoed by South Carolina’s
Chief Insurance Commissioner, Charleg W. Gambrell. He described consumer-
credit insurance ag g “camouflage to obscure from the borrower the actual cost
to him of the 10an” and as “a devious and costly rigmarole” intended to increase
the lender’s income, : o .

State regulation from the impossible burdens ‘of attémpting to reach the real
parties in interest, the lenders, through regulating the insurers; who are held jin-
thralldom by the lenders, would enable. state regulation to addresy itself to its
true functiong of regulating for solvency and brotecting the insuring bublie.”

- is difficult to enforce a brohibition against tied-in sales of credit insurance.” The
best solution would be a new law that Wwould “separate the creditor from the
insurance company and from the ingurance income. This ean be done by prohibit-
ing the creditor from obtaining any compensation, directly or indirectly, from the
insurance except the insurance security for the loan o for the pledged Property.”
Mr. Fritz maintained that g federal law ig “the only likely hope for Protection to
the consumer from the evils of tied-in insurance.” - . : ST

Another state insurance -commissioner, testifying before the Subcommittee on
May 18, said the consumer-credit insurance field hag “become g racket.” Magsa.

: 83-340—67—pt, 2——12'
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chusetts’ Deputy Banking Commissioner, John P. Clair, urgedac‘tion by both the
states and the Subcamm'irtt'ee‘ to stop overcharges and other abuses that he de-
gcribed as “mighty close 0 larceny.” : .

Mr. Clair recommended that the Subcommittee 1ook into the field of educa-
tional loans. Many colleges have been embarrassed to find they've been referring
parents to loan plans that charge “outrageol » insurance rates and are ~mislead-
ing” as tocredit costs. T }

“ri'g time that we call a halt in: this country to lenders making more money
selling insurance than lend"irig'money,” My, Clair ‘declared. He said the gituation
hias reached the point where jnsurance companies are getting into the lending
business to share in the profits creditors are ‘making .on: the sale of consumer
credit life, health, and accident jnsurance. k B :

_MODEL STATE LAW ‘

Two Maryland witnesses testified about-similar abuses in their state. Attorney
-General Francis B. Burch and former Insurance ‘Commissioner Norman Polovoy
predicted that, in 1968, their state would pass the model 1law. of the National
‘Association of Insurance Commissioners designed to curb consumer-credit—inaur-’
ance abuses and overcharges. : e : i
. But Subcommittee(}hairman Philip A. Hart (D-Mich) expressed doubt that
. the model law would be the solution.. More than half the states have adopted it,
and many still have high credit insurance rates. : :
Mr. Burch and Mr. Polovoy poth stressed the importance of state rate re a-
tion and of adequate enforcement as other meeded factors in controlling credit
jnsurance. Mr. Polovoy estimated that more then $2 million of the $9,638,000
Marylanders paid for credit insurance last year was -excessive; He said that, in
* his opinion, lenders should pay the entire cost of the insurance for small loans
gince it provides them with «additional gecurity and protecti-(m"’ :
_'The senators also heard Cecil G. Huskey, & Charlotte, North Carolina, home-
piilder relate hisjpersonal experience with abusive.C edit insurance. :
Mr. Huskey claimed that North Carolina’s fourth largest bank, Tirst-Citizens
Bank & Trust Ool, pushed the cost-of his pusiness loans as high as 36 percent by
making him buy credit insurance from an affiliate. The first time he went to the.
pank for a loan, no credit insurance was required. But the next time, he testified,
a bank official insisted that he buy credit jnsurance through the bank at a very
high rate. When 'he asked the bank official why he couldn’t buy a cheapev;poilic'y
elsewhere, Mr. Huskey said the official replied, “We want to make money, too.”
At the May 19 ‘hearing, Leonard J. Harmatz, & Baltimore attorney charged that
«Maryland is an open field for the practice of 1oan sharks and Tacket tending.”
Two specific Maryland loan firms were named by Charles W. Grambrell, the

South Carolina Insurance Commigsioner. Attorney General Burch' told ‘Senator
Hart that be will investigate the Atlantice Management Co. of Silver Spring,
- which trades as ;Marylan‘d«()ash Loans, and Investor Loan of Frederick.

|

e—————

| . [From the New Republic magazine]
- Diery DEAL IN Smarn LOANS

* (By James Ridgeway)

Finance comi)anies are making a Killing on insurance. Tacked on to their higﬁ
jnterest rates i an exorbitant charge for insurance, used to repay the loan in case
the borrower dies. 1t takes the risk out of lending. :

" But what the customers probably don’t know. is that velatively few boOrrowexrs
die before loans are repaid. Much of the premiums are pure profit, and 2 good. bit
of it is funneled. back to the finance company either in the form of commission Or
because the logn company owns the insurance company. o
"In a speech in Chicago last week, Dean’ Sharp, an assistant ‘dounsel of the
Senate antitrust and monopoly subcommittee, said an_unpublished committee re-
port on credit life jnsurance indicates that borrowers have been overcharged $700
milliqnsmce,; o NEN T e KRR e
About 80 percent of the $72 billion in outstanding;c()nstlmer debt is covered by
credit life ingurance. Thig is financing for automobile and household appliances
as well a8 personal loans. L o ‘ I
Premiums for credit life vary around the country, and run from a low of 31.5
cents per $100 porrowed per year charged by General Motors ‘Acceptance COTD.,
the biggest finance company, to $2 per $100 asked by the small loan companies: 10-
" cated near military bases. A usual premium is $1 per $100. The insurance usually
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is calculated on the whole loan and must be paid at the outset. This can add up:
A Washington finance company recently quoted a price of $30 for insurance on
a three-year, $3,000 loan. . : i :

Credit life is a relatively small part of the insurance industry, but it is the
fastest growing. The business is lucrative because costs are low, and borrowers
seldom howl. Once in the hands of a finance company they are too beaten down to
. figure out the different charges which frequently are hidden. Last year 63 million
borrowers paid insurance companies $590 million in premiums for credit life.
The major costs to the insurer are death payments, but they only came to $280
million. James H. Hunt, Vermont’s insurance commissioner, ‘and one of the
people concerned about the high cost of this insurance, said recently that
actuarial studies showed the cost of a claim to be only 30 cents per $100 bor- .
rowed. The insurance companies themselves have said that administrative
expenses run a bit under 5 cents per $100. This brings total cost to 35 cents. So, if
a company charges the usual $1 per $100 rate, it comes out with a profit of 65
cents. [ : ;

This system can result in rosy profits. For example, 0l1d Republic Life Ingur-
ance Co. of Chicago is one of the biggest firms specializing in credit life and writes.
little else. In 1965 Old Republic reported premiums of $62.6 million and paid out -
death benefits of $238.3 million. This suggests a gross profit of 63 percent,

The interests of the finance and insurance companies frequently coincide, The
insurance company pays the finance firm a commission on the credit life sold and,
‘of course, the more made in premiums, the higher the commission. At the end of
a good year, it is common practice for the insurance company to kick back profits
1o the finance company. This is known in the trade as the retrospective rate credit.
Thus, competition works in reverse. Instead of looking around for the cheapest
{nsurance for its borrowers, it is very much in the interest of the finance company
to work the rates as high as possible. : i RO :

Moreover, some of the biggest finance companies own the insurance companies
that write policies on their loans. Under this double-headed arrangement, the
parent finance company makes money on interest as well as from premiums, and
it can charge the insurance subsidiary management fees for handling the records.

There are even more subtle renderings. “In examining the statement of a very
large and well-regarded stock insurance company,’ Commissioner Hunt has said,
I noticed that most of their credit life business was being reinsured. There was
1o actuarial reason for this, so I made some inquiries. It turned out that this
.company wrote credit insurance for a large finance company. The deal was that
the insurance company reinsured over 95 percent of the incoming credit business
with an insurance company controlled by the finance company. About 45 pereent.
.of the premium was profit, and, of course, all but a prenegotiated part of this went
to the wholly-owned subsidiary of the finance company. Tor.a price, then, the
finance company bought the  good name of the insurance company and, to boot, -
.avoided the appearance of controlling the business, whereas, in fact, they did.”

Mr. Hunt makes this seem all rather conspiratorial. But there are no laws pro-
‘hibiting finance companies from owning insurance companies ; nor in most places.
are there any restrictions on their dealings with insurance companies. These
transactions are in the open and apparently regarded as a common business
practice, as the following examples suggest:

CIT Finance Corp., second biggest finance company in- the eountry, buys
eredit life from Connecticut General ‘which then reinsures these policies with: a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT called North American Co. (Figures for North
American were not readily available. But Connecticut General says that it took
in $13.5 million in credit life premiums in 1965 and paid out $6.7 million in death.
benefits for a gross profit of 50 percent. As a reinsurer North American shared
in the risks and the profits.) -~ Eotih i i e

Associates Investment Co., another of the largest finance companies, also owns
an insurance subsidiary which writes some of the credit life on its loans. The
way it got into the business is interesting. In 1953, Associates wanted to move
into the insurance field. At the time, Old Republic was issing credit life policies
for the finance company. Associates then set up an insurance subsidiary called
‘Alinco. Old Republic reinsured Associates’ business ‘with Alineo and handled ‘the
administrative details. ‘Alinco- had no office or any salaried employees. An 4c-
countant employed by another of Associates’ subsidiaries spent one day a
month taking care of the books. Despite the simplicity of its operation between
1953 and 1959. Alinco’s financial Success was striking. Its net gain from opera-~
tions during that period, before federal income taxes but after paying its expenses
and share of death benefits, was in excess of $28.5 million. In 1957 Associates
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B 4 E o
acquired Capitol Life Insurance Co. of. Denver, an old line insurance company,
-and subsequently shyt down Alinco. ’ i :

An Associates’ offi¢ial recently said insurance rates range from 50 to 75 cents:
per $100 borrowed. In 1965 Capitol Life, which writes half of Associates policies,
reported premiums of $4.3 million and death payments of $1.6 million (gross.
gain of 63 percent). - )

Other companies have insurance subsidiaries. Commercial Credit Co. owns:

. American Health & Life Insurance Co. which writes policies on the parent’s loans.

An American official) said an insurance rate is' $1 per $100. American showed'
_premiums of $10.6 million last year against death payments of $5.8 million for
a.gross gain of 45 percent. o CL ‘
Financial General| controls Bankers Security Life Insurance Society. 'The:
Transamerica Corp. ¢éwns Pacific Finance Corp. which, in turn, controls Pacifie:
Fidelity Life Insurance Co. ERE B ) i ,
In general, the profits for insurance companies in this business range from:
about 36 percent to |60 percent. Commenting on this situation, Commissioner-
Hunt said, “If normal competition, rather than reverse competition, could exist
there would be a tremendous reduction in costs of credit insurance passed on
.to borrowers, I would estimate that, based on current premium income, the sav-
* ings would exceed a hundred million dollars nationwide annually.” :
Payment of death benefits probably has risen during the past year because of
the war. Many finance companies thrive on army camps. One congressional investi-
gator reports helicopter pilots at Fort' Rucker, Ala., about to leave for Vietnam,
are buying automobiles and household appliances. They borrow the money and
it is insured against %wir' death at rates up to $2 per $100. The Defense Depart-
ment has approved 98 life insurance companies to solicit business on military:
posts. One-third of these write credit life, and include companies charging high
rates. ) ! ! ‘ :
As in the case of all insurance, regulation of credit life is left in the hands
of the states. Thirty-one states have no effective regulation over rates charged.
Massachusetts recently ‘sought to bring down rates by limiting the premium to
50 cents per $100 per year. Both' Vermont’ and Connecticut have passed laws
prohibiting lenders from making a profit on credit insurance in the small loan
field. : B ‘ ‘ )

In his Chicago speech, Dean Sharp called for federal regulation. As a stép in
this' direction, the ‘antitrust and. nonopoly subcommittee will surely want to -
release ity study of credit life insuranee; and hold a. full-seale investigation. This'
would come under Senator Dodd’s insurance subcommittee. Dodd comes from
Connecticut, the insura(nce capital, which means that when he proceeds, if ever, it
is at a snail’s pace. (The committee has been involved in an alleged study of
. the insurance 'indus‘tllj7 since 1958.) At any rate in this matter, the large life

insurance companies may want to protect themselves before the finance companies
get them into a mess which Dodd can’t cover up. Credit life insurance on any
loans under $1,000 should be banned outright. The risks to the finance companies
are too slight to bother with. And the congress should make it illegal for a finance
company. to profit on insurance.

b : ) JAMES RIDGEWAY.

- BANK IN THE BILLFOLD--MORE CoNSUMERS PAY LOCAL SHOPPING BILLs WITH
"BANK CREDIT CARDS—LENDERS DON'T SET MINIMUM INCOME REQUIREMENT ;-
" PLANS CHEERED BY |SMALL RETATLERS—“JUST LIKE THE RICH PrOPLE’

( By 'Geqrge N: icl?olaiéﬁ?, Staff Repb'rter 'of The Wall Street J. oufnal)

PrrrssURGH.—“How labout this,” says a grocery clerk here as he brandishes
a new credit card. “Just like the rich people.” ... . : i
- The clerk’s prized: possession represents a relatively recent development in the
world of on-the-cuff living—the bank credit card. Such cards, issued by a rising
number of banks around the country, permit their holders to charge everything
from doctor bills to candlelight dinners for two. Their growing use—and easyv
availability—may well signal that the day of credit-card existence has dawned
for the plumber and factory hand as well as for the executive and professional
man. i . : - :
- The bank credit cards overlap to some extent with national credit card plans
like those offered by American ‘Express Co. or Diners’ Club, Inc, Both can be
~used to charge'restaurpnt tabs, for example, and some banks have copied the
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national cards and persuaded airlines to accept their cards. But, for the miost
‘part, banks are carving out new areas of operation for their credit cards.

STRETCHING OUT PAYMENTS

Whereas applicants for national credit cards met specified income standards—
American Express sets $7,500 as the floor—banks have no minimum income re-
quirements for their card holders. Also, whereas national credit cards are
designed mainly for use in travel and entertainment, bank cards are intended
principally for local shopping or for paying repair and other service bills. Another
significant difference between the two types of cards is that national cards must
usually be paid in full each month, except in the case of airline ticket purchases,
‘while banks allow holders of their credit cards to extend payments over a period
of time if they choose. : E :

Within the past year, a half dozen banks, including Mellon National Bank &

Trust Co. and Pittsburgh National Bank here and Valley National Bank of
~Arizona in Phoenix, have launched their own credit card plans. California’s
giant Bank of America and Buffalo-based Marine Midland Trust of Western
New York have issued their own credit cards for several years. A score of other
banks across the nation currently are studying the possibility of starting credit
card programs,

From the banks’ point of view, credit cards offer a way to put their ample
funds (commercial bank deposits total about $310 billion now, up from $223
billion at the end of 1960) to work at a high rate of return. Evidence that banks
see the credit-card field as increasingly attractive is found in recent moves by
First National City Bank of New York to acquire Hilton Credit Corp.’s Carte
‘Blanche national card plan and by Chase Manhattan Bank to buy Diners’ Club
as well as in the rise of local bank credit-card operations. )

BOON | FOR SMALL BUSINESSMAN

But the impact of the new bank credit cards is not limited to the profits of the
‘banks, who collect for their services from both participating businesses and
credit-card holders, nor to the new class of card users being created. A prime
beneficiary is the small businesman who lacks the cash or accounting facilities
to provide credit on his own but who, with the aid of bank credit cards, can
offer his customers the same credit services as larger competitors. k

Says E. H. Gugliotta, manager of a small Buffalo shoe store that participates
{in the credit card plan of Marine Midland Trust of Western New York: “This
store went into the black this year and it’s all because of the credit card. People
used to look into the window and then keep walking to the big department
stores. Now they see the credit card decal and come in.” Mr. Gugliotta adds that
bank credit cards have increased multiple sales 1009%—“now they buy two or
three pairs of shoes and let the old man worry about paying.” S

Some department stores, on the other hand, are not at all happy about bank
credit cards. Many department stores permit customers to stretch out payments
over several months, charging a monthly fee on the unpaid balance and thereby
adding substantially to earnings. This same type of credit service is available
‘to shoppers under bank credit-card plans, and as a result, says R. B. Adam,
president of Adam, Meldrum & Anderson, Buffalo’s second largest department
store, “there’s no question these cards are a threat to us. The bank is in competi-
tion with us, and we don’t like it.” : : :

IRRESPONSIBLE HOLDERS

Some early attempts to set up local bank credit-card plans encountered rough
going. Chase Manhattan started a bank credit program in 1958 and then dropped it
‘in 1962 when, according to the bank, the plan ‘“‘did not develop as projected.”
Other bankers, however, blame the failure on inadequate screening of card ap-
plicants, which left hundreds of cards in irresponsible hands. The credit manager
of one New York store says Chase’s list of holders of credit cards that were not
“to be honored reached 10 to 15 pages. . '

The Bank of Ameriea, which started issuing credit cards in 1958 and Marine
Midland Trust of Western New York, which set up its plan in 1959, both had
large losses at first because of high promotional costs and a high proportion of
bad debts. Industry sources estimate the Bank of America lost about $15 million
to $20 million in the first two years or so its credit-card plan was in operation :
Bank of America calls this estimate high but refuses to disclose any figures itself.
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‘However, the Bank of America started making a profit on its credit cards:
in 1961 ; in 1962, its first full year of in-the-black operations, it’s believed the bank
earned about $8 million from credit-card business. In 1963 Marine Midland Trust
of Western New York got its credit-card plan into the profit column, .

‘When the Bank of America’s credit-card plan began to pay off, it was the signal
for a mumber of other banks to enter the field. “I think we all waited to see how
the Bank of America would turn out,” says a Mellon Bank spokesman here.
“When it turned the corner we could see what a well-run program ecould do.”
‘Mellon started its eredit-card plan this past summer. : .
 The key to a sucdessful credit card operation appears to be a happy balance
that excludes dubious risks but still gets the maximum number of card holders,
‘and most banks make their cards available to any applicant who can pass a credit
check, regardless of his income level. In contrast to most national credit cards:
there is no initial fee. .

“We look at the man’s credit record and then we make a decision,” says-
P. M. Weleh, vice president in charge of consumer credit at Atlanta’s Citizens &
Southern National Bank, which has issued cards since 1959. “This means we're:
dipping pretty well into the middle and even some low-income groups.” : :

Holders of bank credit cards are billed once a.month. They have the option
of paying the whole amount at ene time or dividing it into installments.
~ Besides using bank credit cards to pay bills, holders can use their cards to
borrow money up to a specified limit—Pittsburgh’s. Mellon bank, for example,
will automatically lend holders of its cards up to $350. “It wouldn’t pay to lend
$100 or $200 as a éanventional instalment loan, but it works real well with a
eard,” says one bank official. . ; REN i

ATTRACTING NEW ACCOUNTS

‘Banks charge merchants and others who honor their credit cards discounts
ranging from 29 or less to as much as 5%, on each sale. They pay participating
businesses over-night for charged sales by crediting an account the business must
keep with them; a side benefit of credit-card plans for banks, note bank officials,
is that they draw new accounts from businesses, some of whom eventually begin
to make use of the banks’ other services. .

Instalment charges to card holders on unpaid balances average about 1.5% a
‘month, or 18% a year. Bankers estimate that total net earnings on a successful
credit-card program| work out to oyer 5% a year on investment; by way of com-
parison, instalment loans generally net about 8.5% annually on investment.

Banks that issue their own credit cards and the firms. that issue national cards
maintain they den’t, seriously eompete with each other. But as bank cards catch
on it seems inevitable that they will cause trouble for the national cards. United
Air Lines now accepts the cards of Mellon National Bank, the Bank of America,
Citizens & Southern and Bank of Hawaii, a development that puts the banks”
cards into direct competition with-national cards for travel business. Moreover,
bank and national eards are likely to compete increasingly in restaurant and
specialty shop fields; ; : . :
. 3 CUTTING DISCOUNTS

In some areas where banks have aggressively promoted their eredit-card plans,
national cards alreddy have been forced by the competition to cut their discounts. .
In California, where the Bank of America has over 1,250,000 cards holders, the
national cards were charging discounts of 7% to 10% before the bank’s plan
started going strong. But they had to drop their discounts to 4% and 5% in order
to bring them more in line with the Bank of America’s rates. In Phoenix, national
cards reduced theiridiscount to 49, from 6% at one large restaurant shortly before

‘Valley National started its eredit-card program this year, according to T. L. Lar-
sen, manager of theioperation. : ; R,

- Despite the absence of minimum income requirements for holders of their credit
cards, most banks say they now have little difficulty with customers’ failing to
pay up. Banks with credit-card plans usually allow for bad debts equal to 1%
.of volume on charge,'a cards, but some are hitting well below this figure. Citizens &
Southern of Atlanta, for example, says its bad debts on credit cards are running
at0.35% of volume. : ) i -

For many of the new credit-card helders, the big attraction is convenience.
R. J. Klein, a 28-yéar-old airline elerk in Buffalo, recently bought rubber boots
and shotgun shells for a hunting trip, a purchase totaling only $7.50. “I had the
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money 'in my Docket, but if I spent jt I might be caught short at work, so I useqd
says, :

(By Jameg P, Gannon, Stafr Reporter of The Waij Street .Tournal)

GHIOAGO.hOne Payday in January, auto worker Carl w. Clark discovereq his
entire week’y take-home Day of $112.39 had beep turned over to the State of
Indiana for delinquent State income taxes, Beset by debts, he asked officia]g at
Ford Motor Co.’s plant in suburban Chicago Heights, I1L, for hig accrued Vacation
Pay to tige him over,

Next Dayday, he learned Indianahthe state where he useq to live—hag re-

: out : N h

X d:
shot a bullet into his brain, :

Thig Suicide hag Spurred anew wiwde-ranging inquirjeg into the consequenceg of-
consumer debt Problems, Under Special Serutiny jg the rising humber of wage:
garnishmentg and other forms of Day seizure by Creditors, including state ang

t al . .

he activity on Pay-seizure broblems ig intensifying 0n severa] fronts, Labor
uniong are campaigning to restrict wage garnishment laws in many stateg, Legal
experts are drafting g uniform consumer credit code that they hope wil] be-
énacted in egch state. An Illinoig Congres«sman is seeking legislation limiting the-
amount of wages that can be taken at one time to pay back taxes, Anq businegg
and finanejg] interests, anxioug to avoid any image-blackening, are acceierating.
Joint efforts to aid over-burdeneq debtors,

1965, up 12% from 1964 ang 50% from 1963, A convenience to most people, readily
available Credit is g curse to many others, whe can’t or won't use jt wisely.:

In Chicago, the Cook County Cireﬁi’t Court issued.84,513 garnishmentg last-
yvear: 15% more than in 1964 anqg 72% more than in 1961. The arshal of the

S. Under g - A
wages to repay the debt if he ded;'aults; €xecution of the wage assignment doesn’
normally require g court judgment, as a garnishment usually doeg, The garnish-
ment figureg also don’t include tax levieg, such ag that in the Carl Clark case,

MR. REED's PLIGHT

The records of Inlang Steel Co, indicate how widespreaq wage attachment can
be. Hach bayday the company mgkeg such deductiong from the baychecks of-

——
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‘a\bontf2,000 of its 22,000 pmduc’cion employes jn the Chicago ared, says Dorothy
. Lascoe, who handles fhis chore. Inland annually pays out more than $500,000
of withheld wages to creditors, she adds.

~ Who are the people behind the statistics? Most -often, they are working
men like Fnanchot"l}one Reed, & 29-yea‘r—old tire mount’er‘fo»r q O jcago-area truck
manufacturer, whoslearned of garnismment the hard way. .

n 1964 Mr. Reed traded his 1956 Plymo th inon 2 1950 Cadillac and signed
an jnstallment sales conttract to pay 1,200 for the agi
ments $25. After he defaulted, the dealer reposses;sed the car and had
Reed’s wages atta@hed to pay off the contract. The deduction
pay, the legal 1imit on garms‘hments in Tinois.

To “get cut 1oose” from his debts and the -garnishment, Mr. Reed filed bank-

1964. Last year, Federal pankruptey ¢ourt in Chicago discharg
Mr. Reed of $2,195 in debts, including pills for jewelry and clothing as well as

the costly old Cadillac.

TRIGGEKING BANKRUPTCY

As this case sufggests, there is a connection petween mounting g&
and the steady Tise in the numnober of personal panlkrupteies in recent years.
“Gnarn'ixslh-ment fréquently triggers baukrup\tcy,” says Linn K. Twinem, chairman
of the American?Bar Associaﬁon’s committee O consumer pankruptcy.
A record 180,323 pankruptcy cases were filed in Federal courts in the fiscal
year ended last June 30, up from 171,719 in the prior year and 110,034 five years
. Banki uptey flings this year are expected to top 200,000. Personal bank-
ruptcy filings accounts £0T 919 of the total.
-~ Mr. Twinem says there is @ ‘“‘close relationship” between the severity of a
state’'s .gamnis[hment 1aw and its bankrwpbeies. Oalifamﬁa, which has @ relatively
tough geirnis&lm‘ent 1aw, led in pankruptcy filings in fiscal 1965 with 33,656. At
the other extreme, three populous shates that Jon’t allow garni»s’hmenm have
dramaticany 1gwer bankr\Iptcy-ﬁling totals; Pennsylvania nad 1,133, Florida
958 and Texas| 661

Garnishmenﬁ often causes workers to 1ose their jobs. Many employers fire em-
ployes whose ebt problems lead to excessive W attachments, arguing th

1an as long 8s he is making sincere efforts to straighten out his debts.
Employes 3ﬁred for debt problems often wind up on relief rolls, social workers
gay. In 2 study of |27 persons applying for general assistance relief, the Cook
County Department of Public Aid found that about 99, of the applicants had been
fired from their jobs due to garnishments. )

REFORM MOVEMENTS

i Organize;d labor campaigns apnually to ease the jmpact of gamishment laws
on debtors, and this year the drive is picking up steam. Unions are pushing
1egislatorslin many states to increase the amount of wages exempt from gamish—

ment. These exemptions vary widely at present, from 50% in California to

In T1linois, where Gov. Otto Kerner 18 considering calling 2 special legislative
gession t! lis year, the state AFL-CIO wants the wage exemption raised from
/5% to 90%, with the minimum amount safe from attachment set at $65 weekly
rather than the present $45. Unions in T1linois also want abolition of wage
assignments.

Unions in Ohio, ‘COnnecticut, Colorado and other states also are seeking
legislation to increase the amount of pay shielded from attachment. Recent
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efforts seem to pe showing results. Seven states amended their garnishment
lawslast year,‘genefrally lifting the exemption ; ‘this wag considerably more

groups raising the exemption from garnishment to 5% of wages from the -
55-year-old limit of $16.87 a week. The bill igs before the state Senate, where
‘backers predict early passage, : !

PAYING THE BACK TAXES

Another union goal in Several stateg is o ‘ban on firing én employee for garnish-
ments, New York'y legislature passeq such a measure Jagt year, but Gov. Nelson
Rockefeller Vetoed it on the ground it wag unenforceable, A bill' modifieq to.

from totg] wage seizure, - . ) !
The AFL-CIO’s community serviceg department is surveying the attorneys
general of aj] 59 states to determine ‘Which oneg bermit 1009, pay Withholding'
for delinquent, state taxeg, « epending on what we find, if the situation looks
bad our department of legislation will communicate with. the central labor
bodies in the states to seek changes in the laws,” $ays an AFL-CIo s,pokesman,
On the PFederal level, Rep. Sidney Yates (D., 1) plang to introduce ‘g bilt
next week limiting the amount Federa] tax collectors could take from the pay- .
check of g delinquent taxpayer. Hig t bi : i C
levies on wages to 109 of the first $200 in monthly earnings, 20% of earnings
from $200 to $500 and 509 of earnings over $500. “Thig would protect against
the total taking of the Daycheck, which ig DPresently the battern,” he says. :
A much broader effort to modernize ang unify all' state laws egulating
consumer credit is under way. The Nationa] Conference of OOmmissioners on
Uniform State Lawsg, Comprised of Tepresentatives of each state, currently is
i t code, ! ‘

.. The mode] law ig expected to cover all aspects’ of consumer credit from
“advertising ang sales solicitation through the ggleg contract to collection and
default broblems, including garnishment,” says Allison Dunham, executive direc-
tor of the organization: €n completed anq approved by the conference, the
code will be Dresented to each state legislature, Numeroug other uniform codes:
have been enacted by mogt states. )

Present state laws regulating consumer credit are ‘“very much g hodgepodge’”
with an unusual amount of state-to-state variation becauge most were developed
Diecemeaq] in Tesponse to specific broblems, says Mr. Dunham. A uniform code-
would benefit businessey dealing in consumer credit in numeroug states, he con-

ds. Because of the lengthy eonference‘procedure, however, the credit code
couldn’t be ready for state legislatures before 1968, he says. ca

THE ROLE op BUSINESS

In Salt Lake City, for €xample, ‘the Consumer Credit C‘ounseling,'s‘ervice of
Utah, Inc., last year aided 433-’famiﬁlies, collecting ang paying to creditorg




—’-_

768 . CONSUMER CREDIT PROTECTION ACT

$426,000. «Tt would have been pecessary for at least 75% of the 433 ‘families we

were servicing to have taken pankruptey had our service not been available,” says

Charles E. williams, president. Generally, the business-suppo od counseling

* gervices don’t charge fees. ‘ : P
]

b—

| : ' B
[From the Wall Street J ournal, Mar. 29, 1966]
Rmvmfw AND OvuTLOOK—THE VIRTUE OF PROFLIGACY

Among Inland Steel Co.’s 22,000 production employes in the Chicago ared,
nearly 10% ‘have a portion of their wages withheld every payday to .pay oft
delinquent debts. While the Inland workers pmbably' aren’t typical of the whole
population, their dreary credit record helps point up a growing national problem.
Consumer credit ou‘tstanding has nearly doubled in the past seven years, rising
tonearly $90 billion. Though most Americang use credit responsibly; an increasing
‘pumber are submerging themselves in overdue obligations; the result, as a recent
story in this newsxgaper reported, can be personal tragedy, even guicide. :
. Obviously, then, ‘cause for serious concern, and yet some of the approaches to
the problem seer incapable of offering anything like a full solution. !
. Labor unions and other groups are urging pew . laws to defend peleaguered
debtors, and -per’ha‘ps certain chapges are needed. It seems excessive, for instance,
to allow Federal and state tax collectors to seize & man’s entire paycheek or to
permit Kentucky businessmen to take all but $16.87a week. . :
There’'s more than 2 chance, however, that the process of legal change will
g0 too far, As a number of businessmen and other creditors are arguing, the
pation has come a long way since the days of debtors’ Drisons; personal vbanl_i-

ruptey laws and other statutes now often make it possible for debtors to avoid
paying most or alliof their legitimate obligations. : .
‘Any further legal revisions surely should be fair to creditors as well as
debtors, and not only tor reasons of equity. Credit is essential to the present-
ay economy, and many businessmen simply may not extend it if laws are
passed to unduly weaken their ability to colleet from customers.

Tven-handed diebt-collection jaws, in any case clearly can’t make all Ameri-
cans use credit rationally.' Nor will it help much to require, as the Administra-
tion proposes, that all lenders state credit costs in the same wWay. If a consumer
‘is foolisp enough to overburden himself with: debt, it won't matter greatly whether

n.

. More productive might be. an extension of credit .education through the na-
‘tion’s school, & process that is already under way. Something can be said, too,
-for stricter enxforeemen,t of present laws to curb deceptive and dishonest lenders;
they may be 2 gmall minority, but there’s no question that they exist.

Beyond that, a lot of quite reputable businessmen can’t escape 2 share of the
responsibility for the troubles in consumerfcr‘edit. High~p0~wered advertising and
-promotion has helped produce vast changes in public attitudes toward debt over
the past three O four decades.. Maybe it was overly puritanical to consider
orrowing almost a sin, a8 many of our fathers did, but the pendulum 1NOW per-
“haps has swung too far in the other direction. In not a few business establish-
sments today & customer who, wants to pay cash finds himself regarded as a bit

uliar. : SR :

" In their own interest, jenders: could stand a stronger dash of gelf-restraint. )
"By paying 2 little less attention to poosting their pusiness and a little more to a
“HOTTOWETr'S actual ability to repay, they not only would proteet their own golvency
“put possibly head off new restrictive legislation.

~It's more than slightly jronical that the source of some of that legislation
proba*blsf would be the same Federal Government whose own carefree fiscal ant
-monetary policies have done SO much to foster an easy-come—easy-go phiﬂosotp‘hy
among the public. The 'way Washington: has been living it ub, it may be sur-
prising that 'a large proportion of the DO lation still remains free ‘of  credit
‘woes. ! : : .
Many of these fortunate ones, of course, are sustained mainly by the present
“high level of  prosperity. 1f more widespread trouble is to be averted in some:
perhaps not distant future creditors, debtors and the Government all had better
-get over any npotion that profligacy now.is a positive virtue. :




CONSUMER ¢REpIp PROTECTION ACT 769

- INLAND Srigy Co.,

. ‘ August 3, 1967,
Hon, Frang Aivavzro, }
House of Repmsentatives, )
Subcommittee on Consumer Affairs,
‘Commitiee on B(mkmg and Currency,
House 0 Hice Bm’ldmg,
Wash‘mgtm, D.c.

Dragr CONGRESSMAN ANNUNzIO : Mr, Joseph L., Block, Chairman of Inland
Steel Company, has askeq me to reply. to your letter of July 29, 1967 concerned
with H.R, 11601, the Proposed Consumer Credit Protection Act, of which yoy
are a cosponsor in the House of Representative‘&. You were 800d enough to en-
close g COpy of the Proposed, legislation along with a summary of it. o

The Provisions of the proposed bill which have g, direct relationship to our
‘Operation are those requiring fyl] disclosure of credit termg and Drohibiting the

1o harm to the buying public, Probaply We cannot assess the ful] advantage of
disclosure until we have €xperienced it ip practice, i

age garnishmentg constitute g heavy ang Ccostly admini@tr*aﬁv'e burden for
‘this Company. In fact in your a‘bove-mentioned letter you referred to certain
ics about Inland that appeared in a Wap Street Jouwrnay article of last
year. For your information we do not bursue a policy of disachar'g'ing employees

Droblems tg which any employees find themselveg Subject,

Perhaps also should be added the observation that garnishment actions con-
stitute an undue burden for our courts which are already Severely taxeq by other
kinds of litigation,

We hope the foregoing comments may pe helpful to you in your consideration
of the Proposed legislation,

Needlesg to say we are grateful to yoy for your thoughtrti letter in Soliciting
Such observa tions as we might care to make,

S‘ineerely yours,
GEoRan A, Ranney,
Vice President ang Generay Counsel,

.
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known to the workers; (2) was the application’ of the rule nondiscriminatory;
and (3) were there exbenuating‘circumstances? R

Reasonableness of Rules—A rule that provides for automatie discharge after
a single garnishmeht is not regarded as reasonable by arbiters, Fisher finds.
‘While rules gpecifying «two times and out” have been okayed, many arbiters:
gseem -to favor withholding the discharge penalty until the third garnishmentF
One arbitrator gave this explanation: ;

“Many companies have established the practice of terminating employees after
their third wage or salary Jeduction. This may seem harsh to those who are
perpetually in financial difficulties; put at least the employees are put on notice ;:
they are counseled and . . . warned that future financial involvement of this
kind will result in ﬂischarge.?’ (44 LA 87 ).

Arbiters invariably insisted that employees be amply warned of a garnishment\
. rule, Fisher notes. Thus, discharges were invalidated where (1) the company
had not posted or otherwise disseminated its garnishment rule (14 LA 87) 5

(2), no preliminafy warning was given prior to 2 “final” warning (46 LA 822) ;
or (3) the contract, which contained a new and stiffer rule, had not yet been
printed (43 LA 1268). : ;

Bqual Treatmem.——Application' of a policy against garnishments must be
regular and predictable, with the same corrective escalations of discipline ap-
plied to all employees if arbiters are to sustain a discharge, Fisher says. Thus, &
discharge for a third gamishment was set aside where it was shown that in six.
similar cases, only three had been discharged. (27T LA 160).

But a too mechanical observance of a disciplinary schedule also may be

rejected by an arbiter. Where the policy called for a warning for a third garnish-
ment and discharge for a fourth, 2 company should not have discharged an:
employee when the third and fourth garnishments arrived on the same day, an.
arbiter said. (87 LA 85). g ¢
Eaxtenuating C{'ircumsta/n-ces.———ln garnishment cases, arbitrators reinstate more
workers becausg of extenuating circumstances than for all other reasons com-
bined, Fisher notes. Extenuating circumstances jnclude discharging the debt
through bankruptey, ‘speedily lifting it prior to discharge, lack of knowledge of’
the debt, a good work record, or 1oss of income due to chronic layoffs.

One arbiter, Benjamin Roberts, noted in a recent address that discharges for
garnishment are being given 2 closer look by arbiters these days.

A discharge may be set aside, Roberts said, if it appears that the employee
had found himself in unusual and difficult circumstances not necessarily of his
own making. If extenuating circumstances are found, reinstatement may be
directed on the condition that there be no further garnishments and that the ex-
isting liabilities be liquidated a8 soon as possible.

State 1legislatures currently are showing an jnterest in this subject and are
considering restﬁcting management’s right to discharge for garnishment. Hawaii,
for example, has adopted such a law.

ar——

GARNISHMENT SrILL BIie THREAT TO ‘WORKERS IN DEBT

i Despite the determined fight of unions to prevent the firing of workers whose
wages are garnisheed, the worker in debt whose wages are garnisheed more than
once or twice ig in grim danger of losing his job.

A study of widespread arbitration cases published in the current Monthly
Labor Review by the U.s. PDepartment of Labor comes to the conclusion that
garni§hment~—a1thox1gh an off-the-job «offense”’—has come to be regarded as hav-
ing_ equal status with such on-the-job offenses as fighting, drunkenness or theft.

“Wuthor of the study, Robert Ww. Fisher, notes that unions ‘‘do not accept dis-
charge of workers for garnis-hment with equanimity primarily because such dis-~
charges smack of employer control of the employee’s private life—the philo-~
sophical root of the questioning if discharged for garnishment.”

He further notes, however, that in the absence of protective legislative or a
specific clause in the collective bargaining agreement, most arbitrators accept too
frequent wage garnishment as a legitimate “just cause” for discharging & worker.
Asa rule, Fisher found, arbitrators took the position that garnishmen’t repre-
gented a purden on employers who are subject to narassment by creditors, the
necessity for keeping special accounts as well as being called into court under
certain conditions. ; ‘

Having accepted garnishment as @ “just case” for discharge in principle, most
arbitrators seek to lay down mitigating conditions, One arbitrator stated that
|

i
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“discharge should be ugeq only when employee behavior affected the employer-
- .employee relationship,” and that “pay attachments Were definitely in the twi-
light zome,” .

He wag critical of civi] law that Permitted creditors, many of whom knowingly
bermitted workers to overbuy, ‘to “wipe out the Day envelope” gng even have g
man dischargeq, Nevewtheless, he and other arbitratory accepted the “just cause”
‘Principle, but have workeq out a number of “reasonable rules” Surrounding job
loss.

One is the number of garnishments, Fisher reported that most arbitrators
would not permit the firing of g worker for the first garnishment; many would
permit two garnishments within 4 stipulated time, Three garnishments, however,
appeared to be enough to warrant firing in most of the arbitration cases studied.
. Amother factor taken into account by arbitrators wag whether g company had
amply warned itg ‘workers of definite garnishment ryjeg that may lead to
ischarge, -

ment of discharged workers were lack of knowledge of the- debt; brompt pay-
ment of the debt; going into vbankruptcy which extinguishedq the garnishment
rd. . :

Proposals,
You have made your position so clear that I don’t have too many
questions to ask of you.

r. Abel, Congressman Annunzio hag introduced into our hearing
record a letter from the board chairman of Inland Stee] Corp. sup-
porting the provision of H.R. 11601 to abolish wage garnishment, as
a terrible annoyance and expense to the employer and a crye] thing for

you ‘havé‘-"cdn’tré;ets; wotild you say this is the p'rwvailing sentiment, of
the employers you deal with ?

Mr. Aggr, Very definitely T would.

As a matter of fact, per aps Inland is more lenient with theip views
toward this problem than are most companies, Inland ig one compan
that doesn’t discharge their employees because of garnishments but
many companies do.

1s. SuLLIVAN. Do You know whethep any of these companies hayve
debt counsellors who help employees who get themselves int, financial
trouble ? .
. Mr. Aerr. There s some of that in the.personnel departmemts, but it
isn’t a large Practice, e '
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Again, the companies take the position that this is a cost and some-

thing they can’t afford. It is bad enough the burden is placed upon

them to make the collections and do the paperwork and take care of
the creditors. So, there ssn’t too much of that.

As I say, in a number of cases they just discharge them, sometimes
on one garnishment, and other companies have 2 policy of perhaps
three garnishments and then the employee loses his job.

Mrs. SULLIVAN. There is another subject that 1 want to bring up, but
first T will yield to Mr. Annunzio.

Mr. Anwounzio. Thank you, Madam Chairman. ,
T take this op ortunity to welcome the distinguished president of
the United Steelworkers of America to our committee hearings and
also to commend him for his very forthright position with reference
to H.R. 11601, : :

" As o former legislative representative of the United Steelworkers for
the State of Illinois, T am naturally tremendously delighted to wel-
come you, Mr. Abel, to our committee, and I would like to state for the
recorg that Mr. Abel, as the leader of 1,250,000 steelworkers, represents

‘the American dream. 1
" Mr. Abel is 2 steolworker—he started to work in a steel plant, and
‘through the ?)roce«sse)s of industrigl democracy, he now has risen to
the position of the head of one of the largest industrial unions in
America. . A

We know in today’s union structure. an industrial union does more
than protect the rights of the workers as far as wages and hours are
ooncerned. The union also contributes to American industrial society
by educating and protecting the workers regarding the rights they
have under our Constitution. )

Mr. Abel, I am tremendously pleased with the position you took:
with reference to the garnishment section of HLR. 11601, and I know

that my other colleagues on the subcommittee who cosponsored the bill
with our distinguished and charming chairman, Mrys. Sullivan from

Missouri, also appreciate your forthright position.

7 As T stated to Mr. Wirtz, the Secretary of Labor, who is on the Com-
mittee which the President ordered to conduct a study some 5 months
a%o for garnishment of wages, I know that you are a viee president
of the AFI-CIO, you are & member of that executive board, and you
are truly 2 representative of labor appearing before this committee.
The legislative director of the AFI-CIO, who appeared before this
committee Tecently, stated that the national labor movement of Amer-
ica had no official labor policy with reference to garnishment, but I
know that every State labor federation in the country has formulated
a position and that we are against garnishment.

[ know that my colleagues who sponsored this bill would be grate-
ful for an official statement from the national AFL-CIO and we are
tremendously grateful for your very forthright position on the gar-
nishment provisions.

Mr. Abel, for the benefit of the committee can you tell us if the steel-
workers union has an education program ¢

Mr. Appr. Yes, Mr. ‘Annunzio, we do have a very good one, I think,
T would like to say that the steelworkers—one of the first things that
Philip Murray did in establishing the steelworkers union was to set up
- an educational department, and emgloy an educational director. We

have since| that time expanded our orts, both in an attempt to bring
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about better understanding, qualify our representatives better to ren-

der a greater service to the membership. ‘

As a result, we have programs, resident rograms in the city of

Pittsburgh for staff people, a staff that numbers some 1,260, so that
they are kept current and better qualified.

- Wehave going on at the present time throughout the country on the
campuses of universities and colleges throughout the country some
27 of them, summer institutes and we will %Iave -at these institutes
roughly 25,000 local union officers, committeemen, and members where
‘we attempt to acquaint them, better acquaint them with the problems
of the day and even getting into problems such as we are discussing
here today—truth in lending, credit charges and that sort of thing,
hoping that through this process we make them not only trade union-
ists but better citizens.

Since you have given me the opportunity, I might report to the
committee that since 1947 we have sponsored quite a scholarship pro-
ﬁra)m in our union and between our local unions and our districts we

ave since that time granted 1,160 scholarships to youngsters who
otherwise would not have an opportunity to go to college, and these
1,160 scholarships represent an investment of better than $1,500,000
in this kind of effort. ‘

So, we are very much interested in educational programs.

Mr. AnNuNzio. As the president of 1,250,000 steelworkers—for the
benefit. of the committee and the reeprd—would you tell us the States
in which the steelworker union are located ? :

Would that be too difficult a job for you or could you answer that
for the record when you get the transeript ¢ '

Mr. Arer. We could give very definite coverage, but I would say
briefly we have membership in practically every State in the union,
including some membership in Hawaii, membership in Puerto Rico.
Unfortunately, we don’t have any in Alaska, but States where you
wouldn’t maybe expect—in Utah and out in the Western States—
wherever membership in the hard rock lines in fabricating operations.

So, it is practically every State in the Union we find United Steel-
workers of America.

Mr. AxNuUNz10. One more question. If an employee of a plant where
the steelworkers have organized is fired for garnishment, I know that
that worker can go to the grievance committee of the union, and the
grievance committee will protest the firing. ‘

Could you enlighten the committee as to the cost that is involved,
because this is another hidden cost in the enforcement of this law, that
is ultimately passed onto the people? :

Mr. Aper. We have that experience constantly, Congressman, as you
have made the point. Most any problem that a member encounters,
whether it be discipline or discharge, does make him by reason of his
membership entitled to protection and every effort to rectify it. So, we
do find ourselves going to arbitration in many cases where an employee
has been discharged. In some cases we are successful in reversing the

- discharge and reinstating the individual, in some cases the arbiter up-
holds the discharge so we lose.

With respect to the costs of such action, it is difficult to put an exact
dollar and cents cost because of the service required on the part of .
local union officers as well as staff representatives and occasionally
some of our experts.
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But with respect to arbiter’s charges, I don’t think it is any secret
that they, too, have been doing quite well in our society and the average
~ charge of an arbiter now runs about $500 per case. -
So, it would be safe in saying that each one costs at least $500to the
arbiter, to say nothing of the costs of the union’s services. It is a costly
factor. E :
- Mr. Annunzio. In trying to establish the exact cost of these garnish-
‘ments, we find it is costly to the counties involved and it is costly also
to the international unions. The money they are spending to arbitrate
these cases could easily be spent for more worthy purposes than rep-
resenting a man who is losing his job. ' '
- My time is up, Mr. Abel, and we appreciate your coming.
- Mr. Aser. I might add further to what you have said that in many
instances we probably would be ahead to pay the bill that the individual
had rather than having the arbitration charges. ; ‘

‘But then again, I think you must keep in mind, always, that while
we have this problem—and it is a burden to us in our industry—it is
almost unbelievable the impact of this on the lower earning workers
that are unorganized and have no protection such as the union.
~ Mrs. SuLtavan. Mr. Wylie? . ;

Mr. Wyrie. Thank you, Madam Chairman, I, too, would like to
thank you, Mr. Abel, and Mr. Sheehan for being here this morning
and for giving us the benefit of your testimony during our delibera-
tions. Wete you here, Mr. Abel, when I was asking questions of Mr.
Wirtz? '

- Mr. Aper. Yes;Iwas. :

Mr. Wywrie. I have been pursuing a line of questioning all during the
hearings in an effort to gain information. You stated you are for full
disclosure both of!an annual interest percentage rate and in dollar-.

~and-cent terms. I have taken the position that a disclosure in dollars
and cents, in cash amounts, would be more meaningful to the customer
t%an‘za disclosure in interest rate terms alone, would you agree with
that? ‘ - ‘ '

‘Mr. Aper. It has an impact both ways. I think you must realize,
while dollars and cents may be more understandable in many instances,
I think a real understanding is to understand—to wake up one day
to find that maybe you have been paying 147 percent as a usury charge
and this in itself pretty much scares you.

As T pointed out also, one of our own local presidents found. he
was charged 71 percent. Maybe, the actual dollars didn’t concern him

too much and evidently they didn’t. But when he got it translated
into 71 percent and learned that he was paying almost double that
shook him up. !

So, we think it should be in both methods. Percentagewise as well
as dollars and cents wise. , A
* Mr. WyLie. The people who have a revolving charge account, as I
understand it, may represent about 40 or 50 percent, of the credit ex-
tended in this country. : o , o

Now the revolving credit people maintain that to disclose an annual

_ interest rate of 18 percent based on a.11% percent per month revelving

~ charge is not truth in lending but untruth in lending, in that their

annual rate may be something less than 18 percent. I am wondering
it you think it ‘would be just as meaningful if we could amend this
bill so that the interest rate would be disclosed on a monthly basis for

\
\

\

‘e
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all eredit, if that would be more nearly the approach we are trying to
get at in this legislation and in this bill ?

Mr. Aser. Mr. Congressman, there I would have to agree with the
Secretary’s view that this in itself is misleading. Because setting forth
the 114 percent a month certainly can lead people to believe that they
are getting a break, and actually it is not the true fact. An 18 percent
would certainly cause them some pause. ,

Mr. Wyrie. Except for the fact that we are trying to disclose an

interest rate so that customers can compare or make comparison before
making purchases. If one store says we use a 1l4-percent interest rate
and another says we have three-quarters of 1 percent interest rate
per month, that would give a customer more of an opportunity to make
a comparison of purchases than having one say we charge interest at
a rate of 1145 percent. per month and another ai 9 percent per year.
- Mr. Aper. You can make comparisons, that is true, But certainly
in our way of thinking, as we have looked at both banking, financing,
and that sort of thing down through the years, the terms are on an
annual basis. We talk about 6 percent per annum. We talk about re-
turnshon investment -on the -basis of per annum, not on the basis per
month. . g : &

Certainly we feel that this should be kept on an annual basis.

Mr. Wyrie. Thank you; Mr. Abel. '

Thank you, Madam Chairman,

Mrs. SuLrivan. Mrs. Dwyer? , O

Mrs. Dwyrg. Thank you, Madam Chairman. Just one question.

. First of all, I want to congratulate you for a very fine constructive
statement, Mr, Abel. ‘ : ‘ 5

~ Mr. Abel, as a union president what do you think is more meaningful
to your steelworkers during contract negotiations, the annual per-
_centage increase in salary in benefits or the dollars and cents increase
in their weekly pay envelope? Which do they understand best?
. Mr. Appr. Well, that I am afraid would be difficult to givea truthful
answer. Certainly everybody looks at the dollars and cents in the pay
envelope. ‘ ; ‘

But again, we have become accustomed to translating imfrpve-
ments in advancement on a percentage basis—there is a lot of com-
parison and a lot of thinking on the percentage part. A year or two
ago there was much talk of trying to limit t%e“ 1mprovement to 3.2
percent, you know, and now we hear talk of 5 percent. In some cases
even 8-and 10 percent. So it is translated pretty much on a percentage
basis. At the same time we are looking at the dollars, too.

Mrs. Dwygr. Did the 3.2 carry much weight with the worker
himself ¢

Mr. Aser. I think so, more than a flat 5 cents an hour or 6 cents an
hour or 10 cents an hour. ‘

Mrs. Dwyer. Do you think the wife who is interested in the pay
envelope thinks in terms of percentage or does she think in terms of
dollars and cents in the pay envelope ?

Mr. Aper. You always get down to the dollars and cents. Mr. Sidney
Hillman said some years ago about organizing reports when they were
reporting on increase in membership. He said, “Don’t give me the
percentages, give me the facts.” So, no doubt, that is the case with the
housewife—she is concerned naturally with the dollar because it is
the dollars she is spending.

83-340—67—pt. 2——18
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Mzs. DwyEr. She has to budget. She is thinking in terms of dollars
and cents, isshe not ?

Mr. Aser. That is right. :

Mrs, Dwyer. That will be all, Madam Chairman.

Mrs. SurLivan. Apropos of Mr. Wylie’s comment, he may be right
that dollars and cents are what most people think of when they use
credit. However, that is one of the main reasons why we need truth in
lending—to educate people to understand that the cost of credit or the
price of credit is more meaningful for comparison purposes when
stated as an annual rate.

Mr. Bingham ¢

Mr. Binemam. Madam Chairman, thank you.

I just want to join in welcoming Mr. Abel here today, I think we
are all very grateful to him, not only for the work he is doing as
president, of the Steelworkers, but more particularly for taking the:
time and trouble to come here today and present this splendid state-
ment. |

I particularly welcome your statement on garnishment, Mr. Abel.
I think it is very helpful, particularly in light of the fact that AFL-
CIO did not take a grm position, on this matter. Since yow work di-
rectly with the rank and file, I think it is most important that
we have your statement and views. Since I yielded the time previously
I won’t ask any questions.

Thank you, very much. ! B

Mrs. SULLIVAN. Mr. Abel, as a member of the President’s Commis-
sion on Civil Disorders, do you see, as did Secretary Wirtz, a connec-
tion between these disorders and predatory credit policies?

Mr. Aper. I don’t think there.can be much question there. As T said
during the course of my statement, several of us on the Commission
spent all day yesterday in Harlem and in the ghettos of Brooklyn, -
and I don’t think there can be much question in your. mind that this
is a contributing factor. Here is a sizable portion of our people who
are exploited in every degree. i

1 am sure the loan shark, the easy-credit man, has left his mark and
made his contribution to bring about our ghettos in this country.

Mrs. Surrivan. Thank you. I felt sure that you would have a basis
for judgment on that as a member of that Commission.

r. Abel, if we can’t get through the committee a complete prohibi-
tion of garnishment at this time, do you think that a 90-percent ex-
emption on wages, such as thev have in Washington, D.C:, and in New
York State, would be helpful?

Mr. Aper. I think any step in this direction would be better than
where we are at the present time. There is no question in my mind
the extent of confiscation of the paycheck in many of these garnishees
forces the individual to go out and seek credit to tide them over
through this period and it is one of these things that feeds on itself.

Eventually, the individual is beyond his means. I think this is one
of the %lreat problems we find even in our reputable banking institu-
tions who are ¢onstantly urging people, if they have 10 or 12 pay-
ments to make in a month, consolidate them—get one big loan and
pay. This just compounds this problem.

Mrs. Surnivan. I know that putting this provision in H.R. 11601
made many people gasp. The first reaction among lawyers and busi-
nessmen to the 1dea of prohibiting any garnishment of wages seems
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to be one of shock. But I wanted to do a little shocking on this issue
because I think the issue needs to be brought out into the light and
explored. We have received a liberal education on this subject in the
past 2 weeks. I am just sorry that the study ordered by the President
last March has not yet been completed by the Department of Justice,
and by Labor and OEO. ;

But, I think we have made great progress, and I am still going to
push as hard as I can to get something accomplished on this issue.

One other thing: You did not mention anything about our provi-
sion on credit advertising. You have touched so thoroughly on the
other provisions in the bill that I would appreciate your comment on
whether or not you feel the advertising of credit as it is done today
helps to mislead those who want to use credit.

Mr. Aper. I don’t think there is any question—I just mentioned,

as you recall, the reputable banks now advertising consolidation of
payments, and this is just one example. The issuance of credit cards
by a lot of our banks today to again move into this lucrative field,
in my opinion, of easy credit certainly contributes—at least in the
Pittsburgh area there 1s constant advertising and enticement offered
to get people to get credit cards. ‘
- Mrs. Suntivax. We would not, in our bill, stop the advertising of
credit—only the misleading type of advertising where they might ad-
vertise 4 or 3 percent and then you come in and find it is several times
that much.

Mr. Aper. That is right. I think there is no question, there is a lot
of this that has built this thing up to proportions and it is in a dan-
gerous area in my opinion—in our opinion. ‘

Mrs. Suvrrivan. Again, I say thank you very much for giving us
your time, your thoughts, and your help on this legislation.

Mr. Aser. We thank you and your committee for this opportunity
to express our appreciation of the fine work you are doing in pointing
up this problem and paving the way, we hope, for some remedial action
that is going to help alleviate this condition.

‘Mr. AxNunzio. Madam Chairman, I also wanted to express my
appreciation to Mr. Jack Sheehan, legislative director of the steel-
workers union, for the very constructive help he gives to this ¢om-
mittee. ‘

Mrs. Surivan. Thank you very much.

Our next witness this morning is the Director of the Office of Emer-
gency Planning in the Executive Office of the President, former Gov.
C. Farris Bryant, of Florida, whose job it is to prepare the plans for
the day we hope will never come—when the United States would again
be fighting for its survival in a world war.

The legislative authority for most of the planning work done by
Governor Bryant’s office is the Defense Pro£1ction ct of 1950—or
what is left of it. This legislation comes within the jurisdiction of our
committee so we have had the pleasure of having Governor Bryant
testify on previous occasions.

Our reason for asking you to appear this morning is to discuss with
us the position of the administration on the question of adding to our
arsenal of economic defenses, in time of national emergency, the au-
thority to establish limits on the use or extension of credit. War or the
threat of war always sets off an inflationary spiral, particularly in
civilian goods which would undoubtedly become scarce in time of
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war, and this affects the entire economy. We had credit controls dur-
ing World War II, and for part of the Korean war. This committee
tried last year to reestablish—not the controls—but the authority for
them during a national emergency. However, we were badly beaten
on the House floor. One of the reasons we were badly beaten was the
charge that we had not held hearings on this issue—that it was added
to the bill ‘as an amendment after the hearings ended.

We have provided such standby authority in section 208 of this bill,
and now Governor Bryant, we want to go into that with you."

STATEMENT OF HON. FARRIS BRYANT, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF
EMERGENCY PLANNING; ACCOMPANIED BY MORDECAI M.
MERKER, GENERAL COUNSEL; AND LEONARD SKUBAL, CHIEF,

~ ECONOMIC STABILIZATION DIVISION |

Mr. Bryaxt. Madam Chairman and members of the Subcommittee
on ‘Consumer Affairs, T am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss
with you H.R. 11601.

" The Office of ‘Emergencg Planning is involved in the development
of preparedness plans and programs which are intended for use in
the event of an extraordinary national emergency situation. Included
in such plans is legislation specifically covering consumer credit con-
trols. Tf such controls become necessary, we would submit draft legis-
lation to the Congress. :

~ We have taken this approach in our planning for two reasons:

- (1) If consumer credit controls become necessary, a program admin-
istered by the President should have the support of the Congress, and

(2) If consumer credit controls become necessary, legislative support
for such a program would have the best chance of enactment at that
time. ‘ :

There appears to be general legislative authority for consumer credit
controls in section 5(%)) of the Trading with the Enemy Act (50
U.S.C. App. 5(b) and 12 U.S.C. 95a). I have discussed that law in
‘some detail in my report to the chairman of the House Committee
on Banking and Currency, By citing this authority I do not mean
to imply that we would plan to rely upon it without further con-
gressional action. In a most extraordinary emergency situation, how-
ever, it could be used. ,

Accordingly, we do not feel that more standby authority, such as
section 208, is needed at this time. If, however, the Congress decides
to enact such additional authority at this time, we strongly rec-
ommend that no restriction, such as the restriction contained in the
last sentence of section 208 with respect to real estate credit, be included
in such legislation.

The other provisions of H.R. 11601 which would require full dis-
closure of credit charges would be in accord with the President’s pro-
gram. Those provisions, however, are not within the responsibility of
the Office of Emergency Planning, and I defer to the departments and
agencies having a direct interest in the subject matter.

Mrs. Surrivan. Thank you, Governor.

T want to make a comment before we begin the questioning. Inci-
dentally if we don’t have time to complete the questioning, I have
a series of questions I will read into the record for you to answer
when you correct your transeript.



CONSUMER CREDIT PROTECTION ACT 779

Mr. Bryant. Thank you very much.

Mrs. Suriivan. Governor, this committee of the House, more than
any other, recognizes the problems of your agency in preparing for
eventualities we hope will never occur.

I personally think—and have expressed this on numerous occasions—
that we should have on the books all of the necessary authority—
standby authority—we would need in a war situation. That includes
price, wage, salary, and rent stabilization powers, credit control au-
thority, rationing—nobody mentions that word and yet in a war situ-
ation it would become instantly essential to have such powers.

Why don’t we write these things into law when there is no emer-
gency—when we can look at the problems calmly and with reason
without trying to translate national polic durin% a war emergency
into a question of whether controls should help the retailer to get a
refund (}from the wholesaler or the wholesaler from the manufacturer.

The Korean war started on a June day and it was September before
the Defense Production Act was enacted. Even then it couldn’t be
put into operation in major particulars until the following January.

In the meantime, the Consumer Price Index went up 1 percent a
‘month. We are trying to help you do your job for the American
people. But there 1s too much timidity in facing up to these issues
until an emergency is actually upon us and then I tlglnk it ig far too
late. This is my speech. But it is something I have believed should be
done ever since 1953 when we voted to take the standby economic
powers out of the Defense Production Act. That act was passed in
1953 over my nay vote. I have been trying to do something about
this issue ever since. I feel very much concerned about it.

With that I will turn the questioning over to the other members
until they have exhausted their time. , :

~ Mrs. Dwyer? ¥

Mrs. Dwygr. I have just one question. _

T am happy to welcome you, Governor, to this committee. I might
say to the chairman that he is doing an outstanding job as a chairman
of the Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations.

My question 1s, Do you believe, and I don’t think you do from your
testimony, that consumer credit controls should be in a truth-in-lending
bill at this time?

Mr. Bryant. Really, I would have to say that I do not think that
they ought to be in any bill at this time, I would not particularly
relate it to truth in lending. It is our position that the development
of emergency credit controls is related to the total problem of economic
and other emergency controls and ought not to be considered until
the shape of the emergency is more easily and completely discernible
than it is now.

Mrs. Dwyzrr. Thank you.

Mrs. Svrnivan. Mr. Bingham?

Mr. Bineraym. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

1, too, would like to welcome Governor Bryant.

T want to compliment him on the work that he is doing. I would
just like to ask one question, Governor.

Would you develop a little further the thought contained in your
statement that if there is a restriction—that if Congress does decide

to enact this emergency authority at this time that you recommend
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there be no restriction with respect to real estate credit as is now con-
tained in the last sentence of section 208 ¢
Mr. Bryant. Yes, sir. The problem of credit control is not really a
separable problem, and if it is attempted, it ought to be attempted
in its broadest aspects, and, therefore, in our planning, we do prepare
to submit control measures which would control the entire spectrum
of credit including real estate credit. ~
Mr. BingaaM. Was real estate credit included in the regular uses
during the Korean war, for example ?
Mr. Bryant. Yes, sir.
~ Mr. Bingmam. Thank you very much.
- Mrs. Surrvax. I have a few questions that T would like you to
- answer now; and then, Governor, if there are others, I will submit

- them for the record for you to answer in writing.

- First, as T understand your position in your recent letter to Chair-
man Patman, you are claiming that since President Roosevelt on Aug-
ust 9, 1941, 26 years ago, issued Executive Order 8843 establishing
regulations over consumer credit on the authority of section 5(b) of
the Trading With the Enemy Act, originally enacted in 1917 , that the

~ President could still adopt emergency consumer credit controls by

Executive order pursuant to section 5(b) of the Trading With the
Enemy Act. Is that correct ?

Mr. BryanT. Yes, madam.

- Mrs. Surrivaw. Could you tell me specifically what provisions of
section 5(b) of the Trading With the Enemy Act could be relied on
to support consumer credit regulations by Executive order ?

I ask this question because the title 'of section 5 of the Trading
With the Enemy Act is “Suspension of Provisions Relating to Ally
‘of Enemy; Regulation of Transaction in Foreign Exchange of Gold
and Silver.” The annotated code indicates that practically all execu-
tive actions taken under this provision have related to foreign trade
and exchange matters and not to control of domestic consumer credit.
- __Mr. Bryanr. May I refer you, Madam Chairman, to title 12 in the
- U.S. Code Annotated, section 95(a), subsection (1) (A), in which the
President is given autherity, “to” investigate, regulate, or prohibit
transfers of credit or payments between, by, or through, or to any
banking institution.” '

I have not given you a total quotation, but that is the essence of the

language upon which the authority is predicated.

Mrs. Surrivan. T am not a lawyer, so I don’t know whether the
legal meaning of that section can be stretched to apply it to standby
controls or the requiring of a minimum amount to be put down on
any item that is to be purchased with credit by the ordinary consumer.

Mr. Bryant. Madam Chairman, T have with me today, two persons
that T would like to present at this time, one, Mr. Skubal, Chief of
the Economic Stabilization Division and Mr. M. M. Merker, who is
General Counsel for OEP. .

May I ask him to respond more fully to your legal question?
~ Mr. Merkrr. Madam Chairman, the Executive order which was
issued on August 9, 1941, by President Roosevelt specifically relied
upon section 5(b) of the act of October 6, 1917, which is the Trading
With the Enemy Act. ;
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So, we feel that the precedent of reliance upon that statute at that
time would still be available to us today, even though our planning does
not contemplate it. We would seek legislation at the appropriate time.

Mrs. SuLuivan. Of course, at the time President Roosevelt adopted
this device in the summer of 1941 we did not have on the books a whole
pattern of congressional legislation pertaining to various aspects of
emergency regulation of our economy. Since that time Congress has
spoken on this subject by enacting several laws including the Defense
Production Act, containing legislative authority for consumer credit
controls. It seems to me that the administration is on very thin ground

in relying on a 1917 law for such executive authority when Congress
as recently as 1950 provided such authority in the Defense Production
‘Act and in 1953 deliberately and consciously allowed such authority
to lapse.

Do?l’t you think that there was a clear intention here by Congress,
at least In a limited emergency situation, that the President should
not exercise any such authority without coming to Congress first,
as Pregident Truman did in 1950¢ -

Mr. MergEr. That is why our planning contemplates we would come
to Congress. We mentioned it only in connection with the most extra-
ordinary situation which might arise which would be more than a
normal limited situation where we could appear before Congress. This
authority is still on the books and is still available, but is certainly
not the approach that we are taking, as we have indicated.

Mrs. Suruivan. As I have said, this is the whole reason why I have
‘been trying to-have this issue brought up in a calm situation, when we
.are not in an emergency.

Certainly, the President, or the Federal Reserve Board, would not
use such authority under any except the most urgent circumstances.
So the whole problem should be reviewed by Congress now, not when
it is necessary, or when we are in a hot war, or 1n a situation where
something legislatively would have to be done quickly, and perhaps
too hastily. '

As T stated before, the Korean war started in June, but we didn’t
.get this act passed until fall, and most of it couldn’t be put into effect
antil the following January. 1 can remember very, very clearly what
happened to prices at that time. People rushed out to buy things they
 were afraid would be scarce. There was no regulation as to how much
of a downpayment they had to make on these things. And we did
gointoan inflationary spiral.

Mr. Merkrr. The approach we have taken has been the agency’s
position for about 10 or 12 years, and the reason for that is that at
the time we developed this approach, it was felt that if we proceeded
for legislation without the relatively immediate need for legislation,
that we might have restrictions written into the law, such as the
restriction that is in here at the moment concerning real estate credit,
and other restrictions which might not give us the generally broad
authority which the President ought to have if he 1s to institute a-
program of consumer credit controls.

Mys. SULLIVAN. ‘What would prevent you from sending up a bill and
Jetting us explore it ? As I say, things are calm right now. There would
be no fear that this power was about to be exercised.
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Mr. MerkEer. As I indicated, we felt that was not appropriate be-
cause we would not get the kind of bill we would like to submit and like
tosee enacted. . S

Mrs. SuLLivan. Our staff advises me that you have recognized this
problem in your 6wn docurhents that you have prepared. One of the
most 1mportant documents your agency publishes, called “The Na-
tional Plan for Emergency Preparedness” states in chapter 13:

Economic Stabilization: In a limited war mobilization, without -attack on
the United States, eénergenc‘y medsures would probibly be reguired to stabilize
the economy. Funddmental probléem would be restraining or controlling the
inflation which acce}era:ted mobilization could set in motion, even though in-
flatidnary pressures might not be generated by immediate shortages of food
and services in the early. stages of a limited war the psychological reaction in
such a situation could produce inflationary pressures requiring forceful national
action. i

We could be ap proaching such a situation in the next few months,
for all we know. We don’t know. Under what authority would the ad-

ministration provide forceful, national action in the consumer credit
3 . I i

area if it did not have standby authority already on the books and did
not wish to risk: the psychological redction which would certainly
result from a request to Congress for legislative authority under such
¢ircumstances? T IR

Mr. Bryant. The approach would have to be a much broader
economic approach that one relating only to consumer credit. As I
indicated a nioment ago when the question was whethet or not this
should be included in truth in lending, T said, in my opinion, it should
not be included in any bill until it was approached in its broadest
aspects, that is, until you encompass the entire spectrum of inflationary
OT economic controls. However, we would have no objection to section
208 if the restriction on real estate credit is removed. v

rs. SULLIVAN. We weren’t getting anywhere with this on any other
proposed bill, including the Defense Production Act, where it had
been before, so we put it in with this bill on consumer credit, where we
really think it does belong.

Mr. Bryant. T understand that,

Mrs. Suriivan. I alsonotice that “The National Plan for Emergency
Preparedness” has a section entitled “Index of Authorities” which 18
said to be the “principal Federal statutes and Executive orders con-
cerned with emergency preparedness.” Under the heading, “Principal
Statutes” you list the following laws: The National Security Act of
1947, the Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, the Defense Production
Act of 1950, the St; ategic and Critical Materials Stock Piling Act,
the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949, and
Reorganization Plan No. 1 of 1958. There is no mention anywhere in
that listing of the Trading With the Enemy Act as an authority
for the exercise of emergency consumer credit controls or of any other
domestic emergency preparedness measure.

If the Trading ‘With the Enemy Act is the authority that the
executive branch is relying on to institute emergency consumer credit
controls, how can you explain that this is not cited in your list of
principal statutory authorities for emergency action ? )

Mr. Bryaxt. I think even worse than that, I wrote Chan:tr}an
Patman a letter March 30, 1966, really in response to your inquiries,



